
.  

 AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE SANTA FE SPRINGS 

HOUSING SUCCESSOR  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

AND CITY COUNCIL 

May 4, 2021 
6:00 P.M. 

VIA TELECONFERENCE 

Jay Sarno, Councilmember 
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember 

Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember 
Annette Rodriguez, Mayor Pro Tem 

John M. Mora, Mayor  

****GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20**** 
**REGARDING CORONAVIRUS COVID-19** 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in 
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19. The Governor has issued Executive 
Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act, including allowing the 
City Council to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings 
accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public.  Please 
be advised that, until further notice, City Council meetings will be held by teleconference.  
City Hall, including Council Chambers, is closed to the public. 

You may attend the City Council meeting telephonically or electronically using the 
following means: 

Electronically using Zoom: Go to Zoom.us and click on “Join A Meeting” or use the 
following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/521620472?pwd=U3cyK1RuKzY1ekVGZFdKQXNZVzh4Zz09 
Zoom Meeting ID: 521620472 Password: 659847 

Telephonically: Dial: 888-475-4499 Meeting ID: 521620472 

Public Participation: You may submit comments in writing by sending them to the City 
Clerk at cityclerk@santafesprings.org. All written comments received by 12:00 p.m. the 
day of the City Council meeting will be distributed to the City Council and made a part of 
the official record of the meeting. You may contact the City Clerk’s Office at (562) 868-
0511 ext. 7314 with any questions. 

https://zoom.us/j/521620472?pwd=U3cyK1RuKzY1ekVGZFdKQXNZVzh4Zz09
mailto:cityclerk@santafesprings.org


City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings May 4, 2021 

2 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL
Jay Sarno, Councilmember
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember
Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember
Annette Rodriguez, Mayor Pro Tem
John M. Mora, Mayor

3. INVOCATION

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS This is the time when comments may be made by citizens on
matters under the jurisdiction of the City Council, on the agenda and not on the agenda.
Each citizen is limited to three (3) minutes.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR 
6. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the Housing
Successor.

Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor Meeting (City Clerk) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve the minutes as submitted.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
7. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the
Successor Agency.

Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Successor Agency Meeting (City Clerk) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve the minutes as submitted.

CITY COUNCIL 
8. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the City
Council.

a. Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:

• Approve the minutes as submitted.



City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings May 4, 2021 

3 

b. Subcommittee Updates
Recommendation:

• Receive and file the meeting report.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
9. Tree Maintenance Services – Award of Contract (Public Works)

Recommendation: 
• Accept the proposals;
• Award a contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. from Anaheim, California

for Tree Maintenance Services; and
• Authorize the Mayor to Execute On-Call Tree Maintenance Services

agreement with West Coast Arborist, Inc.

NEW BUSINESS 
10. Renewal of Five-Year Weed Abatement Services Agreement Services Agreement with

the County of Los Angeles Department of Agricultural Commissioner/Weights and
Measures (City Clerk)

Recommendation: 
• Approve the renewal of a five-year services agreement between the City

of Santa Fe Springs and the County of Los Angeles Department of
Agricultural Commissioner/Weights and Measures for weed abatement
services.

11. Approval of Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of Santa
Fe Springs and The Whole Child (TWC) for use of modular building located at the Gus
Velasco Neighborhood Center (Community Services)

Recommendation: 
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the

City of Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child to extend the lease term by
five (5) months for use of the modular building located at the Gus Velasco
Neighborhood Center with a monthly rent of $523 for the extended period.

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment Number Three to
Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Whole
Child.

12. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities between
the City of Santa Fe Springs and Metropolitan Little League for 2021-2023 (Community
Services)

Recommendation: 
• Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and

Facilities with the Metropolitan Little League for 2021-2023.
• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment No. 1 to Use

Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and Metropolitan Little
League.



           City of Santa Fe Springs 
    Regular Meetings  May 4, 2021 
 

4 
 

13. Recommendation for Implementation of County of Los Angeles Department of Public 
Health, Appendix Z of the Health Officer Order (Protocol for Live Events and 
Performances [Outdoor Seated] for the Concert and Fireworks Show at the annual 
Independence Day Event on July 3, 2021 (Community Services)  

Recommendation:  
• Approve staff’s recommendations for the implementation Plan of 

Compliance for the Concert and Firework Show at the Annual 
Independence Day event on July 3, 2021 

 
14. I-605 EIR Public Outreach/Community Engagement – Award of Contract (Public Works) 

Recommendation:  
• Award a contract to Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc., from 

Riverside, California, for the I-605 EIR Outreach and Community 
Engagement in the amount of $21,859.00; 

• Approve the Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement; 
• Authorize the Mayor to execute Cost Sharing and Reimbursement 

Agreement; and 
• Authorize the Mayor to execute the Professional Services Agreement with 

Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc. 
 
15. Purchase of Holiday Decorations for City Street Light Poles (Public Works) 

Recommendation:  
• Issue a Purchase Order to Display Sales of Bloomington, MN in the 

amount of $74,755.16;  
• Appropriate $74,755.16 from the General Fund Reserve to a 9000 account; 

and 
• Authorize the Director of Purchasing to execute the Purchase Order. 

 
16. Custodial Services – Amendment Number Five to Approve Daily Disinfectant Fogging at 

City Facilities (Public Works) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve Contract Amendment Number Five with EE Building 
Maintenance to add daily spray disinfectant fogging at City Facilities; and  

• Authorize the Mayor to execute Contract Amendment Number Five. 
 
17. Authorize the Purchase and Installation of Emergency Equipment to Eight (8) Ford 

Explorer Police Pursuit Vehicles from Dana Safety Supply (Finance) 
Recommendation:  

• Authorize the purchase and installation of emergency equipment to eight 
(8) Ford Explorer police pursuit vehicles from Dana Safety Supply; 

• Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to issue a purchase order 
in the amount of $104,525 to process this order. 

 
18. Amendment Number One to the Professional Services Agreement with the consulting firm 

MIG to add a sub-consultant for the preparation of an Economic Development Element 
(Planning) 



City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings May 4, 2021 

5 

Recommendation: 
• Approve Amendment Number One to the Professional Services

Agreement with the consultant firm MIG, to add a sub-consultant for the
preparation of an Economic Development Element.

• Authorize the Mayor or designee to execute Amendment Number One.

19. CITY MANAGER’S AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS

20. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclaiming May 16-22, 2021 as “National Public Works Week” (Public Works)

21. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS

22. COUNCIL COMMENTS

23. ADJOURNMENT

Americans with Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the ADA, if you need special assistance to participate 
in a City meeting or other services offered by this City, please contact the City Clerk’s Office.  Notification 
of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring 
that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 

I, Janet Martinez, City Clerk for the City of Santa Fe Springs, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury under 
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing agenda was posted at the following locations; city’s 
website at www.santafesprings.org; and the Town Center Plaza (Kiosk), 11740 Telegraph Road, not less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

April 29, 2021 
Janet Martinez, CMC, City Clerk Date Posted 

http://www.santafesprings.org/


FOR ITEM NO. 6 PLEASE 
SEE ITEM NO. 8A 



FOR ITEM NO. 7
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 8A 



City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Janet Martinez Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
  City Clerk 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 

 

BACKGROUND 
Staff has prepared minutes for the following meeting: 

• April 6, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

Staff hereby submits the minutes for Council’s approval. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
1. April 6, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
• Approve the minutes as submitted.

ITEM NO. 8A



APPROVED: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL  

 
April 6, 2021 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Mora called the meeting to order via teleconference at 6:03 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL                

Members present: Councilmembers/Directors: Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Mayor Pro 
Tem/Vice Chair Rodriguez and Mayor/Chair Mora. 
 
Members absent: None. 
 

3. INVOCATION 
Council Member Zamora led the invocation.  

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Youth Leadership led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Angel Sotelo, from North Star Land Care spoke during public comment.  
 

HOUSING SUCCESSOR 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and vote. 

Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the Housing 
Successor. 
 
  Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor Meeting (City Clerk) 

Recommendation:  
• Approve the minutes as submitted. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Rodriguez, to approve the minutes as submitted, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and vote. 

Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the Successor 
Agency. 

   
Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Successor Agency Meeting (City Clerk) 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 2 
 

 Recommendation:  
• Approve the minutes as submitted. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Trujillo seconded by Council Member Sarno, to 
approve the minutes as submitted, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
8. CONSENT AGENDA 

 Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and 
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the City 
Council. 

 
a. Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting (City Clerk) 

Recommendation:  
• Approve the minutes as submitted.  

 
b. Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement – Award of 

Contract (Public Works) 
Recommendation:  

• Add the Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal and 
Replacement to the Capital Improvement Plan; 

• Appropriate $276,000 from the Utility Users Tax (UUT) Fund to Florence 
Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal and Replacement Project;  

• Accept the bids; and 
• Award a contract to Cora Constructors, Inc., of Palm Desert, California, in 

the amount of $210,700.00. 
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Sarno to 
approve the consent agenda, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
9. Resolution No. 9710 - Approval of Use of Community Development Block Grant Funds 

(CDBG) for the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund (City Manager) 
Recommendation:  

• Open the Public Hearing and hear from anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter; 

• Approve the FY 2021/2022 CDBG unallocated funds to the CDBG 
Revolving Grant Fund as described in the body of this report;  

• Adopt Resolution No. 9710; and  
• Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement to transfer CDBG 

Funds to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund for later use in Santa Fe 
Springs CDBG eligible projects. 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 3 
 

 
Senior Management Analyst, Maribel Garcia provided a brief presentation on Item No. 9.  
 
Mayor Mora opened the public hearing at 6:13 p.m. 
 
There were no speakers for Item No. 9.  
 
Mayor Mora closed the public hearing at 6:13 p.m. 
 

It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez, seconded by Council Member Trujillo 
to approve the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 CDBG unallocated funds to the CDBG 
Revolving Grant Fund as described in the body of this report; adopt Resolution No. 
9710; and authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement to transfer CDBG 
Funds to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund for later use in Santa Fe Springs CDBG 
eligible projects, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
10. Approval of Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of Santa 

Fe Springs and The Whole Child (TWC) for use of modular building located at the Gus 
Velasco Neighborhood Center (Community Services) 

Recommendation:  
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the 

City of Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child to extend the lease term by 
one year for use of the modular building located at the Gus Velasco 
Neighborhood Center. 

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment Number Three to 
Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Whole 
Child. 

 
Family & Human Services Manager, Ed Ramirez provided a brief presentation for item no. 10. 
 
Councilmember Zamora spoke about The Whole Child paying an amount of $275 per month 
to use the City-owned bungalow at the Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center. He stated that since 
there is a possibility that they could remain at the facility for another unanticipated year, the 
rent should be increased to either $500 or $1000. Councilmember Sarno agreed with 
Councilmember Zamora, adding that he believes it’s a matter of The Whole Child paying their 
fair share for the additional year, since there is no guarantee that they will leave if their separate 
building project is not completed on time. 
 
Councilmember Trujillo agreed that the amount they are paying to rent the facility was too low, 
and asked Edmund Ramirez if they could reevaluate the pricing after taking into consideration 
the water, electricity, and staffing. 
 
Edmund Ramirez stated that The Whole Child pays for water and electricity and that in the 
2019 initial agreement, the rent was $523 which included a one-time installation fee of the 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 4 
 

meters to read the water and electricity usage. Once that was completed, only the monthly 
landscaping fee of $250 remained and is being increased based on talks with Public Works. 
 
Councilmember Sarno reiterated that if The Whole Child was leaving in October it would not 
be an issue. But because they might potentially stay until April 2022 and are servicing less than 
5% of City residents, the rent should be increased to about market rate.  
 
Edmund Ramirez stated that there is a provision in the contact for termination within 90 days.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez agreed with Council that the rental price should be increased. 
 
Councilmember Zamora emphasized the need to increase the rent sooner as The Whole Child 
will not be vacating the building in October and should be paying their fair share. 
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Council Member Zamora, 
to table Item No. 10 and directed Edmund Ramirez to inquire with The Whole Child 
on what they would be able to pay for rent, and to report back to the City Manager, 
or to bring it back to the next council meeting, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
11. Approval of Amendments to Agreements between City of Santa Fe Springs and Options 

for Learning and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD) (Community Services) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the 
City of Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at the Los Nietos 
Childcare Center. 

• Approve Amendment Number One to Premises Use Agreement between 
City of Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at Lakeview Elementary 
School. 

• Approve Amendment Number One to Agreement between the City of 
Santa Fe Springs and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD).  

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign amendments with Options for 
Learning and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD). 

 
Family & Human Services Manager, Ed Ramirez provided a brief presentation for item no. 11. 
 
Councilmember Sarno thanked Edmund Ramirez for his work on this item. He also inquired if 
Options for Learning could provide special rates for City employees if the schools have not 
opened to full capacity by the time the City returns to full staffing.  
 
Councilmember Zamora stated that they had already inquired about said rates, and would be 
working with the Finance Department to see who could potentially qualify. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez thanked Edmund Ramirez and his staff for working with Options for 
Learning, and thanked Councilmember Zamora for his work on the committee. She spoke 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 5 
 

about having the opportunity to speak to the teachers who provide the online curriculum to 
students and reported positive interactions.  
 
Edmund Ramirez thanked Council for their guidance, and Councilmember Zamora thanked 
Councilmember Sarno for bringing attention to this item back when he was Mayor during his 
initial term on Council. 
 

It was moved by Council Member Trujillo, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez, 
to approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of 
Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at the Los Nietos Childcare Center.1; 
approve Amendment Number One to Premises Use Agreement between City of 
Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at Lakeview Elementary School; 
Amendment Number One to Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and 
Little Lake City School District (LLCSD); authorize the Mayor to execute and sign 
amendments with Options for Learning and Little Lake City School District 
(LLCSD).by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

12. Resolution No. 9709 – Request for Parking Restrictions during Certain Hours on Altamar 
Place West of Dice Road (Public Works) 

Recommendation:  
• Approve Resolution No. 9709 to implement a parking restriction between 

the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. be implemented on both sides of 
Altamar Place from Dice Road to the westerly terminus along with a tow-
away provision for violators. 

 
Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a brief presentation on Item No. 12.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez, 
to approve Resolution No. 9709 to implement a parking restriction between the 
hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. be implemented on both sides of Altamar Place 
from Dice Road to the westerly terminus along with a tow-away provision for 
violators, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
13. On-Call Professional Engineering Services – Award of Contract  (Public Works) 

Recommendation:  
• Accept the proposals; and 
• Award a contract to each of the twenty-one engineering consulting firms 

listed below for the On-Call Professional Engineering Services for various 
capital improvement projects. 

 
Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a brief presentation on Item No. 13.  
 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 6 
 

Council Member Trujillo inquired whether hiring consultants would assist the department in 
moving forward quicker with projects or would the consultants be working on additional 
projects.  
 
Mr. Negrete stated that the City currently has on-call engineering firms. The only difference 
would be additional consultants to choose from to have the ability to have more work done.  
 
City Manager, Raymond R. Cruz add that there are projects pending that are ready to be 
funded by grants approved by the Governor which are currently pending assistance from 
consultants to begin on the projects.  
 
Council Member Zamora inquired how many projects average a year.  
 
Mr. Negrete stated there are 10-12 projects a year. 
 
Council Member Zamora requested a list of projects that the consultants have worked on the 
past 3-5 years. He also expressed his concerns for the number of consultants being proposed.  
 
Mr. Negrete stated that there is an upcoming Study Session related to CIP projects that will 
provide additional details on the projects.  
 
Mr. Cruz noted that the list can be provided to Council as requested.  
 
Council Member Sarno inquired whether the City pays consultants as we use them. 
 
Mr. Negrete confirmed; the department will reach out to consultants as needed and that is when 
payments are done.  
 
Mr. Cruz provided additional information on why the City is in need for having multiple 
consultants on call.  
 
Council Member Sarno expressed the importance to move forward with projects once the 
consultant agreements are approved.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Council Member Trujillo, to 
accept the proposals; and award a contract to each of the twenty-one engineering 
consulting firms for the On-Call Professional Engineering Services for various 
capital improvement projects, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
14. Acceptance of State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) Funds for the Purchase 

of Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) for the Department of Fire-Rescue (Fire) 
Recommendation:  

• Accept 2018 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) funds in 
the amount of $30,045.28 and authorize the purchase of seven (7) GETAC 
Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) and associated equipment from 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 7 
 

DuraTech USA, Inc. 
 
Fire Chief, Brent Hayward provided a brief presentation on Item No. 14.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Rodriguez, to accept 2018 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) 
funds in the amount of $30,045.28 and authorize the purchase of seven (7) GETAC 
Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) and associated equipment from DuraTech USA, 
Inc, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
15. Tree Maintenance Services – Award of Contract (Public Works) 

Recommendation:  
• Accept the proposals; 
• Award a contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. from Anaheim, California 

for Tree Maintenance Services. 
 
Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a brief presentation on Item No. 15. 
 
Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete stated that Public Works failed to attach the full 
attachments to the agenda item, and forwarded the attachments along with RFP information to 
Council this morning.  
 
Councilmember Sarno asked about the pricing for tree maintenance provided by each bidder.  
 
Director Negrete spoke about the different pricing submitted by each bidder, elaborating on the 
nineteen items on each pricing sheet.  
 
Councilmember Sarno asked why the pricing was not included to Council.  
 
Director Negrete stated that they typically only attach the bid schedule for the winner, and 
provided the additional attachments this morning.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez asked why the other 2 bidders’ proposals were not included, as it 
would provide Council with a better picture of why to go along with staff’s recommendations.  
 
Director Negrete replied that it is because there is no fixed monthly billing amount. 
 
Councilmember Zamora inquired about the differences in the allotted budget amount for tree 
maintenance services, and asked about seeing the numbers for the RFP process.  
 
Director Negrete explained that the costs are usually included when there is a fixed scope of 
work and a fixed cost, and the tree maintenance contract costs depend on that the City’s needs 
are at the time on-call services are rendered. He added that the trees are trimmed once every 
three years on average, but not every tree gets trimmed on that one year period. 
 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 8 
 

Councilmember Sarno requested to see all three of the proposals, and asked if it would be 
possible to have all three contractors on-call and choose them based on what they charge and 
which trees need maintenance.  
 
City Attorney, Ivy M. Tsai recommended against that, as it would be difficult to manage three 
contracts as there would be issues with respect to responsibility. She further clarified that this 
is not a Public Works project where the lowest responsible bidder and bottom line needs to be 
considered, and should instead be determined by different standards based on various factors 
including vendor qualifications. She added that there are different factors involved in making a 
determination, and the itemization is contained within the contractors proposal should Council 
need to reference it. If Council is looking for additional information, they may direct staff to 
provide it. She noted that the current contract expires within a week and additional direction 
will be required to avoid a lapse in maintenance, should Council choose not to make a decision 
tonight. 
 
Director Negrete stated the evaluation criteria included items such as staffing experience, 
equipment, and reference checks. The other two bidders received negative marks on 
responsiveness and customer service due to having less staff available to respond.  
 
City Manager Raymond R. Cruz emphasized the points made by the City Attorney. 
 
Councilmember Zamora requested information on the meeting in which Council authorized to 
go out for RFP for this item and expressed his desire at wanting to compare pricing for all three 
proposals.  
 
Councilmembers Trujillo and Sarno expressed interest in also wanting to compare prices.  
 
Director Negrete requested clarification on how long to go without services.  
 
Councilmember Sarno made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Trujillo, to table the item 
to the next council meeting, and authorize the City Manager to extend the current contract by 
30 days. 
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Sarno, 
to approve the proposed revenue and expenditure adjustments as detailed in 
Attachments A through C, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

COUNCILMEMBER REQUESTED ITEM 
16. Santa Fe High Graduating Banner Support (City Manager) 

Recommendation:  
• Provide direction on the establishment of a Santa Fe High Graduation 

Banner Support. 
 
City Manager, Ray Cruz provided a brief presentation on Item No. 16. 
 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 9 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez expressed her support for the banners and stated that due to the 
pandemic  
 
Council Member Trujillo expressed her concerns for the number of items listed on the report to 
be approved and why other schools were not listed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez stated that due to the pandemic the school did not have resources 
and opportunities they should have last year, which is why they are listing the number of items 
to be approved.  
 
Council Member Trujillo inquired whether the school had more than one bid. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez stated that the City had two bids; the other bid was for $25,000 and 
this one was lower.  
 
Discussion ensued amongst Council.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Council Member Zamora, 
to approve the cost of banners for $15,503.77, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
17. CITY MANAGER AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS 

• City Manager, Raymond R. Cruz spoke about the recent Leadership/Team Building 
session.  

• Senior Management Analyst, Maribel Garcia provided a brief update on the restaurant 
grant program. She noted that on March 18, 2021 all grant checks were hand 
delivered. She expressed how all restaurant owners were grateful to receive the 
assistance.  

• Director of Planning, Wayne Morrell introduced Senior Planner, Cuong Nguyen to 
provide the presentation on behalf of the Planning Department.  

• Senior Planner, Cuong Nguyen spoke about the 3rd General Plan Community 
Workshop that took place virtually on March 31, 2021. 

• Council Member Zamora requested for staff to provide information to residents on the 
cost of cleaning properties that have wells to make the community aware that it is not 
easy to place any type of developments in the City.  

• Council Member Sarno spoke about the land on Bloomfield and how there was a 
similar situation on the cost to clean the wells. He also expressed the support to 
educate the community on the process and cost of land that has wells.  

• Planning Director, Wayne Morrell stated that the purpose of these community 
meetings is to obtain the view of the community. However, he will make a note for 
future meetings to include information for the community on what the cost is on these 
type of developments.  



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 10 
 

• Director of Police Services, Dino Torres spoke about the process of obtaining a permit 
to have yard sales in the City. He also provided an update on schools having students 
coming back to school in person. Last, he stated that his public safety staff was out 
the past weekend visiting the parks monitoring the reopening of the parks based on 
the health order.  

• Council Member Zamora requested to have additional patrol by the schools Monday 
through Friday.  

• Director of Police Services, Dino Torres noted that his staff will have that part of their 
routine to go by schools to ensure everyone’s safety.  

• Fire Chief, Brent Hayward provided a brief update on Los Angeles County’s 
percentage of COVID-19 cases. He expressed the percentage has gone down 
significantly to 1.40%. He also spoke about the COVID-19 vaccines that will be arriving 
this week and whom is currently eligible in receiving the vaccines. He also added that 
Chasen Holland and Tim Taylor have just passed probation and earned their badges. 
Last, he congratulated Kevin Yang, who was just hired as the Deputy City Marshall.  

• Director of Finance and Administrative Services, Travis Hickey spoke about the Fiscal 
Health for California Cities. He noted that there are around 450 cities that are part of 
this program and around 118 are at moderate risk.  

• Director of Community Services, Maricela Balderas spoke about Spring Camp, she 
noted there were 23 registered participants and stated great feedback from parents. 
She also spoke about the parks and recreation division whom celebrated Easter 
Activities over the weekend, she stated there were 251 Easter baskets that were 
distributed.  

 
18. PRESENTATIONS 

a. Proclaiming April 30, 2021 as “National Arbor Day” (Public Works) 
b. Proclaiming the Month of April 2021 as “DMV/Donate Life Month” (City 

Manager) 
 

19. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez appointed Angelique Duque to the Youth Leadership 
Committee.  
 

20. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Sarno spoke about attending the General Plan Community Workshop on 
March 31, 2021 he stated it was very informative; he thanked Planning Director Wayne 
Morrell, Senior Planner, Cuong Nguyen and the Consultants that attended. He also 
thanked Community Services Director Maricela Balderas and staff for putting together the 
Easter event over the weekend, especially when children have not been able to attend 
events for a while. He thanked everyone for their help in moving forward.  
 
Councilmember Trujillo spoke about the City slowly going back to normal. She also 
acknowledged the Easter event that occurred over the weekend and acknowledged staff 



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 11 
 

for their hard work. She also congratulated on the most recent promotions.  
 
Councilmember Zamora echoed comments given by his colleagues and acknowledged 
the gift baskets that were distributed to the community members. He also acknowledged 
Community Services Director Maricela Balderas for organizing the event and having a 
great turnout. Last, he acknowledged staff for their hard work and noted that questions 
are asked to inform the community of the information being brought forward for approval.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez  spoke about attending the General Plan Community 
Workshop, she noted she arrived a little late due to having to attend another meeting at 
the same time. She expressed how information the meeting was and thanked staff for 
answering everyone’s questions. She also thanked Senior Management Analyst Maribel 
Garcia for working with the restaurant grant program. She congratulated the recent Fire 
Staff for their new promotions. Last she thanked staff for distributing the Easter baskets 
and acknowledged the great turn out of the event.  
 
Mayor Mora also agreed with the rest of the Council’s comments. He expressed how he 
used to own a restaurant and acknowledges the struggles that restaurants go through. 
She congratulated all newly promoted Fire Staff. Last, he spoke about the Easter event 
and thanked staff.  
 
CLOSED SESSION  

21. THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957) 
Consultation with: Fire Chief, Police Chief and Captain, Director of Police Services, City 
Attorney 
 
CLOSED SESSION  

22. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) 
Name of case: City of Signal Hill v. Central Basin Municipal Water District, Los Angeles 
Superior Court, Case No. 19STCP03882. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

23. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager, Director of Finance, Human 
Resources Manager, City Attorney, Labor Negotiator. 
Employee Organizations:  Santa Fe Springs City Employees’ Association and Santa Fe 
Springs Firefighters’ Association 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

24. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager, City Attorney, Labor Negotiator  



Minutes of the April 6, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 12 
 

Employee Organization: Santa Fe Springs Executive, Management and Confidential 
Employees’ Association 

 
Mayor Mora recessed the meeting at 8:31 p.m. 

 
Mayor Mora reconvened the meeting at 9:25 p.m. 

 
25. CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

City Attorney, Ivy M. Tsai provided a report on Closed Session Items: Direction was given 
to staff and no reportable action was taken. 
 

26. ADJOURNMENT 
 Mayor Mora adjourned the meeting at 9:25 p.m.  
  
  _____________________ 
  John M. Mora 
  Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_____________________     
Janet Martinez  Date 
City Clerk 

 
 



City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Wayne Morrell/Cuong Nguyen Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Planning Department 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Subcommittee Updates 

 
 

BACKGROUND 

Economic Development Sub-Committee 
On April 20, 2021, a meeting was held with Councilmember Joe Angel Zamora and 
Jay Sarno (Council Economic Development Subcommittee), City Manager Ray Cruz, 
City Attorney Ivy Tsai, Economic Development Consultant Jack Wong, Director of 
Planning Wayne Morrell, and Senior Planner Cuong Nguyen.  

The following items were discussed during the meeting: 

1. In reviewing the budget for the Comprehensive General Plan and Targeted
Zoning Code Update, staff discovered a potential surplus.

2. Jack Wong provided a brief presentation to the Council Economic Development
Subcommittee to provide an overview on the purpose and overall benefits of
having an Economic Development Element.

3. The Council Subcommittee was supportive of using the potential surplus
towards the preparation of an Economic Development Element.

4. The Council Subcommittee expressed the desire to keep the entire City Council
more apprised of the ongoing progress for the General Plan and suggested
that periodic Study Sessions be held to provide the Council with updates.

FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager

RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and file the meeting report 

ITEM NO. 8B



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Tree Maintenance Services - Award of Contract 

 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council awarded a two-year On-Call Tree Maintenance Services contract to 
West Coast Arborist (WCA) effective April 13, 2017.  The contract contained a 
stipulation allowing the City Council to renew the contract for an additional two years 
at the end of the term, based on performance and approval by the City Council. On 
March 28, 2019, the City Council amended the contract for an additional two-year 
extension.  The current contract will expire on April 13, 2021, without the option to 
further extend the contract.  At the April 6, 2021 Council Meeting, Council extended 
the current contract for one month to May 13, 2021 and requested further information 
from staff.  

On December 10, 2020, the City Council authorized the advertisement for Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for Tree Maintenance Services, to allow the City to award a contract 
to a contractor that best meets the City's Tree Maintenance requirements based on 
their qualifications and experience in performing similar work. City staff received a total 
of five proposals on January 21, 2021, from the following tree maintenance contractors: 

1. International Environmental Corp
2. Mariposa Tree Management, Inc.
3. North Star Land Care
4. Tiger Tree Services, Inc.
5. West Coast Arborists, Inc.

Staff conducted follow-up interviews with the three top-rated firms.  The interviews 
included the following criterion: Contractors capabilities of providing required tree 
maintenance services, proper equipment, and personnel to provide those services, 
and a history of providing the services to other municipalities. A summary of the three 
top-rated firms is shown below.  

• West Coast Arborists has been in business for close to 50 years, with approximately
330 municipal contracts, over 1,000 field staff, over 100 vehicles available for
maintenance of trees, and over 85 Certified Arborists on staff. Currently, WCA is
the Cities Tree Maintenance Contractor.

RECOMMENDATION 
• Accept the proposals;
• Award a contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. from Anaheim, California for Tree 

Maintenance Services; and
• Authorize the Mayor to Execute On-Call Tree Maintenance Services agreement 

with West Coast Arborist, Inc.

ITEM NO. 9



Tree Maintenance Services – Award of Contract Page 2 of 3 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

• Mariposa Tree Management has been in business for nearly 2 years with 10
municipal contracts, 50 field staff, has vehicles available to perform necessary
works, and has 4 available Certified Arborists on staff.

• North Star has been in business since 2018 with 9 municipal contracts, 16 field
staff, has access to proper vehicles in inventory to provide necessary services, and
has 3 available Certified Arborists on staff.

A three-member evaluation team reviewed each proposal based on project-specific 
criteria, such as the experience and capability of the firm, ability to perform work with 
appropriate staff and equipment, quality of work performed, and total fee proposed / 
bid schedule of rates.  The City is not required to award to the lowest bidder for On-
Call Tree Maintenance Services; since this is not a Public Works Contract as defined 
by the Public Contract Code.  

The evaluation team consisted of Joe Barrios (Transportation Supervisor), Kevin 
Periman (Municipal Services Manager), and Eric Borunda (Streets and Grounds 
Supervisor).  Upon evaluating the proposals, staff determined that West Coast 
Arborists is the contractor best qualified and equipped to provide tree maintenance 
services.  Attached is a summary of the evaluation teams’ rankings of the proposals.  
The proposals submitted to the City and the evaluation score sheets are on file with 
the Public Works Department. 

Based on the evaluation criteria, the proposals were ranked as follows: 

Rank Contractor Base Fee Score 
1 West Coast Arborists, Inc. $ 172,000 94.0 
2 Mariposa Tree Management $ 170,000 87.0 
3 North Star Land Care $ 152,000 80.6 
4 Tiger Tree Service $ 187,500 55.3 
5 International Environmental $ 1,250,000 28.7 

After the April 6, 2021, Council meeting, West Coast Arborists has submitted its Best 
and Final offer of $150,000.  Per their attached correspondence, the offer is made as 
WCA is cognizant that the COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted cities' 
revenues.  Plus they acknowledge that they were being recommended as the number 
one ranked contractor by staff.   

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Proposed funding for the Tree Maintenance Services is included in the Department of 
Public Works budget. 



Tree Maintenance Services – Award of Contract Page 3 of 3 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
The City’s tree maintenance program provides for the general upkeep of the existing 
inventory of approximately 7,000 trees and allows for tree replacement of damaged, 
dead and diseased trees. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Evaluation Summary 
Attachment No. 2:  Agreement 
Attachment No. 3:  Bid Proposals: Mariposa Tree Management and North Star Land 

Care.  
Attachment No. 4:  Best and Final Offer from WCA 



Tree Maintenance RFP 
Summary Evaluation Sheet

1

Criteria
Reviewer 

#1
Reviewer 

#2
Reviewer 

#3
Reviewer 

#1
Reviewer 

#2
Reviewer 

#3
Reviewer 

#1
Reviewer 

#2
Reviewer 

#3
Expereince and Capability of the Firm 10 10 10 25 25 25 20 23 25
Perform work with staff and equipment 5 5 5 10 10 10 7 5 6
Quality of work performed through references 4 5 4 8 6 8 7 7 7
Annual Total Fee Proposal 10 10 8 45 45 45 45 45 45

Subtotal Scores: 29 30 27 88 86 88 79 80 83
Average Scores:

Criteria
Reviewer 

#1
Reviewer 

#2
Reviewer 

#3
Reviewer 

#1
Reviewer 

#2
Reviewer 

#3
Expereince and Capability of the Firm 15 12 15 29 30 30
Perform work with staff and equipment 5 4 5 10 10 10
Quality of work performed through references 8 7 10 10 10 10
Annual Total Fee Proposal 25 30 30 43 45 45

Subtotal Scores: 53 53 60 92 95 95
Average Scores:

International Environment Co. Mariposa North Star

28.7 87.0 80.6

Tiger Tree Services West Coast Arborists

55.3 94.0



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH 
WEST COAST ARBORIST, INC. 

This Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and effective 
as of the 14th of May, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Santa Fe 
Springs, a California municipal corporation, (“City”) and West Coast Arborist, a California 
corporation (“Contractor”).  In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set 
forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. TERM

This Agreement shall commence on May 14, 2021, and shall remain and continue in 
effect for a period of four years, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of 
this Agreement.   

2. SERVICES

Contractor shall perform the services described and set forth in the City’s Request for 
Proposals attached hereto as Exhibit A and Contractor’s Proposal attached hereto as 
Exhibit B (“Services”), both incorporated herein as though set forth in full.  

3. PERFORMANCE

Contractor shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of Contractor’s ability, 
experience, and talent, perform all tasks described herein. Contractor shall employ, at a 
minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in 
providing similar services as are required of Contractor under this Agreement. 

4. CITY MANAGEMENT

The City Manager or designee shall represent the City in all matters pertaining to the 
administration of this Agreement. 

5. PAYMENT

A. The City agrees to pay Contractor for Services satisfactorily performed, in
accordance with the fees set forth in Exhibit B.

B. Contractor shall not be compensated for any services rendered in
connection with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to
those set forth herein, unless such additional services are authorized in
advance and in writing by the City Manager or designee. Contractor shall
be compensated for any additional services in the amounts and in the
manner as agreed to in writing by the City and Contractor at the time the

ATTACHMENT 2















































































































































 

EXHIBIT C 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Without limiting Contractor’s indemnification of the City, and prior to commencement of 
Services, Contractor shall obtain, provide, and maintain at its own expense during the 
term of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below 
and in a form satisfactory to the City. If the Contractor maintains higher limits than the 
minimum limits shown below, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the 
higher limits maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess 
of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City. 
 
General liability insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability 
insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 00 01, 
in an amount not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence, $10,000,000 general aggregate, 
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including, without limitation, 
blanket contractual liability, and a $5,000,000 completed operations aggregate. The 
policy must include contractual liability that has not been amended. Any endorsement 
restricting standard ISO “insured contract” language will not be accepted.  
 
Automobile liability insurance. Contractor shall maintain automobile insurance at least 
as broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering Code 1 (any auto), with 
limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage and to 
be endorsed to include pollution liability (written on form CA9948 or its exact equivalent). 
If such endorsement is not available, then a stand-alone Transportation Pollution Liability 
policy is required.  
 
Workers’ compensation insurance. Contractor shall maintain Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer’s Liability Insurance (with limits of at least 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease).  
 
Contractor shall submit to the City, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of 
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the City, its officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers. 
 
Umbrella or excess liability insurance. Contractor shall obtain and maintain an 
umbrella or excess liability insurance policy with limits that will provide bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage liability coverage at least as broad as the primary 
coverages set forth above, including commercial general liability, automobile liability, and 
employer’s liability. Such policy or policies shall include the following terms and 
conditions: 
 

• A drop-down feature requiring the policy to respond if any primary insurance 
that would otherwise have applied proves to be uncollectible in whole or in 
part for any reason;  

• Pay on behalf of wording as opposed to reimbursement;   



 

• Concurrency of effective dates with primary policies;  
• Policies shall “follow form” to the underlying primary policies; and 
• Insureds under primary policies shall also be insureds under the umbrella 

or excess policies. 
 
Other provisions or requirements 
 
Proof of insurance. Contractor shall provide certificates of insurance to the City as 
evidence of the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement for workers’ compensation. Insurance certificates and endorsements must 
be approved by the City’s Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Current 
certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times during the term of 
this Agreement. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies at any time.  
 
Duration of coverage. Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by 
Contractor, or Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  
 
Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by Contractor shall be primary and any 
insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the CIty shall not be required to 
contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a 
combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess 
insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall 
also apply on a primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of the City before the 
City’s own insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named 
insured. 
 
The City’s rights of enforcement. In the event any policy of insurance required under 
this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, 
the City has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 
premium paid by the City will be promptly reimbursed by Contractor or the City will 
withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Contractor payments. In the alternative, 
the City may immediately terminate this Agreement. 
 
Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company 
currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance or 
is on the List of Approved Surplus Line Insurers in the State of California, with an assigned 
policyholders’ Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in 
accordance with the latest edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved 
by the City’s Risk Manager. 
 
Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against the City, its elected or 
appointed officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow 



 

Contractor or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications 
to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. Contractor hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against the City, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance 
clauses from each of its subcontractors. 
 
Enforcement of Agreement provisions (non estoppel). Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Contractor of 
non-compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the City nor 
does it waive any rights hereunder. 
 
Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits 
contained in this Agreement are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other 
requirements, or a waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific 
reference to a given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to 
a given issue and is not intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the 
exclusion of other coverage, or a waiver of any type.  
 
Notice of cancellation. Contractor agrees to oblige its insurance agent or broker and 
insurers to provide to the City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for 
nonpayment for which a ten (10) day notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for 
each required coverage. 
 
Additional insured status. General liability policies shall provide or be endorsed to 
provide that the City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be 
additional insureds under such policies. This provision shall also apply to any 
excess/umbrella liability policies. 
 
Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the coverages required 
herein will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting 
endorsement of any kind that has not been first submitted to the City and approved of in 
writing. 
 
Separation of insureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds ensuring that Contractor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits 
of liability. The policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 
 
Pass through clause. Contractor agrees to ensure that its subcontractors, and any other 
party involved with the Services who is brought onto or involved in the Services by 
Contractor, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and endorsements required 
of Contractor. Contractor agrees to monitor and review all such coverage and assumes 
all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in conformity with the 
requirements of this section. Contractor agrees that upon request, all agreements with 
contractors, subcontractors, and others engaged in the Services will be submitted to the 
City review. 
 



The City’s right to revise specifications. The City reserves the right at any time during 
the term of the Agreement to change the amounts and types of insurance required by 
giving Contractor ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. If such change 
results in substantial additional cost to Contractor, the City and Contractor may 
renegotiate Contractor’s compensation or come to some other agreement to address the 
additional cost. 

Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved 
by the City. The City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be 
eliminated, lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to 
comply with these specifications unless approved by the City.  

Timely notice of claims. Contractor shall give the City prompt and timely notice of claims 
made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Contractor’s performance under 
this Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required 
liability policies. 

Additional insurance. Contractor shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and 
expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary 
for its proper protection and prosecution of the Services.   































































































































Submitted By:  _______________________ 

ITEM UNIT EXTENDED

 NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

GRID TREE PRUNING

1. Grid Tree Trimming 2,500 EA $ $

2. GPS Tree Inventory and Software 1 LS $

SPECIAL REQUEST TREE PRUNING IN DBH

3. Extra Small Trees (0"-6") 1 EA $

4. Small Trees (7"-12") 1 EA $

5. Medium Trees (13"-24") 1 EA $

6. Large Trees (25"-30") 1 EA $

7. Extra Large Trees (>31") 1 EA $

8. Palm Trees 1 EA $

9. Pine Trees 1 EA $

SPECIAL REQUEST TREE REMOVAL IN DBH

10. Extra Small Trees (0"-6") 1 EA $

11. Small Trees (7"-12") 1 EA $

12. Medium Trees (13"-24") 1 EA $

13. Large Trees (25"-30") 1 EA $

14. Extra Large Trees (>31") 1 EA $

SPECIAL REQUEST STUMP REMOVAL IN DBH

15. Extra Small Trees (0"-6") 1 EA $

16. Small Trees (7"-12") 1 EA $

17. Medium Trees (13"-24") 1 EA $

18. Large Trees (25"-30") 1 EA $

19. Extra Large Trees (>31") 1 EA $

ESTIMATED 

QUANTITY

BID SCHEDULE

TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

IN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

GPS TREE INVENTORY / ONLINE MAINTENANCE ACCESS

Tree Maintenance Services C-2
Bid Proposal

ameli
Typewritten Text
60.00		150,000.00

ameli
Typewritten Text
0.00

ameli
Typewritten Text
50.0090.00190.00190.00270.0090.00320.00

ameli
Typewritten Text
150.00280.00720.00780.00980.00

ameli
Typewritten Text
70.0090.00170.00190.00190.00

ameli
Typewritten Text
West Coast Arborists, Inc.



Submitted By:  _______________________ 

ITEM

 NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE

1. Emergency Call-out (3-man crew w/equipment) HOUR $

2. Labor Rate HOUR $

3. Crew Rental (3-man crew w/equipment) HOUR $

4. Specialty Equipment Rental (100-ft Boom Truck) HOUR $

5. Tree Injection $

6. Arborist Services / Tree Inspection HOUR $

*NOTE:  Equipment, supplies and materials shall be included in the Hourly Rates for Extra

Work and Emergency Call-Out for Tree Maintenance Services.

PER INJECTION

ADDITIONAL SERVICES BID PRICE FORM

TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES

EXTRA WORK AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE

Tree Maintenance Services C-3
Bid Proposal

ameli
Typewritten Text
West Coast Arborists, Inc.

ameli
Typewritten Text
300.0090.00270.00180.0040.00150.00



City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Janet Martinez Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
  City Clerk 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

NEW BUSINESS 
Renewal of Five-Year Weed Abatement Services Agreement Services Agreement 
with the County of Los Angeles Department of Agricultural Commissioner/Weights 
and Measures 

 

BACKGROUND 
The County of Los Angeles, acting through its Agricultural Commissioner/Director of 
Weights and Measures, has been providing weed abatement services for the City of 
Santa Fe Springs, under a renewable five-year weed abatement services agreement 
between the two agencies.  

The purpose of the weed abatement program is to remove the nuisance created on 
certain private properties by weeds and debris. The nuisances are potential fire 
hazards and serve as a haven for rodents and vectors.  

In order to continue weed abatement services with the county of Los Angeles, the 
renewed agreement must be approved by Council. If approved, the agreement will be 
effective July 1, 2021. Through June 30, 2026.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fee to the City for these services. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
1. Weed Abatement Agreement

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
• Approve the renewal of a five-year services agreement between the City of

Santa Fe Springs and the County of Los Angeles Department of
Agricultural Commissioner/Weights and Measures for weed abatement
services.

ITEM NO. 10



WEED ABATEMENT SERVICE 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, dated upon execution by both parties is made by and between the 

County of Los Angeles, hereinafter referred to as "County," and the CITY OF SANTA FE 

SPRINGS, hereinafter referred to as "City." 

RECITALS: 

(a) The City is desirous of contracting with the County for the performance of weed

abatement functions within its boundaries on both unimproved and designated improved 

properties by the County of Los Angeles, acting through its Agricultural Commissioner/Director 

of Weights and Measures. 

(b) The County is agreeable to rendering such weed abatement services on the terms

and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

(c) Such contracts are authorized and provided for by the provisions of Section 56 ½ of

the Charter of the County of Los Angeles and California Government Code (Government Code) 

section 51301. 

THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The County agrees, through the Agricultural Commissioner/Director of Weights

and Measures, to provide weed abatement services within the corporate limits of the City in 

accordance with the provisions of Government Code sections 39560 through 39588.  

Such services shall encompass the weed abatement duties and functions of the type 

coming within the jurisdiction of, and customarily rendered by, the Agricultural 

Commissioner/Weights and Measures Department of the County of Los Angeles under the 

Charter of County and the statutes of the State of California. 

The level of service shall be the same basic level of weed abatement service that is 

currently, and shall be hereinafter during the term of this agreement, provided for in the 



unincorporated areas of the County of Los Angeles by said Agricultural Commissioner/Director 

of Weights and Measures. 

The County shall have the discretion to terminate services on parcels in tax default. 

The rendition of such services, the standard of performance, and other matters 

incidental to the performance of such services, and the control of personnel so employed shall 

remain at the discretion of the County. 

The standard for hazardous vegetation clearance shall be equivalent to that detailed 

within the Los Angeles County Fire Code, sections 325.2.1 and 325.2.2, and this standard being 

the same which currently applies in the unincorporated areas of the County of Los Angeles 

unless some other standard is requested by the City in writing. 

2. To facilitate the performance of said functions, it is hereby agreed that the County

shall have full cooperation and assistance from the City Council and other City officer, agents, 

and employees. 

3. For the purpose of performing said functions, County shall furnish and supply all

necessary labor, supervision, equipment, and supplies necessary to maintain the level of service 

to be rendered hereunder. 

4. No City Employee as such shall be made into, or considered to be, an employee of

the County, and no person employed by the County hereunder shall be granted any City pension, 

civil service, or any status or right. 

For the purpose of performing such services and functions, and for the purpose of 

giving official status to the performance thereof where necessary, every County officer and 

employee engaged in the performance of any service hereunder shall be deemed to be an officer 

or employee of said City while performing services for said City, which services are within the 

scope of this agreement and are purely municipal functions. 



5. City shall not be called upon to assume any liability for the direct payment of any

salaries, wages, or other compensation to any County personnel performing services hereunder 

for the County, or any liability other than that provided for in this agreement. 

Except as herein otherwise specified, the City shall not be liable for compensation 

and/or indemnification to any County employee for any injury or sickness arising out of that 

person's employment. 

6. The parties hereto have executed an Assumption of Liability Agreement approved

by the Board of Supervisors on December 27, 1977, and/or a Joint Indemnity Agreement 

approved by the Board of Supervisors on October 8, 1991.  Whichever of these documents the 

City has signed later in time is currently in effect and is hereby made a part of and incorporated 

into this agreement as if set out in full herein.  In the event that the Board of Supervisors later 

approves a revised Joint Indemnity Agreement and the City executes such a revised agreement, 

the subsequent agreement as of its effective date shall supersede the agreement previously in 

effect between the parties hereto. 

The City understands and agrees that the fire protection indemnity provided in  

Government Code sections 850 and 850.2 applies to the County for work pursuant to this 

agreement. 

7. Unless sooner terminated as provided for herein, this agreement shall be effective

commencing July 1, 2021, and will continue in effect through June 30, 2026.  

Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph hereinbefore set forth, the City 

may terminate this agreement as of the thirty-first day of December of any year upon notice in 

writing to the County on or before September 30 of the same year.  The County may terminate 

this agreement at any time and for any reason upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 

City. 

8. The City, acting through its City Council, will perform the necessary functions

required of the legislative body to which is referred in Government Code section 39560 through 

39588, as they relate to the execution of this Agreement. 



9. If the City fails to adopt a resolution declaring that weeds upon parcels of property

located within the City to be a public nuisance pursuant to Government Code section 39561, then 

the County shall have no obligation to carry out its duties under this agreement until such year 

that the City does adopt such resolution, unless the City’s failure occurs in the final year of this 

agreement, which shall mean the agreement terminates. 

10. It is the intent of this agreement that the Agricultural Commissioner/Director of

Weights and Measures of the County shall constitute the public officer designated by the City 

Council to perform the duties imposed by Government Code section 39560(a), and that the City 

Council of said City shall perform the duties of the legislative body as set forth in said section. 

11. For and in consideration of the rendition of the foregoing services by the County,

the City agrees that the costs of abating such weeds shall be assessed in the manner set forth in 

Government Code sections 39573 to 39585, and that upon collection of such assessments, they 

will be paid over to the County. 

12. Each parcel, except tax-exempt parcels, upon which weeds, brush or rubbish are

declared to be a public nuisance pursuant to paragraph 8 of this agreement, shall be assessed the  

current County Board of Supervisors approved inspection fee whether or not  the County 

determines it is necessary to perform abatement work upon the parcel.  

13. The parties hereto contemplate that the services of the County are limited to

abatement of weeds, brush and rubbish, and agree that the County will not perform any other 

type of service or additional work of any kind. 

14. This agreement contains the entire agreement between the County and the City for

weed abatement services.  This agreement may not be modified except by formal amendment 

executed by the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto. 



15. Notices regarding this agreement shall be addressed as follows:

COUNTY: 

Adrian Zavala 

Deputy Director 

Los Angeles County Department of Agricultural Commissioner/ 

Weights and Measures 

12300 Lower Azusa Road 

Arcadia, California 91006-5872 

CITY: 

City Clerk 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

11710 E. Telegraph Road 

Santa Fe Springs, California 90670



IN WITNESS HEREOF, the CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, by motion duly adopted 

by its City Council, caused this agreement to be signed by its Mayor and attested by its Clerk, 

and the County of Los Angeles, by order of its Board of Supervisors, has caused these presents 

to be subscribed by the Chair of said Board and seal of said Board to be affixed thereto and 

attested by the Clerk of the Board. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

By 
Mayor 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

By 

Chairman, Los Angeles County 

ATTEST: 

By 

City Clerk 

Fesia A. Davenport, Acting Chief Executive Officer 
of the Board of Supervisors 

By 
Deputy 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
BY INTERIM COUNTY COUNSEL 
MARY WICKHAM 

By 
Deputy 



City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Joyce Ryan Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

NEW BUSINESS 
Approval of Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of 
Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child (TWC) for use of modular building located at 
the Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
At its May 24, 2020 City Council meeting, the City Council approved Amendment 
Number Two to extend a one year (1) Lease Agreement with The Whole Child (TWC). 
The extension allowed for continued use of the city-owned modular building adjacent 
to the Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center (GVNC) to operate their Family Housing 
Program.  

The Whole Child’s Family Housing Program remains the lead housing provider for 
homeless families in Southeastern Los Angeles County (Service Planning Area- SPA 
7), and has also now expanded its services to SPA 4 in Los Angeles County. The 
program provides coordinated supportive services (e.g., child and family therapy) and 
linkages to resources through the Departments of Public Social Services, Mental 
Health, and Public Health. In addition, the program provides external resources 
including, legal services, education, and vocational training. Since the beginning of 
the fiscal year to date, the Whole Child has served 32 families in Santa Fe Springs 
and 823 families throughout SPA 7.The Whole Child receives federal funding which 
allows them to provide housing services to all surrounding cities.  

The Whole Child has notified the City that they have purchased a facility in the City of 
Downey to accommodate their growing housing program. The facility is set to begin 
construction this month, and they anticipate it to be completed by October 2021. At 
the April 6 meeting, the City Council considered a proposed amendment to the 
agreement to provide a one-year extension. The City Council provided direction to 
staff to bring back a revised amendment for consideration. Based on City Council 
direction, staff have revised the amendment to the amount of $523.00 per month for 
a five-month term, commencing on June 1, 2021, and ending on October 31, 2021. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City

of Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child to extend the lease term by five
(5) months for use of the modular building located at the Gus Velasco
Neighborhood Center with a monthly rent of $523 for the extended period.

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment Number Three to
Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Whole
Child.

ITEM NO. 11



City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Joyce Ryan Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

The Whole Child continues to be responsible for any costs associated with 
maintenance and repairs to the facility, equipment, fixtures, and interior of the leased 
premises. They will also remain responsible for paying all utilities, including water, 
gas, electricity, telephone, cable, and other utilities used. 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Under the terms of the agreement, rent for the use of the modular building is $523.00 
per month ($2,615 for five months).  

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney has reviewed the proposed amendment. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
1. Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child
2. Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe

Springs and The Whole Child



LEASE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

AND 

THE WHOLE CHILD 

ATTACHMENT 1



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

RECITALS 

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS .................................................. .. 

SECTION 2. LEASED PROPERTY ................................. ......... ............... .......... .. 

SECTION 3. LEASE TERM ............................................................................. .. 

SECTION 4. MONTHLY RENT ......................................................................... . 

SECTION 5. LATE PAYMENT ......................................................................... .. 

SECTION 6. LIMITATIONS ON USE ................................................................. .. 

SECTION 7. PROHIBITED USES ........................ ............................................. .. 

SECTION 8. CONDITIONS OF LEASED PREMISES; MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

SECTION 9. ALTERATIONS BY LESSEE .......................................................... .. 

SECTION 10. MECHANICS' LIENS ...... ....................... ............... ........................ . 

SECTION 11. INSPECTION BY LESSOR ............................................................ .. 

SECTION 12. UTILITIES ................................. .................................................. .. 

SECTION 13. INSURANCE ................................................................................ . 

SECTION 14. INDEMNIFICATION ................................. .................................... .. 

SECTION 15. DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PROPERTY OR BUILDING ... ...... ............ . 

SECTION 16. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING ........................... ........................ . 

SECTION 17. ACTS CONSTITUTING BREACH BY LESSEE ............... .................... .. 

SECTION 18. LESSOR'S REMEDIES .................................................................. . 

SECTION 19. TERMINATION ............................................................................. . 

SECTION 20. WAIVER OF BREACH ................................................................... . 

SECTION 21. NOTICES .................. ................................................................. .. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES .................................................................... .. 

SECTION 23. BINDING ON HEIRS AND SUCCESSORS ....................................... .. 

SECTION 24. SOLE AND ONLY AGREEMENT ...... .............................................. . 

SECTION 25. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ................................................... .... . 

SECTION 26. DISPOSITION OF ABANDONED PERSONAL PROPERTY ................. .. 

SECTION 27. AUTHORITY OF LESSOR AND LESSEE ......................................... . 

SECTION 28. PUBLIC RECORDS ..... .............................................................. .. 

SECTION 29. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES .............................. ......................... . 

SECTION 30. COOPERATION BETWEEN PARTIES ............................................ . 



LEASE AGREEMENT 

This LEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into on this 1st day of June, 2018 
("Effective Date"), by and between the CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, a California municipal 
corporation ("Lessor" or "City"), and THE WHOLE CHILD, a California nonprofit corporation 
("Lessee" or "The Whole Child"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City currently leases to the Whole Child Family Housing program, a nonprofit 
organization whose mission is to provide quality, comprehensive housing services to ensure hard
to-place homeless children and their families in safe and stable permanent housing. 

WHEREAS, the Southeast LA (SPA 7), one of the region's highest-need communities for homeless 
services continues to expand TWC's housing program at a time of enormous need, reaching more 
homeless children and families and ensuring every child has a safe and stable home in which to 
grow and thrive. 

WHEREAS, the City and The Whole Child now enter into the Lease Agreement for the use of City 
property where the Whole Child Family Housing Program will operate. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

All of the recitals are incorporated herein by this reference. 

SECTION 2. LEASED PREMISES 
Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the modular unit located at 9251 Pioneer Blvd, Santa Fe Springs, 
CA 90670 particularly described in Exhibit (1) subject to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Lease. 

SECTION 3. LEASE TERM 

A. Term. The Term of this Lease Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year ("Initial
Term") commencing on June 1, 2018 ("Commencement Date"). Upon mutual agreement by Lessor
and Lessee, subject to the rights of termination as set forth in Section 19.
B. Holdover. In the event Lessee continues in possession of the Leased Premises following
a termination authorized by this Lease or after the expiration of the Lease Term, such possession
will not be considered a renewal of this Agreement. At Lessor's option, Lessor may either take
legal action to remove Lessee from the Leased Premises in accordance with applicable law, or
Lessee's holdover will be treated as a tenancy from month to month governed by the conditions
and covenants contained in this Lease (or as otherwise required by law). During any holdover
period, the Base Rent shall be increased so that it is five hundred dollars ($500.00) per month.

SECTION 4. MONTHLY RENT 

Commencing June 1, 2018, the rent ("Rent") payable by Lessee for the Leased Premises under 
this Lease shall be the sum of five hundred twenty three ($523.00) per month for the Initial Term. 
The monthly rate includes the initial one time fee for electrical and water smart meter installations 
and monthly landscaping costs. In the event Lessor and Lessee agree to extend this Agreement 
beyond the Initial Term and/or any subsequent Extension, the Rent may be increased at Lessor's 
discretion based upon a review of the monthly rent. All rent shall be due and payable, in advance, 
to Lessor on or before the 10th day of every month of the term of the Lease Term. In addition, 
except as otherwise provided in this Lease, Lessee shall provide and pay for all maintenance, 



repairs, upkeep, possessory interest taxes, utilities for interior of the Leased Premises, including 
but not limited to water, gas, electricity, telephone, pursuant to Section 12 and such other costs 
and expenses that are associated with the use and operation of the Leased Premises. 

SECTION 5. LATE PAYMENT 

The failure of Lessee to make any payment of rent within ten (10) days of the due date and, 
therefore, if any rent payment is not made within ten (10) days of its due date, Lessee agrees to 
pay Lessor a ten percent ( 1 0%) late charge. 

SECTION 6. USE AND LIMITATIONS ON USE 

A. Limitation on Use of Leased Premises. Lessee's rights to use the Leased Premises will be
subject to the following restrictions on use, as follows:

1. The Leased Premises shall only be used by Lessee for the Whole Child Family
Housing program Monday through Sunday 24 hours a day.
2. Lessee shall not sublease any portion of the Leased Premises to any other party,
and the Leased Premises shall not be used for any other purpose other than as
described in Section 6(A){1) above without first obtaining the prior written consent of
Lessor.
3. No modifications will be made to any fixtures to the Leased Premises without first
obtaining the prior written consent of the Lessor, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that Lessee shall
be permitted, without obtaining Lessor's consent, to modify any fixtures in the Leased
Premises.
4. Lessee understands and agrees that the Leased Premises are regularly utilized by
Lessor for community and other events. Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting
Lessor's access and use of the Leased Premises outside the time periods set forth in
Section 6(A)(1).

B. Use of Leased Premises. Lessee shall provide family housing and case management
assistance for residents of the City of Santa Fe Springs.

SECTION 7. PROHIBITED USES 

Lessee will not commit or permit the commission of any acts in the Leased Premises, nor use or 
permit the use of the Leased Premises in any way that: 

A. Materially increases the existing rates for or causes cancellation of any fire, casualty,
liability, or other insurance policy carried by Lessor insuring the Leased Premises or its contents
so long as Lessor has delivered to Lessee a copy of such insurance policies;
B. Violates or conflicts with any law, statute, ordinance, or governmental rule or regulation,
whether now in force or hereinafter enacted, governing the Leased Premises;
C. Constitutes a nuisance under state or local law, or otherwise.

SECTION 8 CONDITION OF LEASED PREMISES; MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

A. Condition of Leased Premises. Lessee accepts the Leased Premises As-ls and is
responsible for maintaining the Leased Premises up to a condition necessary for the use of the
Leased Premises pursuant to this Agreement including any federal, state or local laws required for
the operation of the Childcare Program. Any improvements, maintenance and/or repairs paid for
and/or performed by Lessor, shall be in Lessor's sole discretion.
B. Lessee's Maintenance and Repairs. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain and repair the facilities, equipment, fixtures,
and interior portions of the Leased Premises, including the Lessee shall perform all repairs
necessary to the facility, including all interior security gates, interior ceilings, interior walls,
entrances, signs, interior decorations, floor coverings, wall coverings, entry and interior doors,
interior glass (including any plate glass), plumbing fixtures, light fixtures and bulbs, keys and locks,
and any system and/or equipment required or used in connection with Lessee's use under this
Agreement.



C. Lessor Maintenance and Repairs. Lessor shall be responsible for routine maintenance of
the exterior of the Leased Premises and the following interior facilities, equipment and fixtures:
plumbing fixtures, lines for water in the interior of the Leased Premises, HVAC, gas, steam,
sprinkler, fire extinguishers and fire protection systems and equipment, and mechanical facilities.

SECTION 9. ALTERATIONS BY LESSEE 

No structural alteration, addition, or improvement to the Leased Premises will be made by Lessee 
without the written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. Lessee must obtain all necessary governmental permits required for any 
alteration, addition, or improvement approved by Lessor, and must comply with all applicable 
governmental law, regulations, ordinances, and codes. Any alteration, addition, or improvement 
made by Lessee after consent has been given, and any fixtures installed as part of the construction, 
will at Lessor's option become the property of Lessor on the expiration or other earlier termination 
of this Agreement; provided, however, that Lessor will have the right to require Lessee to remove 
the trade fixtures at Lessee's cost on termination of this Lease. 

SECTION 10. MECHANICS' LIENS 

If Lessee causes any alterations, additions, or improvements to be made to the Leased Premises, 
Lessee agrees to keep the Leased Premises free of liens for both labor and materials. If a lien is 
placed on the Leased Premises in connection with any construction, repair, or replacement work 
that Lessee may or must cause to be performed under this Lease, which results in a final judgment, 
Lessor may pay the amount of that judgment. Lessee must reimburse Lessor for the full amount 
paid within thirty (30) days after that amount is paid by Lessor; otherwise Lessee will be in default 
of this Lease. 

SECTION 11. INSPECTION BY LESSOR 

Upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours' prior written notice, Lessee will permit Lessor or Lessor's 
agents, or representatives, to enter the Leased Premises at all reasonable times. 

SECTION 12. UTILITIES 

Lessee shall pay for and maintain all utilities including water, gas, electricity, telephone, cable and 
other services used by the lessee. 

SECTION 13. INSURANCE 

A. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. Lessee shall obtain, maintain, and keep in full
force and effect during the life of this Agreement all of the following minimum scope of insurance
coverages with an insurance company admitted to do business in California, rated "A," Class X, or
better in the most recent Best's Key Insurance Rating Guide, and approved by City:

1. Commercial general liability, including premises-operations, products/completed
operations, broad form property damage, blanket contractual liability, independent
contractors, personal injury or bodily injury with a policy limit of not less than two million
dollars ($2,000,000.00), combined single limits, per occurrence. If such insurance contains
a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or shall be twice the
required occurrence limit.
2. Business automobile liability for owned vehicles, hired, and non-owned vehicles,
with a policy limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined single
limits, per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.
3. Workers' compensation insurance as required by the State of California. The
Whole Child agrees to waive, and to obtain endorsements from its workers' compensation
insurer waiving subrogation rights under its workers' compensation insurance policy
against the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers arising from work
performed by The Whole Child for the City and to require each of its consultants, if any, to
do likewise under their workers' compensation insurance policies.



B. Endorsements. The commercial general liability insurance policy and business automobile
liability policy shall contain or be endorsed to contain the following provisions:

1. Additional insured: "The City of Santa Fe Springs and its elected and appointed
boards, officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers are additional insureds with
respect to: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Whole Child
pursuant to its contract with the City; products and completed operations of The Whole
Child; premises owned, occupied or used by the Whole Child; automobiles owned, leased,
hired, or borrowed by the Whole Child.
2. Notice: "Said policy shall not terminate, be suspended, or voided, nor shall it be
cancelled, nor the coverage or limits reduced, until thirty (30) days after written notice is
given to City."
3. Other insurance: "The Whole Child insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
as respects the City of Santa Fe Springs, its officers, officials, agents, employees, and
volunteers. Any other insurance maintained by the City of Santa Fe Springs shall be excess
and not contributing with the insurance provided by this policy.
4. Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to the City of Santa Fe Springs, its officers, officials, agents, employees,
and volunteers.
5. Lessee's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

C. Deductible or Self Insured Retention. If any of such policies provide for a deductible or self
insured retention to provide such coverage, the amount of such deductible or self-insured retention
shall be approved in advance by Lessor. No policy of insurance issued as to which the Lessor is
an additional insured shall contain a provision which requires that no insured except the named
insured can satisfy any such deductible or self-insured retention.
D. Certificates of Insurance. Lessee shall provide to Lessor's certificates of insurance
showing the insurance coverages and required endorsements described above, in a form and
content approved by Lessor, prior to performing any services under this Agreement. The
certificates of insurance shall be attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by this
reference.
E. Non-Limiting. Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting in any way, the
indemnification provision contained in this Agreement, or the extent to which the Whole Child may
be held responsible for payments of damages to persons or property.

SECTION 14. INDEMNIFICATION 

Lessee agrees to defend, indemnify, hold free and harmless Lessor, its elected officials, officers, 
agents and employees, at Lessee's sole expense, from and against any and all claims, actions, 
suits or other legal proceedings brought against the Lessor, its elected officials, officers, agents 
and employees arising out of or related to the services provided by Lessee, its employees, 
volunteers and/or authorized sub consultants pursuant to this Agreement. 

Lessor agrees to defend, indemnify, hold free and harmless Lessee and its employees, at Lessor's 
sole expense, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits or other legal proceedings brought 
against the Lessee and its employees arising out of or related to Lessor's negligent acts or 
omissions or willful misconduct in performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

SECTION 15. DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES 

If the Leased Premises of which it is a part is damaged or destroyed by any cause not the fault of 
Lessee, Lessor in its sole discretion may choose to repair it at Lessor's sole cost and expense, and 
the rent payable under this Lease shall be abated for the time and to the extent Lessee is prevented 
from occupying the Leased Premises. Lessor may, in lieu of making the repairs required by this 
paragraph, terminate this Lease by giving Lessee three months prior written notice of the 
termination, with no further obligation by either party under this Lease. In the event the Leased 
Premises is damaged or destroyed by any cause not the fault of Lessee to such an extent that it 
unreasonably prevents Lessee from being able to use the Leased Premises for the intended 



purposes of this Lease, Lessee may terminate this Lease by giving Lessor three months prior 
written notice of the termination. A notice from either party to terminate this Lease under this 
section must be given no later than three months after the event causing the destruction or damage. 
Upon the effective date of the termination neither party will have any further obligation to each other 
with respect to this Lease, except as specifically provided herein or as otherwise required by law. 

SECTION 16. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

Lessee shall not encumber, assign, sublet, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, any right or 
interest in this Agreement, or any right or interest in the Leased Premises without first obtaining the 
express written consent of Lessor. Furthermore, Lessee shall not sublet the Leased Premises or 
any part of it or allow any other persons, other than its employees and agents, to occupy or use the 
Leased property or any part of it without the prior written consent of Lessor. Any encumbrance, 
assignment, transfer, or subletting without the prior written consent of Lessor, whether voluntary or 
involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate 
this Lease. 

SECTION 17. ACTS CONSTITUTING BREACH BY LESSEE 

The following shall constitute a default under and a breach of this Lease by Lessee: 
A. The nonpayment of rent when due, when the nonpayment continues for thirty (30) business
days after written notice to pay rent or surrender possession of the Leased Premises has been
given by Lessor to Lessee.
B. A failure to perform any provision, covenant, or condition of this Lease, other than one for
the payment of rent, when that failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice of
the specific failure is given by Lessor to Lessee; provided however, that any such notice will be
in lieu of, and not in addition to, any notice required under the unlawful detainer statutes,
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1161 et seq.
C. The abandonment or vacation of the Leased Premises before expiration of the term of this
Lease.
D. A receiver is appointed to take possession of all or substantially all of Lessee's personal
property located at the Leased Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, when possession
is not restored to Lessee within thirty (30) days.
E. Lessee makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.
F. The execution, attachment, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Lessee's assets
located at the Leased Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Agreement, when the seizure is
not discharged within thirty (30) days.
G. The filing by or against Lessee of a petition to have Lessee adjudged a bankrupt or of a
petition for reorganization or arrangement under the federal bankruptcy law (unless, in the case
of a petition filed against Lessee, it is dismissed within 60 days).

SECTION 18. LESSOR'S REMEDIES 

If Lessee breaches or is in default under this Lease and such breach or default continues beyond 
all applicable notice and cure periods, Lessor, in addition to any other remedies given Lessor by 
law or equity, may: 

A. Continue this Lease in effect by not terminating Lessee's right to possession of the Leased
Premises and thereby be entitled to enforce all Lessor's rights and remedies under this Lease
including the right to recover the rent specified in this Lease as it becomes due under this
Lease; or
B. Terminate this Lease and all rights of Lessee under the Lease and recover from Lessee:

1. The worth at the time of award of the unpaid rent that had been earned at the time
of termination of the Lease;
2. The worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent that would
have been earned after termination of the Lease until the time of award exceeds the
amount of rental loss that Lessee proves could have been reasonably avoided;
3. The worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the
balance of the term after the time of award exceeds the amount of rental loss that Lessee
proves could be reasonably avoided; and



4. Any other amount necessary to compensate Lessor for all detriment proximately
caused by Lessee's failure to perform Lessee's obligations under this lease; or
5. In lieu of, or in addition to, bringing an action for any or all of the recoveries
described in subparagraph (b) of this paragraph, bring an action to recover and regain
possession of the Leased Premises in the manner provided by the California law of
unlawful detainer then in effect.

SECTION 19. TERMINATION 

Either party may terminate this Lease, with or without cause, by providing the Lessor with at least 
ninety (90) days written notice of the termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if one party is in 
default of any material term of this Lease, the non-defaulting party may cancel this Lease by 
providing the other party with thirty (30) days' written notice of the default, but only if the defaulting 
party has not cured the default within thirty (30) days after receiving the notice from the non
defaulting party. 

SECTION 20. WAIVER OF BREACH 

The waiver by either party of any breach by the other party of any of the provisions of this Lease 
shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent default or breach by the 
breaching party either of the same or a different provision of this Lease. 

SECTION 21. NOTICES 

Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or other communications 
required or permitted by this Lease or by law to be served on or given to either party to this Lease 
by the other party shall be in writing, and shall be deemed duly served and given when personally 
delivered to the party to whom it is directed or any managing employee of that party or, in lieu of 
personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed 
to the parties as follows: 

LESSOR 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
11610 Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 

LESSEE 
The Whole Child 
10155 Colima Road 
Whittier, CA 90603 

Either party may change its address for purposes of this paragraph by giving written notice of the 
change to the other party in the manner provided in this paragraph. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES 

If any litigation is commenced between the parties to this Agreement concerning the Leased 
Premises or the rights and duties of either in relation to this Agreement, the party prevailing in that 
litigation shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief granted, to a reasonable sum as and for its 
attorneys' fees in the litigation, which shall be determined by the court in that litigation or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 

SECTION 23. BINDING ON HEIRS AND SUCCESSORS 

This Lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns of the parties, but nothing in this paragraph shall be construed as a 
consent by Lessor to any assignment of this Lease or any interest therein by Lessee. 

SECTION 24. SOLE AND ONLY AGREEMENT 



This instrument constitutes the sole and only full, final, and complete agreement between Lessor 
and Lessee respecting the Leased Premises or the leasing of the Leased Premises to Lessee, and 
correctly sets forth the obligations of Lessor and Lessee to each other as of its date. Any 
agreements or representations respecting the Leased Premises or their leasing by Lessor to 
Lessee not expressly set forth in this instrument are null and void. All prior negotiations between 
the parties are subsumed into this Lease to the extent they have been agreed to, and if not agreed 
to by the parties such negotiations are not set forth in the terms and conditions of this Lease. This 
Lease may not be extended, amended, modified, altered, or changed, except in a writing signed 
by Lessor and Lessee. 

SECTION 25. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 

This Lease may create a possessory interest which is subject to the payment of taxes levied on 
such interest. It is understood and agreed that all taxes and assessments (including but not limited 
to said possessory interest tax) which become due and payable upon the Leased Premises or upon 
fixtures, equipment, or other property installed or constructed thereon, will be the full responsibility 
of the Lessee, and Lessee will cause said taxes and assessments to be paid promptly. 

SECTION 26. DISPOSITION OF ABANDONED PERSONAL PROPERTY 

If Lessee abandons or quits the Leased property or is dispossessed thereof by process of law or 
otherwise, title to any personal property belonging to and left on the Leased property thirty (30) 
days after such event will be deemed to have been transferred to Lessor. Lessor will have the right 
to remove and to dispose of such property without liability therefore to or to any person claiming 
under, and will have no need to account therefore. 
SECTION 27. AUTHORITY OF LESSOR AND LESSEE 

Each individual executing this Lease on behalf of Lessor represents and warrants that he is duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of Lessor, in accordance with all governing 
laws, rules, regulations and bylaws, and that this Lease is binding upon Lessor. Each individual 
executing this Lease on behalf of Lessee represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized 
to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of Lessee, in accordance with all governing laws, rules, 
regulations and by-laws, and that this Lease is binding upon Lessee. 

SECTION 28. PUBLIC RECORDS 

Any and all written or electronic information, document or record submitted to or obtained by Lessor 
from Lessee or any other person or entity having to do with or related to this Lease or the Leased 
Premises, either pursuant to this Lease or otherwise, at the option of Lessor, may be treated as a 
public record which will made open to the public for inspection or copying pursuant to the California 
Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250, etc.) as now in force or hereafter amended, 
or any Act in substitution thereof. Lessee hereby waives, for itself, its agents, employees, subs and 
any person claiming by through or under Lessee, any right or claim that such information is not a 
public record or that the same is a trade secret or confidential, or not subject to inspection by the 
public, including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. 

SECTION 30. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

The relationship of the parties hereto is that of Lessor and Lessee, and it is expressly understood 
and agreed that Lessor is not, and will not in any way or for any purpose become, a partner of 
Lessee in the conduct of Lessee's business. This Lease and any related documents will under no 
circumstances constitute a joint venture or partnership between Lessor and Lessee. The provisions 
of this Lease and the agreements relating to rent payable hereunder are included solely for the 
purpose of providing a method by which rental payments are to be measured and ascertained. 

SECTION 31. COOPERATION BETWEEN PARTIES 

Lessee and Lessor will cooperate with Lessor each other in all respects, in its operation of the 
Building or the Property. Furthermore if at some later date Lessor desires to encumber the Property 
for any reason, in Lessor's sole discretion, will cooperate with Lessor in whatever manner is 
reasonably required to help accomplish the encumberment. Lessor shall provide written notice to 
the at least sixty (60) days prior to the encumberment. 



EXECUTED on -�t;;/�_1_1�/_t�fl�-- at __ , Los Angeles County, California.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Lease to be duly executed with all
the formalities required by law on the respective dates set forth opposite their signatures. 

Yolanda M. Summerhill, City Attorney �� 



EXHIBIT 1 

SITE MAP OF PROPERT 

-' ·- · 23.33

50 

49 

U11J"2112ti1E 
, �8.17 " 

58 § � 

['!� �i g' 
Q ti � •. Ul, 
.\ H13'21'2o"E 10B.33' -.•

-1 I 83,00 7 

w "' " 
(I> 

g! 
� "' 

� ij \ - " 

,. 
1 ,; " 

�;,; 
b� 
"ill 

111f21125�E "� � "�,rll\
·18.50 1 

&; 
""

57 
�! t� 

§ 
� 

pc,i 

�g 
Cl ()I 

Q,.,, 

;:; J 
' -� "' 

;--' I;>! ,! 
� rj\ 

S\/l.'21'25"W 
Jlll!,'l1 12S"C .

,o.oo - 1/jll,, - •-12 
L'l-• S18'2i'il.i _,, 

Ll 

-··� 

S18'2.1'25"W �. U,OO • 

s,oo. ,. U-- ,_ �-,.,.0.Q 
L1 .S16'21'.2.ll-i'I, L::6.QO' 
1.:1. S71'��\�:>.'[, L=l,00

1 

10 �IS"19107'E'1 L....-I,22.
1 

u $11'5B'Js-rj l::&.SG1 

LI H71'3$'35"W, L .. 12,,00' 
'' 1171'38'35"1'/

1 le5,00' 
1.-, �1r21·1r·w. L=1,c;o' 
LI llt�•21 121/c, !?3,1.iO' " S1fW'25'\V, L.t1 .. U' 

e) 

(4.00') 
' ·-

�
�

I 

I �I 
�
'

� 

I 

81"'"''
I" 

i 
(/P,O,H, l

I 1l18'21'2$"F. 
_ ...... 

83.0D .
'. 

/JJ!IJNfff!R !Ji, fllY ·---

,9(!Alff: 1" n 2/)l(f' 

' 

-�- - •.. - . --· .. 



ATTACHMENT 2 

AMENDMENT NUMBER THREE TO LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

AND THE WHOLE CHILD 

This Amendment Number Three (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 4th day of 
May, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs, a California municipal 
corporation (“City”) and The Whole Child – Mental Health & Housing Services, a California 
nonprofit corporation (“The Whole Child”). 

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2018, the City and The Whole Child entered into a lease 
agreement for the lease by the City to The Whole Child of a modular unit located at 9251 Pioneer 
Blvd (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2019, the City and The Whole Child approved Amendment 
Number One to the Agreement to extend the lease term by one year and revise the monthly rent 
to reflect the exclusion of payment for electrical and water smart meter installations; and  

WHEREAS, on May 28, 2020, the City and The Whole Child approved Amendment 
Number Two to the Agreement to extend the lease term by one year with a monthly rent of two 
hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00); and  

WHEREAS, the City and The Whole Child desire to amend the Agreement to extend the 
lease term by five months with a monthly rent of five hundred and twenty-three dollars ($523.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The lease term set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement is extended for a period of
five months commencing on June 1, 2021 and ending on October 31, 2021. 

2. Section 4 of the Agreement is amended to provide for a monthly rent of five
hundred and twenty-three dollars ($523.00) for the period of June 1, 2021 through October 31, 
2021.   

3. Except as amended herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS   THE WHOLE CHILD  

John M. Mora, Mayor Constanza Pachon, Chief Executive Officer 

Date:_______________________ Date:_____________________ 



ATTACHMENT 2 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai, City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, City Clerk 



City of Santa Fe Springs 
Pla City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
Department of Community Services 

NEW BUSINESS  
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities 
between the City of Santa Fe Springs and Metropolitan Little League for 2021-2023 

 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
On March 16, 2021, the City Council approved the Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and 
Facilities with Metropolitan Little League (Metro) for 2021 through January 2023.  The 
report indicated that the League would use facilities at Lake Center Athletic Park and 
Santa Fe Springs Athletic Fields.  The use of Lakeview Park, during normal operating 
hours, is also generally used for practices.  The amendment outlines this change. 

The scope of the agreement remains unchanged and Metro remain responsible for 
staffing costs for any requests of use of fields not specifically outlined on the permit. 
Additionally, a Facility Rental Application must still be submitted no less than two (2) 
weeks prior to the first date requested and dates and times are subject to availability.   

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney has reviewed the proposed Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and 
Facilities with Metropolitan Little League. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The use of the athletic field at Lakeview Park will have no fiscal impact as Metro’s use 
will be between normal operating hours, where staff is already present. 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
There is no infrastructure impact. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments 
1. Attachment 1 - Amendment No. 1 to Use Agreement for Athletic Fields & Facilities

Between the City of Santa Fe Springs and Metropolitan Little League
2. Attachment 2 - Agenda Report from March 16, 2021 (Approval of Use Agreement for

Athletic Fields and Facilities with Metropolitan Little League for 2021-2023.

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and

Facilities with the Metropolitan Little League for 2021-2023.
• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment No. 1 to Use Agreement

between the City of Santa Fe Springs and Metropolitan Little League.

ITEM NO. 12



ATTACHMENT 1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO 
USE AGREEMENT FOR ATHLETIC FIELDS & FACILITIES BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS AND 
METROPOLITAN LITTLE LEAGUE 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 4th day of May, 
2021, by and between the CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, a general law city and municipal 
corporation (“Santa Fe Springs”), and METROPOLITAN LITTLE LEAGUE (“Organization”). 

SECTION 1.  Pursuant to Section 22 of USE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), is amended to read 
as follows: 

1. TERM OF AGREEMENT
AGENCY grants ORGANIZATION the right to use Lake Center Athletic Park, located at 
11641 Florence Avenue in Santa Fe Springs, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. The ORGANIZATION is also granted the right to use the Betty Wilson 
Center, located at 11641 Florence Avenue in Santa Fe Springs, including the use of the 
food & beverage concession area (including snack bar & kitchen), and the adjoining 
west Library room.  AGENCY grants ORGANIZATION the right to use the Santa Fe 
Springs Athletic Fields located at 9720 Pioneer Boulevard in Santa Fe Springs and the 
athletic field at Lakeview Park, located at 10225 Jersey Avenue in Santa Fe Springs  
(hereinafter "Subject Facilities”). 

The ORGANIZATION must submit a Facility Use Application for Athletic Fields to the 
Parks and Recreation Services Division, no less than two (2) weeks prior to the first date 
requested. Dates and times are subject to availability. Once the dates are determined, a 
permit will be issued. 

The ORGANIZATION is responsible for staffing costs at a rate of $30 per hour for any 
request for the use of fields and facilities that are not specifically outlined in the permit. 

This AGREEMENT shall remain in effect through January 31, 2023, unless terminated 
earlier at any time by either party giving to the other party at least thirty (30) days written 
notice of termination. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Metropolitan Little League 
Agreement File No. XXX.XXX – Amendment No. 1 
Santa Fe Springs 
Page 2 of 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this contract the day and year first 
hereinabove written. 

METROPOLITAN LITTLE LEAGUE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

By: 
     (Signature) John M. Mora 

Mayor 

    (Print Name) 
ATTEST: 

     (Title) Janet Martinez, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai 
City Attorney 



City of Santa Fe Springs 
Pla City Council Meeting March 16, 2021 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: March 11, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

  NEW BUSINESS  
Approval of Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities with Metropolitan Little 
League for 2021-2023 

 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
Youth sports are a critical starting point in a person’s lifelong journey toward an active 
and healthy lifestyle. Studies have demonstrated that children and teenagers who engage 
with sports not only grow up more physically active and confident, but also gain physical 
and mental health benefits that follow them throughout their lives.  It is vital for 
municipalities to support providers of youth sports programs, specifically, community 
sports organizations that have an “Everyone Plays” philosophy and governing bodies. 
These organizations play an important role in fostering youth’s interest in athletics.  They 
provide basic understanding of certain sports through practice and games entirely 
conducted by volunteers.  For 58 years, the City of Santa Fe Springs has had a working 
relationship with Metropolitan Little League (Metro) to allow community youth the 
opportunity to be exposed to the great game of baseball.  The City has provided space at 
its athletic fields and facilities for Metro to condition, practice, and play games. 
Additionally, Metro uses Lake Center Athletic Park to store equipment, conduct player 
registration, and vend concessions.     

The Use Agreement for Athletic Fields & Facilities has been developed to formalize the 
partnership between the City of Santa Fe Springs and Metro. The agreement specifies 
the locations and establishes the expectations of Metro, outlines the responsibilities of 
both Metro and the City, and memorializes certain practices that both parties are currently 
utilizing. 

At its meeting of January 23, 2020, the City Council approved and entered into a one-
year Use Agreement with Metro for use of the City’s athletic fields and facilities.  In the 
agreement, provisions were made to work with Metro to reduce field maintenance costs 
by having the organization’s volunteers drag, water, and chalk the infields, put bases out, 
and maintain the cleanliness of the dugouts and surrounding field area. The Use 
Agreement terminated on November 30, 2020.  Unfortunately, due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, play was suspended in March 2020.  It is the City’s intention to enter into a 
two (2) year agreement with Metro, and allow for play as allowed by the Los Angeles 
County Department of Public Health Department. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Approve the Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities with the

Metropolitan Little League for 2021-2023.
• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign the Use Agreement for Athletic Fields

and Facilities with Metropolitan Little League.

ITEM NO. 13

ATTACHMENT 2



Approval of Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities with Metro Page 2 of 3 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: March 11, 2021 
Department of Community Services 

ANALYSIS 
The following outlines the facilities and general periods of use for Metro: 

Facilities: Lake Center Athletic Park, Betty Wilson Center (concession area and library 
room; main room may be requested for use and may be used, if available), and Santa Fe 
Springs Athletic Fields. 

Periods of use: Spring Baseball practices and games generally from February through 
the end of June; All-star and qualifier tournaments from July through August; and fall ball 
use from September through the end of November. The agreement will commence on 
when executed and terminate at the end of January 2023. 

Key Provisions of the Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities 
• Abide by all Los Angeles County Department of Public Health protocols.
• Submit a Facility Use Application for Athletic Fields to the Parks and Recreation

Services Division, no less than two (2) weeks prior to the first date requested.
Dates and times are subject to availability.  Once the dates are determined, a
permit will be issued.

• Provide a master calendar of events, in writing, to the City’s Parks & Recreation
Services Division for the purposes of scheduling City facilities and staff.

• Metro will have one-time use of a City facility for a fundraising event at no cost.
• With the City’s prior approval, Metro will be able to host fundraiser tournaments.

Metro will be responsible for City staffing fees, at a rate of $30 per hour that will
be covered by the money raised.  Metro will be responsible for maintenance of
facilities.

• Metro has requested Sunday use during the term of the use agreement, which is
outside their traditional use.  In those instances, a request by Metro must be made
two weeks in advance to the Parks & Recreation Services Division to allow for
staffing, subject to facility availability.  Metro is responsible for the staffing fees at
a rate of $30 per hour.

• Provide a copy of the Certificate of Insurance of $2 million of liability insurance
and a copy of policy endorsement that verifies the City is named as an additional
insured and indemnifies the City, its employees, and its agents.

• Obtain and provide proof of required health permits to operate and handle food
from the concession stand/kitchen.

• Provision of non-profit status designation and annual financial statement.
• Roster of players that also identifies their city of residence (to determine how many

City youth are participating).
• Metro will be responsible for repairing the existing home run fences on fields #2

and #3 at Lake Center Athletic Park and will also be responsible for removing
and storing the home run fences at the end of the season.

• The Use Agreement may be terminated at any time by either side by giving at
least thirty (30) days written notice of termination.

Metro will continue to play a vital role with regards to field maintenance.  Metro will provide 
dedicated corps of volunteers to drag the infield, chalk the field, and maintain the 



Approval of Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and Facilities with Metro Page 3 of 3 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: March 11, 2021 
Department of Community Services 

cleanliness of the dugouts at both Lake Center Athletic Park and Santa Fe Springs Athletic 
Fields.  Public Works will meet with Metro as needed to ensure the fields are being 
properly maintained and to address any maintenance concerns during the term of the use 
agreement.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
In accordance to the most recent use agreement, Metro will contribute $2,000 to the City 
for use of fields and facilities. This contribution assists with offsetting some field 
maintenance, utility, and staffing costs. Below is fiscal overview for Metro that takes into 
account staffing and field use costs, based on the most recent year in which Metro held 
a season (2019).  

Metro – Fiscal Overview 
February - June Weekday Practices at LCAP $4,446 
February – June Games at LCAP $2,002 
February – May Weekday Practices at SFS Athletic Fields $910 
June - July All Star Practices $860 
September - November Weekday Practices at LCAP (Fall Ball) $1,940 
September - November Games at LCAP (Fall Ball) $1,250 
Fundraiser at Social Hall $993 
Field Rehab (Reseeding and Fertilizer) $2,870 
Total Expenses $15,271 
Metro’s Contribution ($2,000) 
Difference $13,271 

As the table indicates, the City’s in-kind contribution to Metro was $13,271.  A cost 
analysis of the current year will be presented at the end of the calendar year. 

According to the Internal Revenue Service, as of February 23, 2021, Metropolitan Little 
League (EIN 953669864) is exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue 
Code Section 501(c)(3).  Additionally, according to the California Secretary of State, 
Metropolitan Little League are an active, non-profit organization registered in the State as 
of the same date. 

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney has reviewed the proposed Use Agreement for Athletic Fields and 
Facilities with Metropolitan Little League. 

The Mayor may call upon Parks and Recreation Services Manager, Gus Hernandez, to 
answer questions the Council may have regarding the staff report. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment 
1. USE AGREEMENT FOR ATHLETIC FIELDS & FACILITIES WITH METROPOLITAN

LITTLE LEAGUE



Page 1 of 14 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
PARKS & RECREATION SERVICES DIVISION 

USE AGREEMENT FOR ATHLETIC FIELDS & FACIL IT IES 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of ________, 2021, by and 
between the CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, a municipal corporation duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as “AGENCY”) 
and METROPOLITAN LITTLE LEAGUE, (hereinafter referred to as "ORGANIZATION”).  

RECITALS: 

A. It is AGENCY's desire to serve the public interest of the community by providing a
program of organized youth sports; and

B. The goal and purpose of ORGANIZATION is to provide a baseball sports program
to the youth of the community.

C. In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein,  the
parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. TERM OF AGREEMENT

AGENCY grants ORGANIZATION the right to use Lake Center Athletic Park, located at 
11641 Florence Avenue in Santa Fe Springs, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  The ORGANIZATION is also granted the right to use the Betty Wilson 
Center, located at 11641 Florence Avenue in Santa Fe Springs, including the use of the 
food & beverage concession area (including snack bar & kitchen), and the adjoining west 
Library room (hereinafter "Subject Facilities”). 

The ORGANIZATION must submit a Facility Use Application for Athletic Fields to the 
Parks and Recreation Services Division, no less than two (2) weeks prior to the first date 
requested.  Dates and times are subject to availability.  Once the dates are determined, 
a permit will be issued. 

The ORGANIZATION is responsible for staffing costs at a rate of $30 per hour for any 
request for the use of fields and facilities that are not specifically outlined in the permit. 

This AGREEMENT shall remain in effect through January 31, 2023, unless terminated 
earlier at any time by either party giving to the other party at least thirty (30) days written 
notice of termination.   

2. USE OF FACILITIES



Page 2 of 14 

Agency must receive the following in order for ORGANIZATION to begin using the 
Subject Facilities:  

A. Facility Rental Application(s)
B. Payment in the amount of $2,000 for per calendar year (amount does not

include field usage outside of the approved dates on permit) is due six (6)
weeks after the commencement of the season.

C. 501(c)(3) designation from the I.R.S. or a nonprofit designation of
good/active standing from the California Franchise Tax Board and/or the
California Secretary of State.

D. Complete list of names, addresses and telephone numbers of the current
Board of Directors or other responsible persons of ORGANIZATION.

E. Name and contact information of ORGANIZATION’s liaison or designee
who will work directly with designated City staff.  All correspondence will be
made through liaison.  Requests made by any other member of the
organization will not be honored until confirmation has been received by
liaison or designee.

F. Master calendar of events to include:
• Practice dates & times
• Meetings dates & times

G. One copy of the Certificate of Insurance ($2 million liability) listing AGENCY
as an additional insured and a copy of the policy endorsement including
verbiage verifying AGENCY is named as an additional insured.

H. Semi-annual financial statement for periods ending June 30th and
December 31st. (AGENCY may request additional documents in support of
the financial statement.)

I. A roster identifying the city of residence of each player.

The above requested documents must be submitted at least two (2) weeks prior to use. 
If the documents are not submitted in a timely fashion, AGENCY may withhold use of the 
Subject Facilities. 

3. RESPONSIBILITY FOR ACTIVITIES

ORGANIZATION shall provide the personnel necessary to supervise and conduct the 
activities as set forth in this AGREEMENT at the Subject Facilities, and shall furnish and 
supply any and all equipment and material, which may be necessary for such activities 
conducted at the Subject Facilities.  Athletic Field Lining and Marking must be done with 
prior written approval of AGENCY. 

4. ORGANIZATION’S RESPONSIBILITIES

A. ORGANIZATION agrees to observe all rules and regulations as set forth in this
AGREEMENT.



Page 3 of 14 

B. ORGANIZATION agrees to follow all local, county, and State health guidelines for
indoor and outdoor youth sports activities, to help stop the spread of illnesses,
viruses, and communicable diseases.

C. All schedule changes shall be City approved and made by the ORGANIZATION
by email to City's Parks and Recreation Services Division by the Wednesday of
the previous permit week by the designated ORGANIZATION contact person.  In
the event of a non-cancelled scheduled use involving lights, the ORGANIZATION
shall be billed for the full amount of the light cost for the scheduled time period.

D. Metro will have one-time use of a City facility for a fundraising event at no cost.

E. With the City’s prior approval, Metro will be able to host fundraiser tournaments.
Metro will be responsible for City staffing fees, at a rate of $30 per hour that will
be covered by the money raised.  Metro will be responsible for maintenance of
facilities.

F. Requests for Sunday use, which is outside of traditional use, must be made two
(2) weeks in advance and is subject to availability.  ORGANIZATION is
responsible for staffing fees at a rate of $30 per hour.

G. Modifications to Park Fields and Facilities: The removal, alteration, painting or
addition to any facility or grounds, must be approved by AGENCY in writing. This
will include any proposed changes altering design or appearance of the existing
landscape of demised premises. No trees, shrubs, or ground covers shall be
planted, trimmed or removed without written consent from AGENCY.  Any requests
to modify or improve park fields and facilities shall be submitted for approval to the
Parks & Recreation Services Division, at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of
any proposed changes.

H. ORGANIZATION shall not erect any fences or post advertising matter of any kind
on AGENCY grounds without prior approval by the Parks & Recreation Services
Division.  Banners/advertising may only be displayed during the season; however,
banners displaying registration information, may be posted prior to the beginning
of the season.  Temporary fencing must be removed at the conclusion of the
season.

I. Closure of Fields - Fields may be scheduled for closure and rehabilitation to allow
for recovery due to heavy usage. The dates and times of closure to be determined
by both the Community Services and Public Works Departments.

J. There will be no use of AGENCY athletic fields when facilities are unplayable due
to rain or other conditions.  ORGANIZATION (Public Works staff) will determine
whether fields can be used after rain.

K. Any damages to the Subject Facilities or appurtenant AGENCY facilities caused
by ORGANIZATION or its use of the Subject Facilities, will be ORGANIZATION’s
responsibility to replace or repair.  In the event ORGANIZATION fails or refuses to



Page 4 of 14 

replace or repair damage, AGENCY may cause such replacement and/or repair to 
be undertaken and ORGANIZATION agrees to reimburse AGENCY for the costs 
incurred to do so.  

L. AGENCY will not provide keys and/or alarms to ORGANIZATION.  AGENCY will
assign City staff during season hours, as set forth in Item 1 of this AGREEMENT,
who will supervise facilities and grant facility access to ORGANIZATION.

M. ORGANIZATION must obtain and provide proof of required health permits to
operate and handle food from concession stand/kitchen.

N. ORGANIZATION is responsible for controlling their board members, coaches,
players, and parents while using the Subject Facilities.

O. No power vehicles/equipment other than City operated are permitted on the fields.

P. Any violation of this AGREEMENT by ORGANIZATION and/or any league run by
ORGANIZATION using the Subject Facilities, shall result in the loss of use of the
Subject Facilities.  ORGANIZATION is responsible for payment of all costs and
damages incurred by AGENCY relating to ORGANIZATION’s failure to adhere to
the provisions of this AGREEMENT.

Q. Vehicles are not allowed on a park without advance written approval by the
Community Services Department.

R. ORGANIZATION agrees that in order to ensure a safe sports program and to
protect participants, the ORGANIZATION will conduct criminal background
checks the ORGANIZATION’S expense on all volunteers, 18 years and older,
who will be in a position to supervise youth under 18 years of age or vulnerable
adults. ORGANIZATION also agrees that failure of an individual to submit to a
required criminal background check will result in prohibiting said individual from
coaching and/or supervising children or vulnerable adults.  ORGANIZATION
agrees to make every effort to prevent an individual with a history of dangerous
criminal behavior from having contact with children or vulnerable adults who are
participating in the League.

S. City will not be held responsible for loss, damage or theft of equipment or
personal articles owned, leased or rented by the ORGANIZATION and stored on
City property.

5. LEGAL COMPLIANCE

ORGANIZATION shall keep itself informed of City, State and Federal Laws, ordinances 
and regulations, which in any manner affect the performance of its activities pursuant to 
this AGREEMENT.  ORGANIZATION shall at all times observe and comply with all such 
laws, ordinances and regulations. Neither AGENCY, nor its officers, volunteers, 
attorneys, agents or employees shall be liable at law or in equity as a result of 
ORGANIZATION's failure to comply with this section. 



Page 5 of 14 

6. USE OF PREMISES

The Subject Facilities shall be used only for those athletic events as set forth in Paragraph 
Section 1 of this AGREEMENT.  ORGANIZATION shall not permit the Subject Facilities 
or any part thereof to be used for: 

A. The conduct of any offensive, noisy or dangerous activity.
B. The creation or maintenance of a public nuisance.
C. Anything which fails to comply with public regulations or rules of any public

authority at any time, applicable to the Subject Facility; or
D. Any purpose or in any manner which will obstruct, interfere with or infringe

upon the rights of the residents of adjoining properties.

Under no circumstance may the ORGANIZATION sub-lease field usage to outside travel 
teams or host division games outside approved calendar of events without AGENCY 
approval.  

7. NO EXCLUSIVE RIGHT

This AGREEMENT does not give the ORGANIZATION any right to the exclusive use of 
the Subject Facilities, restrooms, or any other public facility.  ORGANIZATION agrees 
that the rights herein granted shall not be assigned to or transferable to any persons, 
teams, organizations, or leagues. 

8. MAINTENANCE

A. ORGANIZATION shall be responsible for all damages or injury to property or
equipment caused by ORGANIZATION, its agents, employees, volunteers,
participants and/or any other individual at the Subject Facilities during
ORGANIZATION’s use of the Subject Facilities.

B. All maintenance such as field preparation to include lining of the fields, marking of
the fields and setup of temporary equipment will be performed by
ORGANIZATION.

C. ORGANIZATION is responsible for the facility being free of trash and/or debris
caused by group usage upon conclusion of each day's use.

D. ORGANIZATION is responsible for the daily maintenance and cleaning of the
storage area, office, and concession area (including snack bar & kitchen).

E. ORGANIZATION is required to report any damage to persons or property or acts
of vandalism to AGENCY immediately.

F. ORGANIZATION is required to leave the concession area (including snack bar &
kitchen) neat and clean upon the conclusion of the season in preparation for
turnover to any other sports organization or AGENCY.



Page 6 of 14 

9. INSPECTION

A. ORGANIZATION and AGENCY shall conduct a joint safety walk to inspect the
Subject Facilities prior to each use by ORGANIZATION to ensure that it is free
from any defects and/or hazards that may pose a danger to participants, spectators
and/or any other person who is at the Subject Facilities as part of
ORGANIZATION’s use of the Subject Facilities.  ORGANIZATION shall
immediately notify AGENCY of any defect or hazard identified so that AGENCY
has sufficient time to warn of the defect or hazard and/or remediate the defect or
hazard prior to ORGANIZATION’s use of the Subject Facilities.  ORGANIZATION
agrees that should it fail to conduct any such inspection and/or fail to timely notify
AGENCY of any defect or hazard identified, ORGANIZATION shall be solely
responsible for any damage or injury, whether to persons or property, arising from
the defect or hazard.

B. AGENCY shall have the right to enter the Subject Facilities utilized hereunder as
needed.  However, AGENCY’s exercise of the right to enter shall not create any
duty on the part of AGENCY to inspect the Subject Facilities for defects or hazards
under section A herein.

10. IMPROVEMENTS

The removal, alteration, or addition to any facility or grounds must be approved and 
performed by AGENCY. This shall include any proposed changes that would alter the 
design or appearance of the existing landscape of the Subject Facilities.  No trees, shrub, 
or ground covers shall be planted, trimmed or removed without written consent from 
AGENCY.  

Furthermore, all requests for removal, alternation, or addition to any facility or grounds 
must be submitted to AGENCY for consideration and review at least (10) days prior to the 
date any proposed change(s) is needed. 

Assistance by ORGANIZATION, its agents, employees, or its participants with any such 
removal, alteration, addition, or painting shall be solely at the discretion and with prior 
written consent of AGENCY. 

Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as prohibiting the normal maintenance of the 
facility by ORGANIZATION as specified in section 8. 

11. TITLE TO IMPROVEMENTS

All alterations and additions to the Subject Facilities or surrounding grounds shall become 
the property of AGENCY. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall authorize 
ORGANIZATION to make or place any alterations, changes or improvements on the 
Subject Facilities without the prior written consent of AGENCY. 

12. SIGNS



Page 7 of 14 

No signs shall be raised on the Subject Facilities described herein unless written approval 
is obtained from AGENCY.  Such a request for approval shall be directed to the Parks & 
Recreation Services Division Manager. No sponsor advertising sign shall be installed on 
buildings or grounds without the prior written consent of AGENCY. 

13. TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding the TERM, ORGANIZATION or AGENCY may, at any time, terminate 
this AGREEMENT by serving on the other party such written termination at least fifteen 
(15) days in advance of such termination.
14. NOTICE

All notices respecting this AGREEMENT shall be served by certified mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed as follows: 

To AGENCY:  City of Santa Fe Springs 
Community Services Department 
Attention: Director of Community Services 
9255 S. Pioneer Boulevard 
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670 

To ORGANIZATION: Mike Givens, President  
Metropolitan Little League 
P.O. Box 3241 
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670 

Notice shall be deemed to have been served seventy-two (72) hours after the same has 
been deposited in the United States Postal Service. 

15. ATTORNEYS FEES

Should any litigation or other legal action be commenced between the parties hereto to 
interpret or enforce the provisions of this AGREEMENT, in addition to any other relief to 
which the party may be entitled in law or equity, the prevailing party in such litigation or 
legal action shall be entitled to recover costs of suit and reasonable attorney's fees.  

16. GOVERNING LAW

This AGREEMENT will be governed by and constructed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

17. ASSIGNMENT

Neither this AGREEMENT nor any duties, rights or obligations under this AGREEMENT 
may be assigned by ORGANIZATION, either voluntarily or by operation of law without the 
express written consent of AGENCY.  



Page 8 of 14 

18. INSURANCE

ORGANIZATION shall maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth 
below.  ORGANIZATION will use existing coverage to comply with these requirements.  If that 
existing coverage does not meet the requirements set forth herein, ORGANIZATION agrees 
to amend, supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so.  

ORGANIZATION acknowledges that the insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this 
section constitute the minimum amount of coverage required ($2 million). Any insurance 
proceeds available to ORGANIZATION in excess of the limits and coverage identified in this 
AGREEMENT and which is applicable to a given loss, claim or demand, will be equally 
available to AGENCY.  

ORGANIZATION shall provide the following types and amounts of insurance: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: ORGANIZATION shall maintain
commercial general liability insurance including coverage for premises, products
and completed operations, independent contractors/vendors, personal injury and
contractual obligations.  The limits of ORGANIZATION’s insurance shall apply to
this Agreement as if set forth herein, but in no event shall provide combined single
limits of coverage of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence, $4,000,000 general
aggregate. There shall be no cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one
insured against another.

ORGANIZATION and AGENCY agree to the following with respect to insurance provided by 
ORGANIZATION: 

Insurance procured pursuant to these requirements shall be written by insurers that are 
admitted carriers in the state of California and with an A.M. Best’s rating of A- or better and a 
minimum financial size VII. 

1. ORGANIZATION agrees to have its insurer endorse the third party general liability
coverage required herein to include as additional insured AGENCY, its officials,
employees and agents, using standard ISO endorsement No. CG 2010 with an edition
prior to 1992 or similarly worded endorsement. ORGANIZATION also agrees to
require all contractors, and subcontractors to do likewise.

2. No liability insurance coverage provided to comply with this AGREEMENT shall
prohibit ORGANIZATION, or ORGANIZATION‘s employees, or agents, from waiving
the right of subrogation prior to a loss. ORGANIZATION agrees to waive subrogation
rights against AGENCY regardless of the applicability of any insurance proceeds, and
to require all contractors and subcontractors to do likewise.

3. All insurance coverage and limits provided by Contractor and available or applicable
to this AGREEMENT are intended to apply to the full extent of the policies. Nothing
contained in this AGREEMENT or any other agreement relating to AGENCY or its
operations limits the application of such insurance coverage.



Page 9 of 14 

4. None of the coverage required herein will be in compliance with these requirements if
they include any limiting endorsement of any kind that has not been first submitted to
AGENCY and approved of in writing.

5. No liability policy shall contain any provision or definition that would serve to eliminate
so-called “third party action over” claims, including any exclusion for bodily injury to an
employee of the insured or of any contractor or subcontractor.

6. All coverage types and limits required are subject to approval, modification and
additional requirements by AGENCY, as the need arises. ORGANIZATION shall not
make any reductions in scope of coverage (e.g. elimination of contractual liability or
reduction of discovery period) that may affect AGENCY’s protection without
AGENCY’s prior written consent.

7. Proof of compliance with these insurance requirements, consisting of certificates of
insurance evidencing all of the coverage required and an additional insured
endorsement to ORGANIZATION’s general liability policy, shall be delivered to
AGENCY at or prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT. In the event such proof of
any insurance is not delivered as required, or in the event such insurance is canceled
at any time and no replacement coverage is provided, AGENCY has the right, but not
the duty, to obtain any insurance it deems necessary to protect its interests under this
or any other agreement and to pay the premium. Any premium so paid by AGENCY
shall be charged to and promptly paid by ORGANIZATION or deducted from sums
due ORGANIZATION, at AGENCY option.

8. Certificate(s) are to reflect that the insurer will provide 30 days notice to AGENCY of
any cancellation of coverage. ORGANIZATION agrees to require its insurer to modify
such certificates to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the insurer to
mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, or that any party will “attempt”
(as opposed to being required) to comply with the requirements of the certificate.

9. It is acknowledged by the parties of this AGREEMENT that all insurance coverage
required to be provided by ORGANIZATION or any subcontractor, is intended to apply
first and on a primary, non-contributing basis in relation to any other insurance or self-
insurance available to AGENCY.  ORGANIZATION shall ensure that each policy of
insurance required herein reflects this AGREEMENT and is written into each policy.

10. ORGANIZATION agrees to ensure that its sub consultants, subcontractors, and any
other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved in the project by
ORGANIZATION, provide the same minimum insurance coverage required of
ORGANIZATION. ORGANIZATION agrees to monitor and review all such coverage
and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in
conformity with the requirements of this section.

11. ORGANIZATION agrees not to self-insure or to use any self-insured retentions or
deductibles on any portion of the insurance required herein.  If ORGANIZATION’s
existing coverage includes a deductible or self-insured retention, the deductible or self-
insured retention must be declared to AGENCY. At that time AGENCY shall review
options with ORGANIZATION, which may include reduction or elimination of the



Page 10 of 14 

deductible or self-insured retention, substitution of other coverage, or other solutions. 
To the extent AGENCY agrees to any deductible or self-insured retention under any 
policy required under this AGREEMENT to which AGENCY is named as an additional 
insured, ORGANIZATION shall be required to modify the policy to permit AGENCY to 
satisfy the deductible or self-insured retention in the event ORGANIZATION is unable 
or unwilling to do so as a means to ensure AGENCY can avail itself to the coverage 
provided under each policy.  

12. AGENCY reserves the right at any time during the term of the contract to change the
amounts and types of insurance required by giving ORGANIZATION ninety (90) days
advance written notice of such change. If such change results in substantial additional
cost to ORGANIZATION, AGENCY will negotiate additional compensation
proportional to the increased benefit to AGENCY.

13. For purposes of applying insurance coverage only, this AGREEMENT will be deemed
to have been executed immediately upon any party hereto taking any steps that can
be deemed to be in furtherance of or towards performance of this AGREEMENT.

14. ORGANIZATION acknowledges and agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the
part of AGENCY to inform ORGANIZATION of non-compliance with any insurance
requirement in no way imposes any additional obligations on AGENCY nor does it
waive any rights hereunder in this or any other regard.

15. ORGANIZATION will renew the required coverage annually as long as AGENCY, or
its employees or agents face an exposure from operations of any type pursuant to this
AGREEMENT. This obligation applies whether or not the AGREEMENT is canceled
or terminated for any reason. Termination of this obligation is not effective until
AGENCY executes a written statement to that effect.

16. ORGANIZATION shall provide proof that policies of insurance required herein expiring
during the term of this AGREEMENT have been renewed or replaced with other
policies providing at least the same coverage and upon the same terms and conditions
herein. Proof that such coverage has been ordered shall be submitted prior to
expiration. A coverage binder or letter from ORGANIZATION’s insurance agent to this
effect is acceptable. A certificate of insurance and/or additional insured endorsement
as required in these specifications applicable to the renewing or new coverage must
be provided to AGENCY within five days of the expiration of the coverage.

17. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained in this section are not
intended as limitations on coverage, limits or other requirements, or as a waiver of any
coverage normally provided by any given policy. Specific reference to a given
coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue, and
is not intended by any party or insured to be limiting or all-inclusive.

18. These insurance requirements are intended to be separate and distinct from any other
provision in this AGREEMENT and are intended by the parties here to be interpreted
as such.



Page 11 of 14 

19. The requirements in this Section supersede all other sections and provisions of this
AGREEMENT to the extent that any other section or provision conflicts with or impairs
the provisions of this Section.

20. ORGANIZATION agrees to be responsible for ensuring that no contract used by any
party involved in any way with the project reserves the right to charge AGENCY or
ORGANIZATION for the cost of additional insurance coverage required by this
AGREEMENT. Any such provisions are to be deleted with reference to AGENCY. It is
not the intent of AGENCY to reimburse any third party for the cost of complying with
these requirements. There shall be no recourse against AGENCY for payment of
premiums or other amounts with respect thereto.

ORGANIZATION agrees to provide immediate notice to AGENCY of any claim or loss 
against ORGANIZATION arising out of the work performed under this AGREEMENT. 
AGENCY assumes no obligation or liability by such notice, but has the right (but not the 
duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim or claims if they are likely to involve 
AGENCY. 

19. INDEMNIFICATION

ORGANIZATION shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless AGENCY, its City Council, 
each member thereof, present and future, members of boards and commissions, its 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all liability, claims, 
allegations, expenses, including defense costs and legal fees, and claims for damages 
whatsoever, including, but not limited to, those arising from breach of contract, bodily 
injury, economic loss, death, illness, personal injury, property damage, loss of use, or 
property loss however the same may be caused and regardless of the responsibility for 
negligence.  ORGANIZATION’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
includes, but is not limited to, any liability or expense, including defense costs and legal 
fees, arising from or relating in any way to ORGANIZATION’S use of the Subject 
Facilities.  It is further agreed, ORGANIZATION’s obligations to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless will apply even in the event of concurrent active or passive negligence on 
the part of AGENCY, its City Council, each member thereof, present and future, or its 
officers, agents and employees, except for liability resulting from the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of AGENCY, its officers, employees or agents relating to 
ORGANIZATION’s use of the Subject Facility under this AGREEMENT.  In the event 
AGENCY, its officers, employees, agents and/or volunteers are made a party to any 
action, lawsuit, or other adversarial proceeding arising from the use encompassed by this 
AGREEMENT, and upon demand by AGENCY, ORGANIZATION shall have an 
immediate duty to defend AGENCY at ORGANIZATION’s cost or at AGENCY’s option, 
to reimburse AGENCY for its costs of defense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and 
costs incurred in the defense of such matters.   

20. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT RELATING TO CORONAVIRUS/COVID-19

The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the 
World Health Organization. COVID-19 is understood to be extremely contagious and is 
believed to be spread from person-to-person contact and contaminated surfaces/objects. 



Page 12 of 14 

People reportedly can become infected and show no symptoms and therefore, spread 
the disease. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause serious and potentially life-
threatening illness and even death. As a result, federal, state, and local governments and 
federal and state health agencies recommend social distancing and have, in many 
locations, prohibited the congregation of groups of people. 

The AGENCY has put in place preventative measures to reduce the spread of COVID-
19; however, the AGENCY cannot guarantee that participants will not become exposed 
to or infected with COVID-19 while participating in activities in an AGENCY park or 
AGENCY facility. Further, participating in said activities may increase a person’s risk and 
of contracting COVID-19. 

By signing the agreement, the ORGANIZATION acknowledges the contagious nature of 
COVID-19 and voluntarily assumes the risk of exposure to or infection by COVID-19 by 
its use of the Specific Facilities, and that such exposure or infection may result in personal 
injury, illness, permanent disability, and death. The ORGANIZATION further agrees and 
acknowledges that the Indemnification obligations set forth in Section 19 shall apply to 
any COVID-19 related liability, claims, allegations, damages and expenses. 

21. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Volunteer administrators, volunteer coaches, parents, contractors, employees and/or 
officers and directors of ORGANIZATION shall not be deemed to be employees or agents 
of AGENCY as a result of the performance of this AGREEMENT. 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES

This AGREEMENT supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or written, between 
the parties hereto with respect to the use of the Subject Facility by ORGANIZATION and 
contains all of the covenants and conditions between the parties with respect to the use 
of the Subject Facility. Each party to this AGREEMENT acknowledges that no 
representations, inducements, promises or agreement, orally or otherwise, have been 
made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied 
herein, and that no other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this 
AGREEMENT has been made by the parties.  Modification of this AGREEMENT can only 
be made in writing, signed by both parties to this AGREEMENT.  



Page 13 of 14 

(SIGNATURES FOR THIS AGREEMENT APPEAR ON THE NEXT PAGE.) 

ORGANIZATION: Metropolitan Little League 

By: 
     (Signature) 

    (Print Name) 

 (Title) 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS  
A Municipal Corporation 

John M. Mora 
Mayor  

ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, CMC 
City Clerk 



Page 14 of 14 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai 
City Attorney 



City of Santa Fe Springs 
Pla City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
Department of Community Services 

NEW BUSINESS 
Recommendation for Implementation of County of Los Angeles Department of Public 
Health, Appendix Z of the Health Officer Order (Protocol for Live Events and 
Performances [Outdoor Seated]) for the Concert and Fireworks Show at the annual 
Independence Day Event on July 3, 2021 

 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
The annual Independence Day event celebrates the passage of the Declaration of 
Independence, originally signed 245 years ago on July 4, 1776. For the past several years 
the City has held the celebration at Los Nietos Park in Santa Fe Springs. The event 
traditionally features a horseshoe tournament, craft corner, food vendors, live 
entertainment and closes the evening with an 18-20 minute firework show.  Generally, 
this event is attended by an estimated 5,000 community members; registration is not 
taken for this event and attendees reserve their spot at the park on a first-come, first 
served basis.  This event was cancelled in 2020 due to the statewide COVID-19 state of 
emergency, and the event was replaced with a drive-thru Independence Day party-pack 
distribution.  In 2020, County of Los Angeles Department of Public Heath also prohibited 
firework displays (press release dated June 29, 2020) to prevent large gatherings and 
slow the spread of COVID-19. 

Activities Planned for 2021 
Staff has worked diligently to plan some traditional activities while being mindful of 
County public health orders.  The activities planned are as follows: 
• Pop Rockin’ Adventure: Staff will kick off its Independence Day Celebration with the

POP ROCKin’ Adventure by leaving special painted Independence Day rocks at our
City facilities. Participants are asked to go on a scavenger hunt and find one of these
special rocks and redeem for a prize.  Rocks can be redeemed by calling Town Center
Hall at 863-4896 or sending an email to recreation@santafesprings.org.  This
adventure will be held from June 21st through July 2nd .This will follow the County’s
guidance for Social Distancing.

• Patriotic Pack Home Delivery:  Patriotic Packs are the perfect gift for friends and family
to help them celebrate this 4th of July. This special delivery by staff will include patriotic
yard décor, treats, and other goodies with a personalized message to ensure this
Independence Day is filled with fun for the entire family. Deliveries are limited to Santa
Fe Springs residents only. Packs are $15 each (120 spots available).  Deliveries will
be made on July 1 and July 2.  This activity will also follow the County’s guidance for
Social Distancing.

• Rec-tivity Corner:  This is a fun-filled hour of crafts to celebrate Independence Day.

RECOMMENDATION 
• Approve staff’s recommendations for the implementation Plan of Compliance for

the Concert and Firework Show at the Annual Independence Day event on July 3,
2021

ITEM NO. 13

mailto:recreation@santafesprings.org


Independence Day Implementation Plan Page 2 of 6 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

Participants are asked to bring their creativity as they learn to paint on canvas to create 
a special holiday painting, led by one of our staff.  Participants will also be stringing 
together some patriotic beads to make festive colorful jewelry. Families may sign up 
in a group of 3 participants per slot.  There are 15 slots per session and registration is 
$5 per participant.  The Rec-tivity corner will be held on July 3rd.  This will follow the 
County’s guidance for Social Distancing and Day Camps. 

• Horseshoe Tournament:  Participants are asked to gallop on down to Los Nietos Park
and participate in the Horseshoe Tournament. Single play only, no doubles. Staff will
provide the necessary equipment, which will be sanitized after each game. Trophies
will be awarded for first through third place winners. This event is free, but pre-
registration is required by July 1.  The tournament will be held on July 3.  This will
follow the County’s guidance for Sports.

• Concert and Firework Show:  The implementation plan the 2021 in-person concert
and firework portion of the event will look different than in years past.  Before providing
details of this aspect of the event, it is important to first review the current Protocols
for Outdoor Live Events.

Los Angeles County Dept. of Public Health Protocols for Outdoor Live Events –
Appendix Z (Attachment 1) 
Appendix Z to the current Los Angeles County Department of Public Health (LACDPH) 
order addresses Protocol for Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated).  The 
Protocol was most recently updated on April 22, 2021.  Protocols are updated regularly 
by the LACDPH.  On April 6, 2021, California Governor Gavin Newsom announced plans 
to fully reopen the California economy on June 15, 2021 if pandemic trends remain 
favorable.  It is important to note that County health officials have confirmed with City staff 
via email that “it is possible that some iterations of Live Events, Private Events and 
Informal Gatherings protocols will be in effect after June 15, but this will depend on State 
guidance. It is difficult to predict at this time.” (Attachment 1, also at 
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_LiveOutd
oorEvents.pdf).   

The concert and firework show are being brought before the City Council as the Protocol 
(as written today) will severely change the manner in which the event is delivered. 
Additionally, there is a fiscal impact. 

The Protocol includes the following requirements: 
• Event Plan

o Submitted to LA County for approval at least 14 days prior to event
where more than 250 members of the public are anticipated to attend

o Diagram of event area demonstrating spacing between households and
how to secure the perimeter around the event.

• Site
o Seating must be assigned and controlled with clear markings

establishing a system for numbered rows and seats; and must assign
households to specific seating locations

o The facility shall be designed in a way that provides the ability to control



Independence Day Implementation Plan Page 3 of 6 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

fully the flow, ingress, and egress of all visitors 
o Venue must allow for separation of staff, performers, audience

members and concessionaire(s).
o Require a demarcation of twelve (12) feet distance between

performance stage and attendees.
o Create separate routes and one-way (where feasible) pedestrian flow

between within the event and between concessions, households,
restrooms and the entertainment stage.

o Consider the speed at which attendees can be safely granted entry and
how to maintain proper physical distancing while waiting in lines.

o Require that masks be worn by all guests/participants, vendors, staff
and volunteers associated with the special event.

o Provide hand sanitizer for participants/guests.
• Seating

o Audience groups must be limited to a total of 6 persons made up of a
maximum of three household units.

o Assigned seating is required to permit physical distancing of at least 6
feet between people of different households or audience groups.

• Fully Vaccinated Seating
o Tickets purchased for seats within a section reserved for fully

vaccinated persons, may be purchased in blocks of more than six (6)
seats. Purchasers must attest at the time of purchase that both the
purchaser and all persons within the purchaser’s party are fully
vaccinated. All persons seated in the fully vaccinated section must show
the venue proof of full vaccination.

o Fully Vaccinated-only sections must be separate, distinct, and clearly
marked from any other section of the venue that is set aside for the
seating of tested or non-tested attendees.

o Individuals in the Fully Vaccinated-only sections do not have to be
physically distanced. Face coverings are required.

o There must be at least 6 feet of distance between the Fully Vaccinated-
only sections and any other section in the venue.

o Children (> 2 years of age) who are not eligible to be vaccinated may sit
with their parent, guardian, or sponsor in the Fully Vaccinated-only
sections if they are tested. Children younger than 2 do not need to be
tested and may also sit with their parent, guardian, or sponsor in the
Fully Vaccinated - only section. Children sitting with the parent, guardian
or sponsor in a Fully Vaccinated-only section are considered for
purposes of social distancing to be fully vaccinated.

• Food and Beverage
o Concessions and beverage counters must be strictly monitored to

ensure that customers are not crowding together. To limit crowding and
lines, venues that offer food and drink concessions should encourage
customers to order online and/or over the phone and make concessions
available for counter pick -up. Tape or other markings assist customers
in keeping a six (6) feet distance between them and others in line.



Independence Day Implementation Plan Page 4 of 6 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

Eliminate food and beverage seating outside the designated household 
seating. 

o Food must be consumed within the household seating area.
• Vendor and Performers

o Contractor(s) agrees to abide by all regulations set forth by the Los
Angeles County Department of Public Health to prevent the spread of
COVID-19.

o Unmasked performers must be at least 6’ from all other people
o Performers should empty water keys onto disposable or paper towels

whenever possible and turn away from others when emptying to avoid
fluid contamination. Musicians should discard their own used towels and
wash their hands and/or use hand sanitizer after disposal.

• Other Public Health Departments (Attachments 4, 5 & 6)
o It is noteworthy to also compare guidance among other agencies within

Los Angeles County that have their own Public Health departments.
Pasadena and Long Beach both have their own health departments.
Long Beach’s guidance for outdoor live events redirects stakeholders to
the State’s guidance for outdoor live events.  Pasadena has produced
their own protocol, but this protocol is similar to LA County and the
State’s guidance.

o http://www.longbeach.gov/globalassets/health/media-
library/documents/diseases-and-condition/information-on/novel-
coronavirus/health-orders/appendix-q---hotel--lodging--and-short-term-
rental-protocols

o https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-
content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf

Survey of Surrounding Cities 
An informal survey of surrounding agencies was conducted by staff via telephone and 
email as a benchmark.  Some cities have opted to cancel their event (Norwalk, Pico 
Rivera), others are moving forward with modified events or firework displays only 
(Cerritos, Commerce, La Mirada, Lakewood, Lynwood, Whittier) while others are still in 
the evaluation process (South Gate). 

Santa Fe Springs Plan for Implementation – Concert and Fireworks Show on July 
3, 2021 

• Registration
o Registration will be directed through www.santafesprings.org/July3.

Registration is free but only Santa Fe Springs residents are allowed to
register.  Registration will also be available via telephone and in-person,
when facilities open to the public.  Registrants will first complete an online
form to verify their contact information and residency status.  They will be
required to submit proof of residency via the online platform.

o One registration is required per household unit.
o Once contact information is entered and proof of residency is submitted,

they will be automatically redirected to an Eventbrite private link to select

https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Outdoor-Seated-Live-Events.pdf
http://www.santafesprings.org/July3


Independence Day Implementation Plan Page 5 of 6 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

their seating. 
o There are 300 spots available.  Each spot can hold up to 6 family members

of a single household, (max of 6 people within 12’x12’ section).
o Each section of venue can accommodate non-vaccinated or vaccinated

families alike.
o Once registration is complete, an electronic ticket will be sent automatically

via email.  Each ticket is unique and will be scanned upon entry.
• Site Plan

o Please refer to Attachment 2 for a rendering of the preliminary site plan.
o The entire venue will be fenced off
o There will be 4 entry points at the south end of the park
o The stage will be located toward the east end of the park
o Seating areas will be marked with field marking paint
o There will be accessible seating for people with disabilities
o There will also be courtesy parking available
o The fireworks fallout zone (280’ radius) will be fenced off
o Some areas have been marked as “obstructed views”
o Multiple restroom locations will be available
o Separation of 12 feet between stage and attendees

• Check-in
o The venue will open at 5:30 p.m.
o Vaccination cards will not be checked upon entry as all sections can

accommodate non-vaccinated or vaccinated families alike.
o Bags will not be checked
o There will be 4 lines to enter the venue
o Check-in lines will be clearly marked for attendees to maintain physical

distancing
• Food

o One to two food vendors will be on-site
o Attendees are allowed to bring their own food
o Food from vendors will be distributed in a grab-and-go fashion
o There will not be a designated area for eating
o All food must be consumed within the designated seating area

• Entertainment
o One band will play two, 45 minute sets, beginning at 7 p.m.
o Negotiations on-going with The Adelaide Band
o Social distancing on-stage
o Unmasked performers must be at least 6’ from all other people
o Balloon artist and stilt-walker will be at event if restrictions are eased

• Fireworks Show
o Show scheduled to begin at 9 p.m.
o Show is 18-20 minutes
o Max of 4” shells to allow for a 280’ radius fallout zone

• Schedule of Events for July 3rd:
o 5:30 p.m. – Doors Open
o 7:00 p.m. – Concert Begins



Independence Day Implementation Plan Page 6 of 6 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

o 7:30 p.m. – Easy Viewing Area at Santa Fe Springs Athletic Fields opens
o 7:50 p.m. – Intermission
o 9:00 p.m. – Firework Show begins
o 9:20 p.m. – Fireworks Show concludes

Protocols Update, Yellow Tier, and Mask Mandate 
The Department of Public Health announced on Tuesday, April 28, 2021 that Los Angeles 
County has met the thresholds to move into the yellow tier as early as Wednesday, May 
5, 2021, so long as that criteria is met for 1 week.  This would mean further easing of 
capacity restrictions at businesses, gatherings and events, both indoors and outdoors.  
Additionally, President Biden and the Centers for Disease Control also announced an 
updated mask mandate.  This new mask mandate, as of the production of this report, 
does not have an impact on large gatherings.  Staff will continue to monitor for further 
updates. 

Although these recent announcements are positive in nature and indicate that the 
pandemic is trending positively toward a return to some sense of normalcy, it is also 
important to note that some iterations of Live Events, Private Events and Informal 
Gatherings protocols might be in effect after June 15. It will depend on State and County 
guidance, which cannot be predicted.  Staff will continue to monitor protocols and 
guidance for public health and make adjustments as needed. 

LEGAL REVIEW 
  The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the Protocol for Live Events and Performances 
  (Outdoor Seated):  Appendix Z and this report. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total project cost breakdown is as follows: 

*If restrictions allow

Description 2019 2021 
Fireworks $22,000 $22,000 
Sound & Lighting (stage set up by PRS staff) $4,500 $4,500 
Fencing – 850 feet (Windscreen included) - $3,500
(2) Golf Carts – 6 Seater - $900
Restrooms $1,000 $1,100 
Light Tower $400 $400 
Entertainment $2,850 $1,800 
Insurance $1,400 $1,200 
Supplies (craft supplies, signage, distancing, field paint, etc.) $2,000 $4,500 
*Roving Entertainment (stilt-walker, balloon artist) - $1,000
TOTAL (Budgeted) $34,150 $40,900 
Difference between two years. 

 
$(6,750) 



Independence Day Implementation Plan Page 7 of 6 

Report Submitted By:  Maricela Balderas/Gus Hernandez   Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
 Department of Community Services 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
There is no infrastructure impact.  All equipment and field markings are temporary. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments 
1. Protocol for Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated):  Appendix Z
2. Independence Day Celebration Site Plan for 2021 Concert and Fireworks Show at

Los Nietos Park on July 3, 2021
3. Email from Los Angeles County Department of Public Health
4. City of Pasadena Public Health Reopening Protocol Outdoor Seated Live Events
5. City of Long Beach Appendix Q – Hotels, Lodging and Short-Term Rental Protocols
6. State of California Covid-19 Guidance: Outdoor Seated Live Events and

Performances



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 1 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

Protocol for Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated):
Appendix Z

Latest Updates (Changes Highlighted in Yellow):
4/22/2021:

• Revised to clarify that fully vaccinated individuals need only present a photo identif ication rather than
a government-issued photo identification with their proof of vaccination.

• Updates cleaning requirements to comport with updated CDC guidance for cleaning.
• Paid sick leave language has been updated to incorporate new paid sick leave benefits for employees.
• Fully vaccinated persons may purchase tickets in blocks of more than 6 tickets for fully vaccinated

seating sections provided that all members of their party are fully vaccinated.
4/14/2021: Revised to clarify the following:

• Fully vaccinated-only seating sections;
• Requirements for showing proof of full vaccination;
• Fully vaccinated persons from out of state may visit or attend activities or events that are restricted to

in-state visitors.

COVID-19 case rates, hospitalizations, and deaths have decreased and appear to be stable, but community
spread still remains moderate. COVID-19 continues to pose a high risk to communities and requires all people
and businesses to continue to take precautions and modify operations and activities to reduce the risk of spread.
As of April 1, 2021, the State’s Blueprint for a Safer Economy allows Large Venues to reopen for Outdoor Seated
Live Events and Performances. Facility Operators should proceed with caution and adhere to the requirements
in this protocol to reduce the potential spread of COVID-19 within their business operations.

The requirements below are specific to large venues hosting outdoor seated live events and entertainment with
audiences to support a safe, clean environment for workers, volunteers, and customers/patrons . Performances
that take place in other venues (such as restaurants, bars or houses of worship) are required to adhere to the
applicable sector protocol. In the Orange Tier, these establishments may be open to the public for outdoor
operations at 33% maximum occupancy based on applicable fire or building code occupancy.

This protocol is not intended for convention-style events or general admission venues/activities where the central
activity allows or requires patrons to move around a shared space.

Prior to holding an Outdoor Seated Live Event or Performance with attendance of more than 250 members of
the public to the venue, Outdoor Seated Live Event Operators must submit their event plan to the Los Angeles
County Department of Public Health (LACDPH), using the Proposed Event Form to explain how the private event
will be operated in compliance with all required modifications. This form should be submitted at least 14 days
prior to the proposed event. LACDPH will acknowledge receipt of this application within 5 business days.

In addition to the conditions imposed on live events by the State Public Health Officer, these types of businesses
must also be in compliance with the conditions provided in this County Protocol for Outdoor Seated Live Events
and Performances. For the purposes of this guidance, a permissible outdoor venue for live audience
performance shall require:

• A permanent and fixed facility, focused around a stage round, field, court , or other central area designed
primarily for viewing entertainment or athletics by an audience OR a defined and demarcated outdoor
area. Seat assignments must be marked clearly with at least 6 feet of distance between household groups
and seats can be reserved.

• The facility shall either be open to the sky with no roof or have at least 50% of the total perimeter open,
meaning there are no walls, doors, windows, dividers, or other physical barriers that restrict air f low,
whether open or closed. There must be sufficient natural ventilation and air circulation to dilute and
disperse concentrations of aerosols effectively without the support of mechanical systems.

ATTACHMENT 1

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=SHJZBzjqG0WKvqY47dusgRhkHSYxz5JKiyxHrBS9oFNUNDdQVzNKVTFZWVQ5VUNUN1BXSVdXVDRCTi4u


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 2 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

• The facility shall be designed in a way that provides the operator the ability to control fully  the flow,
ingress, and egress of all visitors, and to separate performers, artists, and workers from the general
audience.

• There must be permanent or added barriers or other demarcation to create at least 12 feet between
space occupied by audience members and the focal point (stage, field, or round).

Food and drink concession at outdoor venues may be delivered to guests in their seats, delivered to designated
guest pick-up areas, or sold directly to patrons at outdoor concession stands. Patrons must be reminded that
eating/drinking is only permitted while patrons are seated in their reserved seats in the venue  and at a 6-foot
distance from those who are not members of their household or customer group, or at designated outdoor dining
areas that follow the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health (DPH) Protocols for Restaurants. Eating
or drinking anywhere else while in the establishment or on the grounds of the establishment is prohibited, except
when dining at a full-service restaurant in compliance with the Protocols for Restaurants. Concessions stands
located indoors may not be open for sales.  Televisions or screens located outdoors may be operated.

Full-service restaurants may be open in compliance with the DPH Protocols for Restaurants. Bars may be open
outdoors in compliance with the DPH Protocol for Bars.

Performance venues have a number of operational aspects and service offerings covered in other guidance and
which are available at: http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/reopening-la.htm. Performance
groups and venues must review this guidance to apply the appropriate protocols to all aspec ts of operations,
unless otherwise required in this document, including:

❑ LA County DPH Protocol for Retail Establishments
❑ LA County DPH Protocol for Office-based Worksites
❑ LA County DPH Protocol for Restaurants
❑ LA County DPH Protocol for Hotels, Lodging and Short Term Rentals
❑ LA County DPH Protocol for Pro-sport Leagues, Facilities, Training
❑ LA County DPH Protocol for Protocol for Music, Television and Film Production
❑ Guidance for Temporary Structures for outdoor business operations

In the protocols that follow, the term “household” is defined as “persons living together as a single living unit” and 
shall not include institutional group living situations such as dormitories, fraternities, sororities, monasteries,
convents, or residential care facilities, nor does it include such commercial living arrangements such as boarding
houses, hotels, or motels.1 The terms “staff” and “employee” are meant to include employees, volunteers, interns 
and trainees, scholars and all other individuals who carry out work at the site. The term “visitors” or "cu stomers” 
should be understood to include members of the public and others who are not staff or employees who spend
time at the business or site. The terms “establishment”, “site”, and “facility” both refer to the building, grounds, 
and any adjacent buildings or grounds at which permitted activities are conducted.

Please note: This document may be updated as additional information and resources become available so be
sure to check the LA County website http://www.ph.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/ regularly for any updates
to this document.

This checklist covers:
(1) Workplace policies and practices to protect employee health
(2) Measures to ensure physical distancing
(3) Measures to ensure infection control

1 Los Angeles County Code, Title 22. §22.14.060 - F. Family definition. (Ord. 2019-0004 § 1, 2019.)
https://library.municode.com/ca/los_angeles_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT22PLZO_DIV2DE_CH22.14DE_22.14.060F

http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/reopening-la.htm
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_RetailEstablishments.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_OfficeBasedWorksites.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_Restaurants.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_LodgingShortTermRentals.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_SportsLeagues.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_MusicTelevisionFilmProduction.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
http://www.ph.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/
https://library.municode.com/ca/los_angeles_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT22PLZO_DIV2DE_CH22.14DE_22.14.060F


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 3 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

(4) Communication with employees and the public
(5) Measures to ensure equitable access to critical services

These five key areas must be addressed as your facility develops any reopening protocols.

Facilities must implement all applicable measures listed below
and be prepared to explain why any measure that is not implemented

is not applicable to the institution.
Business name:
Facility Address:

Maximum Occupancy,
per Fire Code:

Maximum Occupancy at 33%
occupancy per Fire Code:

Approximate total square footage
of space open to the public:

A. WORKPLACE POLICIES AND PRACTICES TO PROTECT EMPLOYEE HEALTH
(CHECK ALL THAT APPLY TO THE FACILITY)

❑ Everyone who can carry out their work duties from home has been directed to do so.
❑ Vulnerable staff (those above age 65, those who are pregnant, those with chronic health conditions) are

assigned work that can be done from home whenever possible.
❑ Work processes are reconfigured to the extent possible to increase opportunities for employees to work from

home.
❑ Alternate, staggered or shift schedules have been instituted to maximize physical distancing.
❑ All employees (including performers, players, coaching staff, medical staff, broadcast staff, facility staff, and

operations staff, collectively referred to as “employees”) have been told not to come to work if sick, or if they
are exposed to a person who has COVID-19.

❑ Employees are provided information on employer or government-sponsored leave benefits the employee
may be entitled to receive that would make it f inancially easier to stay at home. See additional information
on government programs supporting sick leave and worker’s compensation for COVID -19, including
employee’s sick leave rights under the 2021 COVID-19 Supplemental Paid Sick Leave Law.

❑ Entry screenings are conducted before employees, performers, vendors, delivery personnel, and other
support personnel or visitors may enter the workspace, in compliance with the LA County DPH Entry
Screening Guidance. Checks must include a check-in concerning cough, shortness of breath, diff iculty
breathing and fever or chills and whether the individual is currently under isolation or quarantine
orders. These checks can be done upon the employees’ arrival or through alternative methods such as on-
line check in systems or through signage posted at the entry of the facility stating that employees with these
symptoms must not enter the premises. A temperature check should also be done at the worksite if feasible.
o Negative Screen (Cleared). If the person has no symptom(s) and no contact with a known COVID-19

case in the last 10 days, they can be cleared to enter and work for that day.

https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/COVID19Resources/FAQ-for-SPSL-2021.html
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/business/EntryScreening.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/business/EntryScreening.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/business/NoticeToCustomers.pdf


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated)        Page 4 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

o Positive Screen (Not Cleared):
▪ If the person was not fully vaccinated2 against COVID-19 and had contact with a known

COVID-19 case in the last 10 days or is currently under quarantine orders, they may not enter
or work in the field and must be sent home immediately to quarantine at home. Provide them
with the quarantine instructions found at ph.lacounty.gov/covidquarantine.

o If the person is showing any of the symptoms noted above or is currently under isolation orders, they
may not enter or work in the field and must be sent home immediately to isolate at home. Provide
them with the isolation instructions found at ph.lacounty.gov/covidisolation.

❑ Upon being informed that one or more employees test positive for or has symptoms consistent with COVID-
19 (case), the employer has a plan or protocol in place to have the case(s) isolate themselves at home and
require the immediate self -quarantine of all employees that had a workplace exposure to the case(s). The
employer’s plan should consider a protocol for all quarantined employees to have access to or be tested for
COVID-19 in order to determine whether there have been additional workplace exposures, which may require
additional COVID-19 control measures.

❑ Employees who have contact with others are offered, at no cost, an appropriate face mask that covers the
nose and mouth. For more information, see LAC DPH COVID-19 Mask webpage at http://publichealth.
lacounty.gov/acd/ncorona2019/masks. The mask is to be worn by the employee at all times during the
workday when in contact or likely to come into contact with others. Employees who have been instructed by
their medical provider that they should not wear a face mask must wear a face shield with a drape on the
bottom edge, to be in compliance with State directives, as long as their condition permits it. A drape that is
form fitting under the chin is preferred. Masks with one-way valves may not be used.

❑ Employees who are serving concessions to customers or who are otherwise in regular close contact with
customers (e.g., conducting entry screenings) must wear a face shield, unless they show proof they are fully
vaccinated to their employer, in addition to a face mask.

❑ Athletes are subject to the following face mask requirements:
o Professional athletes who derive a living from competing in a sport or compete in a sport as

representatives of the United States (e.g., the Olympic and Paralympic Games) and who are subject
to a labor/management agreement between their union representatives and the relevant professional
governing association are subject to the applicable face mask requirements of those agreements.

o Collegiate athletes are subject to the specific masking requirements of the Institutes of Higher
Education Guidance.

o All other athletes who are not subject to a labor/management agreement, including professional,
semi-professional, and recreational athletes, must follow the specific masking requirements in the LA
County DPH Protocol for Youth and Adult Recreational Sports Leagues.

❑ Performers and workers in the performance sector who cannot feasibly perform or work with a face mask are
not required to wear a face mask during the time period in which such tasks are actually being performed on
the condition that: (1) the unmasked performer or worker is at least six feet away from all other persons, or
at least 12 feet away from others if the performer is singing or playing a wind or brass instrument; or (2) all
unmasked performers or workers and any workers who come into contact with those people are routinely
tested at least twice weekly for COVID-19 (PCR or antigen are permissible diagnosis tests for routine testing
of performers and workers).

❑ To ensure that masks are worn consistently and correctly, employees are discouraged from eating or drinking
except during their breaks when they are able to safely remove their masks and physically distance from
others. At all times when eating or drinking, employees must maintain at least a six-foot distance from
others. When eating or drinking, it is preferred to do so outdoors and away from others. Eating or drinking at

2 People are considered fully vaccinated against COVID-19 two (2) weeks or more after they have received the second dose in a 2-dose series (e.g.,
Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna), or two (2) weeks or more after they have received a single -dose vaccine (e.g., Johnson and Johnson [J&J]/Janssen).

http://ph.lacounty.gov/covidquarantine
http://ph.lacounty.gov/covidisolation
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/acd/ncorona2019/masks
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/acd/ncorona2019/masks
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-higher-education--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-higher-education--en.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/protocols/Reopening_SportsLeagues.pdf


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 5 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

a cubicle or workstation is preferred to eating in a breakroom if eating in a cubicle or workstation provides
greater distance from and barriers between workers.

❑ Occupancy is reduced and space between employees is maximized in any room or area used by employees
for meals and/or breaks. This has been achieved by:

o Posting a maximum occupancy that is consistent with enabling a distance of at least six feet between
individuals in rooms or areas used for breaks;

o Staggering break or mealtimes to reduce occupancy in rooms or areas used for meals and breaks;
and

o Placing tables at least eight feet apart and assuring six feet between seats, removing or taping seats
to reduce occupancy, placing markings on floors to assure distancing, and arranging seating in a way
that minimizes face-to-face contact. Use of partitions is encouraged to further prevent spread but
should not be considered a substitute for reducing occupancy and maintaining physical distancing.

❑ Employees are instructed to wash, if applicable, or replace their face masks daily.
❑ In the event that 3 or more cases are identif ied within the workplace within a span of 14 days the employer

must report this cluster to the Department of Public Health at (888) 397-3993 or (213) 240-7821 or online at
www.redcap.link/covidreport. If a cluster is identif ied at a worksite, the Department of Public Health will initiate
a cluster response which includes providing infection control guidance and recommendations, technical
support and site-specific control measures. A public health case manager will be assigned to the cluster
investigation to help guide the facility response.

❑ Any workstations within the facility are separated by at least six feet.
❑ The number of people in any room in the facility (e.g., restrooms, meeting rooms, cafeterias, gyms, etc.) is

limited at any given time, such that all people in the room can easily maintain at least a 6-foot distance from
one another at all practicable times or an 8-foot distance if they are engaging in physical activity.

❑ All venues that are open for Outdoor Seated Live Events and Performances with spectators must implement
a COVID-19 testing program that provides weekly, optional testing of all workers who may come in contact
with others.

o PCR or antigen are permissible diagnosis tests for employees where the interval between the tests
is no greater than 7 days. For employees returning to work where the interval between a prior test
has been greater than 7 days after receiving a prior test, only a PCR test is permissible.

o Any performers, players and employees participating in routine weekly testing are not counted toward
any occupancy capacity limit. All performers, players and employees not participating in a routine
weekly testing program shall count toward any occupancy limit.

o Where capacity limits exist, fully vaccinated workers who are working onsite do not count toward any
occupancy capacity limit.

❑ All rooms that are regularly used by employees during the course of the workday (e.g., meeting rooms,
restrooms and other common areas) are disinfected at the frequency described below, but no less than once
per day during operating hours, on the following schedule:

o Meeting rooms     _____________________________________________________________
o Restrooms _____________________________________________________________
o Other _____________________________________________________________

❑ Disinfectant and related supplies are available to employees at the following location(s):
_________________________________________________________________________________

❑ Hand sanitizer effective against COVID-19 is available to all employees at the following location(s):
_________________________________________________________________________________

❑ Employees are allowed frequent breaks to wash their hands.

file:///C:/Users/e641414/AppData/Local/Temp/Temp1_Reopening_LiveOutdoorEvents_04-22-2021.zip/www.redcap.link/covidreport


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 6 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

❑ A copy of this protocol has been distributed to each employee.
❑ Each worker is assigned their own equipment and defined work area to the extent possible. The need for

sharing held items is minimized or eliminated.
❑ Personal items (e.g., water bottles, towels, uniforms, etc.) are not shared.
❑ For outdoor operations, there is a heat illness prevention plan and written procedures in both English and

the language understood by the majority of the employees. The plan is available to employees at the
worksite. Please see Cal/OSHA heat illness prevention page for resources, including FAQs, a webinar and
a sample written plan. Elements of a heat illness prevention plan must include:

o Access to potable drinking water
o Access to shade
o Cool down breaks
o Emergency procedures for heat illness cases
o High heat procedures when the temperature exceeds 95 degrees
o Monitoring employees who are acclimatizing during a heat wave
o Training on heat illness prevention and symptoms

❑ Optional—Describe other measures:
_________________________________________________________________________________

B. MEASURES TO ENSURE PHYSICAL DISTANCING

❑ Attendance at Outdoor Seated Live Events in Orange Tier is limited to a maximum 33% of total venue
capacity as determined by applicable building or fire code.  Visitors in suites count toward this capacity limit.

o Maximum number of attendees in sports facility during an Outdoor Seated Live Event is limited to:
____________________________

❑ Audience groups must be limited to a total of 6 persons made up of a maximum of  three household units.
❑ Assigned seating is required to permit physical distancing of at least 6 feet between people of different

households or audience groups.
❑ Suites must be limited to 25% occupancy with no more than 3 households physically distanced within each

suite, or six people from the same household.  Suites may be occupied at 100% capacity only if all persons
in the suite show the venue proof of full vaccination3 and have an assigned seat in the suite.

❑ Venues may increase attendance capacity up to a maximum of 67% if all guests show the venue proof of a
negative COVID-19 test result within the 72 hours prior to attendance4 or proof of full vaccination. Customers
should be made to attest their and their audience groups full vaccination status at the point of purchase.

❑ Customers that have attested to full vaccination, must show the venue the required verification, which is a
photograph identification and a proof of vaccination, such as the vaccination card (which includes the name
of person vaccinated, type of vaccination provided and date last dose administered) or a photo of a
vaccination card as a separate document or a photo of the attendee’s vaccine card stored on a phone or
electronic device or documentation of vaccination from a healthcare provider , before permitted entry into the

3 People are considered fully vaccinated for COVID-19 at 2 weeks or more after they have received the second dose in a 2-does series (e.g. Pfizer-
BioNTech or Moderna), or 2 weeks or more after they have received a single -dose vaccine (e.g., Johnson and Johnson [J&J]/Janssen).
4 Attendees who have tested negative and seated in a section with other attendees who have tested negative for COVID-19. Testing must be conducted
within 72 hours before event start time, if using PCR. Antigen tests are acceptable and must be conducted within 24 hours of start of the event. Results of
the test must be available prior to entry into the event or venue.  Verification: The following are acceptable as proof of a negative COVID-19 test result:
printed document (from the test provider or laboratory) OR an email or text message displayed on a phone or electronic device from the test provider or
laboratory. The information provided should include name of person tested, type of test performed, and date of negative test result (for PCR, date of
negative result must be within prior 72 hours; for antigen, date of negative result must be within prior 24 hours).



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 7 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

venue or stadium.
❑ All attendees must purchase tickets in advance. Game-day ticket sales are not permitted.
❑ Seat purchases may only be made in blocks of six or fewer seats with members of a single household or

audience group, as defined by this protocol.  Seats within suites may be purchased in different configurations
in compliance with suite capacity limits. Venues must require those purchasing tickets to attest that their seat
reservation will contain attendees from no more than one household or audience group.

❑ Tickets purchased for seats within a section reserved for fully vaccinated persons, may be pur chased in
blocks of more than six (6) seats. Purchasers must attest at the time of purchase that both the purchaser
and all persons within the purchaser’s party are fully vaccinated. All persons seated in the fully vaccinated
section must show the venue proof of full vaccination.

❑ Tickets may only be purchased by California residents. The venue must require those purchasing tickets to
attest that they are a California resident and that all the members of the purchaser’s party will be in-state
visitors. Information will be prominently placed on all communications, including the Reservation and
Ticketing systems, to ensure guests are aware of Reservation and Ticketing requirements.

❑ Fully vaccinated persons from out of state may purchase tickets for, visit or attend activities or events that
are restricted to in-state visitors. Fully vaccinated persons should consult the current CDPH and County
Travel Advisories and adhere to any applicable recommendations.

❑ Ticketing offices must be protected with impermeable barriers, like Plexiglas. Instruct visitors where to queue
to maintain a minimum of six feet of physical distance from others in the line.

❑ Audience seating locations must be fixed or marked, with readily identif iable signs to indicate by section, row,
and seat (assigned seating). Assigned seats must clearly define space for individuals with appropriate space
per person (no blanket reservations or group or standing room only areas), and non -permanent seating
arrangements must not be altered by spectators.

❑ All audience or household groups of attendees must be spaced at least 6 feet from the nearest other audience
or household group. Spacing between groups of attendees, who are not seated in a section reserved for only
fully vaccinated persons, must enable concessions workers to easily approach a group to sell concessions
without coming into close contact with other groups of attendees.

❑ Fully Vaccinated-Only Seating Sections:
o Fully Vaccinated-only sections must be separate, distinct, and clearly marked from any other section

of the venue that is set aside for the seating of tested or non-tested attendees.
o Individuals in the Fully Vaccinated-only sections do not have to be physically distanced. Face

coverings are required.
o Fully Vaccinated-only sections may be seated at full capacity within that section only. Suites may also

operate at 100% of suite capacity if all guests show proof of full vaccination. However, capacity for
the venue must not exceed established limits.

o There must be at least 6 feet of distance between the Fully Vaccinated-only sections and any other
section in the venue.

o Children (> 2 years of age) who are not eligible to be vaccinated may sit with their parent, guardian,
or sponsor in the Fully Vaccinated-only sections if they are tested. Children younger than 2 do not
need to be tested and may also sit with their parent, guardian, or sponsor in the Fully Vaccinated -
only section. Children sitting with the parent, guardian or sponsor in a Fully Vaccinated-only section
are considered for purposes of social distancing to be fully vaccinated.

❑ Attendees must be reminded to stay in their seats except for visits to the restroom,  to pick up concessions
at a concession stand or at a designated pick-up area, to visit a retail outlet located within the venue or eat
at a designated outdoor dining area. Event staff are available in the concourse to remind attendees not to
congregate or to loiter in the concourse area of the venue.

❑ The facility operator must strictly and continuously meter entry and exit of customers at all entrances in order



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 8 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

to track occupancy to ensure compliance with capacity limits. Operators that are insufficiently or not metering
or appear to be over-capacity, may, at the discretion of the public health inspector, be temporarily closed
until these issues are rectif ied as determined by the onsite health inspector. Where possible, provide a single,
clearly designated entrance and separate exits to help maintain distancing.

❑ Be prepared to queue customers outside while still maintaining physical distance, including the use of visual
cues. If necessary, an employee (or employees if there is more than one entrance) wearing a face mask may
be posted near the door but at least 6 feet from the nearest customers to track occupancy and to direct
customers to line up six feet apart outside the entrance if the establishment has reached its occupancy limit
or until their reservation time.

❑ Separate routes are designated throughout the facility for entry and exit, activity areas, seating areas, and
employee work areas to help maintain physical distancing and lessen the instances of people closely passing
each other. One-way directional hallways and passageways for foot traffic have been designated if feasible.

❑ Ushers must be available during breaks and intermissions to ensure orderly entry and exit from and into
venue areas. Ushers should be used to preserve appropriate space in queueing areas and help understand
where lines begin as additional space may make it diff icult to see where to stand.

❑ Facility flow must be designed in a way that provides operators the ability to control fully the flow, ingress
and egress of all visitors and to separate players, performers, artists and employees from the general public.
Special attention must be paid to plans to ensure that visitors are able to exit the event in a staggered fashion,
including ensuring that venue ushers are available in all areas of the venue to encourage guests to keep
moving, to prevent congregating and to manage bottlenecks and crowding.

C. MEASURES FOR INFECTION CONTROL

❑ The HVAC system is in good, working order; to the maximum extent possible, ventilation has been increased.
Effective ventilation is one of the most important ways to control small aerosol transmission. Consider
installing portable high-efficiency air cleaners, upgrading the building’s air f ilters to the highest efficiency
possible, opening windows and doors, and making other modifications to increase the quantity of outside air
and ventilation in offices and other spaces. See California Department of Public Health Interim Guidance for
Ventilation, Filtration and Air Quality in Indoor Environments for detailed information.

• Please Note: Ventilation and other indoor air quality improvements are an addition to, and not a
replacement for, mandatory protections including wearing face masks (except in certain high -risk
environments that require using proper respiratory protection), maintaining at least six feet of
distance between people, washing hands frequently, and limiting activities that bring together
people from different households.

❑ Venue operators must allow for at least 2 hours between events or performances to prevent mixing across
attendees.

❑ Visitors arriving at the establishment are reminded to wear a face mask at all times (except while eating or
drinking, if applicable) while in the establishment or on the grounds of the establishment. This applies to all
adults and to children 2 years of age and older. Individuals who have been instructed not to wear a face
mask by their medical provider must wear a face shield with a drape along the bottom edge, to be in
compliance with State directives, if their condition allows it. Masks with one-way vents on the front must not
be worn. To support the safety of your employees and other visitors, a face mask should be made available
to visitors who arrive without them.

❑ Entry screening is conducted before visitors may enter the facility. (See County Entry Screening guidance.)
Checks must include a check-in concerning cough, shortness of breath, difficulty breathing and fever or chills
and whether the individual is currently under isolation or quarantine orders. These checks can be done in
person or through alternative methods such as on-line check in systems or through signage posted at the
entrance to the facility stating that visitors with these symptoms should not enter the premises.

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/business/EntryScreening.pdf
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/docs/business/NoticeToCustomers.pdf


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 9 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

o Negative Screen (Cleared). If the person has no symptom(s) and no contact with a known COVID-19
case in the last 10 days, they can be cleared to enter for that day.

o Positive Screen (Not Cleared):
▪ If the person has had contact with a known COVID-19 case in the last 10 days or is currently

under quarantine orders, they may not enter and must be sent home immediately to
quarantine at home. Provide them with the quarantine instructions found at ph.lacounty.gov/
covidquarantine.

▪ If the person is showing any of the symptoms noted above or is currently under isolation
orders, they may not enter and must be sent home immediately to isolate at home. Provide
them with the isolation instructions found at ph.lacounty.gov/covidisolation.

❑ Employees checking bags should modify activities to minimize directly touching guest items. This could
include using styluses or other instruments to search bags, asking guests to open and move contents, etc.
Where practices might cause direct contact with patrons or their items, employees should immediately
sanitize hands or wear disposable gloves. Consider implementing a clear bag or no bag policy to avoid
workers needing to touch attendees’ personal items.

❑ If feasible, utilize a walk-through metal detector rather than hand wand metal detectors to allow employees
to maintain at least six feet of physical distance from attendees.

❑ Ticketing offices must be protected with impermeable barriers, like Plexiglas.
❑ Use touchless ticket scanners whenever possible. Ask attendees to scan tickets themselves rather than

passing digital electronic devices or paper tickets back and forth between workers and patrons.
❑ Discontinue coat check and other amenities that require workers to unnecessarily touch guest items and

increase the risk of contact of contaminated items from different households.
❑ Discourage attendees from engaging in yelling, singing, chanting, booing, use of noisemakers that require

the exhalation of air (e.g., vuvuzelas), and other similar practices that any increase the likelihood of
transmission from contaminated exhaled droplets and aerosols.

❑ Common areas and frequently touched objects (e.g., tables, doorknobs or handles, light switches) are
disinfected  at least once per day during business hours using EPA approved disinfectants and following the
manufacturer’s instructions for use.

❑ Hand sanitizer, tissues and trash cans are available to employees and visitors at or near the entrances to
the facility.

D. CONSIDERATIONS FOR ON-AIR TALENT
❑ During live sporting events, on-air talent, including pre-game reporters, play-by-play announcers, sideline

reporters and others who appear on-camera before, during or after a live broadcast of a game may remove
their face masks during times when they are on-air, provided that they are at least 6 feet from any other
individual while they are on-air. At all other times, they must wear an appropriate face mask.

❑ If possible, on-air talent should broadcast in an outdoor or open-air setting. On-air talent that is broadcasting
from an indoor booth setting must be positioned at least 6 feet from others in the booth, and if the booth is
occupied by more than one on-air announcer, there must be barriers set up between them.

❑ Those who conduct interviews with players, coaches or others (e.g., sideline reporters) must keep their face
masks on at all times during interviews.

E. CONSIDERATIONS FOR VENUE SUPPORT OPERATIONS: SOUND, LIGHTING, ETC.
❑ Consider options to limit the number of staff needed for back-of-house production departments and/or identify

ways they can complete tasks separately from each other. For example, where feasible, the lighting
department should be allowed to work alone on set until the lighting is complete before other departments

http://ph.lacounty.gov/covidquarantine
http://ph.lacounty.gov/covidquarantine
http://ph.lacounty.gov/covidisolation
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/food/GuidanceUseofBarriers.pdf


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 10 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

undertake their tasks.
❑ Evaluate the increased risk from standard working processes involving close contact (heavy lifting, working

in confined spaces such as scissor lifts, lighting grids, moving large lamps, textile tying, etc.) and modify
those work processes, where possible, and ensure workers have access to the proper protective equipment.

❑ Touchable surfaces are cleaned at least once daily or as often as determined is necessary  including but not
limited to working surfaces, tools, handles and latches, and controls on stationary and mobile equipment
including surface in the cabs of all vehicles.

❑ Reusable PPE (such as face shields) and employer-owned and controlled equipment, such as hard hats, is
sanitized at the end of each shift.

❑ Choke points and high-risk areas where workers must stand together, such as hallways, hoists, and
elevators, have been identif ied and signage is posted to remind workers to take precautions while moving
through these areas.

❑ Use of shared production items has been limited to a single worker or a function team (e.g., sound equipment
should be handled by a designated person or team). All items are  cleaned once daily.

❑ All communication technology is disinfected before and after each use and tools are labeled with the name
of each user to avoid inadvertent sharing of tools.

❑ Workers who handle keys, open car doors or touch others’ items are allowed additional time to wash hands
and/or use hand sanitizer.

F. CONSIDERATIONS FOR PERFORMERS, MUSICAL PERFORMERS AND REHEARSALS
❑ For Performers:

o Use precautions when performing in large groups or ensembles and evaluate the necessity of such
activity on a case-by-case basis. Background players, stand-ins, and other non-essential performers
on set should not linger in crowded holding areas unnecessarily. Holding/offstage areas should be
sufficiently large to ensure adequate spacing between performers, backstage workers, etc.

o Performing groups should consider modifications to rehearsals where face masks cannot be worn,
that break physical distances, require performers to touch their own or others’ faces, etc.

o Use microphones for performances to the maximum extent feasible so that performers can limit voice
projections, which cause more particles, aerosols, and droplets to be released and travel farther.

o Performers that are minors should be accompanied by a parent or guardian. Children should be given
special instruction and guidance on the use of any provided protective equipment and safety protocols.

❑ For Musical Performers:
o Performers should empty water keys onto disposable or paper towels whenever possible and turn

away from others when emptying to avoid fluid contamination. Musicians should discard their own
used towels and wash their hands and/or use hand sanitizer after disposal. If musicians empty water
keys onto non-disposable towels, the towels must be clean when brought to performance or practice,
removed by the musician and placed into a sealed container away from others for laundering, and the
musician must wash their hands and/or use hand sanitizer.

o Perform instrument cleaning, including wiping down and blowing through, at home and away from
others before and after practice.

o Do not share instruments, if at all possible. Consider discontinuing assistance from musician
assistants, such as page-turners, or others that cannot maintain at least six feet of distance.

o Increase distancing between people who sing or chant and others, or between brass/wind instrument
performers and others to greater than 6 feet, when outdoors and not wearing face masks. Consider
use of barriers to add further separation in these cases.

http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/docs/food/GuidanceUseofBarriers.pdf


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 11 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

o Wind instrument performers should use additional modifications as appropriate, such as devices to
capture aerosols or to redirect air emitted from the instrument.

❑ For Rehearsals:
o Performances and/or practices where there is increased likelihood for transmission from lack of face

mask use or contaminated exhaled aerosols (such as singing, chanting, brass and woodwind playing,
etc.) should rehearse outdoors, if possible. Performers must rehearse and perform with their small
group to the greatest extent feasible.

o When workers cannot wear face masks as part of their rehearsal (e.g., opera singers, woodwind
musicians, etc.), operators must modify rehearsal activities, including maintaining strict small groups,
implementing at least weekly testing of participants during rehearsal as well as performance season,
limiting the amount of time and the number of workers without face masks, maintaining physical
distance between those without face masks and others to at least six feet, installing impermeable
barriers between people, ensuring proper ventilation, etc.

o Use precautions when performing in large groups or ensembles. If a large group is required for the
performance, minimize the time the full group is in proximity with each other (e.g., rehearsing in sub-
groups).

G. CONSIDERATIONS FOR COSTUME, WARDROBE, HAIR AND MAKE-UP
❑ For Costume and Wardrobe:

o Consider options that allow performers to arrive in their own wardrobe. Where feasible, encourage
background performers to also wear their own clothes from home. Separate dressing areas to permit
physical distancing if this is not possible.

o Ensure costume dressing and quick-change proposal are staggered and supervised by wardrobe
attendants.

o Each case member’s costume and wardrobe supplies should be kept in separate, labeled plastic bags.
❑ For Hair and Makeup

o Hair and make-up crew members should refer to LA County DPH Protocol on Personal Care Services.
o Hair extensions and wigs should be thoroughly cleaned according to the manufacturer’s directions

after each use.
o Makeup application tools and supplies should be purchased per performer and used only on that

individual. These supplies should be kept in individual cast bags.
o Mix foundation, powders, lipstick, and other makeup items on a disposable palette for each individual.

Use disposable, single-use applicators for each person.
o Performers should apply their own minor touch-ups, where possible, to avoid additional contact.

Performers should also remove their own makeup to limit contact at the end of the day.

H. CONSIDERATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION MILLS AND SET DESIGN
❑ Construction mill and set design employees should refer to additional guidance on the Construction and

Manufacturing industries.
❑ Consider whether the set design crew can operate separately from production, including fully dressing

locations prior to performances without interaction with other workers.
❑ Develop stage layouts to limit the number of staff and performers on site and maximize the physical distance

between performers.
❑ Additional cleaning and disinfection practices should be developed for key props, furniture, or other set

dressing which has repeated and regular exposure with employees. Where possible, limit the number of



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 12 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

people who have contact with key props.

I. CONSIDERATIONS FOR EMPLOYEE TRAVEL
❑ Production should evaluate whether travel is essential and should limit the number of workers asked to travel.

Check the current Los Angeles County Travel Advisory and CDPH Travel Advisory in effect. Review the CDC
guidelines on air travel and encourage all traveling personnel to do the same.

❑ Develop a detailed process and plan for travel, which should include:
o Implementing small travel groups.
o Ensuring facilities in proximity of venues can support necessary lodging and dining demands and any

potential medical needs.
o Reviewing the local, state, and CDC Travel Recommendations by Country and avoiding all

destinations, both domestic and international, where there is widespread ongoing transmission.
o Follow relevant local or state guidance regarding self -quarantine upon return from areas of higher

transmission.
❑ Consider lodging employees in apartments instead of hotel rooms where they might interact with other guests

or hotel staff.
❑ Where possible, employees should drive separately in their own vehicles, unless part of the same traveling

small groups.
❑ If a number of employees are in hotels, consider bus transport. If using shared vehicles, minimize the number

per vehicle to support physical distancing, require passengers to wear face masks, and keep windows open
to the extent possible.

J. MEASURES THAT COMMUNICATE TO THE PUBLIC
❑ A copy of this protocol, or if applicable, the facility’s printed Los Angeles County COVID-19 Safety

Compliance Certif icate is posted at all entrances to the facility. For more information or to complete the
COVID-19 Safety Compliance self -certification program, visit: http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/eh/
covid19cert.htm. Facilities must keep a copy of the Protocols onsite at the facility for review, upon request.

❑ Signage has been posted to provide clear guidance to the public about how to maintain safety within the
facility (e.g., maintaining physical distance, wear face mask, etc.). See the County DPH COVID-19 Guidance
webpage: http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/guidances.htm#business for additional
resources and examples of signage that can be used by businesses.

❑ Signage is posted throughout the facility to remind the public that eating, or drinking is prohibited anywhere
in the facility except for when attendees are seated in assigned seating or designated dining areas.

❑ Signage is posted at each public entrance of the facility to inform all employees and visitors that they should:
Avoid entering the facility if they have a cough or fever.

❑ Online outlets of the venue (online ticketing platforms, venue website, social media, etc.) provide clear
information about hours, required use of face masks, policies in regard to purchasing tickets, and other
relevant issues.

K. MEASURES THAT ENSURE EQUITABLE ACCESS TO CRITICAL SERVICES

❑ Services that are critical to the customers/clients have been prioritized.
❑ Transactions or services that can be offered remotely have been moved on-line.
❑ Measures are instituted to assure access to goods and services for customers who have mobility limitations

and/or are at high risk in public spaces.

http://www.publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/traveladvisory.htm
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Travel-Advisory.aspx
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-during-covid19.html
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/eh/covid19cert.htm
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/eh/covid19cert.htm
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/guidances.htm#business


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER 

APPENDIX Z: Live Events and Performances (Outdoor Seated) Page 13 of 13 

Revised 4/22/2021 

Any additional measures not included above should be listed on separate pages, which the
business should attach to this document.

You may contact the following person with any
questions or comments about this protocol:

Business Contact Name:

Phone number:

Date Last Revised:



FIREWORKS LAUNCH AREA 

LEGEND 
Restrooms -  (3) reg., (1) ADA, (3) sinks in general area 

(1) regular & (1) sink behind stage
(1) ADA & (1) sink in accessible area

Light Tower - (1) in RSG parking lot for pyro clean up 

Caution Tape 
Temporary Fencing - 6 ft. high 
Fallout Zone Fencing - PRS Crowd Barricades 
Temporary Windscreening 

Main Check In 
See additional map 

Craft, Horseshoe, & 
Overflow Check In 

See additional map 

Pyro Vehicle Access 

Independence Day Celebration Site Plan | Los Nietos Park | July 3, 2021 
ATTACHMENT 2



A
cti

vi
ty

 C
e

n
te

r 

C
h

ild
ca

re
 Y

ar
d

 

30 ft. 

STAFF 

STAFF 

STAFF STAFF 



From: Heather Jue Northover
To: Gustavo Hernandez
Subject: Call center inquiry re: July 4th and June 15th
Date: Friday, April 16, 2021 12:30:58 AM

Dear Mr. Hernadez,

I received your inquiry from the call center. I apologize for the delay. Per your questions about
June 15th, we still do not have clarity from the State regarding what reopening looks like at
that point in time. However, we anticipate modifications to protect health will continue to be
in place, even after all sectors can reopen.  

Regarding Appendix Z,  these guidelines are specific to large venues hosting outdoor seated
live events and entertainment with advanced ticket sales. If your 4th of July event aligns with
this description, please submit your event plan to Public Health using the Proposed Event
Form to explain how the private event will be operated in compliance with all required
modifications. This form should be submitted at least 14 days prior to the proposed event.
LACDPH will acknowledge receipt of this application within 5 business days 

It is possible that some iterations of Live Events, Private Events and Informal Gatherings
protocols will be in effect after June 15, but this will depend on State guidance. It is difficult to
predict at this time.

Warm regards,
Heather

ATTACHMENT 3

mailto:hnorthover@ph.lacounty.gov
mailto:GustavoHernandez@santafesprings.org
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=SHJZBzjqG0WKvqY47dusgRhkHSYxz5JKiyxHrBS9oFNUNDdQVzNKVTFZWVQ5VUNUN1BXSVdXVDRCTi4u
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=SHJZBzjqG0WKvqY47dusgRhkHSYxz5JKiyxHrBS9oFNUNDdQVzNKVTFZWVQ5VUNUN1BXSVdXVDRCTi4u


4.19.2021 Page 1 of 17 

Attachment 4 

PUBLIC HEALTH REOPENING PROTOCOL  OUTDOOR 
SEATED LIVE EVENTS 

At this time, all public health jurisdictions in Los Angeles County, including the City of Pasadena, are in Tier 
3, Moderate (Orange) of the State of CA Public Health Order Blueprint for a Safer Economy.  This protocol 
applies to outdoor venues and outdoor events that have assigned seating including sporting events, live 
theatre, concerts, outdoor movies, live performances, and graduation ceremonies.  This protocol is not 
intended for convention-style or general admission events where the central activity allows or requires 
guests to move around a shared space.  

In Tier Orange, venues can open for performances and events with seated audiences in adherence to 
restrictions detailed in the Public Health Reopening Protocol Checklist, including, but not limited to, 
reduced capacity attendance, implementation of a weekly worker testing program, advanced ticketing and 
assigned seating, restrictions on outdoor food and drink, and designation of an on-site COVID-19 
Compliance Coordinator responsible for ensuring the facility, staff, and guests are compliant with 
protocols.  

Permissible Outdoor Venues 

 The outdoor venue for live audience performances must be a permanent and fixed facility, focused
around a stage, field, or other central area designed primarily for viewing entertainment or
athletics by an audience OR a defined and demarcated outdoor area.

 Seat assignments must be marked clearly with at least 6 feet of distance between customer groups
and seats must be able to be reserved.

 The venue must meet the CDPH definition for “outdoor”, that includes the requirements to be
open to the sky with no roof or have at least 50% of the total perimeter open, meaning there are
no walls, doors, windows, dividers, or other physical barriers that restrict air flow, whether open or
closed. There must be sufficient natural ventilation and air circulation to dilute and disperse
concentrations of aerosols effectively without the support of mechanical systems. Refer to the
CDPH guidance on Use of Temporary Structures for Outdoor Business Operations for additional
information.

 For outdoor venues that also have indoor spaces (locker rooms, restaurants, offices), the facility
must have had its HVAC system inspected by a certified HVAC inspector to ensure that it is in
proper working condition and that the facility has considered optimizing ventilation through
routine maintenance and/or system upgrades.

 The venue shall be designed in a way that provides operators the ability to fully control the flow,
ingress, and egress of all attendees, and to separate performers, artists, and workers from the
general audience.

 There must be permanent or added barriers or other demarcation to create at least 12 feet of
distance between audience members and the focal point (stage or field).

COVID-19 Compliance Coordinator and Public Health Approval 

 Both the venue and the event organizer must designate a COVID-19 Compliance Coordinator to
review and complete this protocol checklist, implement all items, be on-site for preparation and
during the event, and be responsible to ensure the facility, staff and guests are compliant with

https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 2 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Pasadena Public Health Department  
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

requirements. 
 Submit this completed protocol to the Pasadena Public Health Department at

envhealth@cityofpasadena.net at least 14 days before the proposed event (Rose Bowl events
submit to the Rose Bowl Operating Company).  You will receive an email confirming receipt of
your submission within 3 business days.  Additional information including a site plan, worker
testing plan, vaccination and test result verification procedures, and an HVAC maintenance invoice
may be required. You must receive written approval of your plan prior to holding the event.
Protocols submitted less than 14 days before the proposed event may not be approved.  For
questions contact the Environmental Health Services Division at 626-744-6004.

Customer Groups are defined as 6 or fewer individuals from no more than 3 households. 

PROTECTING EMPLOYEES AND ATTENDEES FROM COVID-19 Access to COVID-19 Vaccine 

Individuals ages 16 years and older are currently eligible to obtain a vaccine effective against COVID-19.  
Provide information and registration assistance to staff.  Workers who live in Pasadena and individuals 
who work at Pasadena facilities may sign up at myturn.ca.gov, call the CA COVID-19 Hotline 1-833-
4224255, access the Pasadena On-call Form, or may call the Pasadena Citizen Service Center at 626-
7447311 for assistance. Links to vaccine appointments at pharmacies and other federal, state, and 
county sites are available at the PPHD website.  

In the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic, facilities must take steps to reduce the risk of an outbreak 
occurring among employees.  Depending on the situation, public notification of an exposure to COVID19 
may be required.  Help ensure employees are enrolled in health insurance and have an established 
relationship with a primary care doctor prior to reopening.  Employees can call 211 for information on 
health insurance and primary care physicians.     

 Facilities are required to make an immediate report to the Pasadena Public Health Department
any time an employee with COVID-19 (confirmed by a lab test or physician diagnosis) was at
the facility while sick or up to 48 hours before showing symptoms or receiving a positive test (if
asymptomatic).  Operators must email nursing@cityofpasadena.net or call (626) 744-6089 and
provide all information requested by the Health Department.  The employer is expected to
provide or ensure testing for all employees who have had a possible exposure and must follow
the US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) guidance for cleaning and disinfecting
the facility.  Testing resources can be found through the employee’s physician, and also at
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/ and https://covid19.lacounty.gov/.

 Educate employees to contact their supervisor if they are feeling sick.  The supervisor should
send the ill employee home immediately, taking care to maintain that person’s privacy and
observing physical distancing. If the person cannot leave the premises right away, utilize a safe,
designated space for isolation (6 feet or more away from others). If the illness is work-related, the
employer should facilitate appropriate care for the employee, the worker’s compensation
process, leave time, and California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal-OSHA)
record keeping. Follow all applicable Cal-OSHA mandatory emergency temporary standards.

https://myturn.ca.gov/
https://myturn.ca.gov/
https://healthforms.cityofpasadena.net/v/VaccineInquiry
https://healthforms.cityofpasadena.net/v/VaccineInquiry
https://healthforms.cityofpasadena.net/v/VaccineInquiry
https://healthforms.cityofpasadena.net/v/VaccineInquiry
https://healthforms.cityofpasadena.net/v/VaccineInquiry
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/covid-19-vaccine/
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/covid-19-vaccine/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/
https://covid19.lacounty.gov/
https://covid19.lacounty.gov/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 3 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

 Work with the Pasadena Public Health Department to investigate any COVID-19 illness.  Prepare
employee records, facility floor plans, and shift/attendance logs to provide information as quickly
as possible to the Health Department, including accurate contact information (phone, address,
email) of all employees and guests who were in contact within 6 feet of the infectious employee
for a cumulative 15 minutes or more in a 24-hour period, and other individuals as specified by the
Health Department.  Implement measures recommended by the Health Department.

Key Practices 

Steps to Reopen 

 Complete and implement this Public Health Reopening Protocol Checklist.
 Provide a copy of this completed protocol to each worker, performer, and athlete, and conduct

education regarding the requirements.
 Post a copy of the Public Health Reopening Protocol in a conspicuous location that is visible to

employees and guests, and post to your website.

Helpful Contact Information 

• If you have questions, or if you observe a violation, you can request information or submit a
complaint through the Citizen Service Center. Call 626-744-7311 or visit
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/CSC.

• Additional resources, including a printable COVID-19 Business Toolkit Signage, is available at
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses.

ADDITIONAL PROTOCOLS IN ORDER TO REOPEN (if applicable) 

Additional protocols relevant to operations must also be followed: https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-
19/#guidance-faq-protocols  

• Restaurants, Bars and Breweries - Public Health Reopening Protocol

https://www.cityofpasadena.net/CSC
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/CSC
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#info-for-businesses
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/covid-19/#guidance-faq-protocols


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 4 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

• Retail – Public Health Reopening Protocol
• Office Workspace – Public Health Reopening Protocol
• Hotels, Lodging and Short-Term Rentals – Public Health Reopening Protocol

CA Department of Public Health Blueprint for a Safer Economy   
CA Department of Public Health COVID-19 Guidance: Outdoor Seated Live Events and Performances 

In the protocol that follows, the term “household” is defined as “persons living together as a single living 
unit” and shall not include institutional group living situations such as dormitories, fraternities, sororities, 
monasteries, convents, or residential care facilities, nor does it include such commercial living 
arrangements such as boarding houses, hotels, or motels. The terms “staff”, “worker”, and “employee” 
are meant to include employees, volunteers, interns and trainees, performers, athletes, contractors and 
all other individuals who carry out work at the site. The term “guests” or "customers” should be 
understood to include members of the public and others who are not staff or employees who spend time 
at the business or site. The terms “venue”, “site”, and “facility” refer to the building, grounds, and any 
adjacent buildings or grounds at which permitted activities are conducted.   

OUTDOOR SEATED LIVE EVENTS PUBLIC HEALTH 
REOPENING PROTOCOL CHECKLIST

Event organizers, in partnership with the venue operator, must implement all applicable measures listed below 
and be prepared to explain why any measure that is not implemented is inapplicable to the event. All policies 
described in this checklist, other than those related to terms of employment, are applicable to delivery staff and 
other third party companies on the premises. Designate a COVID-19 Compliance Coordinator to be in charge of 
planning and implementation of all items.   

EVENT INFORMATION 
Event Name: Event Date:  

Venue Name and Address: 

COVID-19 COMPLIANCE COORDINATOR - VENUE 
Name: Signature: 

Phone: Email: 

COVID-19 COMPLIANCE COORDINATOR – EVENT ORGANIZER 
Name: Signature: 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 5 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Phone: Email: 

OCCUPANCY CALCULATION 
 Total Occupancy: 
(per Fire Code) 

33% Occupancy: 67% Occupancy (All attendee’s vaccination or test results
must be verified):   

Measures That Ensure Equitable Access to Critical Services 
 Services that are critical to the customers have been prioritized.
 Transactions or services that can be offered remotely have been moved on-line.
 Measures are instituted to assure access to goods and services for customers who have mobility

limitations or are at high risk in public spaces.

EXTERNAL COMMUNICATION 

 Utilize public address announcements, signage posted in strategic and highly-visible locations, and
reservation confirmations to remind customers and the public to wear a mask over the nose and
mouth whenever not eating or drinking, practice physical distancing, refrain from touching the
face, frequently wash hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, and use hand sanitizer.

 Post diagrams or maps and directional visual cues to instruct people on how they should flow
through the site.

 Post signage instructing customers to remain at home if experiencing any symptoms including fever
of 100°F or above, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, fatigue, sore throat, chills,
headache, muscle or body aches, a new loss of taste or smell, congestion or runny nose, nausea,
vomiting, or diarrhea.  Consult the CDC website for the most current list of COVID-19 symptoms.

 Communicate the venue’s new protocols by posting information on your website and social media
pages.  Include information regarding physical distancing and masking requirements.

 Post a copy of the completed Protocol in a conspicuous location that is easily visible to workers,
customers, and guests.

 Provide a copy of the Protocol to all workers, performers, and athletes.

INTERNAL COMMUNICATION, TRAINING AND RECORDS 

 Provide training to employees on all sections of the Protocol including:
 Information on COVID-19.
 How to identify symptoms of COVID-19 and how to self-screen and conduct symptom

checks.
 The importance of not coming to work if they are experiencing symptoms of COVID-19, or if

someone they live with has been diagnosed with COVID-19.
 Proper use and care of face masks (CDC guidance on masks).

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/how-to-wear-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/how-to-wear-cloth-face-coverings.html


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 6 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

 Physical distancing measures, sanitization, and handwashing.
 Proper safety protocols for use of disinfecting solutions.
 Information on employer or government sponsored leave benefits the employee may be

entitled to receive that would provide financial support to stay at home while ill.  Provide
additional information on government programs supporting sick leave and workers’
compensation for COVID-19, including employee’s sick leave rights under the Families First
Coronavirus Response Act, the employee’s rights to workers’ compensation benefits, and
presumption of the work relatedness of COVID-19 pursuant to the Governor’s Executive
Order N-62-20.

 Maintain records of each employee’s schedule and work area or assignment.
 Consider posting signs for the national distress hotline: 1-800-985-5990, or text TalkWithUs to 66746.

PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEE HEALTH 

Employee Health Screening   

 Conduct daily symptom checks (fever of 100ºF or above, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty
breathing, fatigue, sore throat, chills, headache, muscle or body aches, a new loss of taste or
smell, congestion or runny nose, nausea, vomiting, or diarrhea) before or upon arrival. The
screening must include asking if the employee has had contact with a person known to be infected
with COVID-19 in the last 14 days, and whether they are currently under isolation or quarantine
orders. Consult the CDC website for the most current list of COVID-19 symptoms.

 Send employees home immediately if they arrive sick or become sick during the day.  Encourage
sick employees to contact their medical provider.  Employees who need information on health
insurance or providers can call 211.

 Notify employees that they are not to come to work if sick or if they are exposed to a person who
has COVID-19.  Employers must comply with Cal-OSHA requirements for quarantine and isolation,
which may be more restrictive than the Pasadena Public Health Department (PPHD). For the
purposes of PPHD, employees who are fully vaccinated for COVID-19 (2 or more weeks after a 2-
dose vaccine series OR 2 or more weeks after a single dose vaccine) do not need to quarantine
after exposure to someone with COVID-19 if asymptomatic, and may come to work if
asymptomatic. The local Health Officer Order requires everyone to self-isolate when sick with
COVID-19. It also requires individuals to self-quarantine for 10 days from last contact with
someone with COVID-19, unless fully vaccinated. Anyone who is a close contact with someone
with COVID-19 must check for symptoms for 14 days regardless of vaccination status. The
employee must isolate from others immediately if symptoms develop within 14 days of exposure.
Quarantine must be maintained for 10 days, even if test results are negative (no virus detected).

 Require a sick employee to stay home for at least 10 days, or until 24 hours after fever and
symptoms resolve (without use of fever-reducing medications), whichever is longer.

 Review and modify workplace leave policies to ensure employees are not penalized when they
stay home due to illness.

 Institute a plan in the event that one or more employees is diagnosed (by a physician or lab test)
with COVID-19.  The plan should include immediate isolation of the employee at home and
selfquarantine of everyone that came into contact (within 6 feet for a cumulative total of 15

https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.6.20-EO-N-62-20-text.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/fully-vaccinated-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/fully-vaccinated-guidance.html


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 7 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

minutes or more over a 24-hour period, regardless of whether a mask was worn) with the ill 
employee, except fully vaccinated individuals who are asymptomatic.  The plan should also include 
options for all employees identified as contacts to be tested for COVID-19 with an FDAapproved 
PCR test (not a blood test) if they are not fully vaccinated. However, contacts must still maintain 
quarantine for 10 days, even with a negative test, if they are not fully vaccinated.   

Weekly Worker Testing Program 

 Employers must develop a COVID-19 testing program for weekly optional testing of all workers
who may encounter other individuals. PCR or antigen are permissible diagnosis tests for workers
and performers where the interval between tests is 7 days or less.  Individuals who have not been
tested for more than 7 days must be offered a PCR test.

 Workers, performers, and athletes participating in weekly testing are NOT counted toward the
capacity limit.  Workers, performers, and athletes not participating in weekly testing shall count
toward the capacity limit.

 Performers and workers who are not able to perform work while wearing a face mask (actors,
singers, musicians, TV broadcasters) and are not able to physically distance 6 feet from others
while working without a face mask, must either be fully vaccinated or must be routinely tested at
least twice weekly for COVID-19 with a PCR or antigen diagnosis test.

 Ticket Sales 

 Tickets must be purchased in advance of the event.  Collect contact information for the ticket
purchaser.  On-site ticket sales are prohibited.

 Purchases are limited to blocks of six or fewer seats, for members of a single household or customer
group (no more than 3 households).

 Tickets may only be purchased by California residents. Information must be prominently placed on
all communications, including reservation and ticketing systems, to ensure guests are aware of
requirements.  At the time a guest purchases tickets, the venue must obtain an attestation that the
guest’s block of seat reservations contains no more than three households, and that the guest, and
all members of the guest’s party are in-state residents or fully vaccinated out-of-state visitors.

o Fully vaccinated individuals from out of state may attend events that are restricted to instate
residents.

 Protect ticketing offices with impermeable barriers, like Plexiglass. Instruct guests where to queue
to maintain a minimum of six feet of physical distance.

 Venue operators must allow for at least 2 hours between events to prevent mixing across
attendees.

Security and Guest Entry 

 The use of face masks is mandatory throughout the venue in all settings indoor and outdoor,
unless actively eating or drinking while seated.  Guests who do not comply should be removed
from the venue immediately.

 Install and use touchless ticket scanners whenever possible. Ask guests to scan tickets themselves
rather than passing digital electronic devices or paper tickets back and forth.

 For events where vaccination records and COVID-19 test results will be verified at the point of
entry, provide a protective Plexiglas barrier, disposable gloves, and hand sanitizer for staff
reviewing verification documents.



4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 8 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

 Consider the use of walk-through metal detectors rather than hand wand metal detectors to allow
workers to maintain at least six feet of physical distance from guests.

 Workers checking bags should modify activities to minimize directly touching guest items. This
could include using styluses or other instruments to search bags, asking guests to open bags and
move contents, etc. Where practices might cause direct contact with guests or their items, workers
should immediately sanitize hands or gloves, or wear disposable gloves and change between each
guest search.

 To avoid touching attendees’ personal items, operators should consider enforcing a small clear bag
policy and ask guests to open their own bags for inspection. Consider necessary exceptions for
medical and personal hygiene products.

 Discontinue coat check and other amenities that require workers to unnecessarily touch guest
items and increase the risk of contact of contaminated items from different households.

 Provide hand sanitizer, tissues and trash cans at or near the venue entrance.

Retail Transactions 

 Reconfigure merchandise and other retail areas to create physical distance between workers and
guests. Encourage preordering, contactless payment, and other systems that minimize the
amount of time guests spend in retail areas. Discontinue allowing guests to try on merchandise.

 Provide no-contact methods of payment.
o For counter transactions, utilize a customer-facing credit card terminal, or instruct
customers to place cash or card on the counter rather than directly onto the employee’s
hand. Provide the credit card receipt or change using the same process.  Disinfect the
counter, credit card terminal, check presenter, and shared pen after each use. o Employees
should avoid touching their face when handling credit cards and cash.   
o Offer any transactions or services that can be handled remotely on-line.

Face Masks*  

 All individuals are required to wear an appropriate face mask with 2 or more layers that covers
the nose and the mouth at all times. This applies to all adults and to children 2 years of age and
older. Masks with one-way valves and single layer cloth face masks must not be used. Only
individuals who have been instructed not to wear a face mask by their medical provider due to a
medical condition, mental health condition, or disability that prevents wearing a face mask are
exempt from wearing one. Reference CDC guidance for better masks:
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html

 Double masking, as described by the CDC, can increase protection if it improves the seal and
filtration, so one option is wearing a multi-layer disposable mask under a multi-layer, well-fitting
cloth mask that pulls the edges of a disposable mask against the face.

 Prohibit employees from eating or drinking anywhere inside the workplace other than designated
break areas (staying at least 6 feet apart) to ensure face masks are worn consistently and
correctly.

 Performers and workers in the performance sector who cannot feasibly perform or work with a
face mask are not required to wear a face mask during the time period in which such tasks are
actually being performed on the condition that: (1) the unmasked performer or worker is at least
six feet away from all other persons, or at least 12 feet if the performer is singing or playing a
wind or brass instrument; or (2) all unmasked performers or workers and any workers who come

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/effective-masks.html


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 9 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

into contact with those people are routinely tested at least twice weekly for COVID-19 (PCR or 
antigen are permissible diagnosis tests for routine testing of performers and workers).  

* Individuals with chronic respiratory conditions, or other medical conditions that make use of a face
mask hazardous are exempted from this requirement.  Children under age 2 years should not wear a
face mask.  Refer to the CDC guidance on masks for additional information on use and care of the
face mask.

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/how-to-wear-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/how-to-wear-cloth-face-coverings.html


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 10 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Hand Hygiene  

 Provide access to handwashing sinks stocked with soap, paper towels, and hands-free trash
receptacles.

 Allow employees time during their shift to wash their hands frequently.

Restrooms  

 Place trash can near the door if the door cannot be opened without touching the handle, so
restroom users may use a paper towel to cover the doorknob.  Maintain compliance with
accessibility standards and fire code.

 Increase frequency of cleaning and disinfection of restrooms.
 Designate an employee to ensure restrooms stay operational and stocked at all times.

Food and Drink Concessions 

 Outdoor food and drink concessions are allowed with physical distancing.
 Venues that offer food and drink concessions should encourage customers to order on-line or

over the phone, whenever possible.
 Indoor concessions and indoor concourse sales must remain closed, except for designated,

seated dining areas that operate at no greater than 25% capacity.

Singing, Yelling, and Chanting 

 Attendees should not be encouraged to yell, sing, chant, boo, use noise makers, or engage in
other similar practices that increase the likelihood of transmission from contaminated exhaled
droplets and aerosols. 

PHYSICAL DISTANCING Capacity Restrictions 

 Attendance is limited to a maximum 33% of total venue capacity as determined by operating
capacity or applicable fire code. Guests in suites count toward this capacity limit.

o Workers, performers, and athletes participating in a weekly testing program, and
workers, performers and athletes who are fully vaccinated, do NOT count toward the
capacity limit.

o Workers, performers, and athletes who are not fully vaccinated and are not
participating in a weekly testing program shall count toward the capacity limit.

 Suites are limited to 25% occupancy with no more than 6 individuals.  Customer groups
comprised of multiple household units must physically distance by household while in the suite.
Guests in suites count toward the capacity limit.

o Suites may be occupied at full capacity if all persons in the suite provide proof that they
are fully vaccinated.

 Venues may increase capacity to 67%, if all guests show proof of a negative COVID-19 PCR test
result within the 72 hours prior to attendance, a negative COVID-19 antigen test result within 24



4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 11 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

hours prior to attendance, or show proof of full vaccination. Customers must attest to full 
vaccination status for each member of their group at the point of purchase. Customers must 
also provide the venue the required test or vaccination documents at the time of entry.  

 The venue must strictly and continuously meter entry and exit of guests at all entrances in order
to track occupancy to ensure compliance with capacity limits. Operators that are insufficiently or
not metering, and venues that appear to be over-capacity may, at the discretion of the Public
Health Officer, be closed until these issues are rectified.

Customer Seating 

 Customer groups are limited to 6 individuals from no more than three household units.
 Customer groups may sit together outdoors.  Customer groups comprised of multiple household

units must physically distance by household while seated in a suite.
 Assigned seating is required to allow physical distancing of at least 6 feet in all directions

between customer groups. Spacing must allow concessions workers to easily approach a group
to sell concessions without coming into close contact with other groups.

 Audience seating locations must be fixed, and must be marked with readily identifiable signs to
indicate the section, row, and seat. Assigned seats must clearly define space for individuals with
appropriate space per person (no blanket reservations, group, or standing areas), and
nonpermanent seating arrangements must not be altered by spectators.

A Tested-Only Section is defined as a seating area where attendees who have tested negative are 
seated in a designated section with other attendees who have tested negative.   

o Testing must be conducted within 72 hours before event start time, if using PCR. Antigen tests
are acceptable and must be conducted within 24 hours of start of the event. Results of the test
must be available prior to entry into the event or venue.

o A printed document from the test provider or laboratory, OR an email or a text message from
the test provider or laboratory located on the attendee’s phone, are acceptable as proof of a
negative COVID-19 test result.

o The information provided should include name of person tested, type of test performed, and
date of negative test result (for PCR, date of negative result must be within prior 72 hours; for
antigen, date of negative result must be within prior 24 hours).

o Customer groups seated in the Tested Only Section must still be physically distanced a minimum
of 6 feet in all directions from other customer groups.

A Fully Vaccinated Only Section is defined as a seating area where fully vaccinated attendees are 
seated in a designated section with other fully vaccinated attendees.   

o Individuals are considered fully vaccinated for COVID-19, 2 weeks or more after they have
received the second dose in a 2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna), or 2 weeks or more
after they have received a single-dose vaccine (Johnson and Johnson [J&J]/Janssen).

o Children (> 2 years of age) who are not eligible to be vaccinated may sit with their parent or
guardian in the Fully Vaccinated Only Section if they are tested. Children younger than 2 do not
need to be tested and may also sit with their parent or guardian in the Fully Vaccinated Only



4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 12 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Section. Children sitting with their parent or guardian in the Fully Vaccinated Only Section, as 
permitted by age or testing, are considered for purposes of social distancing to be fully 
vaccinated.  

o A vaccination card (which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and
date last dose was administered) OR a photo of the attendee’s vaccine card stored on a phone
or electronic device OR documentation of vaccination from a healthcare provider are acceptable
as proof of vaccination. Check for full vaccination by ensuring criteria above have been met
(date of the 2nd dose in a 2-dose series or single dose for Johnson & Johnson/Janssen vaccine
was more than 2 weeks prior to date of event entry).  o Fully Vaccinated Only Sections must be
separate, distinct, and clearly marked from any other section of the venue that is set aside for
tested attendees.

o Individuals in the Fully Vaccinated Only Section do not have to be physically distanced. Face
coverings are required.

o Fully Vaccinated Only Sections may be seated at full capacity within that section only. Suites may
also operate at 100% of suite capacity if all guests show proof of full vaccination. However,
capacity for the venue must not exceed the limits established above.

o There must be at least 12 feet of distance in all directions between the Fully Vaccinated Only
Section and any other section in the venue.

Controlling the Flow of Guests Moving through the Venue 

 Be prepared to queue customers outside with adequate space to maintain physical distance,
and with the use of visual cues. Place an employee near each entry, but at least 6 feet from the
nearest guests, to track occupancy and to direct customers to line up six feet apart outside the
entrance if the venue has reached its occupancy limit or until their reservation time.

 Designate separate routes for entry and exit, activity areas, seating areas, and employee work
areas to help maintain physical distancing and lessen the instances of people closely passing
each other. Use one-way directional hallways and passageways if feasible.

 Particular attention should be given to staggered exiting of venues at the conclusion of an event.
 Dedicate ushers during breaks and intermissions to ensure orderly entry and exit from and into

venue areas. Use ushers to preserve appropriate space in queuing areas and help customers
understand where lines begin as additional space may make it difficult to see where to stand.

 Remind attendees to stay in their seats except for visits to the restroom, to pick up concessions,
to visit a retail area, or to eat at a designated outdoor dining area. Place employees in the
concourse to remind attendees not to congregate.

 Extra measures must be implemented and guests monitored to ensure physical distancing at all
locations where crowding is most likely to occur, including, but not limited to, restrooms,
concessions, retail sales areas, etc.

CLEANING AND DISINFECTION 

 Develop a disinfection plan that identifies the surfaces to be disinfected, the frequency, and the
person assigned to the task.



4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 13 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

 Use products approved for use against COVID-19 on the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
list and follow product instructions and Cal/OSHA requirements.

 Frequently disinfect high traffic areas and commonly touched surfaces such as doorknobs,
railings, light switches, handles, faucets, trashcans, fixtures, and dispensers.

 Disinfect shared equipment between shifts or between users, whichever is more frequent,
including printers, phones, keyboards, staplers, fax machines, counters, and protective barriers.

 Disinfect equipment that passes between employees and customers, such as pens and credit
card machines, after each use.

 Provide disinfection supplies in multiple locations readily available to employees, and not
accessible to children.

 Prop doors and gates open where possible and applicable to reduce touching of handles,
consistent with fire codes and accessibility standards.

 Install hands-free devices wherever possible such as trash cans, soap and paper towel
dispensers, door openers, and light switches.

 Provide time for workers to implement cleaning practices during their shift.

BUILDING SAFETY 

Water Safety  
 Stagnant water in pipes increases the risk for growth and spread of legionella bacteria.  When

reopening a building, it is important to flush both hot and cold water lines through all pipes and
points of use including faucets and showers.  Appropriate PPE including an N95 respirator must 
be worn.  Information regarding this process can be found at the CDC website.     

Ventilation 

 For outdoor venues that also have indoor spaces (locker rooms, restaurants, offices), the facility
must have had its HVAC system inspected by a certified HVAC inspector to ensure that it is in
proper working condition prior to reopening.

 Consider HVAC upgrades to improve air filtration in the indoor areas of the venue (targeted filter
rating of at least MERV 13) and increase fresh air ventilation.

 Where possible, install portable high-efficiency air cleaners, upgrade the building’s air filters,
and make other modifications to increase the quantity of outside air and ventilation in all
working areas. Conduct routine maintenance and cleaning of HVAC systems to keep ventilation
optimized.

 Consider opening windows, if feasible, safe, and compliant with the Fire Code and ADA
requirements.

 If fans such as pedestal fans or hard mounted fans are used, take steps to minimize air from fans
blowing from one person directly at another.

 Review and follow the California Department of Public Health’s Interim Guidance for Ventilation,
Filtration, and Air Quality in Indoor Environments.

https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/building-water-system.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/building-water-system.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 14 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PRODUCTION DEPARTMENTS 

Considerations for On-Air Talent  

 During live sporting events, on-air talent, including pre-game reporters, play-by-play
announcers, sideline reporters and others who appear on-camera before, during or after a live
broadcast of a game may remove their face masks during times when they are on-air, provided
that they are at least 6 feet from any other individual while they are on-air. At all other times,
they must wear an appropriate face mask.

 If possible, on-air talent should broadcast in an outdoor or open-air setting. On-air talent that is
broadcasting from an indoor booth setting must be positioned at least 6 feet from others in the
booth, and if the booth is occupied by more than one on-air announcer, there must be barriers
set up between them.

 Those who conduct interviews with players, coaches or others (e.g., sideline reporters) must
keep their face masks on at all times during interviews.

 All broadcasters must be included in the venue and/or operator’s COVID-19 worker testing
programs and offered at least weekly PCR testing, if they are not fully vaccinated.

Considerations for Venue Support Operations: Sound, Lighting, Scenery, Props, Rigging, Special Effects 

 Consider options to limit the number of staff needed for back-of-house production departments
and identify ways they can complete tasks separately from each other. For example, where
feasible, the lighting department should be allowed to work alone on set until the lighting is
complete before other departments undertake their tasks.

 Evaluate the increased risk from standard working processes involving close contact (heavy
lifting, working in confined spaces such as scissor lifts, lighting grids, moving large lamps, textile
tying, etc.) and modify those work processes, where possible, and ensure workers have access
to the proper protective equipment.

 Clean touchable surfaces between shifts or between users, whichever is more frequent, such as
tools, handles and latches, and controls on equipment and in the cab of vehicles.

 Sanitize reusable PPE (such as face shields) and employer-owned and controlled equipment,
such as hard hats, at the end of each shift.

 Post signage to remind workers to take precautions while moving through choke points and
working in confined areas such as hallways, hoists, and elevators.

 Limit use of shared production equipment to a single worker or a team (e.g., sound equipment
should be handled by a designated person or sound team).

 Disinfect communication technology before and after each use. Label equipment with the user’s
name to avoid unintentional sharing.

 Allow additional time for workers to wash their hands or use hand sanitizer after handling keys,
opening car doors, or touching other’s items.



4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 15 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Considerations for Performers, Musical Performers, and Rehearsals 

 For Performers:
o Use precautions when performing in large groups or ensembles and evaluate the

necessity of such activity on a case-by-case basis. Background players, stand-ins, and
other non-essential performers on set should not linger in crowded holding areas
unnecessarily. Backstage areas should be sufficiently large to ensure adequate spacing
between performers and workers.

o Performing groups should consider modifications to rehearsals where face masks
cannot be worn, that break physical distance, or that require performers to touch their
own or other’s faces.

o Use microphones for performances to the maximum extent feasible so performers can
limit voice projections, which cause more particles, aerosols, and droplets to be
released and travel farther.

o Performers who are minors should be accompanied by a parent or guardian. Children
should be given special instruction and guidance on the use of any provided protective
equipment and safety protocols.

 For Musical Performers:
o Performers should empty water keys onto disposable or paper towels whenever

possible and turn away from others when emptying to avoid fluid contamination.
Musicians should discard their own used towels and wash their hands or use hand
sanitizer after disposal. If musicians empty water keys onto non-disposable towels, the
towels must be clean when brought to performance or practice, removed by the
musician and placed into a sealed container away from others for laundering, and the
musician must wash their hands or use hand sanitizer.

o Perform instrument cleaning, including wiping down and blowing through, at home and
away from others before and after practice.

o Do not share instruments, if possible. Consider discontinuing assistance from musician
assistants, such as page-turners, or others that cannot maintain at least six feet of
distance. Discontinue single-piano duets.

o Shared musical instruments must be cleaned and disinfected in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions between users.

o Increase distancing between people who sing or chant and others, and also between
brass and wind instrument performers and others to greater than 6 feet, when not
wearing face masks. Consider use of barriers to add further separation in these cases.

o Wind instrument performers should use additional modifications as appropriate, such
as devices to capture aerosols or to redirect air emitted from the instrument.

 For Rehearsals:
o Performances where there is increased likelihood for transmission from lack of face

mask use or contaminated exhaled aerosols (such as singing, chanting, brass and
woodwind playing) are strongly recommended to rehearse outdoors.

o When performers cannot wear face masks as part of their rehearsal such as opera
singers and woodwind musicians, operators must modify rehearsal activities.



4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 16 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Modifications include maintaining strict small groups, implementing at least weekly 
testing of participants during rehearsal as well as performance season, limiting the 
amount of time and the number of workers without face masks, maintaining physical 
distance between those without face masks and others to at least six feet, installing 
impermeable barriers between people, and ensuring proper ventilation.  

o If a large group is required for the performance, minimize the time the full group is in
proximity with each other by rehearsing in subgroups.

Considerations for Costume, Wardrobe, Hair and Make-up 

 For Costume and Wardrobe:
o Consider options that allow performers to arrive in their own wardrobe. Where feasible,

encourage background performers to also wear their own clothes from home. Separate
dressing areas to permit physical distancing if this is not possible.

o Ensure costume dressing and quick-change protocols are staggered and supervised by
wardrobe attendants.

o Each cast member’s costume and wardrobe supplies should be kept in separate, labeled
plastic bags.

 For Hair and Makeup  o Hair and make-up crew members should refer to the Personal Care
Services Protocol and the Hair Salons Protocol.  o Hair extensions and wigs should be
thoroughly cleaned according to the manufacturer’s directions after each use.

o Makeup application tools and supplies should be purchased per performer and used
only on that individual. These supplies should be kept in individual cast bags.  o Mix
foundation, powders, lipstick, and other makeup items on a disposable palette for each
individual. Use disposable, single-use applicators for each person.

o Performers should apply their own minor touch-ups, where possible, to avoid additional
contact.

o Performers should also remove their own makeup to limit contact at the end of the day.

Considerations for Construction Mills and Set Design 

 Construction mill and set design workers should refer to additional industry guidance on the
Construction and Manufacturing industries.

 Consider whether the set design crew can operate separately from production, including fully
dressing locations prior to performances without interaction with other workers. 

 Develop stage layouts to limit the number of staff and performers on site and maximize the
physical distance between performers.
Additional cleaning and disinfection practices should be developed for key props, furniture, or
other set dressing which has repeated and regular exposure with workers. Where possible, limit
the number of people who have contact with key props.

https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Personal-Care-Services-Reopening-Protocol.pdf?v=1618605849063
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Personal-Care-Services-Reopening-Protocol.pdf?v=1618605849063
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Personal-Care-Services-Reopening-Protocol.pdf?v=1618605849063
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Hair-Salons-Public-Health-Reopening-Protocol.pdf?v=1618605849063
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/Hair-Salons-Public-Health-Reopening-Protocol.pdf?v=1618605849063
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/


4.19.2021 Pasadena Public Health Department  Page 17 of 17 
1845 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena, CA  91103 

Considerations for Travel 

 Production should evaluate whether travel is essential and should limit the number of workers
asked to travel. Check the current CDPH Travel Advisory for those traveling from out of state and
the Los Angeles County Travel Advisory for those traveling through LA County. Review the CDC
guidelines on air travel and encourage all traveling personnel to do the same.

 Develop a detailed process and plan for travel, which should include:
o Implementing small travel groups.
o Ensuring facilities in proximity of venues can support necessary lodging and dining

demands and any potential medical needs.
o Reviewing the local, state, and CDC Travel Recommendations by Country and avoiding

all destinations, both domestic and international, where there is widespread ongoing
transmission.

o Follow relevant local or state guidance regarding self-quarantine upon return from
areas of higher transmission.

 Consider lodging workers in apartments instead of hotel rooms where they might interact with
other guests or hotel staff.

 Where possible, workers should drive separately in their own vehicles, unless part of the same
traveling small groups.

 If a number of workers are in hotels, consider bus transport. If using shared vehicles, minimize
the number per vehicle to support physical distancing, require passengers to wear face masks.

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Travel-Advisory.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Travel-Advisory.aspx
http://www.publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/traveladvisory.htm
http://www.publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/traveladvisory.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/map-and-travel-notices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/map-and-travel-notices.html


             Attachment 5 

TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 1 of 11 

Hotels, Lodging and Short-Term Rental Protocols: Appendix Q 

Recent Updates: 

• 4/16/21 – Outdoor seated live events, indoor seated live events, and private events
(such as meetings, receptions, conferences) may occur provided such events adhere
to CDPH Guidance.

• 3/3/21 - Long Beach is subject to the Orange Tier under the State’s Blueprint to a
Safer Economy as of March 31, 2021. Updates to live entertainment requirements
and capacity for weddings and funerals. Food and beverages may be served for
weddings and funerals provided the guests remain seated at tables in accordance
with the Restaurant Protocol. Self-service food and beverages, family-style eating,
and buffets are prohibited.

• Changes highlighted in yellow.

The requirements below are specific to hotels, lodging, and short-term industries now approved to reopen. 
Hotel and lodging operations with large meeting venues, banquet halls, or convention centers, if applicable, 
must keep these areas closed until each of these types of establishments are allowed by the Health Officer 
order to resume modified or full operation.  In addition to the conditions imposed on lodging establishments by 
the State Health Officer, which may be found at https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/, such establishments 
must comply with this Protocol.  

Short-term rentals (“STRs”), or shared rental units, are permitted subject to this Order, and also pursuant to any 
Ordinance or regulation adopted by the City that governs the operation of short-term or other shared rental units. 
Shared rental units, such as, but not limited to, STRs or time-shares may only be rented provided that the 
owner/host of the unit, or anyone affiliated with the owner/host does not also occupy or live in the unit at any 
time during the duration of the stay/rental period; unless the owner/host has a separate exterior point of entrance 
and exit and no facilities such as a kitchen area, bathroom, or other living space is shared with the guest/tenant 
during the stay/rental period.  

Short-term rentals, or shared rental units, are permitted subject to the Long Beach Safer at Home Order, 
and also pursuant to any Ordinance or regulation adopted by the City of Long Beach that governs the 
operation of short-term or other shared rental units.  

Property managers, timeshare operators, and other rental unit owners and operators are only allowed to rent 
unoccupied units and cannot rent rooms or spaces within an occupied residence until otherwise notified. A 
residence or unit that is rented while the operator is not physically present or has a separate exterior entrance 
and exit that does not require the use of shared facilities, and is otherwise unoccupied, should be considered 
an unoccupied unit.   

Additional protocols relevant to hotel and lodging operations must also be followed: 
• Restaurants and bars
• Fitness Centers
• Hair Salons
• Nail Salons

https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/


TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 2 of 11 

• Personal Care Services
• Public Pools
• Retail Operations
• Office Spaces
• Golf Courses
• Tennis Courts
• Outdoor operations with temporary structures must comply with  CDPH guidance titled the “Use of

Temporary  Structures  for  Outdoor  Business  Operations  found at 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-
forOutdoor-Business-Operations.aspx) Any City-issued permits required to operate outdoors, including
any permits required to install any tent, canopy, other sun shelter, or structure used for outdoor
operations, must be obtained prior to operation.

• For events and live entertainment:
o Outdoor seated live events and performances may occur in accordance with guidance issued by

the State Health Officer titled “COVID-19 Industry Guidance: Outdoor Seated Live Events and
Performances” found at https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf.

o Indoor seated live events and performances may occur in accordance with guidance issued by
the State Health Officer titled “COVID-19 Industry Guidance: Indoor Seated Live Events and
Performances” found at https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances-indoor-
en.pdf.

o Private events (such as meetings, receptions, conferences) may occur in accordance with
guidance issued by the State Health Officer titled “COVID-19 Industry Guidance: Private
Events” found at https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf.

o Capacity at live events and private events shall not exceed the capacity limits in the Long Beach
Health Order for other sectors, including, but not limited to, restaurants and bars.

Please note: This document may be updated as additional information and resources become available so be 
sure to check the Long Beach COVID-19 website at www.longbeach.gov/covid19 regularly for any updates to 
this document.    

This checklist covers: 
(1) Workplace policies and practices to protect employee health
(2) Measures to ensure physical distancing
(3) Measures to ensure infection control
(4) Communication with employees and the public
(5) Measures to ensure equitable access to critical services

These five key areas must be addressed as your facility develops any reopening protocols. 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-live-performances--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-private-events--en.pdf


 

TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 3 of 11 

All businesses covered by this protocol must implement all applicable measures listed 
below and be prepared to explain why any measure that is not implemented is not 

applicable to the business.  

Business name: 

Facility Address: 

A. WORKPLACE POLICIES AND PRACTICES TO PROTECT EMPLOYEE HEALTH  (CHECK
ALL THAT APPLY TO THE FACILITY)

 Everyone who can carry out their work duties from home has been directed to do so.
 Vulnerable staff (those above age 65, those who are pregnant, and those with chronic health conditions) are

assigned work that can be done from home whenever possible, and should discuss any concerns with their
healthcare provider or occupational health services to make appropriate decisions on returning to the
workplace.

 All employees have been told not to come to work if sick or if they are exposed to a person who has COVID-
19.

o Information on employer or government-sponsored leave benefits the employee may be entitled to
receive that would make it financially easier to stay at home. See additional information on
government programs supporting sick leave and worker’s compensation for COVID19, including
employee’s sick leave rights under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act and employee’s
rights to workers’ compensation benefits and presumption of the work-relatedness of COVID-19
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-62-20

 Upon being informed that one or more employees test positive for, or has symptoms consistent with COVID-
19 (case), the employer has a plan or protocol in place to have the case(s) isolate themselves at home and
require the immediate self-quarantine of all employees that had a workplace exposure to the case(s). The
employer’s plan should consider a protocol for all quarantined employees to have access to or be tested for
COVID-19 in order to determine whether there have been additional workplace exposures, which may require
additional COVID-19 control measures.

 In the event that 3 or more cases are identified within the workplace within a span of 14 days the employer
should report this cluster to the Long Beach Department Health and Human Services at 562570-INFO.

 Symptom checks are conducted before employees, contractors, vendors or other service providers may enter
the workspace. Checks must include a check-in concerning cough, shortness of breath or fever and any other
symptoms the employee may be experiencing. These checks can be done remotely or in person upon the
employees’ arrival.

https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart
https://www.labor.ca.gov/coronavirus2019/#chart


TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 4 of 11 

 A temperature check should be done at the worksite if feasible.
 All employees who have contact with the public or other employees during their shift(s) are offered, at no

cost, a cloth face covering. The covering is to be worn by the employee at all times during the workday except
where the employee is working in a vehicle, office, or room alone. Employees who have been instructed by
their medical provider that they should not wear a face covering should wear a face shield with a drape on
the bottom edge, to be in compliance with State directives, as long as their condition permits it. A drape that
is form fitting under the chin is preferred. Masks with one-way valves should not be used.

 Employees are instructed on the proper use of face covering, including the need to wash their face coverings
daily.

 Housekeepers and others who must enter guest rooms are directed to wear a cloth face covering.  Employees
are directed to ensure hand hygiene practices including handwash frequency, use of hand sanitizer and
proper glove use are adhered to.

 Employees are required and permitted adequate time for, to wash their hands at least every 30 minutes, or
as needed if gloves are provided. Where hand washing is impracticable, hand sanitizer with that contains at
least 60% alcohol has been provided to the employee instead.

 Employees are reminded to cover coughs and sneezes with a tissue. Used tissue should be thrown in the
trash and hands washed immediately with soap and warm water for at least 20 seconds.

 All employees, vendors and delivery personnel have been provided instructions regarding maintaining
physical distancing and the use of face coverings.

 Breaks are staggered, in compliance with wage and hour regulations, to ensure that six (6) feet between
employees can be maintained in break rooms at all times.

 Employees are prohibited from eating or drinking anywhere inside the workplace other than designated break
areas or in a private office that is not shared with others.

 Employees are properly trained on all COVID-19 policies and procedures.
 A written, worksite-specific COVID-19 plan including a risk assessment of all work areas has been developed.

 A designated person has been identified to implement the plan.
 Employees are trained on the proper use of cleaning and disinfecting products, including Cal/OSHA

requirements for safe use. Employees are provided aprons, gloves and other protective equipment as
required by the product.

 Break rooms, restrooms and other common areas are disinfected frequently, on the following schedule:
o Break rooms _____________________________________________________________ o 

Restrooms   _____________________________________________________________ o 
Other      _____________________________________________________________  
Disinfectant and related supplies are available to employees at the following location(s): 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Hand sanitizer effective against COVID-19 is available to all employees at the following location(s):



 

TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 5 of 11 

_________________________________________________________________________________  
Copies of this Protocol have been distributed to all employees.  
 Optional—Describe other measures:

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

B. MEASURES TO ENSURE PHYSICAL DISTANCING

 Measures to ensure physical distancing of at least six feet between and among employees, guests, and the
public are implemented, including areas where guests and employees line up.

o This includes the use of physical partitions or visual cues (e.g., floor markings or signs to indicate
where employees and/or guests should stand).

o This includes check-in, check-out, elevator lobbies, coffee shops and dining, and taxi and ridesharing
lines.

o Physical barriers are installed at all transaction counters where 6 feet physical space is not possible
between employees and guests.

 Guests enter doors that are either propped open, are automated or manually operated by an employee who
is frequently handwashing and/or using proper hand sanitizer.

 Peak period queuing procedures are implemented, including a lobby greeter where applicable. Guests are
queued to maintain at least six feet of physical distance between parties.

 All furniture in public spaces has been arranged to incorporate social distancing guidelines.
 Physical distancing measures are implemented in employee break areas, uniform control areas, training

classrooms, shared office spaces, employee services window, and other high-density areas in order to
appropriately distance between employees.

o Where possible, outdoor break areas with shade covers and seating that ensures physical distancing
between employees is provided.

 Guest room service, laundry and dry-cleaning services, and amenity deliveries are made using contactless
pick-up and delivery protocols, wherever possible.

 Housekeeping only services rooms when guests are not present.
 Employee pre-shift meetings are conducted virtually or in areas that allow for appropriate physical distancing

between employees.
 Employee arrival times are staggered to minimize traffic volume in back of house corridors and service

elevators.
 Employees are discouraged from congregating in high traffic areas such as bathrooms and hallways.

Established directional hallways and passageways for foot traffic, where possible, to eliminate people from
passing by one another.

 Office spaces, lobbies, front desk check-in areas, business centers, concierge service areas, and other
spaces are redesigned, where possible, to ensure workspace and guest accommodations allow for at least
six feet distancing.



TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 6 of 11 

 Elevator capacity is limited to 4 individuals or a family at a time for any elevator that does not allow for 6-foot
physical distance between riders. All riders are required to wear cloth face coverings.

 Employees are instructed to avoid handshakes and similar greetings that break physical distancing.
 Person-to-person contact for delivery of goods to physical offices is eliminated, where possible. Avoid

touching others’ pens and clipboards.

C. MEASURES FOR INFECTION CONTROL

COMMON SPACES (CHECK-IN, LOBBY, ELEVATORS, ETC.) 
 The HVAC system is in good, working order; to the maximum extent possible, ventilation has been increased

in common spaces and guest rooms.

 Consider installing portable high-efficiency air cleaners, upgrading the building’s air filters to the highest
efficiency possible, and making other modifications to increase the quantity of outside air and ventilation in
all offices, guest rooms and other spaces.

 For facilities or guest rooms that have not been operating, flush each of the hot and cold-water fixtures
for five minutes prior to reopening to replace stale water in the facility’s plumbing with a fresh and safe water
supply.

 Cleaning and disinfecting products that are approved for use against COVID-19 on the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA)- approved list are used per the manufacturer’s instructions.  o Disinfectant products
on the N list with asthma-safer ingredients are selected.
Customers should enter through doors that are propped open or automated if possible.

 Hand sanitizer dispensers (touchless, when possible) are installed at key guest and employee entrances and
contact areas such as driveways, reception areas, hotel lobbies, restaurant entrances, meeting and
convention spaces, elevator landings, pools, salons and exercise areas.

 Guests are instructed that they must wear cloth face coverings whenever they are not eating and/or drinking;
this includes upon entry to the facility, when walking anywhere in the facility, and when using the restrooms.
This applies to all adults and to children over the age of 2. Only individuals with chronic respiratory conditions
or other medical conditions that make the use of a face covering hazardous are exempted from this
requirement.

o Customers who refuse to wear a cloth face covering may be refused service and asked to
leave.   Customers arriving at the site with children must ensure that their children stay next to a parent, 
avoid touching any other person or any item that does not belong to them, and are wearing face coverings 
if age permits.    

 Servers, bussers, and other employees moving items used by customers (dirty cups, plates, napkins, etc.)
are to wear disposable gloves prior to handling.

 Cashless transactions are encouraged. If reasonable for the food facility, customers are enabled to swipe
their own credit/debit cards, and card readers are fully sanitized between each guest use.

 Optional - Describe other measures (e.g. providing senior-only hours, incentivizing non-peak sales):
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19


 

TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 7 of 11 

 Contactless technology is implemented for check-in, payment, accessing rooms or making special requests,
wherever possible.

o Key cards are sanitized after use.

 To the extent possible, guests to the hotel are registered in a guest log that includes the guest’s name, phone
number and email address which can also be done at the time of registration.

 Phones, tablets, laptops, desks, pens and other work supplies are cleaned and disinfected before, during
and after each shift or anytime the equipment is transferred to a new employee. This includes phones, radios,
computers and other communication devices, payment terminals, kitchen implements, engineering tools,
safety buttons, folios, housekeeping carts and cleaning equipment, keys, time clocks, and all other direct
contact items.

 Workstations, desks, and help counters are provided with proper sanitation products, including hand sanitizer
and sanitizing wipes, and personal hand sanitizers to all staff directly assisting customers.

 Vacuum cleaners are equipped with HEPA filters. Employees are to use vacuum cleaners instead of
sweeping floors with brooms, where possible.

 Thorough cleaning in high traffic areas such as hotel lobbies, front desk check-in counters, bell desks, break
rooms and lunch areas, changing areas, loading docks, kitchens, and areas of ingress and egress including
stairways, stairwells, handrails, and elevator controls is performed.

 Commonly used surfaces are cleaned and disinfected throughout the day and evening, including door
handles, vending and ice machines, light switches, phones, washer and dryer doors and controls, baggage
carts, shuttle door handles, toilet and handwashing facilities.

 Workers are provided time to implement cleaning practices during their shift.
 Manually operated ice machines are closed.
 Restrooms are cleaned and disinfected regularly using EPA approved disinfectants according to the

manufacturer’s directions, on the following schedule:
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Employees are directed to not open the doors of cars or taxis.  
 Valet service drivers, baggage handlers, and housekeepers are to wash their hands regularly during their

shift and/or use proper hand sanitizer.
 If valet service is provided, valet service drivers are required to wear face coverings, gloves and maintain

social distancing guidelines.
o Key fobs are to be placed into plastic bags. o Steering wheel, ignition button, door handles,

shifters are wiped with an approved disinfecting wipe.  o Customers are notified of valet cleaning and
disinfection procedures.   

 If van or shuttle service is provided, they are to adhere to valet service requirements, including cleaning and
disinfecting seating areas between guests.

 Self-parking options are encouraged with guests.



TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 8 of 11 

GUEST ROOMS 
 Bellman/Porters are to wear face coverings and utilize gloves when handling guest baggage. Where possible,

baggage deliveries are to be placed in the room by the guest.

 Housekeeping is to minimize contact with guests’ personal belongings when cleaning.
 Housekeepers have ventilation system operating and/or open windows whenever possible to increase air

circulation when servicing rooms.
 Housekeeping is allowed extra time to clean rooms to account for required precautions and to allow them to

conduct more thorough cleaning and disinfection of rooms between guests, when required.
o Housekeepers are provided appropriate protective equipment for cleaning.

 Surfaces within guest rooms are cleaned and disinfected daily during room cleanings. Exception for guests
who request that housekeeping not provide daily room service/cleaning.

 Kitchen items, including pots, pans, and utensils are cleaned and sanitized between each guest stay.
 All dishes are washed, including the ones in cabinet between each guest stay. Consider replacing utensils

with one-time use dinnerware, if feasible.
 Single-service coffee makers are provided with disposable cups, instead of glassware, coffee cups or

multicup makers.
 Mini bars are not available to guests. All products are removed.
 Adequate dish soap and new, unused sponges, disinfecting wipes are provided for each guest upon arrival.
 All appliances and kitchen areas, including refrigerator shelving, the oven stovetop, coffeemakers, toasters,

pantry shelves and other areas are cleaned between each guest stay.
 No reusable collateral, such as magazines, menus, local attraction details, coupons, etc. are available in

guest rooms. Critical information is provided as single-use collateral and/or electronically posted.
 Housekeeping employees are provided with gloves when removing dirty linens. Dirty linen is placed in

singleuse, sealed bags.
 All towels and linens are removed and cleaned at the conclusion of each guest stay regardless of whether

they appear to have been used or not.
 All bed linen and laundry is washed at a high temperature and cleaned according with CDC guidelines.
 All nonessential maintenance is scheduled when room is not occupied. Handle only emergency or urgent

issues as allowed by applicable law where possible.

SHORT-TERM RENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 Self or remote check-in and checkout is offered where possible.

Standard check-in and checkout times are implemented to allow for enhanced cleaning processes between
guest stays. 

 The rental unit is thoroughly cleaned and disinfected after each guest stay. This includes wiping down and
cleaning and disinfecting all high-touch areas, including bed rails, tables, TV remotes, headboards,
countertops, kitchen appliances, refrigerator handles, stove knobs, mirrors, and other items.

 All recycling, garbage and trash is removed between guest stays. This includes removing and disposing of
any food items that may have been left in the refrigerator, freezer, and pantry.

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html


 

TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 9 of 11 

o Trash cans are lined with disposable bags.
 Laundry hampers are to be cleaned and disinfected after each use.  o Hampers are lined with a bag liner

that is either disposable or can be laundered after each use.
 All linens are removed and laundered between each guest stay, including items that appear to not have been

used.
o Use gloves when removing dirty linens. Dirty linen is placed in single-use, sealed bags.
o Wash hands with soap or use hand sanitizer immediately after gloves are removed.

 No extra linens are stored in the rental unit. Linens are provided only upon request.
 All bed linen and laundry is washed at a high temperature and cleaned according to CDC guidelines.
 All soft surfaces are cleaned based on the manufacturer’s instructions. This includes items like carpet,

bedding, curtains, and upholstery.
 Kitchen items, including pots, pans, and utensils are cleaned and sanitized between each guest stay.
 All dishes are washed, including the ones in cabinet between each guest stay. Consider replacing utensils

with one-time use dinnerware, if feasible.
 Vacuum cleaners are equipped with HEPA filters. A vacuum cleaner is used instead of sweeping floors with

brooms, where possible.
 Bathroom toilets, showers, bathtubs, sinks, cabinets, and shelving are sprayed with a multi-surface cleaner

approved for use against COVID-19. Mirrors and any glass are properly wiped. Bathroom floors are mopped
and/or vacuumed.

 The rental unit is provided with additional hand soap, paper towels, toilet paper, disinfecting spray or wipes
and hand sanitizer.

 External or professional cleaning companies, when used, provide periodic confirmation that cleaning and
disinfection standards are being followed.

 Guests are notified of cleaning and safety measures both pre-stay and during stay, via the listing content and
property information booklet.

 All nonessential maintenance is scheduled when the rental unit is not occupied. Handle only emergency or
urgent issues as allowed by applicable law where possible.

 The HVAC system is in good, working order; to the maximum extent possible, ventilation has been increased.
High filtration efficiency filters are used and replaced regularly.

D. MEASURES THAT COMMUNICATE TO THE PUBLIC

 A copy of this protocol is posted at all public entrances to the facility.
 Guests are notified of the facility’s policies and procedures prior to their arrival. This includes the right to

cancel reservations for parties with symptomatic visitors and the new check-in procedures, physical
distancing requirements, and cleaning and disinfecting schedules for accommodations, amenities, and
common areas.

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html


TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 10 of 11 

 Signage is posted that reminds guests and the public to maintain physical distancing of six feet, wear cloth



TO REPORT A VIOLATION  
PLEASE CALL: (562) 570-2633 OR  

EMAIL: CETASKFORCE@LONGBEACH.GOV  

V11 4/16/2021  Page 11 of 11 

face covering, wash hands or use sanitizer upon entry, and to stay home if they are ill or have symptoms 
consistent with COVID-19.   
o Guests will be provided face coverings upon entry to the hotel if they do not have one.

 Signage is posted at elevators that communicates to riders the maximum number of riders and that cloth
face coverings must be worn.

E. MEASURES THAT ENSURE EQUITABLE ACCESS TO CRITICAL SERVICES

 Services that are critical to the customers/clients have been prioritized.
 Transactions or services that can be offered remotely have been moved on-line.
 Measures are instituted to assure access to goods and services for customers who have mobility limitations

and/or are at high risk in public spaces.

Any additional measures not included above should be listed on separate pages, 
which the business should attach to this document.  

You may contact the following person with any questions or comments about this protocol: 

Business Contact Name:  

Phone number: 

Date Last Revised: 





      Attachment 6 

1  1  

COVID - 19  

GUIDANCE: 
Outdoor Seated 
Live Events and  

Performances

March  26 , 2021 

Effective April 1 , 2021 

This guidance is designed to address  
sectors and activities opening statewide. 
However, local health officers may  
implement more stringent rules tailored 
to local epidemiological conditions, so 
employers should also confirm relevant 
local opening policies . 



OVERVIEW 
The COVID-19 pandemic continues to impact the health of Californians. Reported illness 
ranges from very mild (some people have no symptoms) to severe illness that may result in 
death. Certain groups, including those with serious underlying medical conditions, such as 
heart or lung disease or diabetes, are at higher risk of hospitalization and serious 
complications. In addition, the risk of more severe disease and death increases with 
increasing age. As the pandemic has unfolded, we have learned that many organs can be 
affected by COVID-19 and there are many ways the infection can affect someone’s health.  

While most persons with COVID-19 recover and return to their baseline level of health, some 
people can have symptoms that can last for weeks or even months after recovery from 
acute illness. Even people who are not hospitalized and who have mild illness can 
experience persistent or late symptoms.  

Transmission is most likely when people are in close contact or in a poorly ventilated area 
with an infected person. Transmission can occur when the infected person has symptoms, is 
without symptoms, or has not yet developed symptoms. Virus particles can travel more than 
six feet in indoor spaces and remain suspended in air even after an infected person has left 
the room. Indoor settings pose a much higher risk of transmission than outdoor settings. 
When an infected person does certain activities, such as singing or chanting, loud talking, or 
heavy breathing, for example with exercise, it can further increase risk compared to normal 
breathing and talking.  

Therefore, it is essential that all possible steps be taken to ensure the safety of workers and 
the public.  

Key prevention practices include: 

� physical distancing to the maximum extent possible, 

� use of face coverings by workers (where respiratory protection is not already 
required) and customers/clients,  

� for indoor locations, ensuring adequate ventilation in all spaces, 

� frequent handwashing and regular cleaning and disinfection, 

� training workers on these and other elements of the COVID-19 prevention program. 

On November 30, 2020, the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) 
implemented mandatory emergency temporary standards (ETS) to prevent worker exposures 
to COVID-19 in most workplaces where workers are not covered by Cal/OSHA’s Aerosol 
Transmissible Diseases standard.  Under the ETS, employers have obligations including to 
develop and implement policies and procedures to prevent disease transmission in the 
workplace; to identify new disease cases if they occur; and, when they are identified, to 
intervene quickly and work with public health authorities to halt the spread of the virus. The ETS 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html


covers topics that are also addressed by this guidance.  The guidance has been updated to 
clarify any instances where public health guidance imposes additional requirements beyond 
those mandated by the ETS and to highlight additional recommended practices for public 
health purposes beyond those mandated by the ETS.  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Purpose ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Required Use of Face Coverings ............................................................................................ 9 

Workplace COVID-19 Prevention Program ........................................................................... 9 

Outbreak and Testing .............................................................................................................. 9 

Individual Control Measures and Screening ....................................................................... 10 

Ventilation ............................................................................................................................... 11 

Cleaning, and Disinfecting Protocols ................................................................................... 11 

Physical Distancing Guidelines ............................................................................................ 12 

Additional Considerations for Venues with Live Audiences .............................................. 12 

 Entry and Security .................................................................................................... 12 

Additional Considerations for Production Departments .................................................... 13 

Creative Considerations for Performers ................................................................. 13 

Musical Performers .................................................................................................... 14 

Considerations for Rehearsals ................................................................................. 14 

Travel .......................................................................................................................... 15 

Casting and Auditions .............................................................................................. 16 

Construction Mills and Set Design ........................................................................... 16 

Scenery, Sound, Props, Rigging, Special Effects, and Lighting ........................... 17 

Costume and Wardrobe.......................................................................................... 17 

 Hair and Makeup ..................................................................................................... 17 



Purpose 
This document provides guidance for outdoor seated live events and entertainment with 
audiences to support a safe, clean environment for workers, volunteers, and 
customers/patrons. Performances that take place in other venues (such as restaurants, bars, 
or houses of worship) must also follow the applicable sector guidance. Businesses must 
identify and monitor the County Risk Level for the county the business is operating in and 
make required adjustments to their operations. For the most updated information on county 
status, visit Blueprint for a Safer Economy. Please note that local health departments can 
have more restrictive criteria and different closures. Find your county’s local information.  

• Across all Tiers: All venues are permitted to open for broadcast or streaming without
a live audience. For any performance with a live audience, venues must follow the
modifications outlined in this guidance, including:

o Use of face coverings is mandatory throughout the venue in all settings indoor
and outdoor, unless actively eating and/or drinking. Guests who do not comply
should be removed from the facility immediately. Allow for exemptions identified
in the CDPH Face Covering Guidance.

o Performers and workers in the performance sector who cannot feasibly perform
or work with a face covering are not required to wear a face covering during
the time period in which such tasks are actually being performed on the
condition that (1) the unmasked performer or worker is at least six feet away from
all other persons, or (2) all unmasked performers or workers and any workers who
come into contact with those people are routinely tested at least twice weekly
for COVID-19 (PCR or antigen are permissible diagnosis tests for routine testing of
performers or workers).  o Athletes are subject to the following face covering
requirements:

 Professional athletes who derive a living from competing in a sport or
compete in a sport as representatives of the United States (e.g. Olympic and
Paralympic Games) and who are subject to a labor/management
agreements between their union representatives and the relevant
professional governing organization are subject to the applicable face
covering requirements of those agreements.

 Collegiate athletes are subject to the specific masking requirements of the
Institutions of Higher Education Guidance.

 All other athletes who are not subject to a labor/management agreement -
including professional, semi-professional, and recreational athletes - must
follow the specific masking requirements in the CDPH Youth and Adults Sports

https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/get-local-information/
https://covid19.ca.gov/get-local-information/
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-higher-education--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-higher-education--en.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/outdoor-indoor-recreational-sports.aspx


Guidance  o Performers and workers in the performance sector may
rehearse indoors if they can wear face coverings and maintain physical 
distancing at all times, or if they cannot reasonably wear face coverings at all 
times but comply with the routine testing requirement above. Rehearsal outdoors 
is strongly encouraged.  

o Athletes, artists and workers must follow all the protocols required by any
labor/management agreements, the Higher Education guidance, or the Youth
and Adult Recreational Sports guidance, as applicable.

o Venue operators must allow for at least two hours between events to prevent
mixing across attendees.

o Assigned seating is required to permit physical distancing of at least 6 feet
between people from different households.

o Limit customer groups to three household units.

o Audience seating locations must be fixed or marked, with readily identifiable signs
to indicate by section, row, and seat (assigned seating). Assigned seats must
clearly define space for individuals with appropriate space per person (no
blanket reservations or group areas), and non-permanent seating arrangements
must not be altered by spectators.

o Discourage audience from engaging in yelling, singing, chanting, booing, use of
noise makers that require the exhalation of air (e.g. vuvuzelas), and other similar
practices that may increase the likelihood of transmission from contaminated
exhaled droplets and aerosols.

o Entry and exit should be tightly controlled to prevent concentrations of people on
concourses and aisles.

o Shared musical instruments must be cleaned and disinfected in accordance with
manufacturer’s instructions between users. Musicians must play their own
instrument whenever possible (e.g., discontinue single-piano duets).

o Outdoor food and drink concessions are allowed so long as physical distancing is
maintained at all times.  Indoor concessions must be closed unless otherwise
permitted in Orange and Yellow Tiers.

For outdoor venues that have assigned seating (e.g. sporting events, live theater 
performances) refer to the Blueprint for a Safer Economy to determine the county’s current 
tier.  The following attendance & capacity limits shall apply:  

• Purple – Widespread – Tier 1: Venues can open for performances or events with live
audiences (see note below on permissible outdoor venues) and must follow the
modifications in this guidance, including:

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/outdoor-indoor-recreational-sports.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/outdoor-indoor-recreational-sports.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf


o Attendance Limitations:

 Venues may permit attendance up to 100 people, irrespective of size of venue,
to the extent they can comply with the 6 feet physical distancing requirement.

o Regional spectators only, within 120 miles. Information will be prominently placed
on all communications, including the Reservation and Ticketing systems, to ensure
guests are aware of Reservation and Ticketing Requirements.  At the time a guest
purchases tickets, the operator must obtain an attestation that the guest’s block
of seat reservations contains no more than three households and that the guest,
and all members of the guest’s party are travelling no greater than 120 miles to
attend.

o Venues are not permitted to sell tickets on the day of the event or at the door.
Advanced ticket reservations only.

• Red – Substantial – Tier 2: Venues can open for performances or events with live
audiences (see note below on permissible outdoor venues) and must follow the
modifications in this guidance, including:

o Attendance Limitations:

 Venues must limit attendance to maximum of 20% capacity (based on the
design/operating capacity or fire department occupant limit). Visitors in suites
count toward this capacity limit.

• Each suite is limited to 25% occupancy with no more than 3 households
physically distanced within each suite, or six people from the same household.

• In-state spectators only. Information will be prominently placed on all
communications, including the Reservation and Ticketing systems, to ensure
guests are aware of Reservation and Ticketing Requirements.  At the time a
guest purchases tickets, the operator must obtain an attestation that the
guest’s block of seat reservations contains no more than three households and
that the guest, and all members of the guest’s party will be in-state visitors.

o Employers who have employees working at Live Outdoor Events, must develop a
worker COVID-19 testing program for weekly optional testing of all workers who
may encounter other workers, support staff, or performers. PCR or antigen are
permissible diagnosis tests for workers/performers where the interval of between
tests is no greater than seven days. For workers/performers returning to work
where the interval between a prior test has been greater than seven days after
receiving a prior test, only a PCR test is permissible.

• Performers, athletes and workers participating in routine weekly testing are NOT
counted toward any occupancy capacity limit. All performers, athletes and
workers not participating in a routine weekly testing program shall count
toward any occupancy limit.



o Advanced ticket reservations only.

• Orange – Moderate – Tier 3: Venues can open for performances or events with
live audiences (see note below on permissible outdoor venues) and must follow
the modifications in this guidance, including:

o Attendance Limitations:

 Venues must limit attendance to maximum of 33% capacity (based on the
design/operating capacity or fire department occupant limit). Visitors in suites
count toward this capacity limit.

• Each suite is limited to 25% occupancy with no more than 3 households
physically distanced within each suite, or six people from the same household.

 Venues may increase attendance capacity to 67% if all guests show a negative
test result within the 72 hours prior to attendance or show proof of full
vaccination.

 In-state spectators only. Information will be prominently placed on all
communications, including the Reservation and Ticketing systems, to ensure
guests are aware of Reservation and Ticketing Requirements. At the time a
guest purchases tickets, the operator must obtain an attestation that the
guest’s block of seat reservations contains no more than three households and
that the guest, and all members of the guest’s party will be in-state visitors.

o Employers who have employees working at Live Outdoor Events, must develop a
worker COVID-19 testing program for weekly optional testing of all regular workers
who may encounter other workers, support staff, or performers. PCR or antigen
are permissible diagnosis tests for workers/performers where the interval of
between tests is no greater than seven days. For workers/performers returning to
work where the interval between a prior test has been greater than seven days
after receiving a prior test, only a PCR test is permissible.

 Performers, athletes and workers participating in routine weekly testing are NOT
counted toward any occupancy capacity limit. All performers, athletes and
workers not participating in a routine weekly testing program shall count toward
any occupancy limit.

o Advanced ticket reservations only.

o Indoor concessions and concourse sales must be closed, except for designated
seated dining areas that operate at no greater than 25% of capacity.

• Yellow – Minimal – Tier 4: Venues can open for performances or events with live
audiences (see note below on permissible outdoor venues) and must follow the
modifications in this guidance, including:



o Attendance Limitations

 Venues must limit attendance to maximum of 67% capacity (based
on the design/operating capacity or fire department occupant
limit). Visitors in suites count toward this capacity limit.

 Each suite is limited to 25% occupancy with no more than 3
households physically distanced within each suite, or six people
from the same household.

 Performers, athletes and workers participating in a routine weekly
testing are NOT counted toward any occupancy capacity limit. All
performers, athletes and workers not participating in a routine
weekly testing program shall count toward any occupancy limit

 In-state spectators only. At the time a guest purchases tickets, the
operator must obtain an attestation that the guest’s block of seat
reservations contains no more than three households and that the
guest, and all members of the guest’s party will be in-state visitors.

o Advanced ticket reservations only.

o Indoor concessions and concourse sales must be closed, except for
designated seated dining areas that operate at no greater than 50% of
capacity.

Permissible Outdoor Venues: For the purposes of this guidance, a permissible outdoor 
venue for live audience performances shall require:   

• A permanent and fixed facility, focused around a stage round, field court, or
other central area designed primarily for viewing entertainment or athletics by
an audience OR a defined and demarcated outdoor area.  Seat assignments
must be marked clearly with at least 6 feet of distance between household
groups and seats can be reserved.

• The facility shall either be open to the sky with no roof or have at least 50% of the
total perimeter open, meaning there are no walls, doors, windows, dividers, or
other physical barriers that restrict air flow, whether open or closed. There must
be sufficient natural ventilation and air circulation to dilute and disperse
concentrations of aerosols effectively without the support of mechanical
systems.

• The facility shall be designed in a way that provides operators the ability to
control fully the flow, ingress, and egress of all visitors, and to separate
performers, artists, and workers from the general audience.

• There must be permanent or added barriers to create at least 12 feet between
space occupied by audience members and the focal point (stage or round).



• Refer to CDPH guidance on temporary structures for outdoor business
operations for additional information (see CDPH guidance)

Please note that local health departments can have more restrictive criteria and 
different closures. Find your county’s local information.   

NOTE: This guidance is not intended for convention-style events or general admission 
venues/activities where the central activity allows or requires patrons to move around 
shared space.   

NOTE: This guidance does not alter existing criteria that govern return to athletic training 
and competition without live audiences. In instances of training or competition without live 
audiences, professional athletes, coaching staff, medical staff, broadcasting staff and 
others at sporting facilities or events should refer to any COVID-19 protocols approved by 
local public health officers and agreed by labor and management, if applicable.  
Collegiate athletes are subject to the specific return to training and competition criteria of 
the Institutions of Higher Education Guidance. All other athletes must follow the requirements 
in the CDPH Youth and Adults Sports Guidance.   

NOTE: Performance venues have a number of operational aspects and service offerings 
covered in other guidance and which are available on the Blueprint for a Safer 
Economy website. Performance groups and venues must review this guidance to apply 
the appropriate protocols to all aspects of operations, unless otherwise required in this 
document, including:  

• Restaurants (Restaurant guidance)

• Bars (see Bars guidance)

• Gift shops and retail operations (see Retail guidance)
• Hotels and lodging (see Hotels, Lodging, and Short-Term Rentals guidance)

• Movie theaters and drive-in movie theaters (Movie Theaters guidance)

• Trams, shuttles, and other transit (Public and Private Passenger Carriers, Transit, and
Intercity Passenger Rail guidance) Limit shuttle service whenever possible and in
accordance with obligations to individuals with disabilities.

• Maintenance and custodial work services (see Limited Services guidance)
• Temporary structures for outdoor business operations (see CDPH guidance)

The guidance is not intended to revoke or repeal any worker rights, either statutory, 
regulatory or collectively bargained, and is not exhaustive, as it does not include county 
health orders, nor is it a substitute for any or newly established safety and health-related 
regulatory requirements such as those of Cal/OSHA, including new Emergency  

Temporary Standards that went into effect on November 30, 2020. 1 Stay current on 
changes to public health guidance and state/local orders, as the COVID-19 situation 
continues. Cal/OSHA has more safety and health guidance on their Cal/OSHA COVID-19 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://covid19.ca.gov/get-local-information/
https://covid19.ca.gov/get-local-information/
https://covid19.ca.gov/get-local-information/
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-higher-education--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-higher-education--en.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/outdoor-indoor-recreational-sports.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/outdoor-indoor-recreational-sports.aspx
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-restaurants-bars-wineries--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-restaurants-bars-wineries--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-restaurants-bars-wineries--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-bars--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-bars--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-retail--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-retail--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-hotels-lodging-rentals--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-hotels-lodging-rentals--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-hotels-lodging-rentals--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-hotels-lodging-rentals--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-movie-theaters--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-movie-theaters--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-transit-rail--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-transit-rail--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-transit-rail--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-transit-rail--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-limited-services--en.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-limited-services--en.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Use-of-Temporary-Structures-for-Outdoor-Business-Operations.aspx
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/documents/COVID-19-Prevention-Emergency-txtbrdconsider.pdf
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/documents/COVID-19-Prevention-Emergency-txtbrdconsider.pdf
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/documents/COVID-19-Prevention-Emergency-txtbrdconsider.pdf
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/Health-Care-General-Industry.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/Health-Care-General-Industry.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/Health-Care-General-Industry.html


Guidance and Resources webpage. CDC has additional  guidance for businesses and 
employers and for food and grocery retailers.  

Required Use of Face Coverings 
Consult the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) Guidance on the 
Use of Face Coverings, which mandates the use of face coverings for both 
members of the public and employees in all public and workplace settings 
outside the home. Complete details, including all requirements and 
exemptions to these rules, can be found in the guidance, which should be 
checked periodically for updates. Additionally, CDPH provides advice on 
effective practices regarding face covering.  

Workplace COVID-19 Prevention Program 
As required by the Cal/OSHA COVID-19 prevention standards, employers must 
establish, implement and maintain a written COVID-19 Prevention Program 
that is available to employees and their authorized representatives (i.e., 
union). Complete details, including all requirements and exemptions to these 
rules, templates for model COVID-19 Prevention Programs, and Frequently 
Asked Questions can be found at the following link. All references and 
guidance should be checked periodically for updates.  

Outbreak and Testing 
Employers are also required to comply with Cal/OSHA’s regulations for 
outbreaks and major outbreaks, including any relevant testing requirements for 

employees and reporting requirements. They should review FAQs on Outbreaks for 
more considerations and explanation of the regulations.   

Consult CDPH’s Responding to COVID-19 at the Workplace for specific 
definitions on what constitutes an outbreak and all required reporting 
requirements.    

Individual Control Measures and Screening 
The Cal/OSHA ETS requires employers to develop and implement a process for 
screening employees for and responding to employees with COVID-19 symptoms, 
as well as to address several other individual control measures through 
implementation of the required components of the COVID-19  
Prevention Program.  See the linked materials for details on those requirements. 

In addition to the requirements under the ETS, employers must:

https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/Health-Care-General-Industry.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/Health-Care-General-Industry.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fspecific-groups%2Fguidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fspecific-groups%2Fguidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fspecific-groups%2Fguidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fspecific-groups%2Fguidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fspecific-groups%2Fguidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/organizations/grocery-food-retail-workers.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/organizations/grocery-food-retail-workers.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://covid19.ca.gov/masks-and-ppe/
https://covid19.ca.gov/masks-and-ppe/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ETS.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_2.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_2.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/COVID19FAQs.html#outbreaks
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/COVID19FAQs.html#outbreaks
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/COVID19FAQs.html#outbreaks
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/OutbreakDefinitionandReportingGuidance.aspx


• Take reasonable measures, including public address announcements,
posting signage in strategic and highly-visible locations, and in
reservation confirmations, to remind the public and workers that they
must use face coverings whenever not eating or drinking (unless
exempted per the ETS or CDPH Face Coverings Guidance), practice
physical distancing, not touch their face, frequently wash their hands
with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, and use hand sanitizer.

• CDPH recommends the following additional measures to further mitigate
risk of transmission or other health risks:

o Encourage guests or customers who are sick or exhibiting symptoms of
COVID-19 to stay home.

o Provide resources to promote personal hygiene. This will include tissues,
no-touch trash cans, hand soap, adequate time for handwashing,
alcohol-based hand sanitizers, and disposable towels.

o Consider where disposable gloves may be a helpful supplement to
handwashing or use of hand sanitizer, such as when handling
commonly touched items.

Ventilation 
• All businesses permitted to operate indoors must follow the CDPH and

Cal/OSHA interim guidance for ventilation, filtration, and air quality to
reduce the spread of COVID-19 in indoor settings. This guidance also
addresses ventilation requirements contained in the Cal/OSHA COVID-19
ETS.

• Additional detailed guidance on ventilation is also available from the CDC.

 Cleaning, and Disinfecting Protocols 
• Employers must implement cleaning and disinfecting procedures, as defined

within the Cal/OSHA COVID-19 ETS. Cleaning and disinfecting must be done in
a manner that does not create a hazard to workers.

• CDPH guidance does not impose any additional requirements beyond those
under the ETS.

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/ventilation.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/ventilation.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html


• CDPH recommends the following additional measures to further mitigate risk
of transmission or other health risks:

o To minimize the risk of Legionnaires’ disease and other diseases associated
with water, take steps to ensure that all water systems and features (e.g.,
drinking fountains, decorative fountains) are safe to use after a prolonged
facility shutdown.

o Provide time for workers to implement cleaning practices during their shift.
Assign cleaning assignments during working hours as part of the
employee’s job duties. Procure options for third-party cleaning companies
to assist with the increased cleaning demand, as needed.

o Install hands-free devices, if possible, including motion sensor lights,
contactless payment systems, automatic soap and paper towel
dispensers, and timecard systems.

o Encourage the use of debit or credit cards by customers, for example,
through signage.

o When choosing disinfecting chemicals, use products approved for use
against COVID-19 on the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)-
approved list and follow product instructions. Choose disinfectants that are
less likely to trigger asthma by using products on EPA’s “N” list that contain
hydrogen peroxide (no stronger than 3%) or ethanol (ethyl alcohol) and
that do not contain peroxyacetic acid or peracetic acid. Avoid
disinfectant products on the “N” list that contain asthmagens, such as
bleach (sodium hypochlorite) or quaternary ammonium compounds (e.g.,
benzalkonium chloride). Follow the asthma-safer cleaning methods
recommended by the California Department of Public Health and ensure
proper ventilation.

Physical Distancing Guidelines
• Physical distancing alone is insufficient to prevent transmission of COVID-19.

• Employers must implement protocols and procedures regarding physical
distancing of at least six feet between workers and other persons, as defined within the 
Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Prevention ETS. More details and examples can be found in 
Cal/OSHA’s FAQs.  

• In addition to any mandatory physical distancing requirements in this guidance, CDPH
recommends the following additional measures to further mitigate risk of transmission or
other health risks:

https://www.cdc.gov/legionella/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/legionella/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/legionella/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/legionella/index.html
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/OHB/Pages/OHWMay2020.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/OHB/Pages/OHWMay2020.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/OHB/Pages/OHWMay2020.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/OHB/Pages/OHWMay2020.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/OHB/Pages/OHWMay2020.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/OHB/Pages/OHWMay2020.aspx
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/COVID19FAQs.html#controls
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/COVID19FAQs.html#controls


o Avoid in-person meetings and, if they are necessary, adjust them to
ensure physical distancing and use smaller individual meetings at facilities
to maintain physical distancing guidelines.

o Provide a single, clearly designated entrance and separate exit to help
maintain physical distancing where possible.

o Install transfer-aiding materials, such as shelving and bulletin boards, to
reduce person-to-person hand-offs where possible. Wherever possible, use
contactless signatures for deliveries.

o Where possible, create outdoor break areas with shade coverings and
seating arrangements that ensures physical distancing.

Additional Recommendations for Venues with 
Live Audiences  

 Recommendations for Entry and Security 

• Protect ticketing offices with impermeable barriers, like Plexiglas. Instruct
guests where to queue to maintain a minimum of six feet of physical
distance.

• Particular attention should be given to staggered exiting of venues at the
conclusion of an event. Establish directional entry and exit into venues
whenever possible.

• Workers checking bags should modify activities to minimize directly
touching guest items. This could include using styluses or other instruments
to search bags, asking guests to open bags and move contents, etc.
Where practices might cause direct contact with patrons or their items,
workers should immediately sanitize hands or wear disposable gloves and
change between each guest search.

• In order to avoid touching attendees’ personal items, operators should

consider enforcing a small clear bag policy and ask guests to open their
own bags for inspection. Consider necessary exceptions for medical and
personal hygiene products.

• Consider the use of walk-through metal detectors rather than hand wand
metal detectors to allow workers to maintain at least six feet of physical
distance from patrons.



• Install and use touchless ticket scanners whenever possible. Ask patrons to
scan tickets themselves rather than passing digital electronic devices or
paper tickets back and forth between workers and patrons.

• Discontinue coat check and other amenities that require workers to
unnecessarily touch guest items and increase the risk of contact of
contaminated items from different households.

• Dedicate ushers during breaks and intermissions to ensure orderly entry and
exit from and into venue areas. Use ushers to preserve appropriate space
in queuing areas and help customers understand where lines begin as
additional space may make it difficult to see where to stand.

• Venues that offer food and drink concessions should encourage customers
to order online or over the phone, whenever possible.

• Reconfigure merchandise and other retail sales booths and areas to
create physical distance between workers and patrons. Encourage
preordering, contactless payment, and other systems that minimize the
amount of time patrons spend in retail areas. Discontinue allowing patrons
to try on merchandise.

Additional Recommendations for  Production 
Departments  

Recommendations for Performers 

• Use precautions when performing in large groups or ensembles and
evaluate the necessity of such activity on a case-by-case basis.
Background players, stand-ins, and other non-essential performers on set
should not linger in crowded holding areas unnecessarily. Holding/offstage
areas should be sufficiently large to ensure adequate spacing between
performers, backstage workers, etc.

• Performing groups should consider modifications to rehearsals where face
coverings cannot be worn, that break physical distances, require
performers to touch their own or others’ faces, etc.

• Use microphones for performances to the maximum extent feasible so that

performers can limit voice projections, which cause more particles,
aerosols, and droplets to be released and travel farther.



• Performers that are minors should be accompanied by a parent or
guardian. Children should be given special instruction and guidance on
the use of any provided protective equipment and safety protocols.

Recommendations for Musical Performers 

• Performers should empty water keys onto disposable or paper towels
whenever possible and turn away from others when emptying to avoid
fluid contamination. Musicians should discard their own used towels and
wash their hands and/or use hand sanitizer as described in this guidance
after disposal. If musicians empty water keys onto non-disposable towels,
the towels must be clean when brought to performance or practice,
removed by the musician and placed into a sealed container away from
others for laundering, and the musician must wash their hands and/or use
hand sanitizer.

• Perform instrument cleaning, including wiping down and blowing through,
at home and away from others before and after practice.

• Do not share instruments whenever possible. Consider discontinuing
assistance from musician assistants, such as page-turners, or others that
cannot maintain at least six feet of distance.

• Increase distancing between people who sing or chant and others, or
between wind instrument performers and others to more than six feet,
when outdoors and not wearing face coverings. Consider use of barriers to
add further separation in these cases.

• Wind instrument performers should use additional modifications as
appropriate, such as devices to capture aerosols or to redirect air emitted
from the instrument.

• Performances and/or practices where there is increased likelihood for
transmission from lack of face covering use or contaminated exhaled
aerosols (such as singing, chanting, brass and woodwind playing, etc.)

Recommendations   for Rehearsals 



should rehearse outdoors, if possible. Performers must rehearse and 
perform with their small group to the greatest extent feasible.    

• When workers cannot wear face coverings as part of their rehearsal (e.g.
opera singers, woodwind musicians, etc.), operators must modify rehearsal
activities, including maintaining strict small groups, implementing at least
weekly testing of participants during rehearsal as well as performance
season, limiting the amount of time and the number of workers without
face coverings, maintaining physical distance between those without face
coverings and others to at least six feet, installing impermeable barriers
between people, ensuring proper ventilation, etc.

• Use precautions when performing in large groups or ensembles. If a large
group is required for the performance, minimize the time the full group is in
proximity with each other (e.g. rehearsing in sub-groups).

• Production should evaluate whether travel is essential and should limit the
number of workers asked to travel. Check the current CDPH Travel Advisory
in effect and review the CDC guidelines on air travel and encourage all
traveling personnel to do the same.

• Develop a detailed process and plan for travel, which should include: o

Implementing small travel groups.

o Ensuring facilities in proximity of venues can support necessary lodging
and dining demands and any potential medical needs.

o Reviewing the local, state, and CDC Travel Recommendations by
Country and avoiding all destinations, both domestic and
international, where there is widespread ongoing transmission.

o Follow relevant local or state guidance regarding self-quarantine upon
return from areas of higher transmission.

• Consider lodging workers in apartments instead of hotel rooms where they
might interact with other guests or hotel staff.

• Where possible, workers should drive separately in their own vehicles, unless
part of the same traveling small groups.

Recommendations for  Travel 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Travel-Advisory.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Travel-Advisory.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Travel-Advisory.aspx
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-in-the-us.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/travel-in-the-us.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/map-and-travel-notices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/map-and-travel-notices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/map-and-travel-notices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/map-and-travel-notices.html


• If a large number of workers are in hotels, consider bus transport. If using
shared vehicles, minimize the number per vehicle to support physical
distancing and require passengers to wear face coverings.

Recommendations for Casting and Auditions 

• Consider remote casting sessions and callbacks with live broadcast
capabilities. Encourage the submission of self-tapes instead of in-person
auditions where feasible.

• Digitally distribute scripts, music, etc. as opposed to handing out sheets of
paper, in accordance with confidentiality requirements.

• Schedule any in-person auditions and callbacks with staggered
appointments to accommodate physical distancing. Ask those auditioning
in person to arrive at casting and audition locations at the assigned time.

• Encourage people to wait in their cars, not in the waiting area of the
casting facility. Consider utilizing app technology that checks people in for
their appointment and sends a text when the audition will begin.

• Consider options to simulate handling of props to minimize items
transferred between individuals.

• Consider ensuring back-up talent selection and availability in the case of
illness.

Recommendations for Construction Mills and Set Design 

• Construction mill and set design employers should refer to additional
guidance on the Construction and Manufacturing industries available on
the Blueprint for a Safer Economy website.

https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/
https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy/


• Consider whether the set design crew can operate separately from
production, including fully dressing locations prior to performances without
interaction with other workers.

• Develop stage layouts to limit the number of staff and performers on site
and maximize the physical distance between performers.

• Additional cleaning and disinfection practices should be developed for
key props, furniture, or other set dressing which has repeated and regular
exposure with workers. Where possible, limit the number of people who
have contact with key props, e.g. ensure such props are only handled by a
designated crew member or relevant cast.

Recommendations for Scenery, Sound, Props, Rigging, Special 
Effects, and Lighting  

• Consider options to limit the number of staff needed in back-of-house
production departments and/or identify ways they can complete tasks
separately from each other. For example, where feasible, the lighting
department should be allowed to work alone on set until the lighting is
complete before other departments undertake their tasks.

• Evaluate the increased risk from standard working processes involving
close contact (heavy lifting, working in confined spaces such as scissor lifts,
lighting grids, moving large lamps, textile tying, etc.) and modify those work
processes, where possible, and ensure workers have access to the proper
protective equipment.

• Limit the shared use of production items to a single worker or a function
team (e.g. sound equipment should be handled by a designated person
or team).

• Encourage the use of microphones to decrease voice projection.

• Consider having sound crew pre-wire costumes, when practical and
feasible, to minimize contact between personnel.



Recommendations for Costume and Wardrobe 

• Consider options that allow performers to arrive in their own wardrobe.
Where feasible, encourage background performers to also wear clothes
from their own from home. Separate dressing areas to permit physical
distancing if this is not possible.

• Ensure costume dressing and quick-change protocols are staggered and
supervised by wardrobe attendants.

• Each cast member’s costume and wardrobe supplies should be kept in
separate, labeled plastic bags.

Recommendations for Hair and Makeup 

• Hair and make-up crew members should refer to additional guidance on
hair salons and other personal care services on the Industry Guidance to
Reduce Risk website.

• Hair extensions or wigs should be thoroughly cleaned according to the

manufacturer’s directions after each use.

• Makeup application tools and supplies should be purchased per performer
and used only on that individual. These supplies should be kept in individual
cast bags.

• Mix foundation, powders, lipstick, and other makeup items on a disposable
palette for each individual. Use disposable, single-use applicators for each
person (e.g. mascara wands, lip brushes, eyeliner sticks, cotton swabs,
powder puffs, etc.).

• Performers should apply their own minor touch-ups, where possible, to
avoid additional contact. Performers should also remove their own
makeup to limit contact at the end of the day.

https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/


1Additional requirements must be considered for vulnerable populations. Employers must comply 
with all Cal/OSHA standards and be prepared to adhere to its guidance as well as guidance 
from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH). Additionally, employers must be prepared to alter their operations as those 
guidelines change. 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cid/dcdc/pages/guidance.aspx


City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

NEW BUSINESS 
I-605 EIR Public Outreach/Community Engagement – Award of Contract
 
 

BACKGROUND 
Metro is set to release the I-605 (CIP) Corridor Improvement Project Environmental 
Impact Report.  It is anticipated that the Metro Board will authorize the release of this 
document in May 2021, at the earliest the latest date of release will be approximately 
September 2021. A significant portion of this project impacts the cities to the I-5 JPA, 
in particular, the cities of Downey, Norwalk, and Santa Fe Springs have potential right-
of-way impacts. The most significant right-of-way impacts center on the I-5/I-605 
interchange improvements. Metro will be providing public outreach on their own since 
they are the lead agency for the project. The I-5 JPA along with Santa Fe Springs 
desires to augment Metro’s public outreach efforts and more importantly provide 
information specific to the residents of the I-5 JPA.    

It is key that the information distributed and provided via the Cities websites, and on 
the proposed hotline for this outreach campaign will specifically state that this is a 
Metro/Caltrans EIR Project and that the I-5 JPA, including the Cities of La Mirada, 
Commerce, Norwalk, Santa Fe Springs, and Downey are providing supplemental 
outreach to our communities to help answer questions. In addition, this effort will aid 
in the development of a communications log to provide feedback to Metro/Caltrans. 
This correspondence should be included in the formal EIR records. 

The Public Works Engineering staff solicited the Request for Proposals (RFP) from 
qualified Engineering firms (Consultant) to provide public outreach and community 
engagement upon Metro’s release of the I-605 Corridor Improvement Project (CIP) 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The chosen consultant will have a dedicated 
telephone hotline number and website to address the project needs and impacts to the 
I-5 JPA cities, share content on social media platforms, attend Policy Board meetings,
and provide a monthly report on those outreach efforts. The consultants interested in
the services were encouraged to submit a proposal.

A total of two (2) proposals were received on March 17, 2021. A three-member 
evaluation team consisting of Robert Garcia (Capital Improvement Projects Manager), 
Leonard Lui (Assistant Civil Engineer), and Cecilia Amaya (Management Analyst),  

RECOMMENDATION 
• Award a contract to Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc., from Riverside,

California, for the I-605 EIR Outreach and Community Engagement in the amount
of $21,859.00;

• Approve the Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement;
• Authorize the Mayor to execute Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement;

and
• Authorize the Mayor to execute the Professional Services Agreement with

Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc.

ITEM NO. 14



I-605 EIR Public Outreach/Community Engagement –
Award of Contract Page 2 of 2 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

reviewed each proposal based on project-specific criteria, such as the firm’s and 
project managers' experience with similar projects, project team qualifications, 
understanding of the work to be done, and firm’s relevant project references, etc.  The 
evaluation team recommends awarding the contract to Southstar Engineering, Inc., 
due to the firm scoring highest of two firms that submitted proposals.  

The submittals received from Engineering Consulting Firms are the following: 

Consultant Name Amount 
1. Southstar Engineering, Inc. $ 21,859.00 
2. KPA Katherine Padilla & Associates, Inc. $ 70,470.00 

Attached is the summary of the evaluation teams’ rankings of the proposals.  As 
shown, Southstar Engineering, Inc. received the highest score.  The proposals 
submitted to the City and the evaluation score sheets are on file with the Public Works 
Department.  

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the contract agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The initial cost for Public Outreach will be paid by the City of Santa Fe Springs. 
However, the cost sharing and reimbursement agreement will evenly split the costs 
between the five I-5 Joint Powers Authority cities: Commerce, Downey, La Mirada, 
Norwalk, and Santa Fe Springs.  The Cost Sharing and Reimbursement agreement 
allows for expenditures up to $35,000.00.  The City will still be responsible for paying 
one-fifth of the total amount expended.  

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Evaluation Summary 
Attachment No. 2:  Agreement with Southstar Engineering, Inc. (PSA) 
Attachment No. 3:  Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement 



City of Santa Fe Springs

I-605 Public Outreach Summary

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1 2

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

1. Experience and Capability of the Firm 14 13 13 14 12 13

2. Project Manager 18 17 19 18 18 18

3. Project Team 19 16 18 18 17 18

4. Project Understanding and Approach 19 19 18 19 20 19

5. Past Experience and References 9 10 9 8 10 9

6. Pricing 13 10 15 12 6 12

92 85 92 89 83 89

1. Southstar Engineering 90

2. KPA 87

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available)

CRITERIA

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more than 

satisfy requirements.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-responsive. Qualifications/Pricing fully satisfy 

requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far exceed 

requirements.

Subtotal scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

Southstar Engineering & Consulting Inc. KPA Katherine Padilla& Associates, Inc.

90 87

Page. 1



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH 
SOUTHSTAR ENGINEERING & CONSULTING, INC. 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into this 4TH day of May, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SANTA FE 
SPRINGS, a municipal corporation (“City”), and Southstar Engineering & Consultin, Inc., a 
(“Consultant”). 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, City proposes to utilize the services of Consultant as an independent 
contractor to provide public outreach and community engagement upon Metro’s release of  the 
I-605 Corridor Improvement Project (CIP) Environmental Impact Report (EIR)., as more fully
described herein; and

WHEREAS, Consultant represents that it has that degree of specialized expertise 
contemplated within California Government Code section 37103, and holds all necessary licenses 
to practice and perform the services herein contemplated; and 

WHEREAS, City and Consultant desire to contract for the specific services described in 
Exhibit “A” (the “Project”) and desire to set forth their rights, duties and liabilities in connection 
with the services to be performed; and 

WHEREAS, no official or employee of City has a financial interest, within the provisions of 
sections 1090-1092 of the California Government Code, in the subject matter of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1.0. SERVICES PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT 

1.1. Scope of Services.  Consultant shall provide the professional services described 
in the City’s Request for Proposals (“RFP”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and Consultant’s 
Response to City’s RFP (“Consultant’s Proposal”), attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” both 
incorporated herein by this reference.    

1.2. Professional Practices.  All professional services to be provided by Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be provided by personnel experienced in their respective fields 
and in a manner consistent with the standards of care, diligence and skill ordinarily exercised by 
professional consultants in similar fields and circumstances in accordance with sound 
professional practices.  Consultant also warrants that it is familiar with all laws that may affect its 
performance of this Agreement and shall advise City of any changes in any laws that may affect 
Consultant’s performance of this Agreement. 

1.3. Performance to Satisfaction of City. Consultant agrees to perform all the work to 
the complete satisfaction of the City and within the hereinafter specified.  Evaluations of the work 
will be done by the City Manager or his or her designee.  If the quality of work is not satisfactory, 
City in its discretion has the right to: 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

2 

(a) Meet with Consultant to review the quality of the work and resolve the matters of
concern;

(b) Require Consultant to repeat the work at no additional fee until it is satisfactory;
and/or

(c) Terminate the Agreement as hereinafter set forth.

1.4.  Warranty.  Consultant warrants that it shall perform the services required by this 
Agreement in compliance with all applicable Federal and California employment laws, including, 
but not limited to, those laws related to minimum hours and wages; occupational health and 
safety; fair employment and employment practices; workers’ compensation insurance and safety 
in employment; and all other Federal, State and local laws and ordinances applicable to the 
services required under this Agreement.  Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless City from 
and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings, and judgments of every 
nature and description including attorneys’ fees and costs, presented, brought, or recovered 
against City for, or on account of any liability under any of the above-mentioned laws, which may 
be incurred by reason of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. 

1.5. Non-Discrimination.  In performing this Agreement, Consultant shall not engage in, 
nor permit its agents to engage in, discrimination in employment of persons because of their race, 
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
age, sexual orientation, or military or veteran status, except as permitted pursuant to section 
12940 of the Government Code.   

1.6. Non-Exclusive Agreement.  Consultant acknowledges that City may enter into 
agreements with other consultants for services similar to the services that are subject to this 
Agreement or may have its own employees perform services similar to those services 
contemplated by this Agreement. 

1.7. Delegation and Assignment.  This is a personal service contract, and the duties 
set forth herein shall not be delegated or assigned to any person or entity without the prior written 
consent of City.  Consultant may engage a subcontractor(s) as permitted by law and may employ 
other personnel to perform services contemplated by this Agreement at Consultant’s sole cost 
and expense. 

1.8. Confidentiality.  Employees of Consultant in the course of their duties may have 
access to financial, accounting, statistical, and personnel data of private individuals and 
employees of City.  Consultant covenants that all data, documents, discussion, or other 
information developed or received by Consultant or provided for performance of this Agreement 
are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by Consultant without written authorization by 
City.  City shall grant such authorization if disclosure is required by law.  All City data shall be 
returned to City upon the termination of this Agreement.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

2.0. COMPENSATION AND BILLING 

2.1. Compensation.  Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the fee schedule set 
forth in Exhibit “C,” attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement by this reference (the “Fee 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

3 

Schedule”).  Consultant’s total compensation shall not exceed twenty-one thousand, eight 
hundred fifty-nine dollars, ($21,859.00). 

2.2. Additional Services.  Consultant shall not receive compensation for any services 
provided outside the scope of services specified in the Consultant’s Proposal unless the City or 
the Project Manager for this Project, prior to Consultant performing the additional services, 
approves such additional services in writing.  It is specifically understood that oral requests and/or 
approvals of such additional services or additional compensation shall be barred and are 
unenforceable.   

2.3. Method of Billing.  Consultant may submit invoices to the City for approval on a 
progress basis, but no more often than two times a month.  Said invoice shall be based on the 
total of all Consultant’s services which have been completed to City’s sole satisfaction. City shall 
pay Consultant’s invoice within forty-five (45) days from the date City receives said invoice.  Each 
invoice shall describe in detail, the services performed, the date of performance, and the 
associated time for completion.  Any additional services approved and performed pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be designated as “Additional Services” and shall identify the number of the 
authorized change order, where applicable, on all invoices.    

2.4. Records and Audits.  Records of Consultant’s services relating to this Agreement 
shall be maintained in accordance with generally recognized accounting principles and shall be 
made available to City or its Project Manager for inspection and/or audit at mutually convenient 
times from the Effective Date until three (3) years after termination of this Agreement.   

3.0. TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

3.1. Commencement and Completion of Work.  The professional services to be 
performed pursuant to this Agreement shall commence within five (5) days from the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. Failure to commence work in a timely manner and/or diligently pursue work to 
completion may be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  

3.2. Excusable Delays.  Neither party shall be responsible for delays or lack of 
performance resulting from acts beyond the reasonable control of the party or parties.  Such acts 
shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, fire, strikes, material shortages, compliance with 
laws or regulations, riots, acts of war, or any other conditions beyond the reasonable control of a 
party. 

4.0. TERM AND TERMINATION 

4.1. Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the date of the Notice to Proceed and 
continue for a period of four (4) months, unless previously terminated as provided herein or as 
otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties.   

4.2. Notice of Termination.  The City reserves and has the right and privilege of 
canceling, suspending or abandoning the execution of all or any part of the work contemplated 
by this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time, by providing written notice to Consultant. 
The termination of this Agreement shall be deemed effective upon receipt of the notice of 
termination.  In the event of such termination, Consultant shall immediately stop rendering 
services under this Agreement unless directed otherwise by the City. 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

4 

4.3. Compensation.  In the event of termination, City shall pay Consultant for 
reasonable costs incurred and professional services satisfactorily performed up to and including 
the date of City’s written notice of termination.  Compensation for work in progress shall be 
prorated based on the percentage of work completed as of the effective date of termination in 
accordance with the fees set forth herein.  In ascertaining the professional services actually 
rendered hereunder up to the effective date of termination of this Agreement, consideration shall 
be given to both completed work and work in progress, to complete and incomplete drawings, 
and to other documents pertaining to the services contemplated herein whether delivered to the 
City or in the possession of the Consultant. 

4.4. Documents.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared 
by Consultant in its performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to, finished or 
unfinished design, development and construction documents, data studies, drawings, maps and 
reports, shall be delivered to the City within ten (10) days of delivery of termination notice to 
Consultant, at no cost to City.  Any use of uncompleted documents without specific written 
authorization from Consultant shall be at City’s sole risk and without liability or legal expense to 
Consultant. 

5.0. INSURANCE 

5.1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain, maintain, and 
keep in full force and effect during the life of this Agreement all of the following minimum scope 
of insurance coverages with an insurance company admitted to do business in California, rated 
“A,” Class X, or better in the most recent Best’s Key Insurance Rating Guide, and approved by 
City: 

(a) Commercial general liability, including premises-operations, products/completed
operations, broad form property damage, blanket contractual liability, independent
contractors, personal injury or bodily injury with a policy limit of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined single limits, per occurrence. If such
insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this
Agreement or shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

(b) Business automobile liability for owned vehicles, hired, and non-owned vehicles,
with a policy limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined
single limits, per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

(c) Workers’ compensation insurance as required by the State of California.
Consultant agrees to waive, and to obtain endorsements from its workers’
compensation insurer waiving subrogation rights under its workers’ compensation
insurance policy against the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers
arising from work performed by Consultant for the City and to require each of its
subcontractors, if any, to do likewise under their workers’ compensation insurance
policies.

(d) Professional errors and omissions (“E&O”) liability insurance with policy limits of
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined single limits, per
occurrence and aggregate.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage shall be endorsed
to include contractual liability. If the policy is written as a “claims made” policy, the
retro date shall be prior to the start of the contract work. Consultant shall obtain
and maintain, said E&O liability insurance during the life of this Agreement and for
three years after completion of the work hereunder.



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

5 

5.2. Endorsements.  The commercial general liability insurance policy and business 
automobile liability policy shall contain or be endorsed to contain the following provisions: 

(a) Additional insureds:  “The City of Santa Fe Springs and its elected and appointed
boards, officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers are additional
insureds with respect to: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf
of the Consultant pursuant to its contract with the City; products and completed
operations of the Consultant; premises owned, occupied or used by the
Consultant; automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Consultant.”

(b) Notice:  “Said policy shall not terminate, be suspended, or voided, nor shall it be
cancelled, nor the coverage or limits reduced, until thirty (30) days after written
notice is given to City.”

(c) Other insurance:  “The Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City of Santa Fe Springs, its officers, officials, agents,
employees, and volunteers. Any other insurance maintained by the City of Santa
Fe Springs shall be excess and not contributing with the insurance provided by this
policy.”

(d) Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to the City of Santa Fe Springs, its officers, officials, agents,
employees, and volunteers.

(e) The Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s
liability.

5.3.  Deductible or Self Insured Retention. If any of such policies provide for a deductible 
or self-insured retention to provide such coverage, the amount of such deductible or self-insured 
retention shall be approved in advance by City.  No policy of insurance issued as to which the 
City is an additional insured shall contain a provision which requires that no insured except the 
named insured can satisfy any such deductible or self-insured retention. 

5.4. Certificates of Insurance.  Consultant shall provide to City certificates of insurance 
showing the insurance coverages and required endorsements described above, in a form and 
content approved by City, prior to performing any services under this Agreement.  The certificates 
of insurance shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and incorporated herein by this reference. 

5.5. Non-Limiting.  Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting in any way, the 
indemnification provision contained in this Agreement, or the extent to which Consultant may be 
held responsible for payments of damages to persons or property. 

6.0. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

6.1. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to any matter referenced herein and supersedes any and all other prior 
writings and oral negotiations.  This Agreement may be modified only in writing, and signed by 
the parties in interest at the time of such modification.  The terms of this Agreement shall prevail 
over any inconsistent provision in any other contract document appurtenant hereto, including 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

6 

exhibits to this Agreement. 

6.2. Representatives. The City Manager or his or her designee shall be the 
representative of City for purposes of this Agreement and may issue all consents, approvals, 
directives and agreements on behalf of the City, called for by this Agreement, except as otherwise 
expressly provided in this Agreement.  

Consultant shall designate a representative for purposes of this Agreement who shall be 
authorized to issue all consents, approvals, directives and agreements on behalf of Consultant 
called for by this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement. 

6.3. Project Managers.  City shall designate a Project Manager to work directly with 
Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. 

Consultant shall designate a Project Manager who shall represent it and be its agent in all 
consultations with City during the term of this Agreement.  Consultant or its Project Manager shall 
attend and assist in all coordination meetings called by City. 

6.4. Notices.  Any notices, documents, correspondence or other 
communications concerning this Agreement or the work hereunder may be provided by personal 
delivery or mail and shall be addressed as set forth below.  Such communication shall be deemed 
served or delivered: (a) at the time of delivery if such communication is sent by personal delivery, 
and  (b) 48 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail as reflected by the official U.S. postmark if such 
communication is sent through regular United States mail. 

IF TO CONSULTANT: IF TO CITY: 
Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc. 
1945 Chicago Ave, Unit C-2,  
Riverside, CA 92507 

City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 E. Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670 

Tel: (951) 342-3120 Tel:  (562) 868-0511 
Attn: Yvette M. Kirrin Attn:  Noe Negrete 

6.5. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event that litigation is brought by any party in connection 
with this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the opposing party all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the prevailing party in the 
exercise of any of its rights or remedies hereunder or the enforcement of any of the terms, 
conditions, or provisions hereof. 

6.6. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the 
laws of the State of California without giving effect to that body of laws pertaining to conflict of 
laws.  In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the parties hereto 
agree that the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Los 
Angeles, California. 

6.7. Assignment.  Consultant shall not voluntarily or by operation of law assign, 
transfer, sublet or encumber all or any part of Consultant’s interest in this Agreement without 
City’s prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment, transfer, subletting or encumbrance shall 
be void and shall constitute a breach of this Agreement and cause for termination of this 
Agreement. Regardless of City’s consent, no subletting or assignment shall release Consultant 
of Consultant’s obligation to perform all other obligations to be performed by Consultant 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

7 

hereunder for the term of this Agreement. 

6.8. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  To the fullest extent of the law, and 
consistent with Civil Code section 2782.8, Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify, hold 
free and harmless the City, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and 
employees, at Consultant’s sole expense, from and against any and all claims, demands, 
actions, suits or other legal proceedings brought against City, its elected and appointed 
officials, officers, agents, and employees to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or 
relating to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant, its 
employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, in performing design professional services 
pursuant to this Agreement. The defense obligation provided for hereunder shall apply 
without any advance showing of negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the 
Consultant, its employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, but shall be required 
whenever any claim, action, complaint, or suit asserts as its basis the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its employees, and/or authorized 
subcontractors, and/or whenever any claim, action, complaint or suit asserts liability 
against the City, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees 
based upon such negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct, whether or not the 
Consultant, its employees, and/or authorized subcontractors are specifically named or 
otherwise asserted to be liable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Consultant shall not 
be liable for the defense or indemnification of the City for claims, actions, complaints or 
suits arising out of the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the City. Further, 
in no event shall the cost to defend charged to the design professional exceed the design 
professional’s proportionate percentage of fault, unless otherwise specified in Civil Code 
section 2782.8. This provision shall supersede and replace all other indemnity provisions 
contained either in the City’s specifications or Consultant’s Proposal, which shall be of no 
force and effect. 

6.9. Independent Contractor.  Consultant is and shall be acting at all times as an 
independent contractor and not as an employee of City.  Consultant shall have no power to incur 
any debt, obligation, or liability on behalf of City or otherwise act on behalf of City as an agent. 
Neither City nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of 
Consultant’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not, at any time, 
or in any manner, represent that it or any of its agents or employees are in any manner agents or 
employees of City. Consultant shall secure, at its sole expense, and be responsible for any and 
all payment of Income Tax, Social Security, State Disability Insurance Compensation, 
Unemployment Compensation, and other payroll deductions for Consultant and its officers, 
agents, and employees, and all business licenses, if any are required, in connection with the 
services to be performed hereunder. Consultant shall indemnify and hold City harmless from any 
and all taxes, assessments, penalties, and interest asserted against City by reason of the 
independent contractor relationship created by this Agreement. Consultant further agrees to 
indemnify and hold City harmless from any failure of Consultant to comply with the applicable 
worker’s compensation laws. City shall have the right to offset against the amount of any fees due 
to Consultant under this Agreement any amount due to City from Consultant as a result of 
Consultant’s failure to promptly pay to City any reimbursement or indemnification arising under 
this paragraph. 

6.10.  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.   In the event that Consultant or any employee, 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

8 

agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services under this Agreement claims or is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of the City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, 
which would otherwise be the responsibility of City. 

Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors 
providing service under this Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby 
agree to waive any claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee of City and entitlement to 
any contribution to be paid by City for employer contribution and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 

6.11. Cooperation. In the event any claim or action is brought against City 
relating to Consultant’s performance or services rendered under this Agreement, Consultant shall 
render any reasonable assistance and cooperation which City might require. 

6.12. Ownership of Documents.  All findings, reports, documents, information and data 
including, but not limited to, computer tapes or discs, files and tapes furnished or prepared by 
Consultant or any of its subcontractors in the course of performance of this Agreement, shall be 
and remain the sole property of City.  Consultant agrees that any such documents or information 
shall not be made available to any individual or organization without the prior consent of City.  Any 
use of such documents for other projects not contemplated by this Agreement, and any use of 
incomplete documents, shall be at the sole risk of City and without liability or legal exposure to 
Consultant.  City shall indemnify and hold harmless Consultant from all claims, damages, losses, 
and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from City’s use of such 
documents for other projects not contemplated by this Agreement or use of incomplete documents 
furnished by Consultant.  Consultant shall deliver to City any findings, reports, documents, 
information, data, in any form, including but not limited to, computer tapes, discs, files audio tapes 
or any other Project related items as requested by City or its authorized representative, at no 
additional cost to the City. 

6.13. Public Records Act Disclosure.  Consultant has been advised and is aware that 
this Agreement and all reports, documents, information and data, including, but not limited to, 
computer tapes, discs or files furnished or prepared by Consultant, or any of its subcontractors, 
pursuant to this Agreement and provided to City may be subject to public disclosure as required 
by the California Public Records Act (California Government Code section 6250 et seq.). 
Exceptions to public disclosure may be those documents or information that qualify as trade 
secrets, as that term is defined in the California Government Code section 6254.7, and of which 
Consultant informs City of such trade secret. The City will endeavor to maintain as confidential all 
information obtained by it that is designated as a trade secret. The City shall not, in any way, be 
liable or responsible for the disclosure of any trade secret including, without limitation, those 
records so marked if disclosure is deemed to be required by law or by order of the Court.   

6.14. Conflict of Interest.  Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and 
subconsultants, if any, will comply with all conflict of interest statutes of the State of California 
applicable to Consultant's services under this agreement, including, but not limited to, the Political 
Reform Act (Government Code sections 81000, et seq.) and Government Code section 1090. 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

9 

During the term of this Agreement, Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and 
subconsultants shall not, without the prior written approval of the City Representative, perform 
work for another person or entity for whom Consultant is not currently performing work that would 
require Consultant or one of its officers, employees, associates or subconsultants to abstain from 
a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of interest statute. 

6.15. Responsibility for Errors.  Consultant shall be responsible for its work and results 
under this Agreement.  Consultant, when requested, shall furnish clarification and/or explanation 
as may be required by the City’s representative, regarding any services rendered under this 
Agreement at no additional cost to City.  In the event that an error or omission attributable to 
Consultant occurs, then Consultant shall, at no cost to City, provide all necessary design 
drawings, estimates and other Consultant professional services necessary to rectify and correct 
the matter to the sole satisfaction of City and to participate in any meeting required with regard to 
the correction. 

6.16. Prohibited Employment.  Consultant will not employ any regular employee of City 
while this Agreement is in effect. 

6.17. Order of Precedence.  In the event of an inconsistency in this Agreement and any 
of the attached Exhibits, the terms set forth in this Agreement shall prevail. If, and to the extent 
this Agreement incorporates by reference any provision of any document, such provision shall be 
deemed a part of this Agreement.  Nevertheless, if there is any conflict among the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and those of any such provision or provisions so incorporated by 
reference, this Agreement shall govern over the document referenced. 

6.18. Costs.  Each party shall bear its own costs and fees incurred in the preparation 
and negotiation of this Agreement and in the performance of its obligations hereunder except as 
expressly provided herein. 

6.19. No Third Party Beneficiary Rights.  This Agreement is entered into for the sole 
benefit of City and Consultant and no other parties are intended to be direct or incidental 
beneficiaries of this Agreement and no third party shall have any right in, under or to this 
Agreement. 

6.20. Headings.  Paragraphs and subparagraph headings contained in this Agreement 
are included solely for convenience and are not intended to modify, explain or to be a full or 
accurate description of the content thereof and shall not in any way affect the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement.   

6.21. Construction.  The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting 
of this Agreement.  In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises with 
respect to this Agreement, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties 
and in accordance with its fair meaning.  There shall be no presumption or burden of proof favoring 
or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

6.22.  Amendments.  Only a writing executed by the parties hereto or their respective 
successors and assigns may amend this Agreement. 

6.23. Waiver.  The delay or failure of either party at any time to require performance or 
compliance by the other of any of its obligations or agreements shall in no way be deemed a 
waiver of those rights to require such performance or compliance.  No waiver of any provision of 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

10 

this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative 
of the party against whom enforcement of a waiver is sought.  The waiver of any right or remedy 
in respect to any occurrence or event shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or remedy in 
respect to any other occurrence or event, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.   

6.24. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable in any circumstance, such determination shall not 
affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or of the offending 
provision in any other circumstance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the value of this 
Agreement, based upon the substantial benefit of the bargain for any party, is materially impaired, 
which determination made by the presiding court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction shall be 
binding, then both parties agree to substitute such provision(s) through good faith negotiations. 

6.25.   Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original.  All counterparts shall be construed together and shall 
constitute one agreement. 

6.26. Corporate Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that they are duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of said 
parties and that by doing so the parties hereto are formally bound to the provisions of this 
Agreement. 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by and through their respective authorized officers, as of the date first above written. 

CONSULTANT 
Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc., 

Date: 
Signature, Title 

Yvette M. Kirrin, PE Social Security or Taxpayer ID Number 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

Date: 
Juanita Trujillo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Date: 
Ivy Tsai, City Attorney 



Ver. 04/2019 I-605 EIPublic Outreach and
Community Engagement

12 

EXHIBIT A 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 



JOHN M. MORA, MAYOR ♦ ANNETTE RODRIGUEZ, MAYOR PRO TEM 

CITY COUNCIL 

JAY SARNO ♦ JUANITA TRUJILLO ♦ JOE ANGEL ZAMORA  

CITY MANAGER 

RAYMOND R. CRUZ 

I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTREACH / COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

A. SERVICE

The City of Santa Fe Springs desires a proposal to provide public outreach and community

engagement upon Metro’s release of the I-605 Corridor Improvement Project (CIP) Environmental

Impact Report (EIR).

B. BACKGROUND

The I-5 Consortium Cities Joint Powers Authority (I-5 JPA) was created in 1990. It includes the

Cities of La Mirada, Downey, Norwalk, Santa Fe Springs and Commerce. Our cities are

geographically located in the Gateway Cities Council of Governments (GCCOG) subregion.  The

I-5 JPA mission is to protect our cities while increasing capacity and improving safety and

efficiency of the I-5 by working with transportation authorities to design I-5 corridor

improvements that will not cause economic and social disruption within our communities.

The primary objectives of the I-5 JPA is to participate in the GCCOG efforts in keeping the I-5 the 

number one priority, actively working with Metro and Caltrans to support the I-5 project in keeping 

with our mission, continuing to pursue funding opportunities and completing the I-5 project 

including EIR north of the I-605. 

Metro is in development of the I-605 CIP EIR.  It is anticipated that the Metro Board will authorize 

the release of this document in late April 2021, at the earliest.   A significant portion of this project 

impacts the cities to the I-5 JPA, in particular the cities of Downey, Norwalk and Santa Fe Springs 

have potential right-of-way impacts.  The most significant right-of-way impacts center around the 

I-5/I-605 interchange improvements.

Metro will be providing public outreach on their own since they are the lead agency for the project. 

The I-5 JPA along with Santa Fe Springs desires to augment Metro’s public outreach efforts and 

more importantly provide information specific to the residents of the I-5 JPA.   

It is key that the information distributed and provided via the Cities websites, and on the proposed 

hotline for this outreach campaign will specifically state that this is a Metro/Caltrans EIR Project, 

and that the I-5 JPA, including the Cities of La Mirada, Commerce, Norwalk, Santa Fe Springs 

and Downey are providing supplemental outreach to our communities to help answer questions, 

as well as to develop a communications log to provide back to Metro/Caltrans to be included in 

the formal EIR records. 



I-605 EIR Public Outreach / Community Engagement Request For Proposal

March 2, 2021

Page 2 of 5

C. SCOPE OF WORK

The following is the scope of work:

1. Telephone Hotline:  Setup a dedicated 800 hotline phone number that will be shared

with the public to address questions.  The hotline must be available in both English and

Spanish languages.  The hotline will be available 7 days a week at all hours of day.

The calls must be answered and responded to same day or next day at the latest.

Telephone hotline must be established within 3 days of contract execution at the latest.

Estimate 8 hours per week of staff time to answer and respond to calls, coordinate as

necessary with Metro, Caltrans, the I-5 JPA and the Cities of Downey and/or Santa Fe

Springs, and to keep the communication logs current.

2. Web Page: Develop a dedicated website to address the project need, and impacts to the

I-5 JPA cities.  More importantly develop list of Frequently Asked Questions and

provide a link to the Metro outreach website.  The website must be bilingual (English

/ Spanish), list the 800 hotline phone number and an email address for more project

information.  This web page must then be shared with the I-5 JPA cities, so the cities

can link this page to their City websites.   All emails should be responded to same day

or next day with a copy sent to the I-5 JPA Technical Advisor Committee Chairperson

and the I-5 JPA Authority Engineer.  Web page must be developed within 7 days of

contract execution.

3. Social Media: Develop and share project content to be shared with the I-5 JPA cities

and their various social media platforms.  This includes the management of a Social

Media presence to ensure consistent messaging and relevant content.

4. I-5 JPA Policy Board Attendance and monthly update:  Attend I-5 JPA Policy Board

monthly meetings and provide a monthly report on outreach efforts.  Attendance should

also be expected at two Council meetings each for the cities of Downey and Santa Fe

Springs.

5. Deliverables:  Communication log monitoring the Telephone hotline and emails.

Provide name of caller, address, phone number and their concern / issue.  This

communication log may be submitted as a response to the draft EIR.

D. APPROXIMATE DESIGN SCHEDULE

Deadline to submit proposal March 17, 2021

City Council Award of Contract April 6, 2021

Notice to Proceed April 12, 2021

Assume contract will be executed by April 12, 2021. The Public Outreach should be for 

approximately four months from that date. 



I-605 EIR Public Outreach / Community Engagement Request For Proposal

March 2, 2021

Page 3 of 5

E. DELIVERY OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Please submit a proposal via email or in a sealed envelope, plainly marked on the outside “Request

for Proposal – I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTREACH / COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT” by 2:00

p.m. on Wednesday, March 17, 2021, to the attention of:

Noe Negrete 

Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

11710 Telegraph Road 

Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 

Email: noenegrete@santafesprings.org 

Should the Consultant have any questions regarding this information, please contact Noe Negrete, 

Public Works Director at (562) 455-5680.  

F. REQUIRED FORMAT FOR PROPOSALS

The AGENCY is requiring all proposals submitted in response to this RFP to follow a

specific format. The Proposal, including the Appendices, shall not exceed twenty (20)

pages in length, utilizing 8.5" x 11" pages with one-inch margins. As an exception, 11" x

17" pages may be used to display organizational charts. Font size shall not be smaller than

12 point for text or eight (8) point for graphics. Dividers used to separate sections will not

be counted. Creative use of dividers to portray team qualifications, etc. is discouraged.

Consultants are required to prepare their written proposals in accordance with the

instructions outlined below.  Deviations from these instructions may be construed as non-

responsive and may be cause for disqualification.  Emphasis should be placed on accuracy,

completeness, and clarity of content.

The written proposal should be organized as described below.  Each section of the written

proposal should contain the title of that section, with the response following the title.  The

following are the required titles with a brief statement as to that section’s desired content:

A. Letter of Offer

The Letter of Offer shall be addressed to Noe Negrete, Director of Public Works,

City of Santa Fe Springs, and at a minimum, must contain the following:

• Identification of Consulting firm or individual, including name, address and

telephone number.

• Name, title, address, and telephone number of Contact Person.

• Federal Tax ID or Social Security No. for firm or individual.

• A statement to the effect that the Proposal shall remain valid for a period of not

less than 90 calendar days from the date of submittal.



I-605 EIR Public Outreach / Community Engagement Request For Proposal

March 2, 2021

Page 4 of 5

• Identification of all proposed sub-consultants or subcontractors, including legal

name of the company, address and contact person.

• Signature of a person authorized to bind Consulting firm to the terms of the

RFP.

• Signed statement attesting that all information submitted with the Proposal is

true and correct.

B. Qualifications of the Firm

This section of the Proposal shall explain the ability of the Consultant to

satisfactorily perform the Scope of Work. More specifically, in this section, the

Consultant shall:

• Provide a profile of the Consultant including the types of services offered; the

year founded; form of organization (corporate, partnership, sole

proprietorship); number, size and location of offices; number of employees.

• Provide a list of previous projects in which the Consultant and subconsultants

have worked together. The list should clearly identify the previous projects and

include a summary of the roles and responsibilities of each party.

• Provide information on the strength and stability of the Consultant; current

staffing capability and availability; current work load; and proven record of

meeting schedules on similar types of projects.

C. Proposed Staffing

This section should identify key personnel to be assigned and their qualifications

and experience.  The Proposal should include brief resumes, not more than two (2)

pages for each individual.

A statement that key personnel will be available to the extent proposed for the

duration of the Professional Services Agreement and an acknowledgement that no

person assigned to a project shall be removed or replaced without the prior written

concurrence of the AGENCY.

D. Consultants and/or Sub-consultants

The AGENCY desires to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with a

Consultant that will be responsible for all work, products, and services.  There is to

be no assignment of any aspect of assigned projects without the prior written

authorization of the AGENCY.  If the Consultant plans on using subcontractors,

then company profile, name, address, and telephone for all subcontractors

providing support during the term of the Professional Service Agreement is

required.  Define the responsibilities and give a description of services to be

provided by subcontractors.  Describe the Consultant’s business and reporting

relationship with any subcontractors.  Include references and resumes for all third



I-605 EIR Public Outreach / Community Engagement Request For Proposal

March 2, 2021

Page 5 of 5

party Firms in the RFP.  The AGENCY has the right to accept or reject any changes 

made to the proposed project team members, including the use of subcontractors. 

E. Work Approach

This section of the Proposal shall include a narrative that addresses the Scope of

Work and demonstrates that Consultant understands the Scope of Work. More

specifically, the RFP should include the Consultant’s general approach for

providing the services specified in the Scope of Work. The work approach shall be

of sufficient detail to demonstrate Consultant’s ability to accomplish the on-call

Engineering services requests by AGENCY.

F. Client References

List the three (3) most recent similar clients (including name, address, contact

person, and phone number).  For each client provide a description of projects

completed and their location.   The AGENCY is most interested in California

municipality clients and may randomly select agencies to contact from the list as

part of the evaluation process.

G. Rights to Materials

All responses, inquiries, and correspondence relating to this RFP and all reports,

charts, displays, schedules, exhibits, and other documentation produced by the

Consultant that are submitted as part of the RFP and not withdrawn shall, upon

receipt by AGENCY, become property of AGENCY.

H. Fee Schedule

A Fee Schedule shall be submitted with Proposal estimating the cost to provide

Scope of Work.  The AGENCY will compensate the Consultant for actual hours

worked by assigned personnel on a monthly basis.  The Agreement will be for a not

to exceed amount.  Compensation will be based on the fee schedule in the proposal.

The consultant will provide an invoice clearly documenting the services performed

each day and the number of hours worked.  The Schedule of Hourly Rates shall

remain fixed for the term of the Professional Services Agreement.



EXHIBIT B 

CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL 



I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTREACH/
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

FOR THE

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

1945  CHICAGO AVENUE 
SUITE  C-2  
R IVERSIDE,  CA  92507  
951.342.3120  
SOUTHSTARENG.COM

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE: MARCH 17TH, 2021

A. LETTER OF OFFER 1

B. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE FIRM 2

C. PROPOSED STAFFING 5

D. CONSULTANTS 10

10

16

18

E.WORK APPROACH

F.CLIENT REFERENCES

G.RIGHTS TO MATERIALS

H.FEE SCHEDULE 19

TABLE OF CONTENTS



PAGE 1

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

A. LETTER OF OFFER
March 17th, 2021

Mr. Noe Negrete 
Director of Public Works 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, California  90670-3658

RE: Request for Proposal – I-605 EIR PUBLIC 
OUTREACH / COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Dear Mr. Negrete:

We are pleased to submit our proposal to provide as-
needed public relations services for the I-605 Projects 
for the City of Santa Fe Springs (City). Southstar 
Engineering & Consulting, Inc. (Southstar) is the 
team to deliver the quality, trust, responsiveness, 
innovation and value that the City’s residents and staff 
need. Our proposed Principal-in-Charge (PIC) and 
our Project Manager, Vanessa Barrientos, bilingual, 
have proven their expertise within the I-5 JPA and 
GCCOG Corridor Cities. Ms. Barrientos is a seasoned 
award winning public outreach specialist with a broad 
background. She successfully led a variety of public 
outreach campaigns for the high-profile Caltrans I-5 
Corridor Improvement Projects, Cities of Santa Fe 
Springs and Downey. 

This Proposal shall remain valid for a period of 90 
calendar days from the date of submittal. There are 
no proposed sub-consultants for this project. I certify 
that all information submitted with the proposal is 
true and correct.

We look forward to continuing to work with the City of 
Santa Fe Springs in assisting with your Public Outreach 
needs. If you have questions or for contractual needs, 
please contact me through the information provided 
in the blue box.

Sincerely, 
Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc.

Yvette Kirrin, PE 
President / PIC

Southstar Engineering & 
Consulting, Inc. 

Type of Business Entity: 
C-Corporation

Year Founded:
2006

Headquarters / Work to be 
Performed from: 

1945 Chicago Avenue, Suite C-2 
Riverside, CA 92507 

Phone: (951) 342-3120
Fax: (951) 342-3148

www.southstareng.com

Primary Contact:
Ms. Yvette Kirrin, PE

President/PIC
Cell: (626) 644-8058

Email: yvette@kes-inc.com

Engineering Trust Into Every 
Project

Relevant Experience
Yvette Kirrin Vanessa Barrientos

I-5 JPA and Cities
15 Years

Executive 
Director

10 Years

I-5 Caltrans, Public
Outreach

City of Santa Fe 
Springs, Public 

Outreach

City of Downey, 
Public Outreach

GCCOG
8 Years

Consulting 
Engineer

5 Years

STP Support, 
Corridor Master 

Plan Support

DIR No: 
100017294

EIN No: 
20-5648626



PAGE 2

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

FIRM PROFILE 
Southstar has provided professional engineering 
services for fifteen years for transportation 
projects in southern California. We focus on 
providing solutions to two primary industry 
needs: 1) managing the project development of 
both small and large-scale multi-million-dollar 
infrastructure improvements, and 2) managing the 
construction of bridges, freeways and infrastructure 
projects. Southstar’s extensive knowledge includes 
construction management and construction 
inspection, public outreach, utility coordination, 
office engineering, labor compliance, and design.

In-House Public Outreach | Building upon the 
successes of our construction management services, Southstar’s Public Outreach Team 
brings unrivaled experience in community outreach, public education and awareness 
programs for capital improvement projects. Over the last 10 years, our staff has worked 
on projects along the I-5 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), with a 
particular focus on the Santa Ana Freeway (I-5) between the Orange County line and the 
San Gabriel River Freeway (I-605), I-5 JPA, GCCOG and including the Cities of Santa Fe 
Springs and Downey. Our team is well known within these communities for our community 
outreach expertise and technical project knowledge. We focus on working with our clients 
to build consensus on projects and bridge issues amongst stakeholders who often hold 
divergent viewpoints so that our communities are best served at the conclusion of the 
process. Our team is supported by our technical professional engineers that provide 
insight and understanding to engineering.

PUBLIC OUTREACH SERVICES
Southstar offers extensive in-house public outreach services that provide our clients with 
a cost-effective team. Our public outreach services can be found below:

B. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE FIRM
Year Founded

2006

Form of Organization
C-Corporation

Office Location 
1945 Chicago Avenue, Suite C-2 

Riverside, CA 92507

Years in Business
15

Number of employees
25

TAILORED COMMUNITY OUTREACH PLANS 
Develop and Execute (Bilingual)

HOTLINE - BILINGUAL
Provide responses within 24 hours and document

COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS 
Public Meetings, Open Houses,  

Mobile Meetings

COLLATERAL MATERIAL
Brochures, Signage, Banners, Construction Alerts, 

Press Releases, Fact Sheets, Detour and Closure 
Maps, and Advisories 

STAKEHOLDERS EMAIL DATABASE
Comprise, Update, and Email-Blast

DEDICATED EMAIL
Provide responses within 24 hours and document

SPECIAL EVENT COORDINATION 
Milestone Celebrations, Ground breaking, 
Ribbon Cutting 

DRONE/VIDEO PRODUCTION 
Monthly photos  
Bitable Videos, 3D Simulations 



PAGE 3

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

B. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE FIRM
TAILORED WEBSITE

Design Layout, Content, Host, and Maintain.  
Link to other sites. 

 REPORTING
Communication logs, social media logs,  

collateral material logs.

GRASS-ROOTS ORGANIZING 
DISTRIBUTION OF PRINTED MATERIALS 

PHOTOGRAPHY 
TRANSLATION SERVICES 

Oral And Written 

SOCIAL MEDIA
Weekly or Monthly Calendars of content/Images, 
Monitor social media sites. 

SAFETY OUTREACH NOTICES 
Safety Banners, Safety fliers,  
and Videos

PARTNERING MEETINGS 
IDENTIFY TARGETED MEDIA OUTLETS 
PROJECT SITE TOURS 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT
(PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS)

QUALITY CONTROL APPROACH
For the City’s Community Relations/Public Outreach Services contract, Southstar has 
developed Project Manager’s Quality Control procedures for: Quality of Services, Quality 
of Public Outreach Work and Quality of Invoices. These Quality Control procedures will 
include a hierarchy of documents, policies, plans, procedures, work instruction, forms, 
budgets, and invoicing.

Quality of Services | Southstar will follow a partnering approach that improves 
communication and respect between all project parties. We will establish a monthly 
Status meeting with a monthly Status report, as directed by the City. 

Quality of our Public Outreach Work | Southstar’s organization is structured to deliver 
technical quality, with qualified professionals overseeing specific and well-defined project 
assignments.

Quality Control for Invoices | Our team  has developed lessons learned from our recent 
contract and have developed in-house guidelines to insure that error free invoices on a 
monthly basis. Our team will work with our Operations Manager, Troy Schmidt in this 
process to submit accurate and on-time invoice packages.  The package will include the 
monthly invoice, daily diaries, ODC’s, public outreach report and communication logs.

SUBCONSULTANTS
Sub-Consultants will not be required for Southstar to fulfill the scope of services.

Develop/Design Review Submit Disseminate

Public Outreach Team Quality Control Team City of Santa Fe Springs
Collateral Material
Website Content

Social Media Content

Yvette Kirrin,
Team Members

Review
Submit Comments to PR Team

Comments
PR Team Makes Revisions

Print
Social Media

Update Website

NO



PAGE 4

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

B. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE FIRM
STRENGTH AND STABILITY
Having completed many projects for the City and the I-5 JPA Cities,  Southstar has a vast 
knowledge of the tools and processes required to successfully deliver any project. Amid 
the COVID-19 Pandemic, Southstar Engineering has been fortunate enough to maintain 
itself through various projects. This consistency has also helped the firm maintain all of 
its employees enabling a full throttle response to this request for the proposal.

STAFFING CAPABILITY
Southstar team members have demonstrated the ability to work on any task assigned and 
with the ability to adjust and assist other members of the team when workloads change. 
Below is a list of similar scope of work that demonstrates our staff’s capability.

PUBLIC 
OUTREACH TASK 

EXPERIENCE

I-5 JPA
COORDINATION

GCCOG
BILINGUAL 

HOTLINE
DEDICATED 

WEBSITE
DEDICATED 

EMAIL
SOCIAL 
MEDIA

LOGS & 
REPORTS

City of Santa Fe 
Springs, On-Call 10 years Content

City of Downey, 
Measure-S Content

Cal Trans I-5, 
On-Call 10 Years

GCCOG, STP, 
and Corridor 

Studies

STAFF AVAILABILITY | Southstar team members are currently delivering similar 
services for the Cities of Santa Fe Springs, Downey, I-5 JPA and other Cities. All team 
members will be available to transition on an as-needed basis. Below is a table of our key 
staff’s availability and task responsibility:

KEY PERSONNEL ROLE CURRENT WORKLOAD AVAILABILITY

Yvette Kirrin, PE Person-in-Charge 
Tasks 1-5

GCCOG Consultant Engineer (Up to 
24 hours per week), I-5 JPA (Up to 6 

hours per week)
20%

Vanessa Barrientos Project Manager 
Tasks 1-5

City of Santa Fe Springs On- Call: No 
current assignments

City of Downey, Measure S

San Pablo Ave Streetscape Phase 2

75%

Giovanna Berrocal
Public Outreach/

Social Media 
Task 3

City of Downey, Measure S

San Pablo Ave Streetscape Phase 2
90%

Bridget Bennecke Webmaster 
Task 2

City of Downey, Measure S

San Pablo Ave Streetscape Phase 2

President’s Plaza

80%



PAGE 5

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

B. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE FIRM

C. PROPOSED STAFFING

PROVEN RECORD OF MEETING SCHEDULES
Southstar is proud to showcase the depth of experience that has refined our skills and 
talents and will serve us well in delivering projects to the City of Santa Fe Springs. In 
section F, Client References, you will find full project profiles that illustrate our proven 
record of meetings schedules.

MEET OUR KEY STAFF
Southstar key team members, under the dual leadership of Ms. Yvette Kirrin, PE (PIC) 
and Ms Vanessa Barrientos (PM), have a clear understanding of the community needs and 
contractual responsibilities. Our team has 10+ years of local experience with the Cities of 
Santa Fe Springs, Downey, Norwalk, La Mirada and the GCCOG Cities. This experience, 
along with a hands-on approach, has been proven throughout the years and we are 
confident any questions can be solved by this highly experienced and innovative team.

Principal-in-Charge (PIC) - Yvette Kirrin, PE | Our proposed Principal-in-Charge, Ms. 
Yvette Kirrin, PE will be responsible for allocating the necessary resources per each task 
order. She will be responsible for the overall scope, cost, and schedule for this project.  
She offers over 29 years of experience in providing project and engineering services.  
She is currently completing technical oversight and program management services with 
the GCCOG, which includes 20+ cities and jurisdictions with an estimated total of over 
$1 billion in funds. Additional notable work includes her project management services 
during the I-5 JPA tenure.

Project Manager - Vanessa Barrientos, Bilingual | Our proposed Project Manager, 
Ms. Barrientos will be responsible for the day-to-day activities and deliverables for 
tasks under the scope of work. Her highest priority will be the residents, ensuring they 
are fully informed and have access to participate in the EIR phase. She has 15 years 
of experience working with a multitude of diverse communities, businesses, residents 
and municipalities, which means we can offer the City a public outreach lead with no 
“learning curve.” She is already familiar with proper communication protocols regarding 
the various communities and businesses within the surrounding area. 

Ms. Barrientos will be supported by Giovanna Berrocal, Public Outreach/Social Media/
Graphics and Bridget Bennecke, Webmaster/Graphics.

STATEMENT OF AVAILABILITY
All key personnel will be available for the extent proposed for the duration of the 
Professional Services Agreement and an acknowledgment that no person assigned to a 
project shall be removed or replaced without the prior written concurrence of the City. In 
the following page you will find our organizational chart.



PAGE 6

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

C. PROPOSED STAFFING

Project Manager

Vanessa Barrientos

Webmaster

Bridget Bennecke

Public Outreach/Social Media

Giovanna Berrocal

Community Liason Support

Daniela Hegedes

Principal-in-Charge

Yvette Kirrin, PE

Noe Negrete, PE

I-5 JPA

LEGEND

Key Personnel

Bilingual

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

KEY RESUMES

Ms. Kirrin has over 29 years of extensive civil engineering 
experience in design, construction and project management. 
Her experience includes freeways, roadways, streets, 
street lighting, drainage channels and structures for public 
and state agency projects. Yvette is an active member 
with the following organizations: American Society of Civil 
Engineers (ASCE), Institute of Transportation Engineers, 
Inc. (ITE), National Society of Professional Engineers, 
Project Management Institute (PMI), and the Women’s 
Transportation Coalition (WTC). Relevant projects include:

Gateway Cities Council of Governments (GCCOG) – Consulting Engineer | Like the 
I-5 JPA, Ms. Kirrin is completing technical oversight and program management services
to the GCCOG which includes 20+ Cities/Jurisdictions and over $1 billion in funds.  Ms.
Kirrin is responsible for protecting the interests of the Cities regarding how the funds
are allocated and spent, as well as responsible for communicating to the Public Works
offices, City Mangers and Elected officials the status on the projects.

Years of Experience
29

Years with Southstar
14

Education
B.S., Mechanical

Engineering, University of 
Florida, 1992

Registration
Professional Engineer 

CA Civil No. C57817

YVETTE KIRRIN, PE  
PERSON-IN-CHARGE (PIC) - KEY



PAGE 7

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

C. PROPOSED STAFFING
I-5 JPA Executive Director/Authority Engineer | Ms. Kirrin is the I-5 JPA Authority
Engineer/Executive Director, responsible for the I-5 Widening for nearly 14 miles of
freeway and local improvements.  Since 2007, Ms. Kirrin has reviewed various plans,
worked with the Cities of La Mirada, Norwalk, Downey, Santa Fe Springs and Commerce
to help protect and preserve the interests of the communities while partnering on an over
$1.6 billion in improvements.  Oversight has included PAED, PS&E, RW and Construction,
as 5 of the 6 funded segments are now in construction, which require close monitoring
and communication to the communities including public works, city managers and the
elected officials.

City of Santa Fe Springs, On-Call Professional Services Task Orders, Santa Fe 
Springs, CA | Ms. Kirrin was responsible for administering request for quotes, task 
orders, invoices, budgets, and staff availability.  She worked closely with the Noe Negrete 
and Robert Garcia on 30 task orders throughout the life of the contract. Task Orders 
include staff augmentation, construction management and inspections services and 
public outreach.

Fair Oaks Avenue/SR 110 Capacity Improvements Project, South Pasadena, CA | Ms. 
Kirrin served as Project Manager for Feasibility Study, PID, PA&ED and PS&E along a two-
mile segment of Fair Oaks Avenue, including the Fair Oaks/SR 110 Interchange, to provide 
capacity improvements. The technical scope of the project included Public Involvement, 
Traffic Analysis, Alternatives Evaluation, and the preparation of a PSR through PS&E.  
Coordination was required between the City, Caltrans, and the joint Design Advisory 
Groups (DAGs) from cradle to grave.

Vanessa Barrientos has 15 years of experience in developing 
and executing tailored public awareness campaigns for over 
$3.9 billion high-profile infrastructure projects with a cost 
effective approach by establishing goals, objectives and 
budgets. She encourages open conversation and facilitating 
the access of project information. Top priorities are safety 
and engaging the community in an open conversation and 
facilitating the access of project information. Provides full 
understanding of complex, sensitive use of taxpayer funds 
while mitigating incidents and questions from multi-level 
stakeholders.

City of Santa Fe Springs, On-Call Public Outreach 
Task Orders, Santa Fe Springs, CA  - Lead Community 
Outreach Coordinator | Ms. Barrientos has been providing 
public outreach services for various improvements projects 

throughout the City. Her responsibilities include as-needed tailored public awareness 
plans for improvement projects including, construction alerts, oral translation, writing 
translation, neighborhood meetings, meeting invites, attending construction meetings, 

VANESSA BARRIENTOS  
PROJECT MANAGER, BILINGUAL - KEY

Years of Experience
15

Years with Southstar
6

Education
B.S., Criminal Justice,

California State University, 
San Bernardino

Awards
APWA Coachella Valley 
Branch 2020 Project of 

Merit Awards for Traffic and 
Mobility

APWA Coachella Valley 
Branch 2020 Project of Merit 

Awards for Revitalization



PAGE 8

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

C. PROPOSED STAFFING
TMP planning meetings and door to door communication. She also assists in the review/
implementation of the Transportation Management Plans (TMPs) for the projects. She 
provides extensive coordination with multiple Resident Engineers (RE), Local Agencies 
(3), local Emergency Services, Joint Power Authority (JPA), School District Transportation, 
Transit Buses, Metro, Utility Agencies and local businesses. Task orders included:

• Joint Power Authority (JPA)
• I-5 Florence Avenue Interchange Project
• I-5 Florence Avenue Santa Fe High School Bus Coordination
• Florence Avenue Widening Project
• Florence Avenue Waterline
• I-5 Valley View Avenue Grade Separation Project
• Barkley and Parkmead Street Improvement Project

Caltrans District 7, I-5 South Segment from Orange County Line to I-605, Los 
Angeles County, CA - Lead Community Outreach Coordinator | Ms. Barrientos served 
as a Community Outreach Coordinator for this project as part of the Caltrans District 7 
On-call Public Awareness contract. Her responsibilities included executing an extensive 
community outreach plan for $2.3B in highway improvements including creating a website; 
event planning; and branding, designing, and distributing collateral material, corridor 
brochures, and construction notices. She provided extensive coordination with multiple 
Resident Engineers (RE), Local Agencies (11), local Emergency Services, Joint Power 
Authority (JPA), School District Transportation, Transit Buses, Metro, Metrolink, Utility 
Agencies, ROW and local businesses. Ms. Barrientos also assisted in the implementation 
of the Transportation Management Plans (TMPs) for the projects in construction.

City of Downey, Measure S Project, Downey, CA - Project Manager/Community 
Outreach Lead | Ms. Barrientos is serving as a Project Manager/Community Outreach 
Lead for Measure S. Measure S is a 1/2 percent transaction and use tax approved by 
63% of Downey voters in November 2016 and went into effect on April 1, 2017 to fund 
the Measure S Neighborhood Improvement Program. Measure S includes seven parks, 
four fire stations, Civic Center, and Library reconstruction and improvements. Her 
responsibilities include developing and executing a public awareness campaign that 
included the support/coordination with City staff, subconsultant, Construction Manager 
to inform the community about the projects. Public outreach tasks included a dedicated 
website, dedicated email, hotline, collateral material, presentation boards, construction 
notices, community meeting and team meetings. 

Giovanna Berrocal has over 5 years of experience designing 
and developing tailored branding and collateral materials 
for high-profile infrastructure projects, newspaper 
publications and nonprofit organizations.

GIOVANNA BERROCAL 
PUBLIC OUTREACH COORDINATOR/
SOCIAL MEDIA - KEY

Years of Experience
5

Years with Southstar
1.5

Education
BA Journalism & New Media, 
California Baptist University



PAGE 9

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

C. PROPOSED STAFFING
City of Santa Fe Springs, Florence Widening Project, 
Santa Fe Springs, CA - Public Outreach Coordinator/ 
Graphic Designer | Ms. Berrocal served as a public outreach 
coordinator and graphic designer during this project and 
was responsible for the development and branding of all 
collateral material after carefully reviewing staging plans 
and detour maps. Her responsibilities included producing 
the project logo, construction alerts, fact sheets in both 
English and Spanish, business cards, website banners, 
informational videos, and attending construction meetings.

City of Downey, Measure S Project, Downey, CA - Community Outreach Coordinator 
| Ms. Berrocal is serving as a Community Outreach Coordinator and graphic designer 
for this project that is improving the City’s parks and significant infrastructure. Her 
responsibilities include coordinating with staff and subconsultants to develop engaging 
and informational material. Ms. Berrocal edits the project website with updated content, 
designs all collateral material, presentation boards, construction notices, attends 
community meetings and maintains communication logs up to date.

Bridget Bennecke has designed and managed a number of 
municipal project websites for Southstar. She works with 
the site from start to live to maintenance.

City of Downey Measure S Project, Downey, CA - 
Webmaster | Ms. Bennecke rebuilt downeymeasure-s.
com to streamline ease of access for posting regular 
updates and relevant media for the project.

Sand Pablo Avenue Streetscape Phases 1 & 2 Project, Palm Desert, CA - Graphic 
Designer/Webmaster | Ms. Bennecke designed the project logo, built the project website 
visionsanpablo.com, and has maintained the site by posting construction notices and 
relevant media for use by the public. 

La Quinta Complete Streets Multi-Stage Project, LA Quinta, CA - Graphic Designer/
Webmaster | Ms. Bennecke designed the project logo, built the project website 
lqcompletestreets.com, and has maintained the site by posting construction notices and 
relevant media for use by the public.

Pearblossom Highway Rebuild Project, Palmdale, CA - Graphic Designer/Webmaster 
| Ms. Bennecke designed the project logo, built the project website pearblossomrebuild.
com, and has maintained the site by posting construction notices and relevant media for 
use by the public. 

BRIDGET BENNECKE 
WEBMASTER

Years of Experience
6

Years with Southstar
2

Education
B.S. Communication Design, 
California State University, 

Monterey Bay

Awards
APWA Coachella Valley 
Branch 2020 Project of 

Merit Awards for Traffic and 
Mobility

APWA Coachella Valley 
Branch 2020 Project of Merit 

Awards for Revitalization

http://downeymeasure-s.com 
http://downeymeasure-s.com 
http://visionsanpablo.com
http://lqcompletestreets.com
http://pearblossomrebuild.com
http://pearblossomrebuild.com


PAGE 10

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

D. CONSULTANTS
Southstar does not intend on using subconsultants.

E. WORK APPROACH
PURPOSE
The I-5 JPA along with Santa Fe Springs desires to augment Metro’s public outreach 
efforts and more importantly provide information specific to the residents of the I-5 JPA. 
This team will develop/execute a public awareness campaign that will serve as the road 
map for stakeholder information in support of the I-605 project.  It is intended to become 
a working document detailing new developments, tracking the progress, and ultimately 
serving as the primary resource to assist the City in successfully keeping the public 
informed about the Project, starting from the current phase and continuing if needed.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
This public awareness plan will help share project information, identify significant 
community issues the Metro team needs to address or include in the EIR, provide 
information to impacted communities, provide mechanisms for impacted communities 
to provide input to the City. Our priority will be to develop credibility within the impacted 
communities and avoid misunderstandings. The goal of community outreach is to build 
trust and secure public support for the Project. Specific objectives are to:

• Provide project information to stakeholders, local residents or those impacted by the
project through a consistent, two-way communications approach. Ensure that the
community understands the Project need and benefits

• Improve the understanding of specific stakeholder concerns
• Obtain stakeholder input
• Develop trust by reporting stakeholders comments to Metro

PROJECT OVERVIEW - BACKGROUND AND NEED
Interstate 605 (I-605) serves as one of the few major north-south interstate freeways in 
the greater Los Angeles Area of Southern California, running roughly 27 miles from the 
coast in Seal Beach, at its most southerly point, to the foothills in Irwindale/Duarte in the 
north. The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) is leading 
the I-605 Project and is currently under the Project Approval and Environmental Document 
(PA/ED) Phase. During this phase of development, environmental and technical studies 
have been undertaken, in addition to design reviews, to evaluate and determine proposed 
solutions or “project alternatives.” It is anticipated that the Metro Board will authorize the 
release of this document in late April 2021, at the earliest. 

Need |As the lead agency, Metro has conducted community and stakeholder meetings 
over the past four years to update the public. Below are the Public Scoping meetings held 
during the environmental phase on the Metro website:

October 24
October 26

Downey
October 27

SFS Norwalk

November 1
Industry

November 2
South El Monte

November 3
Whittier

February 6
Pico Rivera
February 7

Norwalk

February 8
Whittier

February 13
webinar

No meetings 
were held 

according to 
website.

No meetings 
were held 

according to 
website.

Public hearings 
are planned for 

2021.

2016 2018 2019 2020 2021



PAGE 11

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
PROJECT STAKEHOLDERS AND ANTICIPATED STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS
A significant portion of this project impacts the cities to the I-5 Consortium Cities Joint 
Powers Authority (I-5 JPA), in particular the cities of Downey, Norwalk and Santa Fe Springs 
have potential right-of-way impacts. The most significant right-of-way impacts center 
around the I-5/I-605 interchange improvements. These Cities are also geographically 
located in the Gateway Cities Council of Governments (GCCOG) subregion. 

In the world of social media, communities’ thoughts and concerns are a cellphone away. 
Our team has been following the project on Twitter, the accounts of Metro, City of Downey, 
City of Santa Fe Springs and notably HAPPY COALITION and STREETBLOGLA. As a result, 
the project stakeholders are vocal with their concerns about the project, just to name a 
few, as shown below:

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS AND I-JPA KEY MESSAGES
Successful outreach requires substantive, clear, and consistent messaging that accurately 
captures project priorities. Substance and clarity create transparency and ensure that 
stakeholders understand the project need, drivers, constraints, and benefits. It is our 
understanding that the messages are the following:

• Metro is the lead agency on the I605 Project
• The Cities of the I-5 JPA will provide information specific to the residents
• Easy to read project collateral material will be available to the residents.
• Public comments, questions, or concerns will be submitted to Metro

Our goal is to provide consistency to build trust by demonstrating honesty and reliability. 
Although the messages may change during the course of the project, the overall 
understanding of project purpose and need remains the same.

SCOPE OF WORK
The Southstar public outreach team has worked with a diverse range of municipalities, 
agencies, stakeholders, and communities within six counties in Southern California. We 
are proud of the work we have accomplished and always strive to build quality, trust-
based relationships with each of our clients.  In particular, Yvette Kirrin, proposed PIC 
and Vanessa Barrientos, proposed Project Manager, are currently working with I-5 JPA 
and the GCCOG. Ms Barrientos is working with the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Downey.  

Work Plan Approach | While it would seem practical to duplicate other successful public 
outreach programs we have delivered for other clients, Southstar does not believe in the 
“cookie-cutter” approach. We understand that the Cities have unique, diverse communities 
with varying needs, and require a public outreach program that is customized to fit the 

• No more lanes
• Don’t demolish homes
• Locally supportive alternative
• Technical committee should be 

developed

• New alternative plan has not been
presented to public

• We want a chance to ask questions
• Lower income residents of color call

burden of climate change, despite
health warnings, traffic studies, housing
Crisis. - Pollution



PAGE 12

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
community needs. This approach includes research, planning, strategic implementation, 
and thorough evaluation with measurable objectives; all with a personal, humanized 
approach. 

Strong communication is key to obtaining project information to benefit 
both the public and campaign. Our communication plan will correspond to 
the character of the project area’s community. Collateral materials will be 
developed to communicate efficiently to diverse stakeholders and ensure 
that methods of communication meet the needs of those individuals/groups. 

Due to our expensive experience, Ms. Barrientos has interpreted in Spanish, both oral 
and written within the two communities. Our research will also include gathering the 
project background, current status of the communities voice and stakeholders.

During the planning stage, will develop the public awareness campaign 
plan with the proposed schedule and needs. The plan will be a living 
document that will adjust according to the schedule and needs. In addition 
to the public outreach plan, Southstar will attend project relation meetings. 

Upon the approval of the public awareness campaign plan, Southstar 
will implement elements of the outreach plan as directed by the City. The 
implementation process will be primarily in the beginning of the project as 
it continues to develop collateral material and disseminate according to the 
schedule.

As the project moves forward, task elements of the outreach plan will be 
evaluated from different perspectives - the level of need and the value to 
the project. The current contract will provide services for four months, at 
which, the City will make the decision to extend the contract or cancel the 
contract based on the needs and Metro. Our monthly logs and reports will 

assist the City in making this decision.

TASKS AND DELIVERABLES
Let’s Communicate | In the world of transportation, things move swiftly and change 
often. Throughout the life of the project, Ms Barrientos will engage with residents by 
answering questions, concerns and provide related project information in addition to an 
understanding of the project impacts. Below is our approach to the Scope of Work which 
will become our public awareness campaign.

TASK 1:  HOTLINE 
- HOW CAN WE 
HELP YOU?

The purpose of a helpline call 
center is to field incoming 
calls from residents, business 
owners, the offices of elected 
officials and other branches of 
government and assist them with 

PLANNING

RESEARCH

IMPLEMENTATION

EVALUATION

TASK 1 - HOTLINE EXPERIENCE
Setup a dedicated 800 hotline Within 6 counties

English and Spanish languages Bilingual
7 Days a Week at all hours of day Over 40 lines

The calls must be answered and responded 
to the same day or next day at the latest Over 40 lines

Telephone hotline must be established 
within 3 days of contract execution at the 

latest

COMPLETE Cost 
Benefit

Communication Logs Over 40 lines



PAGE 13

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
latest closure and project information is important to provide assistance with questions, 
concerns and act as a liaison between the residents and Metro. Deliverable | The hotline 
877-340-9990 is being used and the hotline process/system has been proven with the
residents of the City of Santa Fe Springs on their Capital Improvement Projects and
Caltrans I-5 projects.

TASK 2:  WEBSITE -  INTUITIVE AND EASY TO NAVIGATE
The internet is an 
essential marketing 

and communication tool for 
every project. A website is not 
just a website; it is a tool to help 
communicate our project goals to 
your online audience in order to 
inform the community. Throughout 
our experience, our dedicated 
project websites are visually 
appealing, have a unified look and 
feel, and provide easy navigation 
throughout. Integrating with 
social media, and incorporating 
interactive features adaptable to smartphones and tablets will be valuable. Deliverable | 
Our team has delivered similar scope of services and within the same times in developing 
a dedicated website and email address. We have developed the dedicated email info@
santafespringsPW.org for the Cities CIP and Caltrans I-5 coordination.

TASK 2 - WEBSITE AND EMAIL EXPERIENCE
Develop a Dedicated Website Within 6 counties
Frequently Asked Questions Over 40 Projects

Link to the Metro and JPA Cities Caltrans I-5
Bilingual (English/Spanish) Bilingual Staff

List the hotline/email address Over 40 Projects
Website must be developed within 7 days Over 5 projects

Develop Dedicated Email Within 6 counties
Same day or next day response Over 40 projects
Copy I-5 JPA Technical Advisor 

Committee Chairperson and the I-5 JPA 
Authority Engineer

Caltrans I-5

TASK 3:  SOCIAL MEDIA -  WHAT ARE THEY SAYING?
We live in a world 
that demands instant 

gratification when it comes to news, 
hence the popularity of Social Media 
and “virtual” venues (blogs, chat 
rooms, discussion boards, etc.). 
Social Media plays an integral role 
in all public outreach programs our 
team delivers. It is the quickest, most cost-effective outreach tactic in the industry.  Social 
media allows us to reach a vast amount of people in the community, it allows us to read 
their thoughts, concerns, identify online audiences, ensure informed communities, and 
allow for relationship management. This is a world of the digital age. Coupling social 
media with traditional methods of public outreach will help our team deliver a successful, 
measurable public outreach/involvement program to JPA. Deliverables | Our team is 
currently managing HAPPY COALITION and STREETBLOGLA on social media, most 
recently on February 24 during the GCCOG Board meeting and Metro’s presentation. We 
will continue to monitor these accounts, the Cities’ accounts including new articles. In 
addition to monitoring, we will monitor Metro’s accounts and provide the same content for 
the Cities to post on their social media sites.

TASK 3 - SOCIAL MEDIA EXPERIENCE
Develop and share project content to 
be shared with the I-5 JPA cities and 
their various social media platforms

Within 6 counties, 
including Santa Fe 

Springs

Management of a social media 
presence to ensure consistent 

messaging and relevant content

Currently managing 
social media 
accounts that 

discuss the project

mailto:info@santafespringsPW.org
mailto:info@santafespringsPW.org


PAGE 14

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
TASK 4:  I-5 JPA -  LET’S CONTINUE TO WORK TOGETHER FOR 
THE COMMUNITIES
The I-5 Consortium Cities Joint 

Powers Authority (I-5 JPA) was created in 
1990 to protect the Cities and their residents. 
It includes the Cities of La Mirada, Downey, 
Norwalk, Santa Fe Springs, and Commerce. 
The I-5 JPA mission is to increase capacity 
and improve safety and efficiency of the I-5 by working with transportation authorities 
to design I-5 corridor improvements that will not cause economic and social disruption 
within our communities.  Deliverables | Our PIC and PM have been attending and 
presenting updates to the JPA for over 14 years (combined). Ms. Barrientos has attended 
on behalf of Caltrans I-5 Corridor Projects and on behalf of the City of Santa Fe Springs 
PIO. The relationship and understanding of the JPA along with the City contacts has been 
established. No learning curve.

TASK 5:  DELIVERABLES -  ALL DELIVERABLES HAVE BEEN 
PRESENTED WITHIN EACH TASK ABOVE
Below are examples from our experience and our research.

TASK 4 - JPA EXPERIENCE
I-5 JPA Policy Board attendance

and monthly update
Attended for over 

10 years
Attend two Council meetings 
each for the cities of Downey 

and Santa Fe Springs

Presented on 
project for both 

Cities

Proposed Website Domains

i605cities.com | i605corridorcities.org | myi605.com | info605.com

Report - Communication Log Hotline - Process and System

Website Tab - Contact UsDedicated Website



PAGE 15

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH

Videos - Watch and Learn in <60 Seconds

Sign-Up - Send a Text to Receive 
Information

Contact Card

Social Media Calendar Monitor Social Media



PAGE 16

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

F. CLIENT REFERENCES

Ms. Barrientos has been providing public outreach 
services for various improvements projects 
throughout the City. Projects include interchanges, 
roadway and waterline improvements. 

Below you will find a list of Task Orders for Public 
Outreach Services:

• Joint Power Authority (JPA)

• I-5 Florence Avenue Interchange Project

• I-5 Florence Avenue Santa Fe High School Bus
Coordination

• Florence Avenue Widening Project

• Florence Avenue Waterline

• I-5 Valley View Avenue Grade Separation Project

• Barkley and Parkmead Street Improvement
Project

LOCATION
Santa Fe Springs, CA

PROJECT COMPLETION
On-Going

REFERENCE
City of Santa Fe Springs

Noe Negrete, Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer

11710 Telegraph Rd,  
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

562.455.5680

noenegrete@santafesprings.org

KEY PERSONNEL INVOLVED 
• Yvette Kirrin
• Vanessa Barrientos
• Giovanna Berrocal

877-340-9990 info@SantafespringsPW.orgsantafesprings.org CityofSFS

HOJA INFORMATIVA
SOBRE EL PROYECTOLa ciudad se complace en informarle sobre el Proyecto de Ampliación de la avenida Florence Avenue en asociación con Metro y usando sus fondos de Medida R. Los límites del proyecto son de la calle Orr & Day hasta el bulevar Pioneer. El objetivo principal del proyecto es acomodar aproximadamente media milla de tres carriles en dirección oeste y este en la avenida Florence entre la calle Orr y Day hasta bulevar Pioneer. La ampliación se logrará reduciendo el camino existente al frente y centro de islas medianas. El proyecto consiste en la eliminación y reemplazo de existentes árboles frontales medianos, construcción de una nueva bioswale mediana ajardinada, la eliminación de la superficie del pavimento de concreto asfáltico existente y la colocación de nuevas pavimento de hormigón asfáltico. Además, el proyecto incluye la eliminación y reemplazo de bordillos dañados y canaletas, aceras, rampas de bordillo, almohadillas para autobuses, reubicación de cuencas de captura e instalación de cubiertas para pantallas de aguas pluviales. Por último, se instalará una nueva señal de tráfico en avenida Ringwood / Lake Center Park Lane,  facilitará el giro del automóvil movimientos y acceso peatonal.

   W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C T      C ITY  OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

LÍMITESAvenida Florence entre la calle Orr & Day y el bulevar Pioneer

ESTE LISTO E INFORMADO.

Le agradecemos de antemano su comprensión y cooperación. Nuestro equipo espera con ansias la finalización exitosa de este proyecto tan importante.Si tiene alguna pregunta durante la construcción, llame al Sr. Mark Guillen, Inspector de Obras Públicas, al (909) 322-1014 o al Sr. Robert García, Gerente de Proyecto, al (562) 409-7545.

Este mapa ilustra los límites del proyecto en avenida de Florence.

Church

St Pius X Parish School

Lake Center Athletic Park Mobil ChurchCuidad de Santa Fe Springs Mapa no a escala.

LeyendaZona de ConstrucciónMetro 120/ Norwalk tránsito - parada cerradaEntradas abiertasSeñales de tráf coi

Future

Proyecto deCaltrans I-5/AvenidaFlorence Quinn StMuller StBuell St

Calle Principal Calle Principal

CALENDARIO:13 de abril de 2020 - octubre de 2020FONDOS:Metro Medida R CONTRATISTA:Hardy & HarperCITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS ON-CALL SERVICES



PAGE 17

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

F. CLIENT REFERENCES

CITY OF DOWNEY ON-CALL OUTREACH SERVICES
Southstar has been providing public outreach 
services for the  Measure S projects - Neighborhood 
Improvement Program, a 1/2 percent transactions 
and use tax approved by 63% of Downey voters in 
November. Measure S includes, seven parks, four 
fire stations, Civic Center, and Library reconstruction 
and improvements. Our responsibilities include 
developing and executing a public awareness 
campaign that included the support/coordination 
with City staff, subconsultant, Construction Manager 
to inform the community about the projects. Public 
outreach tasks included a dedicated website, 
dedicated email, hotline, collateral material, 
presentation boards, construction notices, 
community meeting and team meetings.

LOCATION
City of Downey, CA

PROJECT COMPLETION
On-Going (May 2021)

REFERENCE
City of Downey

Mr. John Oskoui, P.E.

Assistant City Manager

11111 Brookshire Ave 
Downey, CA 90241

562.904.7284

jOskoui@downeyca.org

KEY PERSONNEL INVOLVED 
• Yvette Kirrin
• Vanessa Barrientos
• Giovanna Berrocal
• Bridget Bennecke

  

Dennis the Menace Park

Grand Re-opening: 
February 8, 2020

August 2019 & September 2019



PAGE 18

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

F. CLIENT REFERENCES

GATEWAY CITIES COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, (GCCOG)  
AS-NEEDED

The Southstar team, Ms. Barrientos and Ms. 
Berrocal have been providing support services 
for the complete street master plan projects. 
Ms. Kirrin is completing technical oversight and 
program management services to the GCCOG 
which includes 20+ Cities/ Jurisdictions and over 
$1 billion in funds. Ms. Kirrin is responsible for 
protecting the interests of the Cities regarding 
how the funds are allocated and spent, as well 
as responsible for communicating to the Public 
Works offices, City Mangers and Elected officials 
the status on the projects

Corridor Complete Street Master Plans Studies

• Lakewood Rosemead Boulevard Complete
Street Master Plan

• Artesia Boulevard Complete Street Master Plan
• Atlantic Boulevard/Avenue Complete Street Master Plan
• Florence Avenue Complete Street Master Plan Strategic Transportation Plan (STP)

LOCATION
20+ Cities/ Jurisdictions within Los 
Angeles County

PROJECT COMPLETION
On-Going, As-Needed

REFERENCE
Nancy Pfeffer

GCCOG, Director

16401 Paramount Blvd, 
Paramount, CA 90723

nancy@gatewaycog.org

KEY PERSONNEL INVOLVED 
• Yvette Kirrin
• Vanessa Barrientos
• Giovanna Berrocal

G. RIGHTS TO MATERIALS
All responses, inquiries, and correspondence relating to this RFP and all reports, charts, 
displays, schedules, exhibits, and other documentation produced by the Consultant that 
are submitted as part of the RFP and not withdrawn shall, upon receipt by City, become 
property of City.



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 



PAGE 19

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

H. FEE SCHEDULE



1 
10998-0001\2522897v1.doc 

COST-SHARING AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AMONG 
THE CITIES OF LA MIRADA, SANTA FE SPRINGS, DOWNEY, NORWALK, AND 

COMMERCE 
 
  

 
This COST-SHARING AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made  

by and among the City of La Mirada (La Mirada), City of Santa Fe Springs (Santa Fe Springs), City 
of Downey (Downey), City of Norwalk (Norwalk), and City of Commerce (Commerce), each a 
California municipal corporation, for the cost-sharing and reimbursement of costs in connection with 
the procurement of  consulting services. In this Agreement, La Mirada, Santa Fe Springs, Downey, 
Norwalk, and Commerce are referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “the Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. The Parties are each members of the Interstate 5 Consortium Cities, a California joint powers 

authority (“I-5 JPA”). 

B. The Parties desire to engage a firm to provide public outreach services, on behalf of the I-5 
JPA (“Services”).  Santa Fe Springs has agreed to procure a qualified consulting firm 
(“Consultant”) for the Services, and enter into a contract with the Consultant (“Consultant 
Contract”), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

C. The Parties have agreed to equally share the costs of the Consultant, whose Services will 
benefit the Parties as provided in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Parties 
mutually agree to the following: 
 
1. Recitals. The Recitals stated above are true and correct and are incorporated by this reference 

into this Agreement. 
 

2. Consultant Contract. Santa Fe Springs will procure the Services of the Consultant, in 
compliance with the standard procedures and requirements applicable to the procurement of 
professional services by Santa Fe Springs.  The specific Services to be performed by the 
Consultant shall be in accordance with a detailed scope of work substantially similar to the 
scope of work set forth in Exhibit A.  Aside from the Services, and subject to the terms of 
this Agreement, the other terms of the Consultant Contract shall be at Santa Fe Springs’ sole 
discretion.  Santa Fe Springs will oversee and manage the provision of Services by the 
selected Consultant. 
 

3. Consultant Services Report and Consultant Work Product.  Santa Fe Springs shall provide a 
monthly report, or cause the Consultant to provide a monthly report, detailing the 
Consultant’s progress to the I-5 JPA.  Santa Fe Springs shall share any work product 
developed by the Consultant, or cause the Consultant to share such work product, with the I-
5 JPA. 
 



2 
10998-0001\2522897v1.doc 

  
4. Reimbursement Procedure.  Each Party shall be responsible for a pro-rata share of twenty 

percent (20%) of the total costs due under the Consultant Contract.  The total cost of the 
Consultant Contract shall not exceed Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars ($35,000.00).   Upon 
receipt of the final invoice under the Consultant Contract, Santa Fe Springs shall prepare 
and submit an invoice to each of the Parties for the Party’s pro-rata share of the costs 
incurred under the Consultant Agreement.  Payment of invoice is due to Santa Fe Springs 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice.   
 

5. Amendment to Consultant Contract.  Any amendment to the Consultant Contract that 
increases the costs of the Consultant Contract by Five Thousand Dollars ($5000.00) or more, 
or that causes the cost of the Consultant Contract to exceed Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($35,000.00) requires the advance written approval of the Parties. 
 

6. Term. The term of this Agreement will commence on the date executed by all Parties and 
terminate upon the later of the termination of the Consultant Contract or the payment of all 
amounts due to Santa Fe Springs by the Parties under this Agreement.   
 

7. Indemnity.  Each Party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the other Parties and their 
respective officers, employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all claims, 
demands, liability, damages, costs and expenses, resulting from or arising in connection with 
the indemnifying Party’s sole negligence or misconduct.  This section shall survive 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

8. Amendment and Waiver.  No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
the same is in writing and signed by all Parties, and no verbal understanding or agreement 
not incorporated herein shall be binding on any Party hereto.      

 
9. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of 

California, and any suit or action initiated by any Party shall be brought in the Superior Court 
of Los Angeles County.  

 
10. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for every provision hereof in which time is a factor. 
 
11. Benefit of Parties. The terms of this Agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of 

the Parties hereto and their successors and assigns.  No Party shall assign this Agreement or 
any portion thereof to a third party without the prior written consent of all of the other Parties.  
Any unauthorized assignment by one Party shall give any or all of the other Parties the right 
to automatically and immediately terminate this Agreement with respect to the Party making 
the unauthorized assignment without advance notice.   

 
12. Entire Agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement supersedes any and all agreements, either 

oral or written, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and 
contains all of the representations, covenants, and agreements between the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  

 



3 
10998-0001\2522897v1.doc 

13. Independent Counsel. Each Party has had the opportunity to consult with its own attorney 
with respect to this Agreement, and in the event that any language contained herein is 
construed to be vague or ambiguous, this Agreement shall not be strictly construed against 
any Party.  

 
14. Notice.  Notice given under or regarding this Agreement shall be deemed given upon delivery 

into the United States Mail if delivery is by postage paid certified mail (return receipt 
requested), or reputable overnight commercial delivery service. Notice shall be sent to the 
respective Party at the address indicated below or to any other address as a Party may 
designate from time to time by a notice given in accordance with this paragraph.  
 
If to City of Santa Fe Springs:  
Raymond R. Cruz 
11710 E. Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
562-868-0511 
 
If to City of La Mirada:  
Jeff Boynton 
13700 La Mirada Blvd. 
La Mirada, CA 90638 
(562) 943-0131 

 
If to City of Downey:  
Gilbert A. Livas 
11111 Brookshire Ave. 
Downey, CA 90241 
(562) 904-7284 
 
If to City of Norwalk:    
Jesus M. Gomez 
12700 Norwalk Blvd. 
Norwalk, CA 90650 
(562) 929-5700 
 
If to City of Commerce:   
Edgar P. Cisneros 
2535 Commerce Way 
Commerce, CA 90040 
(323) 722-4805 
 
 
 
 



4 
10998-0001\2522897v1.doc 

15. Invalid Provision. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed 
in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted. 

 
16. Headings and Captions. The headings and captions used in this Agreement are for 

convenience only and shall in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of the 
Agreement or any part thereof. 

 
17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, each of which is 

deemed to be an original for all purposes. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement below. 
 
 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
       Raymond R. Cruz, City Manager 
 
Approved as to form City Attorney: 
 
By: _____________________________________  
       ___________________ 
 
City of La Mirada 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Boynton, City Manager 
 
Approved as to form by City Attorney: 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       ____________________ 
 
 
City of Downey 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
       Gilbert A. Livas, City Manager 
 
Approved as to form by City Attorney: 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       ____________________ 
 
 
 
 



5 
10998-0001\2522897v1.doc 

City of Commerce 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       Edgar P. Cisneros, City Manager 
 
Approved as to form by City Attorney: 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
       _______________________________ 
  
City of Norwalk 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       Jesus M. Gomez, City Manager 
 
Approved as to form by City Attorney: 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
       _______________________________ 
  

 
  



6 
10998-0001\2522897v1.doc 

EXHIBIT A 
CONSULTANT SCOPE OF WORK 



PAGE 10

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

D. CONSULTANTS
Southstar does not intend on using subconsultants.

E. WORK APPROACH
PURPOSE
The I-5 JPA along with Santa Fe Springs desires to augment Metro’s public outreach 
efforts and more importantly provide information specific to the residents of the I-5 JPA. 
This team will develop/execute a public awareness campaign that will serve as the road 
map for stakeholder information in support of the I-605 project.  It is intended to become 
a working document detailing new developments, tracking the progress, and ultimately 
serving as the primary resource to assist the City in successfully keeping the public 
informed about the Project, starting from the current phase and continuing if needed.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
This public awareness plan will help share project information, identify significant 
community issues the Metro team needs to address or include in the EIR, provide 
information to impacted communities, provide mechanisms for impacted communities 
to provide input to the City. Our priority will be to develop credibility within the impacted 
communities and avoid misunderstandings. The goal of community outreach is to build 
trust and secure public support for the Project. Specific objectives are to:

• Provide project information to stakeholders, local residents or those impacted by the
project through a consistent, two-way communications approach. Ensure that the
community understands the Project need and benefits

• Improve the understanding of specific stakeholder concerns
• Obtain stakeholder input
• Develop trust by reporting stakeholders comments to Metro

PROJECT OVERVIEW - BACKGROUND AND NEED
Interstate 605 (I-605) serves as one of the few major north-south interstate freeways in 
the greater Los Angeles Area of Southern California, running roughly 27 miles from the 
coast in Seal Beach, at its most southerly point, to the foothills in Irwindale/Duarte in the 
north. The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) is leading 
the I-605 Project and is currently under the Project Approval and Environmental Document 
(PA/ED) Phase. During this phase of development, environmental and technical studies 
have been undertaken, in addition to design reviews, to evaluate and determine proposed 
solutions or “project alternatives.” It is anticipated that the Metro Board will authorize the 
release of this document in late April 2021, at the earliest. 

Need |As the lead agency, Metro has conducted community and stakeholder meetings 
over the past four years to update the public. Below are the Public Scoping meetings held 
during the environmental phase on the Metro website:

October 24
October 26

Downey
October 27

SFS Norwalk

November 1
Industry

November 2
South El Monte

November 3
Whittier

February 6
Pico Rivera
February 7

Norwalk

February 8
Whittier

February 13
webinar

No meetings 
were held 

according to 
website.

No meetings 
were held 

according to 
website.

Public hearings 
are planned for 

2021.

2016 2018 2019 2020 2021



PAGE 11

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
PROJECT STAKEHOLDERS AND ANTICIPATED STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS
A significant portion of this project impacts the cities to the I-5 Consortium Cities Joint 
Powers Authority (I-5 JPA), in particular the cities of Downey, Norwalk and Santa Fe Springs 
have potential right-of-way impacts. The most significant right-of-way impacts center 
around the I-5/I-605 interchange improvements. These Cities are also geographically 
located in the Gateway Cities Council of Governments (GCCOG) subregion. 

In the world of social media, communities’ thoughts and concerns are a cellphone away. 
Our team has been following the project on Twitter, the accounts of Metro, City of Downey, 
City of Santa Fe Springs and notably HAPPY COALITION and STREETBLOGLA. As a result, 
the project stakeholders are vocal with their concerns about the project, just to name a 
few, as shown below:

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS AND I-JPA KEY MESSAGES
Successful outreach requires substantive, clear, and consistent messaging that accurately 
captures project priorities. Substance and clarity create transparency and ensure that 
stakeholders understand the project need, drivers, constraints, and benefits. It is our 
understanding that the messages are the following:

• Metro is the lead agency on the I605 Project
• The Cities of the I-5 JPA will provide information specific to the residents
• Easy to read project collateral material will be available to the residents.
• Public comments, questions, or concerns will be submitted to Metro

Our goal is to provide consistency to build trust by demonstrating honesty and reliability. 
Although the messages may change during the course of the project, the overall 
understanding of project purpose and need remains the same.

SCOPE OF WORK
The Southstar public outreach team has worked with a diverse range of municipalities, 
agencies, stakeholders, and communities within six counties in Southern California. We 
are proud of the work we have accomplished and always strive to build quality, trust-
based relationships with each of our clients.  In particular, Yvette Kirrin, proposed PIC 
and Vanessa Barrientos, proposed Project Manager, are currently working with I-5 JPA 
and the GCCOG. Ms Barrientos is working with the Cities of Santa Fe Springs and Downey.  

Work Plan Approach | While it would seem practical to duplicate other successful public 
outreach programs we have delivered for other clients, Southstar does not believe in the 
“cookie-cutter” approach. We understand that the Cities have unique, diverse communities 
with varying needs, and require a public outreach program that is customized to fit the 

• No more lanes
• Don’t demolish homes
• Locally supportive alternative
• Technical committee should be 

developed

• New alternative plan has not been
presented to public

• We want a chance to ask questions
• Lower income residents of color call

burden of climate change, despite
health warnings, traffic studies, housing
Crisis. - Pollution



PAGE 12

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
community needs. This approach includes research, planning, strategic implementation, 
and thorough evaluation with measurable objectives; all with a personal, humanized 
approach. 

Strong communication is key to obtaining project information to benefit 
both the public and campaign. Our communication plan will correspond to 
the character of the project area’s community. Collateral materials will be 
developed to communicate efficiently to diverse stakeholders and ensure 
that methods of communication meet the needs of those individuals/groups. 

Due to our expensive experience, Ms. Barrientos has interpreted in Spanish, both oral 
and written within the two communities. Our research will also include gathering the 
project background, current status of the communities voice and stakeholders.

During the planning stage, will develop the public awareness campaign 
plan with the proposed schedule and needs. The plan will be a living 
document that will adjust according to the schedule and needs. In addition 
to the public outreach plan, Southstar will attend project relation meetings. 

Upon the approval of the public awareness campaign plan, Southstar 
will implement elements of the outreach plan as directed by the City. The 
implementation process will be primarily in the beginning of the project as 
it continues to develop collateral material and disseminate according to the 
schedule.

As the project moves forward, task elements of the outreach plan will be 
evaluated from different perspectives - the level of need and the value to 
the project. The current contract will provide services for four months, at 
which, the City will make the decision to extend the contract or cancel the 
contract based on the needs and Metro. Our monthly logs and reports will 

assist the City in making this decision.

TASKS AND DELIVERABLES
Let’s Communicate | In the world of transportation, things move swiftly and change 
often. Throughout the life of the project, Ms Barrientos will engage with residents by 
answering questions, concerns and provide related project information in addition to an 
understanding of the project impacts. Below is our approach to the Scope of Work which 
will become our public awareness campaign.

TASK 1:  HOTLINE 
- HOW CAN WE 
HELP YOU?

The purpose of a helpline call 
center is to field incoming 
calls from residents, business 
owners, the offices of elected 
officials and other branches of 
government and assist them with 

PLANNING

RESEARCH

IMPLEMENTATION

EVALUATION

TASK 1 - HOTLINE EXPERIENCE
Setup a dedicated 800 hotline Within 6 counties

English and Spanish languages Bilingual
7 Days a Week at all hours of day Over 40 lines

The calls must be answered and responded 
to the same day or next day at the latest Over 40 lines

Telephone hotline must be established 
within 3 days of contract execution at the 

latest

COMPLETE Cost 
Benefit

Communication Logs Over 40 lines



PAGE 13

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
latest closure and project information is important to provide assistance with questions, 
concerns and act as a liaison between the residents and Metro. Deliverable | The hotline 
877-340-9990 is being used and the hotline process/system has been proven with the
residents of the City of Santa Fe Springs on their Capital Improvement Projects and
Caltrans I-5 projects.

TASK 2:  WEBSITE -  INTUITIVE AND EASY TO NAVIGATE
The internet is an 
essential marketing 

and communication tool for 
every project. A website is not 
just a website; it is a tool to help 
communicate our project goals to 
your online audience in order to 
inform the community. Throughout 
our experience, our dedicated 
project websites are visually 
appealing, have a unified look and 
feel, and provide easy navigation 
throughout. Integrating with 
social media, and incorporating 
interactive features adaptable to smartphones and tablets will be valuable. Deliverable | 
Our team has delivered similar scope of services and within the same times in developing 
a dedicated website and email address. We have developed the dedicated email info@
santafespringsPW.org for the Cities CIP and Caltrans I-5 coordination.

TASK 2 - WEBSITE AND EMAIL EXPERIENCE
Develop a Dedicated Website Within 6 counties
Frequently Asked Questions Over 40 Projects

Link to the Metro and JPA Cities Caltrans I-5
Bilingual (English/Spanish) Bilingual Staff

List the hotline/email address Over 40 Projects
Website must be developed within 7 days Over 5 projects

Develop Dedicated Email Within 6 counties
Same day or next day response Over 40 projects
Copy I-5 JPA Technical Advisor 

Committee Chairperson and the I-5 JPA 
Authority Engineer

Caltrans I-5

TASK 3:  SOCIAL MEDIA -  WHAT ARE THEY SAYING?
We live in a world 
that demands instant 

gratification when it comes to news, 
hence the popularity of Social Media 
and “virtual” venues (blogs, chat 
rooms, discussion boards, etc.). 
Social Media plays an integral role 
in all public outreach programs our 
team delivers. It is the quickest, most cost-effective outreach tactic in the industry.  Social 
media allows us to reach a vast amount of people in the community, it allows us to read 
their thoughts, concerns, identify online audiences, ensure informed communities, and 
allow for relationship management. This is a world of the digital age. Coupling social 
media with traditional methods of public outreach will help our team deliver a successful, 
measurable public outreach/involvement program to JPA. Deliverables | Our team is 
currently managing HAPPY COALITION and STREETBLOGLA on social media, most 
recently on February 24 during the GCCOG Board meeting and Metro’s presentation. We 
will continue to monitor these accounts, the Cities’ accounts including new articles. In 
addition to monitoring, we will monitor Metro’s accounts and provide the same content for 
the Cities to post on their social media sites.

TASK 3 - SOCIAL MEDIA EXPERIENCE
Develop and share project content to 
be shared with the I-5 JPA cities and 
their various social media platforms

Within 6 counties, 
including Santa Fe 

Springs

Management of a social media 
presence to ensure consistent 

messaging and relevant content

Currently managing 
social media 
accounts that 

discuss the project

mailto:info@santafespringsPW.org
mailto:info@santafespringsPW.org


PAGE 14

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH
TASK 4:  I-5 JPA -  LET’S CONTINUE TO WORK TOGETHER FOR 
THE COMMUNITIES
The I-5 Consortium Cities Joint 

Powers Authority (I-5 JPA) was created in 
1990 to protect the Cities and their residents. 
It includes the Cities of La Mirada, Downey, 
Norwalk, Santa Fe Springs, and Commerce. 
The I-5 JPA mission is to increase capacity 
and improve safety and efficiency of the I-5 by working with transportation authorities 
to design I-5 corridor improvements that will not cause economic and social disruption 
within our communities.  Deliverables | Our PIC and PM have been attending and 
presenting updates to the JPA for over 14 years (combined). Ms. Barrientos has attended 
on behalf of Caltrans I-5 Corridor Projects and on behalf of the City of Santa Fe Springs 
PIO. The relationship and understanding of the JPA along with the City contacts has been 
established. No learning curve.

TASK 5:  DELIVERABLES -  ALL DELIVERABLES HAVE BEEN 
PRESENTED WITHIN EACH TASK ABOVE
Below are examples from our experience and our research.

TASK 4 - JPA EXPERIENCE
I-5 JPA Policy Board attendance

and monthly update
Attended for over 

10 years
Attend two Council meetings 
each for the cities of Downey 

and Santa Fe Springs

Presented on 
project for both 

Cities

Proposed Website Domains

i605cities.com | i605corridorcities.org | myi605.com | info605.com

Report - Communication Log Hotline - Process and System

Website Tab - Contact UsDedicated Website



PAGE 15

SANTA FE SPRINGS I-605 EIR PUBLIC OUTRE ACH PROPOSAL

E. WORK APPROACH

Videos - Watch and Learn in <60 Seconds

Sign-Up - Send a Text to Receive 
Information

Contact Card

Social Media Calendar Monitor Social Media



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

NEW BUSINESS 
Purchase of Holiday Decorations for City Street Light Poles 
 
 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
Every Holiday season staff installs Holiday Decorations on City Street Light Poles. 
These decorations are installed on street light poles on: 

STREET FROM TO 
Florence Ave. Orr and Day Rd. Pioneer Blvd. 
Orr and Day Rd. Florence Ave. Los Nietos Rd.  
Telegraph Rd. I-605 Bloomfield Ave. 
Pioneer Blvd. Telegraph Rd. Florence Ave.  
Telegraph Rd. Painter Ave. Carmenita Rd.  
Carmenita Rd. Telegraph Rd. Florence Ave.  

The current Holiday Decorations have been used for the past 20 years.   The 
Decorations have exceeded their intended life span of 10 years. Staff invests 
approximately $7,000 annually to make decorations presentable due to the existing 
condition of the decorations.  Staff recommends purchasing new Decorations to 
replace the current decorations.  The replacement cost includes upgrading to LED 
lighting, new wiring, new installation brackets, and new mounting brackets. Staff 
recommends replacing all 120 Holiday decorations for the street light poles. 

Normally, we would present this item in the budget for the upcoming fiscal year, 
however, due to the lead-time required from the Vendor to process the order, it is 
necessary to place the order by the end of May 2021, in order to have the decorations 
available for installation this 2021 Holiday Season. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total estimated cost to purchase Holiday Decorations for City Street Light Poles 
from Display Sales is $74,755.16.  Appropriate $74,755.16 from the General Fund 
reserves to a 900 account, since, this is a one-time expense. 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
The Holiday Decorations will be brighter and more presentable during the Holiday 
Season.  

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Three Quotes to purchase Holiday Decorations 
Attachment No. 2:  Sample Holiday Decoration from Display Sales 

RECOMMENDATION 
• Issue a Purchase Order to Display Sales of Bloomington, MN in the amount of

$74,755.16;
• Appropriate $74,755.16 from the General Fund Reserve to a 9000 account; and
• Authorize the Director of Purchasing to execute the Purchase Order.

ITEM NO. 15











VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
Display Sales



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

NEW BUSINESS 
Custodial Services - Amendment Number Five to Approve Daily Disinfectant Fogging 
at City Facilities 

 
 

 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council, at their meeting of March 2, 2021, requested that staff request a 
quote from the custodial services vendor to provide for daily spray disinfectant 
(fogging) at City Facilities. The request was made due to the ongoing concerns 
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. EE Building Maintenance (EEBM) sprayed various 
City facilities to test the effects of spraying disinfectant daily. One main observation is 
that the disinfectant does cause paper materials laying on desks or tables to curve at 
the edge. Therefore, some facilities and/or departments have declined to have their 
offices sprayed with disinfectant. Furthermore, they have decided to have individual 
employees’ disinfect their offices/workspaces. The following locations will be sprayed 
with disinfectant:  

1. Activity Center Offices
2. Clarke Estate Offices
3. City Hall (except Planning and Engineering)
4. Betty Wilson Center Offices
5. Library
6. Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center Offices
7. Heritage Park Ranger Station
8. Municipal Services Yard Offices

The fogging will be performed daily after-hours from Monday through Thursday.  The 
monthly fee to perform fogging services is $3,679.60.  The fogging services will start 
effective May 1, 2021. 

LEGAL REVIEW  
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed Amendment Number Five. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for fogging services is not included in the current operation and maintenance 
budget for Public Works.  The approximate $7,360 for the two months can be absorbed 
into our current budget.  The proposed monthly increase of $3,679.60 will be 
accounted for in the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Public Works budget.   

RECOMMENDATION 
• Approve Contract Amendment Number Five with EE Building Maintenance to add 

daily spray disinfectant fogging at City Facilities; and
• Authorize the Mayor to execute Contract Amendment Number Five.

ITEM NO. 16



Custodial Services Maintenance - 
Amendment Number Five Page 2 of 2 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
Fogging will aid in the daily disinfecting and cleaning of City facilities. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Amendment No. 5 
Attachment No. 2:  Quote from EEBM 



JOHN M. MORA, MAYOR ♦ ANNETTE RODRIGUEZ, MAYOR PRO TEM 
CITY COUNCIL 

JAY SARNO ♦ JUANITA TRUJILLO ♦ JOE ANGEL ZAMORA  
CITY MANAGER 

RAYMOND R. CRUZ 

April 29, 2021 

EE Building Maintenance 
11720 Marquardt Avenue 
Whittier, CA 90605 

Attention: Ms. Esmeralda Elizarraraz, Manager 

Subject: Custodial Services 
Contract Amendment Number Five 

Dear Ms. Elizarraraz: 

This letter, if signed by all parties below, shall serve as Amendment Number Five to the Custodial 
Services Agreement (“Agreement”) between the City of Santa Fe Springs (“City”) and EE 
Building Maintenance (“Contractor”). Pursuant to negotiations between the City and Contractor, 
and for good and valuable consideration, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. Spray City Offices with Disinfectant (Fogging) on a daily basis Monday through Thursday until such
time as the City terminates these additional services in writing.  The following locations will be fogged:
Activity Center offices, Clarke Estate Offices, City Park Offices (4), City Hall (except Planning and
Engineering), Betty Wilson Center Offices, Library, Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center, Town Center
Hall, Heritage Park Ranger Station and Municipal Services Yard Offices.  The cost for spraying offices
with disinfectant will be paid as a monthly lump sum amount of $3,679.60. See attached quote for more
details.

SUBMITTED BY: ACCEPTED BY: 
CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS EE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 

Kevin J. Periman,  Municipal Services Manager Esmeralda Elizarraraz, Manager     

Date Date 

APPROVED BY: 

John M. Mora, Mayor Date 





City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Paul Martinez Date of Report: April 29, 2021 
Finance Department 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

NEW BUSINESS 
Authorize the Purchase and Installation of Emergency Equipment to Eight (8) Ford 
Explorer Police Pursuit Vehicles from Dana Safety Supply 

 

BACKGROUND 
The City received eight (8) Ford Explorer Police Pursuit Vehicles previously authorized 
for purchase by the City Council. We now need to up-fit these vehicles with emergency 
equipment, including mobile data computers, emergency lights, sirens, safety barrier 
partitions, weapon racks, and push bumpers. The up-fit also includes the transfer of 
radio equipment from existing vehicles into the new vehicles. 

The City of Whittier solicited bids from three local vendors to up-fit six (6) police units 
they recently took delivery on. They received one response and awarded the order to 
Dana Safety Supply. We have used Dana Safety Supply for up-fits in our fleet; our 
Fleet Supervisor has been exceedingly satisfied with the quality of their workmanship. 

The price difference from the Whittier PD up-fits ($12,693 per vehicle) and our vehicles 
($13,065.625 per vehicle) are additional emergency lighting to the front grill, rear 
license plate area, and driver/passenger doors for enhanced visibility. The center 
console is also modified to accept the officer’s weapon on their hip, and the rear deck 
is lowered so stacked gear doesn’t obstruct vision through the rear-view mirror. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
In Fiscal Year 2020/21 the City Council approved $100,000 in the Vehicle Acquisition 
and Replacement budget for police vehicle up-fits. The $4,525 over the budgeted 
amount on this transaction will be more than offset by the $43,717.20 in savings for 
the police vehicle acquisitions.  

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment(s): 
1. Dana Safety Quote
2. City of Whittier Agenda Report

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
• Authorize the purchase and installation of emergency equipment to eight (8)

Ford Explorer police pursuit vehicles from Dana Safety Supply;
• Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to issue a purchase order in the

amount of $104,525 to process this order.

ITEM NO. 17



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 N 0.000.0000INFOa5YT19ENEM
VEHICLE INFORMATION

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
2021 Ford PIU

88 Y 74,000.009,250.0000EVPa5YT19ENF1
EMERGENCY VEHICLE PACKAGE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.0000ECVDMLTAL00a5YT19ENF2

SOI UNIVERSAL DOME LIGHT ALL LED, RED/CLEAR
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

88 Y 0.000.0000KIT-TP-SL6U-BB-SSa5YT19EQP5 Delivery Info: 557958
TROY 2020 PI Utility US Partition Kit

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Troy, 202 PI Utility US Partition Kit
TP-E-SL6-US-SS
SAB-20-FDUV-BB
KP-UV20-DAP-SS

88 Y 0.000.0000PS-20-UV-OS-Ra5YT19ES6K Delivery Info: 557958
TRO  REAR BARRIER, OSB, PL SEAT

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.0000AC-20-UV-SETa5YT19ETSA Delivery Info: 557958

TROY 2020 PI Utility driver/passenger side set of diam
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

2020 PI Utility driver/passenger side set of diamond-punched window screens

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
1Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a5YT19ETSA



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 Y 0.000.0000AC-20-UV-HATCHa5YT19EVT7 Delivery Info: 557958
TROY 2020 FORD PI-U REAR HATCH SCREEN

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
2020 PI Utility hatch window screen; Square-hole punched

88 Y 0.000.0000AC-20-UV-CGP2a5YT19EWZR Delivery Info: 557958
TROY TROY REAR GAP PANELS

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
AC-20-UV-CGP2

88 Y 0.000.0000INV-ES-ORG-FB-PIU20a60K0VZP5M Delivery Info: 557966
INNOVATIVE ELETRONIC STORAGE, FALSE FLOOR,
ELECTRONICS

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
INV-ES-ORG-FB-PIU20
ELETRONIC STORAGE, FALSE FLOOR, ELECTRONICS TRAY, PIU
2020,
POLY COATED

88 Y 0.000.0000INV-ES-FF-ET-PIU20a60K0W215H Delivery Info: 557966
INNOVATIVE ACCESSORY, ELECTRONIC STORAGE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
INV-ES-FF-ET-PIU20
ACCESSORY, ELECTRONIC STORAGE, ORGANIZER, DUAL FLARE
BOX,
PIU 2020, POLY COATED

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
2Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a60K0W215H



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 Y 0.000.0000INV-CO-DN-ISUV-20-NAa5YT19F54A Delivery Info: 557966
INNOVATIVE  Console

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Innovative 2020 PIU Console, No Armrest

1616 Y 0.000.0000MMSU-1a5YT19F661 Delivery Info: ON.HAND
MAGNETIC MIC SINGLE UNIT CONVERSION KIT

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.0000C-ARM-104a5YT19F662 Delivery Info: 557285

HAV TOP MOUNT ARMREST (REPLACES C-ARM-4)
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

88 Y 0.000.0000GK10291S1LSSCAa5YT19FATL Delivery Info: 557967
DUAL T RAIL MOUNT 1SMALL 1 LARGE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.00005344-2L91a5YT19HNF5 Delivery Info: 557961

GOR PUSH BUMPER
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

Go Rhino Lighted Push Bumper
2 Forward Facing Lights

88 Y 0.000.0000MR6MC-RWa5YT19O678 Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 MR6 multicolor LED RED/WHITE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
To be mounted forward facing in the bumper and to be used as scene lights
when takedowns are used on the lightbar.

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
3Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a5YT19O678



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 Y 0.000.0000MR6MC-BWa5YT19O3BH Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3  MULTI DIRECTIONAL LED LIGHT HOOD OR FLUSH MT

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
To be mounted forward facing in the bumper and to be used as scene lights
when takedowns are used on the lightbar.

88 Y 0.000.0000Z3SXP-1a5YT19FE2C Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 Z3 SIREN W SERIAL INTERFACE PBCH W BNSHE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.0000Z3S-OBD-PIU-Ga5YT19FFN7 Delivery Info: 557763

CODE3 Z3S OBD MODULE/GW MOD HARNESS 16+ PIU
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

1616 Y 0.000.0000C3900La5YT19FFN8 Delivery Info: 557763
CODE Slimline speaker with universal "L" bracket

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Mounted on Push Bumper

88 Y 0.000.0000SWITCHNODEa5YT19FIYZ Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 SWITCHNODE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Mounted forward of the Firewall

88 Y 0.000.0000ADJBKT011-Ba5YT19FKJW Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 HOOK KIT 2020 FORD PIU

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
4Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a5YT19FKJW



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 Y 0.000.000027-30483-CMa5YT19FKKB Delivery Info: 557763
CODE3 LIGHTBAR DUAL COLOR MATRIX

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.000042-3PRBA-CMa6160XWYZ3 Delivery Info: 557763

CODE3 CITADEL,EZ 2T,MNT,PIU20,RBA,MATRIX
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

88 Y 0.000.0000MR6MC-RWa5YT19FOJK Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 MR6 multicolor LED RED/WHITE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Mounted Vertically on Push Bumper Side Bracket, White used with Take
Downs

88 Y 0.000.0000MR6MC-BWa5YT19FQ02 Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3  MULTI DIRECTIONAL LED LIGHT HOOD OR FLUSH MT

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Mounted Vertically on Push Bumper Side Bracket, White used with Take
Downs

1616 Y 0.000.0000MR6MC-RBa5YT19FQSE Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 MR6 MULTI-COLOR LIGHT RED/BLUE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Cargo Window

1616 Y 0.000.0000XT6LBKTa5YT19FQSU Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 XT SERIES MOUNTING BRACKET

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Cargo Window

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
5Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a5YT19FQSU



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

1616 Y 0.000.0000W6BRa5YT19FRRK Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 HIDE-A-LED W600 VERTICAL FLANGE MNT, 9FT

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Taillight

1616 Y 0.000.0000M180SMC-RBa5YT19WAMF Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 M180 LIGHT HEAD RED/BLUE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Under Mirror

1616 Y 0.000.0000BSM-BKT-PIU20a5YT19W7NN Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 BELOW SIDE MIRROR MTG PIU 2020

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.0000ULTMCRAa5YT19FSQA Delivery Info: 557763

CODE 3 MEGA THIN MC RED/AMBER
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

Rear Hatch Jam

88 Y 0.000.0000ULTMC-BAa5YT19FUP4 Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 12 LED THIN MNT, DUAL B/A

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Rear Hatch Jam

88 Y 0.000.0000M180S-Wa5YT19FVL9 Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 M180 SURFACE WHITE

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Mount near trailer hitch

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
6Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a5YT19FVL9



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 Y 0.000.0000SS0008a5YT19FWPM Delivery Info: 557968
PG SAFESTOP H/W --- SIL/SUB/TAH/EXP/VAN

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.0000CB-150Aa5YT19FYMB Delivery Info: TRANS/MT

BI MANUAL RESET CIRCUIT BREAKER 150A
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

88 Y 0.000.00006001-3001Ba5YT19FYMQ
CE TH Series Time Delay Relay, 200 A

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
REPLACED 6001CE

88 Y 0.000.00005026 BLUESEAa5YT19FYMR Delivery Info: ON HAND
BLUE SEA 12-CIRCUIT ST BLADE FUSE BLOCK WITH COVER

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
88 Y 0.000.00005028a5YT19FYN6 Delivery Info: 557217

BLUE SEA FUSE BLOCK ST BLADE 6 CIRCUIT W/COVER
Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

88 Y 0.000.0000CW0411-WRa5YT19FYNM Delivery Info: 557763
CODE 3 400 SERIES COMPARTMENTAL LIGHTS WHITE/RED

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
Rear Hatch

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
7Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Continued on Next Page

a5YT19FYNM



800-845-0405Telephone:

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Santa Fe Springs
Public Works
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Sales Quote

374798-H

SANTAFESPRCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact:
Telephone: Telephone:

Contact:
562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

562-868-0511
Edward Andrade

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via
Net 30GROUND SHIPMENT PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE

Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson
Chris Degioanni - LAChris Degioanni

Order
Quantity

Extended
Price

Unit
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Open

Quantity

Order Date
03/16/21

E-mail: E-mail:edandrade@santafesprings.org edandrade@santafesprings.org

88 Y 1,000.00125.0000INSTALL KITa5YT19FZUM
MISC INSTALLATION SUPPLIES I.E.

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:
LOOM, WIRE, HARDWARE, CONNECTORS,  ETC
************************************************

88 N 20,000.002,500.0000INSTALLa5YT19FZV2
DSS INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT

Warehouse: LOSA Vin #:

04/23/21
05:28:37 PM
8Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Chris Degioanni

Amount Shipped 0.00

95,000.00Open Order

Order Total

Sales Tax9.500 %
Freight

Subtotal

104,525.00

7,125.00
2,400.00

95,000.00

a5YT19FZV2



Agenda Report
City Council

Date: March 23, 2021

To: Brian Saeki, City Manager

From: Kyle Cason, Director of Public Works
Jay Nossett, Fleet Manager

Subject: Police Patrol Vehicle Emergency Equipment Installation

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the purchase and installation of emergency equipment for six police patrol 
vehicles from Dana Safety Supply, Canoga Park, CA, for $76,153.

BACKGROUND

The process for replacing police patrol vehicles is to first purchase the vehicle chassis, 
then install all necessary emergency equipment. Six police patrol vehicles were 
approved for replacement in FY 2020-21 and $390,000 has been budgeted for this 
purpose.

DISCUSSION

The purchase of six Ford Police Utility Hybrid Interceptors was approved on August 13, 
2020 (purchase order #21000039) at a total cost of $261,987 (six vehicles at $43,665 
each). The vehicles were ordered and arrived recently.

A notice inviting bids was sent to three local vendors, advertised on the City of Whittier 
website, and published twice in the Whittier Daily News. The bid opening date was 
March 9, 2021, and one response was submitted. Results are below and prices include 
tax.

Dana Safety Supply $76,158 ($12,693 each)

The total cost to purchase and outfit each vehicle, minus the Mobile Data Computing 
(MDC) equipment previously presented to Council, is estimated at $56,357.

Vehicles will take an estimated 45 days to complete after receipt of the purchase order 
and the vendor has been notified of the City’s intention to pay tax directly to the state.

FISCAL IMPACT

There are sufficient funds in the Mobile Equipment Replacement Fund’s Police Vehicle 
account (750-30-361-000 745863) to fund this purchase.



Police Patrol Vehicle Emergency Equipment Installation Page 2 of 2
March 23, 2021

STRATEGIC PLANNING GOAL

Goal 1:  Provide for Public Safety
Goal 3:  Maintain & Enhance Quality of Life

ATTACHMENTS

A. Bid Form
B. Notice Inviting Bids



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Cuong Nguyen, Senior Planner Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 

NEW BUSINESS 
Amendment Number One to the Professional Services Agreement with the consulting 
firm MIG to add a sub-consultant for the preparation of an Economic Development 
Element.    

BACKGROUND 
At the City Council Meeting of February 13, 2020, the City Council voted unanimously 
to award a contract to the consultant firm MIG to complete a Comprehensive General 
Plan and Targeted Zoning Code Update. The original contract with MIG was executed 
on March 12, 2020. With the goal of completing the General Plan Update by Fall of 
2021, staff and MIG immediately went to work on the City’s first Comprehensive 
General Plan Update since 1993.  

The General Plan update is now well underway and community engagement has 
played a critical role. Thus far, MIG and City staff have: 

• Created a dedicated General Plan Update website:
https://reimaginesantafesprings.org/

• Conducted over two dozen stakeholder interviews, including interviews
with the then councilmembers

• Assembled a General Plan Advisory Group and held five meetings
• Conducted a City-Wide Community Survey
• Held three Virtual Community Workshops
• Held a joint City Council & Planning Commission Study Session
• Created numerous social media posts

These various outreach efforts have assisted the General Plan Update team in drafting 
an Existing Conditions Technical Report, General Plan Vision and Guiding Principles, 
and a Preferred Land Use Plan. The GP Team is currently working on completing the 
draft environmental documents, the text for the individual elements, and the draft goals 
and policies for each element. 

In reviewing the expenditures to date, and also considering the remaining tasks at 
hand, the General Plan Update team recently discovered a potential surplus of 
approximately $44,500. The team agreed that the best use of the budget savings would 
be towards the preparation of an Economic Development Element. While the General 
Plan lays the foundation for the long-term growth and development of Santa Fe 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Approve Amendment Number One to the Professional Services Agreement with

the consultant firm MIG, to add a sub-consultant for the preparation of an
Economic Development Element.

• Authorize the Mayor or designee to execute Amendment Number One.

ITEM NO. 18

https://reimaginesantafesprings.org/


   Amendment Number One to the PSA with MIG Page 2 of 3 

Report Submitted By: Cuong Nguyen, Senior Planner Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 

Spring’s economy, an Economic Development Element could provide the central 
organization unit to establish the goals and policies focused specifically on economic 
development.  

Economic Development Element (EDE) Overview 
An EDE is one of several optional elements for a General Plan. An EDE is not static 
and thus requires periodic review and updating to ensure that it will meet future 
economic conditions. An EDE has a long-term focus and provides goals, policies, and 
implementation measures that are intended to stand the test of time. As part of the 
scope of work, the team is also requesting that an economic development strategy be 
included to provide the short-term action plan, and to identify the projects, programs, 
and investments intended to achieve short and mid-term objectives in furtherance of 
long-term goals.  

Purpose of EDE 
An EDE is a policy document that contains recommendations for future actions and 
initiatives. The EDE examines the current and future market trends and identifies 
strategies that are critical to the future financial success of the local economy- its 
businesses and residents.   For example, an EDE could help expand the local economy 
through improved job training and skills development, increasing the number of above-
average paying jobs, expanding job opportunities across all skill and education levels, 
expanding and diversifying the local tax base, and the attraction, retention or expansion 
of businesses. Additionally, an EDE could also be used to help establish or create a 
recognizable brand/image for a City to identify itself. The EDE will be grounded with 
the development of a 5-Year Implementation Plan that will contain short-, mid- and 
long-term goals and objectives with performance measures. 

Request for Proposals (RFP) 
On March 2, 2021, the Planning staff solicited an RFP from qualified consulting firms 
(Consultant) to create a new Economic Development Element (EDE) that will be 
completed in coordination with the presently ongoing Comprehensive General Plan 
and Targeted Zoning Code Update. Although the City issued the RFP, the selected 
Consultant will be a sub-consultant to MIG, the lead consultant firm responsible for the 
completion of the Comprehensive General Plan and Targeted Zoning Code Update.  

The consultant selected to prepare the EDE will become a member of the MIG team 
and, therefore, will execute a service agreement with MIG. The subject amendment 
(Amendment Number One to the Professional Services Agreement with MIG) is 
needed to recognize and add a sub-consultant and also include the scope of work 
related to the preparation of an Economic Development Element.   

A total of five (5) proposal were received by the March 30, 2021 deadline. The proposal 
received were by the Natelson Dale Group, RSG, Stanley Hoffman & Associates, 
Tierra West, and EPS. A four-member evaluation team consisting of two staff planners, 
a planning consultant, and an economic development consultant reviewed each 
proposal based on the following criteria: Experience and Capability of Firm, Project 
Team, Project Understanding and Approach, Pricing, and Timing.  



   Amendment Number One to the PSA with MIG Page 3 of 3 

Report Submitted By: Cuong Nguyen, Senior Planner Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 

The evaluation team consisted of Wayne Morrell (Director of Planning), Cuong Nguyen 
(Senior Planner), Laurel Reimer (Planning Consultant), and Jack Wong (Economic 
Development Consultant). Upon evaluating the proposals, the evaluation team 
recommends selecting the Natelson Dale Group, as the top ranked firm with the highest 
overall average score.  

A summary of the evaluation teams rankings of the proposals received is provide as 
an attachment. As shown, Natelson Dale Group was the top ranked firm when 
compared to the other proposals received. The proposals submitted to the City and the 
evaluation score sheets are on file with the Planning Department.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
The original Proposal from MIG was approved in the amount not to exceed $1,294,510 
for both the Comprehensive General Plan and Targeted Zoning Code Update. It should 
be noted that roughly 43% (or $558,670) is funded through a total of three separate 
grants.  

Amendment Number One, to add a sub-consultant for the preparation of an Economic 
Development Element, will be accomplished within the original budget and will not have 
any fiscal impact on the City’s General Fund. As mentioned previously, upon recent 
review of the overall budget for the Comprehensive General Plan and Targeted Zoning 
Code Update, the General Plan Update team discovered a potential surplus of 
approximately $44,500. If the City Council supports staff recommendation to select 
Natelson Dale Group, no fiscal impact is expected as the proposal received by 
Natelson Dale Group identifies a not to exceed amount of $39,000 and thus can be 
absorbed by the original contract amount for the Comprehensive General Plan and 
Targeted Zoning Code Update. 

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the proposed amendment to the existing 
Professional Services Agreement with MIG to add a sub-consultant for the preparation 
of an Economic Development Element. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment(s): 
1. City’s Request For Proposals (RFP)
2. Summary of Evaluation Team Rankings
3. Amendment Number One to Existing PSA with MIG

• Exhibit A – Proposal Natelson Dale Group, Inc.





1 

Request for Proposals 

Economic Development Element 
For the City of Santa Fe Springs 

Background 

The City of Santa Fe Springs is requesting Proposals to create a new Economic Development 
Element (EDE). The EDE shall be completed in coordination with the presently ongoing 
Comprehensive General Plan and Targeted Zoning Code Update.  

The General Plan and Zoning Code Update are being conducted by MIG. Although the City is 
issuing this RFP for EDE services, the selected consultant will be a sub-consultant to MIG, the lead 
consultant firm responsible for the completion of the General Plan and Targeted Zoning Code 
Update. The consultant selected to prepare the EDE will become a member of the MIG team and, 
therefore, will execute a services agreement with MIG. 

A draft Market Demand Study is being prepared by a recognized real estate land economist 
company and will be provided for your review upon request. It is anticipated that this document 
(see attached) will help govern the development of the EDE; however, this company will not be 
submitting a proposal for the preparation of the EDE. Other data sources include documents 
related to the current General Plan update and are available for review from MIG. Should you 
require specific information and data resources, please contact - Mr. Cuong Nguyen, Senior 
Planner, at CuongNguyen@santafesprings.org.  

Release RFP March 2, 2021 

Written Questions Submittal Deadline 3:00 p.m., March 11, 2021 

City Responses As Received 

Proposal Submittal Deadline 5:00 p.m., March 30, 2021 

Proposal Review Period March 31, 2021 – April 8, 2021 

Award Contract April 20, 2021 

mailto:CuongNguyen@santafesprings.org


2 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Review of Background Materials.  

 Research, review and evaluate relevant documents, data sources, and literature, such as
but not limited to existing demographic and socioeconomic data, labor force
characteristics, sales tax revenue, and other key economic data.

 Use latest draft Market Demand Study from which to develop core understanding of
market conditions.

 Update key demographic trends and forecasts, social factors, economic factors, and
financial indicators.

Develop Goals and Strategy. 

 Establish economic development strategy, goals, and objectives, which include significant
milestones and are specific, measurable, attainable, relevant, and time-bound.

Implementation Action Plan and Tactics 

 Develop recommended activities, projects, and programs to implement goals and
objectives.

Outreach to Business and Development Community.  

 Conduct stakeholder interviews and focus group meetings with key representatives of the
business and development community.

 Identify the most critical issues affecting the City’s business friendliness and
competitiveness with surrounding cities (i.e. municipal policies, strategies, incentives, and
programs), and surrounding industry clusters (i.e. shopping centers, industrial and
commercial nodes, etc.).

 Attend at least one (1) at-large community workshops, one to two (1-2) GPAG meetings,
and ten (10) one-on-one private interviews with community stakeholders, City officials
and staff. The community workshop may be substituted for additional stakeholder or
focus group meetings, with City pre-approval. Meetings with City staff to coordinate and
discuss the project (i.e., management meetings) are exclusive of the aforementioned
meetings. Consultant shall include 2 meetings with the Planning Commission and/or City
Council to present the final draft of the EDE and Implementation Plan.

Target Industry Analysis.  

 Build on the Kosmont Market Study and conduct a detailed industry-by-industry analysis
(using EMSI Data) of employment growth trends for Santa Fe Springs and the surrounding
economic region. This detailed analysis would serve as a basis for refining the City’s
business retention/expansion/attraction targets.

 Develop initiatives, actions, and strategies that addresses business retention, expansion,
and attraction of small, medium, and large businesses, workforce development, and
promote the overall economic growth and prosperity of the City, businesses, and
residents.



3 

 Develop strategies that assists and supports new business start-ups

 Develop strategies that promote the importance of shopping locally

Preliminary EDE Outline. 

 Based on the above steps, consultant will prepare a preliminary outline of the issues and
policy categories to be addressed in the EDE. This information will be presented in a
succinct matrix format to facilitate review by and input from City staff.

 Consultant will prepare a SWOT analysis and include it in a technical memorandum

Draft and Final EDE. 

 Consultant will prepare a draft and final EDE documents that define broad policy direction
for the City’s economic development efforts. The EDE should include the following
components:

o A summary of the most critical economic issues and opportunities emerging from
the General Plan Update research and stakeholder outreach.

o Policy framework to facilitate development and reuse of key opportunity sites
(e.g., underutilized properties proximate to transportation corridors).

o Recommended business attraction goals (i.e., targeted land uses and tenant
types).

o Policies related to retention and expansion of existing firms.
o Policies related to assisting small business start-ups
o Policies to enhance the City’s overall business friendliness and competitiveness.

Implementation Strategy. 
This is a stand-alone document from the General Plan element, which provides a detailed action 
plan for a period up to 5-year implementation period. As such, it would have a shorter-term focus 
and provide more detail than is typically included in a General Plan element. 

 Timeframe to be broken into near term (first year), mid-term (2nd-3rd Year), and/or long
term (4th-5th Year).

 Action Steps with identification of responsible city department/division and potential
budget costs

 Separate section discussing potential revenue sources, such as, but not limited to, special
districts, grants, and other revenue sources.

Project Schedule and Budget. 

 Consultant shall identify the anticipated time frame, with major milestones, and
associated budget costs for each task and sub-task, with the hourly rates for each position
clearly identified.

 Consultant shall coordinate work activities to align with General Plan process and
adoption date.

 Develop and provide performance metrics with timelines that can be used to evaluate
whether, and to what extent, plan goals and objectives have been or are being met.



 4 

Deliverables. 
Final deliverables should be in 8 ½”x11” format that is easy to reproduce and easy to edit. 

 Preliminary and Final Drafts of EDE in Microsoft Word and Adobe PDF. 

 Preliminary and Final Drafts of Implementation Plan 

 10 color copies of bound Final EDE and Implementation Plan 
 
Submission Requirements. 
Consultant shall provide the following information in the Proposal: 

 Introductory Cover Letter 

 Professional Experience, Key Personnel, Resumes/Biographies, Sub-Contractors 

 Scope of Work and Methodology 

 Project Schedule and Budget (not-to-exceed cost) 

 References: three professional references and contact information 

 Sample of Work: one to two samples of either an Economic Development Element and/or 
Economic Development Strategic Plan 

 
Approval Process. 
City of Santa Fe Springs will evaluate submitted Proposals and select a consultant firm. Interviews 
may or may not be required due to the abbreviated solicitation period. City staff anticipates 
amending the contract with MIG to include the EDE scope of work at the April 20 City Council 
meeting.  
 
Questions. 
Please direct all questions to Mr. Cuong Nguyen, Senior Planner, at 
CuongNguyen@santafesprings.org.  All questions must be in writing and City responses shall be 
posted on its website as the questions are received.   
 
Proposal Submittal. 
Proposals will be accepted electronically no later than 5:00 p.m., March 30, 2021. No other forms 
of submittal will be accepted. Send to WayneMorrell@santafesprings.org.  
 

mailto:CuongNguyen@santafesprings.org
mailto:waynemorrell@santafesprings.org


Evaluation Criteria Rater #1 Rater #2 Rater #3 Rater #4 Rater #1 Rater #2 Rater #3 Rater #4 Rater #1 Rater #2 Rater #3 Rater #4 Rater #1 Rater #2 Rater #3 Rater #4 Rater #1 Rater #2 Rater #3 Rater #4

Experience and Capability of Firm 30 30 30 30 29 28 30 30 30 28 30 30 25 26 28 25 27 30 29 30

Project Team 24 25 24 24 22 23 22 23 24 22 23 22 22 21 22 21 23 25 23 24

Project Understanding and Approach 17 20 18 18 16 18 18 18 20 18 19 19 14 16 17 17 14 20 18 18

Pricing 15 15 15 15 4 5 6 9 14 14 14 12 5 7 8 8 13 13 13 14

Timing 9 9 9 10 8 7 8 9 10 10 10 10 7 5 7 8 8 7 8 9
Subtotal Scores: 95 99 96 97 79 81 84 89 98 92 96 93 73 75 82 79 85 95 91 95

Average Score:

Price: $44,910 + $3,950 (in-person mtgs) $88,190 $47,500 

Natelson Dale Group

96.75

RSG

83.25

$39,000 $97,690 

Stanley Hoffman & Associates Tierra West Advisors

94.75 77.25

EPS

91.5



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH MIG, INC. 

This Amendment Number One (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 4th day of 
May, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs, a California municipal 
corporation (“City”) and MIG, INC., a California corporation (“Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, on February 13, 2020, the City and Consultant entered into the Professional 
Services Agreement for the City’s General Plan and Targeted Zoning Code Update 
(“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the City and Consultant desire to amend the Agreement to include an 
Economic Development Element in the General Plan Update.   

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 1.1 of the Agreement is amended to include the services set forth in Exhibit
“A” to this Amendment. 

2. Section 2.1 of the Agreement is amended to include compensation for the services
set forth in Exhibit A, to be billed in accordance with the Cost Proposal in Exhibit A in an amount 
not to exceed $39,000. 

3. Pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Agreement, the City consents to Consultant
subcontracting with the Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) for the performance of the services 
set forth in Exhibit A. The agreement between Consultant and TNDG shall include the same 
insurance and indemnity requirements as set forth in the Agreement protecting the City as an 
additional insured and indemnitee. 

4. Except as amended herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS MIG, INC. 

John M. Mora, Mayor  [Name and Title] 

Date:_______________________ Date:_____________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai, City Attorney 



   

 
   

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Janet Martinez, City Clerk 
  



EXHIBIT A 



 

 
PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
General Plan Economic Development Element for  
City of Santa Fe Springs 

 

Submitted to: 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

 

March 30, 2021 

(Revised April 20, 2021 in response to City’s questions) 

  

T H E  N A T E L S O N  D A L E  G R O U P ,  I N C .  
Y O R B A  L I N D A ,  C A  •  w w w . n a t e l s o n d a l e . c o m   
O :  7 1 4 . 6 9 2 . 9 5 9 6  •  F :  7 1 4 . 6 9 2 . 9 5 9 7   

 

CNguyen
Typewritten Text

CNguyen
Typewritten Text

CNguyen
Typewritten Text

CNguyen
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



 

Table of Contents 
 

1. COVER LETTER ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. ORGANIZATION OF THE FIRM ............................................................................................................... 3 

3. PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE ................................................................................................................. 4 

4. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL ............................................................................................................ 10 

5. SCOPE OF WORK AND METHODOLOGY .............................................................................................. 14 

6. PROJECT SCHEDULE AND BUDGET ...................................................................................................... 19 

7. REFERENCES ........................................................................................................................................ 21 

APPENDIX A – LINKS TO SAMPLE WORK PRODUCTS .................................................................................. 22 

  

 

 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

1 

1.   COVER LETTER  
 

The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 
P.O. Box 489 

Yorba Linda, CA 92885 
(714) 692-9596 phone / (714) 692-9597 fax 

E-mail: dale@natelsondale.com  
www.natelsondale.com  

 
 
March 30, 2021 
#7550 
 
Wayne Morrell 
Director of Planning 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90760-3679 
 
Re: Proposal to prepare Economic Development Element for Santa Fe Springs General Plan 
 
Dear Mr. Morrell: 
 
In response to your request, The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) is extremely pleased to 
submit this proposal to prepare an Economic Development Element for the City of Santa Fe 
Springs General Plan Update. TNDG is a national economic development and real estate 
consulting firm established in southern California in 1974. Our practice focuses largely on the 
planning and implementation of business retention/expansion/attraction and entrepreneurial 
development programs. The firm’s work often involves direct linkages between a community’s 
industry attraction plans and its real estate development potentials. In this regard, we have a 
strong understanding both of local real estate markets and of the larger regional economic trends 
that drive demand for commercial and industrial land use.  
 
We are highly familiar with economic development conditions in the Gateway Cities subregion of 
Los Angeles County, having completed previous assignments in Bell Gardens, Cerritos, Commerce, 
Compton, Huntington Park, Lakewood, Long Beach, Norwalk, South Gate, Pico Rivera and 
Whittier. 
 
TNDG is a “boutique” firm not only in terms of size but also in terms of philosophy and approach. 
In this regard, the firm’s principal personally manages every contract and maintains primary 

mailto:dale@natelsondale.com
http://www.natelsondale.com/


 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

2 

contact with the client. As our references will attest, exceptional responsiveness to the unique 
needs of each client is a hallmark of our approach. 
 
In addition to our long track record in strategic planning and related technical analysis, TNDG also 
maintains an active role in supporting California’s economic development community and 
advancing best practices within the profession. In this regard, the firm recently took the lead on 
behalf of the California Association for Local Economic Development (CALED) and the California 
Academy for Economic Development (CAED) on the implementation of a California-specific 
training and certification program for economic development professionals (the recently 
launched “ACE” program). 
 
We very much appreciate your consideration of our team and sincerely hope we have the 
opportunity to support the City’s General Plan update process. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
THE NATELSON DALE GROUP, INC. 

 
Roger Dale 
Managing Principal 
  



PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

3 

2. ORGANIZATION OF THE FIRM

The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 
Company Profile 

Services Provided  Economic development strategic plans 
Target industry studies 
Workforce development analysis 
Real estate market projections 
Development feasibility studies 
Downtown/corridor revitalization programs 
Fiscal impact analysis 
Infrastructure financing plans 
Regional economic forecasting 

Years in Business 46 

Organization Type California corporation 

Office Locations Orange County, CA 
Phoenix, AZ 

Professional Staff 5 

Professional 
Affiliations 

California Association for Local Economic Development (CALED) 
International Economic Development Council (IEDC) 

Website www.natelsondale.com 

http://www.natelsondale.com/


 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

4 

3.   PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
An abbreviated listing of TNDG’s relevant project experience is provided below, followed by more detailed 
descriptions of selected assignments. Web links to sample work products are provided in Appendix A. 
 

General Plan Economic Studies  
City of Agoura Hills City of Malibu 
City of Alhambra City of Monterey Park 
City of Calabasas City of Ontario 
City of Beaumont City of Port Hueneme 
City of California City City of Redondo Beach 
City of Chino City of Rialto 
City of Costa Mesa City of San Bernardino 
City of Fontana City of San Clemente 
City of Garden Grove City of Santa Monica 
City of La Quinta City of Santa Paula 
City of Los Angeles City of Solvang 

 

Economic Development Strategic Plans 
Counties      
Guilford County (North Carolina) 
Kern County 
Larimer County (Colorado) 
Los Angeles (San Gabriel Valley subregion) 
Osceola County (Florida) 
San Bernardino 
San Diego (South County Subregion) 
San Joaquin County 
San Luis Obispo (San Miguel and Shandon 
subareas) 
Ventura County 
Yuma County (Arizona) 

Cities 
Anaheim 
Antioch 
Bakersfield 
Beaumont  
Burbank 
Camarillo 
Coachella 
Compton 
Coronado 
Escondido 
Fresno 
Garland (Texas) 
Kyle (Texas) 
Los Angeles 
Menifee  
Ontario 
Palm Desert 
San Francisco 
Simi Valley 
Stockton 
Ventura 
Vista 

Indian Tribes 
Agua Caliente (Palm Springs) 
Cahuilla (Riverside County) 
Yavapi-Apache (Arizona) 

Larger Regions 
Hampton Roads (Virginia) Region (5 counties and 9 independent cities)  
Tri-cities Area of Northeast Tennessee/Southwest Virginia  



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

5 

Downtown/Corridor Revitalization Programs (economic feasibility and implementation strategies) 
Huntington Beach Downtown Specific Plan Downtown Pomona Specific Plan 
Huntington Park Downtown Specific Plan Route 66 Specific Plan (Glendora) 
East Colorado Blvd. Specific Plan (Pasadena) Smoky Hollow Specific Plan (El Segundo) 
Downtown/Corridors Specific Plan (Fullerton) Business District Specific Plan (Big Bear Lake) 
Santa Maria Downtown Specific Plan  San Dimas Downtown Specific Plan 
Garvey Avenue Specific Plan (Rosemead) Thousand Oaks Boulevard Specific Plan 
Azusa Station Area Specific Plans Foothill Boulevard Specific Plan (Rialto) 
Covina Town Center Specific Plan Foothill Boulevard Plan (Claremont) 

 

Economic Development Strategic Plans: 

Beaumont, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2019). TNDG has just completed a detailed 
Economic Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis and commercial/ industrial real 
estate market forecast, for the City of Beaumont. The Plan focuses on leveraging the City’s strategic 
location in the eastern Inland Empire, available land resources, skilled resident workforce, and quality-of-
life amenities.  

Menifee, California: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (2019). TNDG has just completed a 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for the City of Menifee. The six-month planning 
process included a detailed analysis of the community’s economic development assets and opportunities, 
as well as its current deficiencies and challenges. The background analyses included a target industry study 
focused on defining potential growth opportunities within the larger Riverside County/San Diego County 
economy. Given Menifee’s large population of out-commuting high-skilled workers, the industry cluster 
analysis emphasized potential connections to regional high-tech sectors.  

Camarillo, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2018). TNDG completed a detailed Economic 
Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis and commercial/ industrial real estate 
market forecast, for the City of Camarillo. The Plan focuses on improving the City’s business/development 
friendliness, maintaining the strength of the City’s retail shopping districts, leveraging the emerging cluster 
of technology start-ups in Ventura County, and pursuing placemaking investments as part of a larger focus 
on economic vitality. 

Palm Desert, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2018). TNDG completed a detailed 
Economic Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis and commercial/industrial real 
estate market forecast, for the City of Palm Desert. The Plan focuses on leveraging the City’s strategic 
location within the Coachella Valley and its well-established reputation as a center for tourism, retail trade, 
and higher education. The implementation plan includes a business incubator/accelerator focused the 
Valley’s emerging technology cluster. 

San Bernardino, California: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for IVDA/SBIAA 
(2018). TNDG completed a five-year CEDS for the Inland Valley Development Agency (IVDA) and San 
Bernardino International Airport Authority (SBIAA) in 2018. This process included a series of meetings with 
the CEDS Committee, as well as direct coordination with five constituent jurisdictions (four cities and 
Indian tribe) to update strategic priorities and candidate infrastructure projects. The economic and 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

6 

workforce development initiatives include a focus on high-technology sectors related to the region’s 
aviation and logistics clusters.  

Ventura County, California:  Economic Vitality Strategic Plan (2017). TNDG completed a comprehensive 
Economic Vitality Strategic Plan for the County of Ventura. The year-long effort included the following 
components:  an extensive analysis of the current state of the Ventura County economy; an innovative 
Economic Impact Analysis that gathers and analyzes relevant data sets to quantify the impact of County 
governmental operations on the local economy; a detailed industry cluster analysis; and extensive 
stakeholder outreach. Consistent with longstanding community values, the Plan focuses on advancing 
economic vitality while carefully protecting the region’s amenity-rich, high quality of life environment. 

Hampton Roads, Virginia:  Strategic Plan for Virginia’s “Growth Opportunities” Program (2017). TNDG 
served as a subcontractor to Old Dominion University on the preparation of a strategic economic plan 
addressing challenges among the communities in the Hampton Roads region of Virginia. Blessed by the 
nation’s largest natural deep water port and host to the world’s biggest naval base, the Hampton Roads 
region has nonetheless struggled to recover from decreases in federal procurement spending and curtailed 
defense spending associated with the Budget Control Act of 2012. The GO Virginia program was created by 
the Virginia legislature to encourage cross-jurisdictional cooperation to create sustainable regional 
economic growth.   

Larimer County (Fort Collins), Colorado: Economic Development Asset Assessment (2016). TNDG 
completed a comprehensive assessment of the public, private and institutional “assets” that influence 
Larimer County’s economic development potentials. The assessment is intended to identify existing 
strengths that can be better leveraged as well as existing gaps in infrastructure and service provision that 
warrant future investment by the County. The assessment will provide the framework for a long-range 
economic development vision and strategy for the County. 

Kyle, Texas: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2015). TNDG completed a detailed Economic 
Development Strategic Plan, including a target industry analysis, for the City of Kyle. The Plan focuses on 
leveraging the City’s strategic location along I-35 between Austin and San Antonio. A key theme of the Plan 
is to position the City as a destination for regional visitors and higher-value economic activities. The Plan 
provides a framework for re-organizing the City’s Economic Development Tourism Board, and for re-
assessing the City’s partnerships with several regional economic development organizations. 

Stockton, California: Economic Development Strategic Plan (2015). The TNDG team completed a detailed 
Economic Development Strategic Plan for the City of Stockton, California. The Plan provides a 
comprehensive blueprint for the City’s economic development programming as part of an overall 
restructuring of the municipal government. The planning process included extensive interaction with a 
range of public and private partner organizations that will have critical roles in implementing the strategy. 
Given the City’s across-the-board efforts to reposition itself economically, the Plan encompasses a broad 
range of topics including infrastructure, economic incentives, development streamlining, neighborhood 
revitalization, visitor amenities, retail tenant recruitment, target industry attraction and entrepreneurial 
development. 

Yuma County, Arizona: Manufacturing Development Strategy (2015).  The TNDG team prepared a 
strategic plan for Yuma County for the Investing in Manufacturing Communities Partnership (IMCP) 
program. The planning process involved extensive coordination with the County, four cities (three in 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

7 

Arizona and one in Mexico), two universities, a community college, the county-level Workforce Investment 
Board, and various private organizations involved in county-level economic development (Economic 
Development Corporation, Manufacturers Association, and Chamber of Commerce). 

Garland, Texas:  Target Industry Strategy (2014).  TNDG participated in the preparation of this strategic 
plan (led by the University of North Texas), which included a target industry analysis, competitive 
assessment of Garland with respect to other Dallas-area communities, assessment of the current 
manufacturing base in the city and the challenges faced by employers and real estate developers, and 
community development issues. Although the Plan focused on strategies for target industries, TNDG 
integrated these with relevant community and workforce-development strategies. 

Escondido, California:  Economic Development Master Plan (2013, updated 2018).  TNDG completed a 
Market Opportunities Analysis and Economic Development Master Plan for the City of Escondido. The Plan 
was completed in tandem with a regional Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for the 
North San Diego County region. TNDG’s work included an in-depth demographic analysis, an assessment of 
economic/ market opportunities, a target industry/cluster analysis, as well as a focus on revitalization of 
key commercial areas in the City. 

Osceola County (Greater Orlando), Florida: Economic Diversification Strategy (2012). Osceola County is 
adjacent to Orlando, Florida and experienced significant disinvestment in the early 2000’s due to older 
visitor amenities (hotels, motels, amusement facilities, etc.) not keeping pace with competitive facilities in 
Orlando. TNDG’s strategy focused on identifying potential industries (in addition to tourism) that can 
provide the basis for diversifying and revitalizing the local economy. 

Yuma County, Arizona:  Workforce and Economic Development Summit (2001, repeated 2011). TNDG 
facilitated a Workforce and Economic Development Summit for Yuma County. The consultants’ work for 
the six-month Summit process involved substantial background research and analysis; facilitation of a 
series of Summit meetings with approximately 70 local stakeholders; and preparation of a comprehensive 
Action Plan. As part of the analytical work, the consultants identified key industry “clusters” suitable for 
diversifying Yuma’s economic base. The Summit process was originally completed in 2001; based on the 
success of the original effort, the client retained TNDG to repeat the process in 2010-2011. 

San Francisco, California:  Workforce Development Strategy for Bay Area Media Industry (2011). TNDG 
developed a comprehensive strategy to guide “career repositioning” services for dislocated journalists and 
media workers in the San Francisco Bay Area (an estimated 7,500 Bay Area media industry jobs have been 
lost over the past decade). TNDG’s work included an extensive online survey of existing and former Bay 
Area journalists (with over 700 individuals participating) and executive interviews with media executives. 
In addition, TNDG completed a detailed analysis of employment trends (by both industry and occupation) 
for the overall Bay Area media cluster.  

Los Angeles, California:  Economic Development Strategy for Solar LA (2009). TNDG was retained by the 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power in 2009 to generate a Strategic Action Plan to expand solar-
industry activity in Los Angeles. The work was part of LADWP’s mission to implement the Solar LA plan. The 
objective of the Strategic Action Plan is to leverage the investment associated with Solar LA to develop a 
solar industry cluster in Los Angeles and maximize the creation of cleantech jobs. 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

8 

Northeast Tennessee/Southwest Virginia:  Target Industry Analysis (2006). The TNDG Team completed an 
industry cluster analysis for the Tri-Cities Economic Development Alliance. The purpose of the study was to 
identify target industries/clusters for this 10-county region in Northeast Tennessee/Southwest Virginia.  

Anaheim, California:  Industry Location Analysis and Attraction Strategy (2005). TNDG developed a 
comprehensive economic development program for the City of Anaheim. TNDG’s work focused on 
assessing Anaheim’s strengths as they relate to industrial attraction and identifying specific industry 
clusters which the City should emphasize in its marketing efforts. TNDG’s recommendations included a 
special focus on multi-media and high technology firms.  

Guam:  Feasibility Study and Strategic Plan for Regional Distribution Center (2004). TNDG was part of 
multi-disciplinary team that completed a feasibility study and strategic plan for the development of a 
regional distribution center in Guam. The center was planned to build upon Guam’s existing airport and 
seaport infrastructure to position Guam as a distribution hub serving various Asian countries and the 
continental United States.  

Ventura, California:  Business Plan for “Eco Industry” Industrial Park (2003). TNDG completed a feasibility 
study and business plan for the development of an eco-industrial park (EIP) in the City of San 
Buenaventura. The intent of the program is to attract “eco industrial” users to major Brownfield sites 
currently occupied with abandoned oil production facilities. TNDG’s work included a detailed market 
analysis of the eco industry cluster; review of “best practices” for EIP development based on a national 
survey of existing parks; identification of state and federal funding sources applicable to the project; and a 
detailed business plan for implementation.  

The National and Regional Directory of Targeted Growth Industries (2002). TNDG published The National 
and Regional Directory of Targeted Growth Industries, an economic development resource publication. 
This research involved review and summarization of several hundred economic development strategic 
plans and industry trends analyses from throughout the U.S. 

Fresno, California:  Federal Empowerment Zone (EZ) Application (2001). The TNDG Team prepared a 
successful application resulting in Fresno’s designation as one of only seven urban Empowerment Zones 
under Round III of the EZ program. Fresno’s submission was ranked number one in the country during this 
application round. TNDG was responsible for the overall management of several hundred stakeholders 
involved in various aspects of the application process. 

Greensboro (Guilford County), North Carolina:  Industry Attraction Strategy (2001). TNDG prepared an 
industry “cluster” analysis and attraction strategy for the Greensboro Economic Development Partnership. 
The focus of the strategy is to expand the community’s base of high-technology sectors to offset the 
ongoing declines of Greensboro’s traditional mainstay industries (tobacco, apparel and furniture 
manufacturing). The analysis involved defining Guilford County’s potential niche markets within a 13-
county reference area, and also included a review of statewide potentials vis-à-vis the overall Mid-Atlantic 
region. Given Guilford’s proximity to the Raleigh-Durham area, significant attention was devoted to 
identifying potential linkages to high-tech activities at the Research Triangle Park.  

Burbank, California:  Economic Diversification Strategy (2000). The Team developed a comprehensive 
Action Plan to guide the City of Burbank’s economic development programming over the next five to ten 
years. As background to the strategic recommendations, TNDG completed an industry “cluster” analysis to 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

9 

identify new sectors into which the City’s economy can diversify, and a detailed “competitive assessment” 
identifying Burbank’s competitive position within the state.  

Kern County, California:  Economic Development Strategic Plan (2000). TNDG’s work on this plan included 
a comprehensive assessment of the County’s workforce development programs, as well as a detailed 
industry “cluster” analysis to identify the sectors with the greatest potential for employment growth 
meeting the needs of the county’s workforce. The target industry analysis included an in-depth assessment 
of the county’s and the state’s competitiveness within a five-state region. The Strategy was developed over 
approximately a one-year time frame and involved a substantial public outreach effort. 

  



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

10 

4. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL 

Roger Dale – Managing Principal, TNDG 

Project Role: Mr. Dale will serve as Principal-in-Charge and Project Manager for the assignment. In this 
capacity, he will be responsible for primary client liaison, coordination of the TNDG project team, and 
preparation of final work products. Mr. Dale will serve as the lead presenter/facilitator at any public 
meetings for the assignment. Mr. Dale has been a project manager with TNDG for 33 years and managed 
TNDG’s work on all of the previous TNDG projects listed in this proposal. 

Experience: Roger Dale has been affiliated with The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. (TNDG) since 1988 and 
currently serves as the firm’s managing principal. His background encompasses the fields of real estate 
development, economic development, regional economic analysis, environmental and land use policy, 
financial forecasting, and renewable energy. His project experience with TNDG includes preparation of 
regional-scale economic development strategic plans, real estate market forecasting, demographic 
research and modeling, fiscal impact analysis, cost/benefit assessment, redevelopment, business 
retention/attraction, and workforce development program assessments. 

Over the past 20 years, a significant focus of Mr. Dale’s work has been on the development of cluster-
based economic and workforce development strategies. In this regard, he has managed industry cluster 
analyses and developed related retention/ expansion/attraction plans for the following clients:  the cities 
of Anaheim, Los Angeles, and Burbank, and San Buenaventura, California; the County of Kern, California; 
the County of Yuma, Arizona; the High Desert Regional Economic Development Authority (San Bernardino 
County, California); the Forward Greensboro (North Carolina) Economic Development Partnership; the Tri-
Cities (Tennessee/Virginia) Economic Development Alliance; the County of Osceola, Florida; the County of 
Larimer, Colorado; and the cities of Garland and Kyle, Texas. 

Reflecting his longstanding interest in sustainability issues, he serves on the Board of the Roberts 
Environmental Center – a leading publisher of global climate change research and the nation’s foremost 
analyst of corporate sustainability reporting. He has recently completed feasibility studies and related 
economic development strategies for solar energy projects in California, Arizona and China. He has 
prepared more than 50 economic analyses as part of environmental impact reports. 

Education: Mr. Dale received his B.A. cum laude in Economics from Claremont McKenna College in 
Claremont, California. He also holds a master's degree in Resource and Environmental Economics from the 
University of California at Riverside. 

  



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

11 

Joe McClure – Senior Associate, TNDG  

Project Role: Mr. McClure will be a principal participant throughout the process and support Mr. Dale in 
preparation of the Economic Development Element and Implementation Strategy.  

Experience: Joe McClure has served as principal or in other key roles in land economics research and 
advisory-services organizations for the last 38 years.  

Mr. McClure’s multidisciplinary background incorporates many phases of the community and real estate 
development process:  economic analysis and strategy development, market and financial feasibility 
assessment, and planning and design.  Joe has a M.S. in Urban Planning, in a program that emphasized 
regional economics, from the University of Arizona and completed additional postgraduate work in 
economic geography at UA.  He has a B.S. in Architecture from the University of Cincinnati.  Mr. McClure is 
a registered architect in Arizona and a member of the Western Regional Science Association (WRSA)—an 
international group of economic geographers, the Urban Land Institute (ULI), and the Arizona Association 
for Economic Development (AAED).  He has presented papers on business and economic development 
issues at economic development conferences, has served as Adjunct Lecturer at the University of Arizona 
in the Geography and Regional Development program, and on ULI Advisory/Technical Services Teams.  
McClure served as a Civil Engineering Officer in the U.S. Air Force. 

Education: Joe has an M.S. in Urban Planning, in a program that emphasized regional economics, from the 
University of Arizona and completed additional post-graduate work in economic geography at UA. He has a 
B.S. in Architecture from the University of Cincinnati. 

  



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

12 

Alan Levenson – Senior Associate, TNDG  

Project Role: Mr. Levenson will provide technical/research support throughout the process.  

Experience: Mr. Levenson brings to The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. an academic background in economic 
theory with particular emphasis on economic development. Prior to joining the firm, Mr. Levenson spent 
two years as a research consultant for NEMESIS (Núcleo de Estudos Modelos Espaciais Sistêmicos), which is 
a research network dedicated to the study of systemic spatial models of the Brazilian economy. 

A significant focus of Mr. Levenson’s work at TNDG has been on preparing regional economic impact 
analyses for a wide range of projects. Among others, these projects have included a major regional health 
care facility in Riverside, CA, a technology and education park in Tustin, CA, a business park in Victorville, 
CA, and a highway construction interchange project in Pima County, AZ. These analyses have involved 
modeling various projects’ short-term (construction-phase) and permanent (annually recurring) benefits to 
the regional economy. The benefits have been summarized by estimating a project’s impact on total gross 
output, value added, earnings, and employment in the region. As part of this work, Mr. Levenson has 
experience with the major economic impact modeling software packages, including the Bureau of 
Economic Analysis’s Regional Input-Output Modeling System (RIMS) and the IMPLAN program. 

Mr. Levenson has managed the preparation of a number of regional economic development plans, with a 
particular focus on industry “cluster” strategies. This work has involved a wide range of activities: from 
performing quantitative/ statistical analysis to more qualitative analysis, including conducting numerous 
interviews with key players of potential clusters. Mr. Levenson has participated in industry cluster studies 
for the following clients: the Forward Greensboro (North Carolina) Economic Development Partnership, 
the Tri-Cities Tennessee Cluster Study (Tennessee), the Yuma Private Industry Council (Arizona), and the 
City of San Buenaventura (California). 

Mr. Levenson also has a significant amount of experience in fiscal impact analyses, retail market analyses, 
and real estate development feasibility analyses. 

Education: Mr. Levenson joined TNDG 21 years ago, after receiving his B.A. with honors in Economics and 
Political Science from the University of California at Riverside. Mr. Levenson’s undergraduate studies 
included additional coursework in applied mathematics related to economic analysis. He also holds a 
Master’s in Business Administration degree, with a concentration in Real Estate Finance, from UCLA’s 
Anderson School of Management. 

  



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

13 

Joe Collins – Research Associate, TNDG 

Project Role: Mr. Collins will support the project team with data compilation and GIS mapping. 

Experience: Joseph Collins serves as a Research Associate for TNDG. Over the years, his professional career 
has involved him in a variety of both private and public projects in the Midwest and Southwest US. His 
varied experience includes: fiscal and land economic feasibility analysis, geospatial and descriptive data 
analytics, graphic presentation, market analysis, and the practice of urban planning and development. 

Education: Mr. Collins obtained a M.B.A. from Grand Canyon University in Phoenix, Arizona, a M.S. in 
Regional and Community Planning from Kansas State University in Manhattan, Kansas, and a B.S. in 
Geography/Community Planning from Kansas State University. In addition, he has completed coursework 
for general real estate appraisal at the Arizona School of Real Estate and Business in Scottsdale, Arizona.  

  



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

14 

5. SCOPE OF WORK AND METHODOLOGY 

Understanding of the Assignment 

As part of its General Plan update (GPU) process, the City of Santa Fe Springs is seeking consultant support 
to prepare an Economic Development Element (EDE). The EDE will serve the following purposes: 

 
• Identify and prioritize Santa Fe Springs’ most significant business/development opportunities, 

based on research findings and stakeholder input from earlier stages of the GPU process; 
 

• Provide foundational policy direction on General Plan issues influencing Santa Fe Springs’ 
economic development potentials; 
 

• Provide an overall framework for the City’s economic development programming – i.e., a broad set 
of long-term policy objectives that would be carried out in the shorter term through a separate, 
more detailed Implementation Strategy (as described under Task 8 of the proposed work scope); 
 

• Define specific implementation priorities (and, where appropriate, associated action items) for the 
City’s economic development program. Preliminarily, TNDG anticipates that the implementation 
priorities would focus on the following topics: 
 

o Leveraging Santa Fe Springs’ long-established position as a leading industrial center in 
southern California;  
 

o Maintaining the City’s excellent reputation for business friendliness  
 

o Strategically positioning key “opportunity sites” for development/intensification 
(including, for example, a potential focus on facilitating development of underutilized 
properties proximate to transportation corridors) 

 
o Refining the City’s business retention/expansion/attraction goals (i.e., target industries 

and business types) 
 

o Identifying critical infrastructure investments needed to ensure an innovative, competitive 
business environment 

 
o Addressing the technical and financial assistance needs of the local business community 

 
o Maximizing City revenue sources. 

 
TNDG understands that Kosmont Companies has prepared a draft market study as part of the General Plan 
update process, which would serve as part of the technical background for the EDE. Since the Kosmont 
report focuses primarily on real estate market conditions, TNDG would supplement the Kosmont work 
with a detailed target industry analysis (i.e., an industry-by-industry evaluation of prospective target 
tenants for retail, restaurant, office, and industrial space in Santa Fe Springs). TNDG would also coordinate 
with MIG to identify EDE-relevant stakeholder input from earlier stages of the GPU process. The previous 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

15 

work would be supplemented by TNDG through direct interface with key City staff and additional outreach 
to the business/development community as outlined below.  
 
Proposed Scope of Work 

TNDG’s proposed work scope includes the following tasks: 
 

1. Kickoff Meeting. TNDG will facilitate a virtual kickoff meeting with MIG and City staff to get a 
“debrief” on relevant aspects of the GPU process to date, and to review and refine the EDE work 
scope. During this meeting, TNDG will also collect relevant information about the City’s existing 
economic development programs and priorities.  
 

2. Review Background Documents. TNDG will review the Kosmont studies and other relevant 
background documentation provided by MIG and City staff. The purpose of this review will be to 
extract relevant findings regarding economic development opportunities and priorities. The scope 
of the background review will include, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

a. Demographic and socioeconomic trends (updated as appropriate to reflect the most 
recent available data) 

b. Labor force characteristics 
c. Sales tax revenue and other fiscal/financial indicators. 

 
3. Outreach to Business/Development Community. To supplement earlier phases of the General Plan 

stakeholder outreach, TNDG will conduct a series of stakeholder interviews with key 
representatives of the business/development community. As appropriate, some of these 
interviews could be conducted as a focus group meeting with multiple participants. The purposes 
of this outreach will be to validate/refine the Kosmont market study findings and to identify the 
most critical issues affecting the City’s business friendliness. The business/development 
community outreach will be summarized in a technical memorandum. 
 

4. Other Stakeholder Meetings and Interviews (per City’s RFP). In addition to the specific outreach 
to the business/development community, TNDG will lead/participate in the following meetings/ 
interviews for this assignment: 
 

a. One (1) at-large community workshop 
b. Up to two (2) GPAC meetings 
c. Up to ten (10) one-on-one interviews with community stakeholders and City officials/staff 
d. Two (2) meetings with the Planning Commission and/or City Council 
e. As need management meetings with City staff (unlimited – no extra charge). 

 
For each of the above meetings, TNDG will provide the following services: preparation of briefing 
materials for participants; presentation (PowerPoint, etc.) during meetings; facilitation of group 
discussion; and written documentation of stakeholder input. 
 

5. Target Industry Analysis. To build on the Kosmont market study, TNDG will conduct a detailed 
(industry-by-industry) analysis (utilizing EMSI data) of employment growth trends for Santa Fe 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

16 

Springs and the surrounding economic region. This detailed analysis will serve as a basis for 
refining the City’s business retention/expansion/attraction targets. Based on the analysis, TNDG 
will recommend initiatives to address retention, expansion and attraction of small, medium-size 
and large firms in the targeted industry clusters (including business-to-business industries that 
could generate sales tax revenue). The target industry analysis will also provide a basis for defining 
related workforce development strategies.  
 
Starting from a universe of over 1,000 detailed industries (i.e., six-digit NAICS codes) comprising 
the California economy, a list of “candidate” target industries specific to Santa Fe Springs will be 
identified by TNDG based on the local/regional/national employment trends analysis. The 
industries will be specified in terms of NAICS industry sectors for office and industrial tenant types; 
for retail and restaurant tenants, the targets will be defined in terms of retail sales categories 
(TNDG will also provide sample lists of actual retail/restaurant tenant names from comparable 
communities/ settings). Through stakeholder input (and coordination with City staff), the initial 
candidate list will be narrowed to a “short list” of recommended candidate industries. Whereas 
the short list would represent the highest priorities for marketing and other business development 
resources, the recommendations will also incorporate general “businesses friendliness” strategies 
making Santa Fe Springs attractive to wide range of industries (i.e., potentially including non-
targeted sectors).  
 
Although TNDG will not be conducting a detailed housing market analysis, the target industry 
recommendations will consider the potential synergistic effects of adding “rooftops” to the City’s 
land use mix as a means of increasing the City’s attractiveness to key target industries (especially 
retail/restaurant). This component of the analysis will be closely coordinated with the General Plan 
Land Use and Housing Elements.  
 
The target industry analysis will be summarized in a technical memorandum. 
 

6. Preliminary EDE Outline. Based on the above steps, TNDG will prepare a preliminary outline of the 
issues and policy categories to be addressed in the EDE. This information will be presented in 
succinct matrix format to facilitate review by (and input from) City staff. The EDE outline will be 
accompanied by a SWOT analysis summarized in a technical memorandum.  
 

7. Draft and Final EDE. TNDG will prepare draft and final EDE documents, defining broad policy 
direction for the City’s economic development efforts. Consistent with the City’s RFP, TNDG would 
expect the EDE to include the following components: 
 

a. A summary of the most critical economic issues and opportunities emerging from the  
GPU research and stakeholder outreach. 
 

b. Policy framework to facilitate development/reuse of key opportunity sites (e.g., 
underutilized properties proximate to transportation corridors). 

 
c. Recommended business attraction goals (i.e., targeted land uses and tenant types). 

 
d. Policies related to retention and expansion of existing firms. 

 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

17 

e. Policies to maintain/enhance the City’s overall business friendliness.  
 

8. Detailed Implementation Strategy. This work product would be a stand-alone (i.e., separate from 
the General Plan element) economic development strategy providing a detailed action plan for an 
initial 5-year implementation period. As such, it would have a shorter-term focus and provide 
more detail than is typically included in a General Plan element.  
 
The Implementation Strategy will provide a detailed blueprint for the City’s economic 
development programming, with immediate, mid-term and longer-term recommendations for 
attracting, strengthening, and sustaining the identified set of target industries and implementing 
other strategies. The indicated goals and objectives will be specific, measurable, attainable, 
relevant and time bound. The Implementation Strategy will be organized in terms of the following 
elements:  

 
 A Real Estate Development/Marketing Strategy, including specific recommendations for 

industrial, office and retail commercial land uses. These recommendations would be location-
specific and oriented to key “opportunity sites” (or other subareas) identified during the 
course of the planning process. The opportunity sites would be identified in conjunction with 
the General Plan team and City staff. TNDG would anticipate including up to 12 sites in the 
recommendations (but would be flexible on this number if there are compelling reasons to 
include more).  
 

 A Business Retention/Expansion/Attraction Strategy reflecting the specific industry clusters 
and market segments identified in the technical analyses. The target industry strategy will 
include the following components: 
 

• Specific recruitment goals and objectives.  
• Workforce development strategies oriented to the needs of the priority industry 

clusters.  
• Recommendations regarding physical infrastructure improvements and other 

“capacity building” issues relevant to the targeted industry clusters.  
• Recommended marketing framework for a cluster-based strategy.  
• Recognition of existing and potential strategic partnerships with regional economic 

development entities (e.g., LAEDC). 
• Strategies for supporting and encouraging entrepreneurship and innovative 

activities within targeted industry clusters. 
• Strategies that promote the importance of shopping locally. 

 
 A strategy to address Other Foundational Elements, including: 1) recommendations regarding 

physical infrastructure improvements and other “capacity building” issues affecting the 
viability of the target clusters, 2) integration of existing assets such as transportation and 
educational systems, and 3) recommended measures to ensure the City’s continued “business 
friendliness” (reflecting key competitiveness issues identified in the proceeding tasks). 

 



PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

18 

 A Prioritization Matrix indicating the potential timing of the various action items (immediate,
2-3 years, 4-5 years), and identifying the specific projects and programs that would provide the
best leverage of available resources.

 Recommended Staffing/Organizational Structure for the City’s economic development
programming (including discussion on alternative approaches to staffing key functions such as
marketing).

 A Responsibility Matrix indicating the entities who would most appropriately be tasked with
carrying out various action items (potentially including collaborating regional agencies and
private sector “partners”).

 Estimated Implementation Costs and Potential Revenue/Funding Sources including, but not
limited to, special districts and grants.

 A Monitoring Program to track the implementation of the Plan and to refine strategy
objectives over time. The monitoring program will include performance-based “metrics”
utilizing readily available data sources.

Deliverable Work Products 

Per the work scope detailed above, the following major work products will be provided for this 
assignment: 

1. Narrative SWOT analysis (technical memorandum)
2. Summary of outreach to business/development community (technical memorandum)
3. Target industry analysis (technical memorandum)
4. Preliminary EDE outline
5. Draft EDE document
6. Final EDE document
7. Draft Implementation Strategy document
8. Final Implementation Strategy document

The EDE will be formatted according to MIG’s specifications, allowing for seamless integration into the 
overall General Plan document. TNDG has confirmed that MIG will be responsible for printing of the EDE. 

The Implementation Strategy will be a separate document formatted per the City’s specifications. TNDG 
will provide 10 color, bound copies of the final document. 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

19 

6. PROJECT SCHEDULE AND BUDGET 

Completion Timeframe 

TNDG would complete this assignment within approximately five months (20 weeks) of authorization to 
proceed, allowing for finalization well in advance of the projected GP adoption date of October 31, 2021. 
Approximate completion timeframes for major project milestones are as follows: 
 

Work Scope Components Completion Timeframe 
Project Kickoff/Document Review (Tasks 1-2) Weeks 1-2 
Developer/business outreach (Task 3) Weeks 3-6 
Other meetings/interviews (Task 4) Throughout process 
Target industry analysis (Task 5) Weeks 3-6 
Economic Development Element (Tasks 6-7) Outline (Week 8) 

Draft (Week 10) 
Final (Week 14) 

Detailed implementation strategy (Task 7) Draft (Week 16) 
Final (Week 20) 

 
 
Cost Proposal 

TNDG would complete this assignment on a time and materials basis against a maximum, not-to-exceed 
cost of $39,000 (THIRTY-NINE THOUSAND DOLLARS), itemized as follows by major task:  
 

Work Scope Components Not-to-Exceed Cost 
Project Kickoff/Document Review (Tasks 1-2) $4,000 
Developer/business outreach (Task 3) $5,000 
Other meetings/interviews (Task 4): 

- At-large community meeting (1) $1,500 
- GPAC meetings (2) $1,000 
- Stakeholder interviews (10) No charge 
- PC/CC meetings (2) No charge 
- City staff meetings (as needed) No charge 

Target industry analysis (Task 5)1 $9,500 
Economic Development Element (Tasks 6-7) $8,000 
Detailed implementation strategy (Task 7) $10,000 
      Maximum Total $39,000 

 

The indicated meeting costs (Task 4) have been discounted to accommodate the City’s anticipated 
maximum budget for this contract. Due to the close proximity of Santa Fe Springs to our offices, we would 

 
1 Includes cost of EMSI data (approximately $1,500). 



PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

20 

not charge for travel time or costs for this project. As such, the meeting costs would be the same whether 
the meetings are conducted via Zoom or in person. 

TNDG’s standard hourly billing rates are as follows:

Roger Dale - $240 
Joe McClure - $190 
Alan Levenson - $190 
Joe Collins - $125 



 

PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

21 

7. REFERENCES 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for County of Ventura, CA  
Client Contact: Paul Stamper 

Deputy Executive Officer, County Executive Office 
County of Ventura 
(805) 654-3938 
Paul.Stamper@ventura.org 

Dates: June 2016 – October 2017  
Key Personnel: Roger Dale, Joe McClure, Alan Levenson, Joe Collins, Terry Clower 

 

Project: Target Industry Analysis & Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS) for City of Escondido, CA 

Client Contact: Michelle Geller 
(former Economic Development Manager for City of Escondido) 
Economic Development Manager 
City of Oceanside 
(760) 435-3351 
mgeller@oceansideca.org 

Dates: January 2012 – July 2012 (fully updated in 2018) 
Key Personnel: Roger Dale, Joe McClure, Alan Levenson 

 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Palm Desert, CA 
Client Contact: Martin Alvarez 

Director of Economic Development 
City of Palm Desert, CA 
(760) 346-0611 
malvarez@cityofpalmdesert.org 

Dates: August 2017 – February 2018 
Key Personnel: Roger Dale, Joe McClure, Alan Levenson, Joe Collins 

 

Appendix A of this proposal provides web links to the final reports completed for each of the above clients. 
 

  

mailto:Paul.Stamper@ventura.org
mailto:mgeller@oceansideca.org
mailto:malvarez@cityofpalmdesert.org


PROPOSAL FOR SANTA FE SPRINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT
The Natelson Dale Group, Inc. 

22 

APPENDIX A – LINKS TO SAMPLE WORK PRODUCTS 
Representative samples of TNDG’s work are accessible online at the links provided below. Although all of 
our work products are highly customized to reflect the unique circumstances, needs and opportunities of 
each client, the provided samples provide a good indication of the level of detail and overall quality of 
work that the City of Santa Fe Springs can expect for this project. 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Stockton, CA 

Report Link: http://www.stocktongov.com/files/EDStrategicPlan.pdf 

Project: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for City of Escondido, CA 

Report Link: https://rebrand.ly/EscondidoCEDS 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for City of Palm Desert, CA 

Report Link: https://www.cityofpalmdesert.org/home/showdocument?id=9273 

Project: Economic Development Strategic Plan for County of Ventura, CA 

Report Link: http://vcevsp.org/strategic-plan/strategic-planning-documents/ 

http://www.stocktongov.com/files/EDStrategicPlan.pdf
https://rebrand.ly/EscondidoCEDS
https://www.cityofpalmdesert.org/home/showdocument?id=9273
http://vcevsp.org/strategic-plan/strategic-planning-documents/


City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

PRESENTATION 
Proclaiming the Week of May 16 - 22, 2021 as “National Public Works Week” 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
National Public Works Week (NPWW) is a celebration of the tens of thousands of men 
and women in North America who provide the services and maintain the infrastructure 
collectively known as public works.  Instituted as a public education campaign by the 
American Public Works Association (APWA) in 1960, the goal is to call attention to the 
importance of public works in community life.   

National Public Works Week is observed each year during the third full week of May. 
Through NPWW and other efforts, APWA seeks to raise the public’s awareness of 
public works issues and increase confidence in public works employees dedicated to 
improving the quality of life for present and future generations. 

This year's National Public Works Week theme is “Stronger Together.” Challenging us 
to think about the role public works plays in creating a great place to live. Highlighting 
that by working together on goals once thought to be unattainable are now possible.  

The Mayor may wish to call upon the Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete, to receive 
the proclamation. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment: 
Attachment No. 1:  Proclamation 

RECOMMENDATION 
• Proclaim the week of May 16 - 22, 2021 as “National Public Works Week”.

ITEM NO. 20



NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

WHEREAS, public works services provided in our community are an integral part of our 
citizens’ everyday lives; and 

WHEREAS, public infrastructure is the backbone of society; and 

WHEREAS, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the efficient 
operation of public works systems and programs such as water, storm drains, sewers, streets 
and highways, public buildings and facilities, and traffic signals; and 

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and comfort of this community greatly depends on these 
facilities and services; and 

WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their planning, design, 
construction and maintenance is vitally dependent upon the efforts and skill of public works 
officials; and  

WHEREAS, the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel that staff public works 
departments is materially influenced by people’s attitude and understanding of the importance 
of the work they perform, 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, John M. Mora, Mayor of the City of Santa Fe Springs, on behalf of 
the City Council, do hereby proclaim the week of May 16 – 22, 2021 as: 

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

in the City of Santa Fe Springs and recognize the contributions which public works officials 
make every day to our health, safety, comfort, and quality of life. 

DATED this 4th day of May, 2021. 

______________________________ 
JOHN M. MORA, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

JANET MARTINEZ, CITY CLERK 



City  City Council Meeting May 4, 2021 

Report Submitted by:  Janet Martinez Date of Report:  April 29, 2021 
 City Clerk’s Office 

City of Santa Fe Springs
  

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
Committee                  Vacancies      Councilmember 
Beautification and Historical 1 Mora 
Beautification and Historical 3 Zamora 
Beautification and Historical 1 Sarno 
Beautification and Historical 2 Rodriguez 
Beautification and Historical 1 Trujillo 

Family & Human Svcs 1 Mora 

Heritage Arts 1 Zamora 

Parks & Recreation 3 Zamora 
Parks & Recreation 1 Sarno 
Parks & Recreation 1 Trujillo 

Senior 3 Mora 
Senior 3 Zamora 
Senior 4 Trujillo 

Sister City  5 Zamora 
Sister City 3 Sarno 
Sister City 3 Rodriguez 
Sister City 2 Trujillo 

Youth Leadership Committee 2 Mora 
Youth Leadership Committee 1 Rodriguez 

Applications Received: None 
Recent Actions: Felix Miranda Jr. was appointed to the Youth Leadership 
Committee. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment(s): 
1. Prospective Members
2. Committee Lists

ITEM NO. 21



Prospective Members for Various Committees/Commissions

Beautification and Historical* (*pending name change)
Phillip Gonzalez

Family & Human Services

Heritage Arts

Personnel Advisory Board

Parks & Recreation
Danielle Pavageau

Planning Commission

Senior Citizens Advisory

Sister City

Traffic Commission

Youth Leadership



*(pending name)

9:30 a.m., Library Community Room
Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 20 Residents appointed by City Council
Council Liaison: Sarno

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Doris Yarwood
Guadalupe Placensia
Irma Huitron
Vacant

Zamora Annette Ramirez
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Jeannette Lizarraga
Mary Arias
Linda Vallejo
Vacant

Rodriguez Vacant
Sally Gaitan
Mark Scoggins
Vacant

Trujillo Jacqueline Martinez
Kay Gomez
Vacant
Merrie Hathaway

BEAUTIFICATION AND HISTORICAL ADVISORYCOMMITTEE*

Meets the fourth Wednesday of each month



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 15 Residents Appointed by City Council

Council Liaison: Rodriguez

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Martha Villanueva*
Vacant
Miriam Herrera

Zamora Gaby Garcia
Christina J. Colon
Gilbert Aguirre

Sarno Dolores Duran
Janie Aguirre
Peggy Radoumis

Rodriguez Shamsher Bhandari
Elena Lopez
Hilda Zamora

Trujillo Dolores Romero
Laurie Rios*
Bonnie Fox

Organizational Representatives: Nancy Stowe
(Up to 5) Evelyn Castro-Guillen

Elvia Torres

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

Meets the third Wednesday of the month, except Jun., Sept., and Dec., at 5:45 p.m., 
Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center

5 Social Service Agency Representatives Appointed by the 
Committee

(SPIRITT Family Services)

FAMILY & HUMAN SERVICES ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE



HERITAGE ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 9 Voting Members 

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Maria Salazar-Jaramillo

Zamora Vacant

Sarno William K. Rounds

Rodriguez Francis Carbajal*

Trujillo Laurie Rios*

Vacant
Sally Gaitan
Gabriel Jimenez
Debbie Baker

Council Liaison Annette Rodriguez
Council Alternate Vacant

Ray Cruz
Maricela Balderas
Wayne Morrell

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

City Manager
Director of Community Services
Director of Planning 

Council/Staff Representatives

Chamber of Commerce

Committee Representatives

Meets the Last Tuesday of the month, except Dec., at 9:00 a.m., at the Gus Velasco 
Neighborhood Center Room 1

6 Non-Voting Members

Family and Human Services Committee
Beautification and Historical Committee
Planning Commission



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 25
Council Liaison: Mora

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Joe Avila
Eddie Barrios
William Logan
Ralph Aranda 

Kurt Hamra

Zamora Gina Hernandez
Blake Carter
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Kenneth Arnold
Mary Anderson
Jeannette Lizarraga
Vacant
Mark Scoggins

Rodriguez Kayla Perez
Priscilla Rodriguez 
Lisa Garcia
Sylvia Perez
David Diaz-Infante

Trujillo Dolores Romero
Andrea Lopez
Elizabeth Ford
Nancy Krueger
Vacant

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

Meets the First Wednesday of the month, except Jul., Aug., and Dec., 7:00 p.m., 
Town Center Hall, Meeting Room #1
Subcommittee Meets at 6:00 p.m.

PARKS & RECREATION ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE



PERSONNEL ADVISORY BOARD

Membership:

Terms:

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Council Angel Munoz
Ron Biggs

Personnel Advisory Board Neal Welland

Firemen's Association Jim De Silva

Employees' Association Johnny Hernandez

\

Meets Quarterly on an As-Needed Basis

Four Years

5 (2 Appointed by City Council, 1 by Personnel 
Board, 1 by Firemen's Association, 1 by 
Employees' Association)



PLANNING COMMISSION

Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership:

APPOINTED BY NAME

Mora Ken Arnold

Sarno Johnny Hernandez

Rodriguez Francis Carbajal*

Trujillo William K. Rounds

Zamora Gabriel Jimenez

Meets the second Monday of every Month at 4:30 p.m.,                                                       
Council Chambers

5



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 25
Council Liaison: Sarno

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Paul Nakamura
Astrid Shesterkin
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Zamora Vacant
Elena Lopez Armendariz
Josefina Lara
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Sally Gaitan
Bonnie Fox
Gilbert Aguirre
Lorena Huitron
Janie Aguirre

Rodriguez Yoko Nakamura
Linda Vallejo
Hilda Zamora
Martha Villanueva*
Nancy Krueger

Trujillo Dolores Duran
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

SENIOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Meets the Second Tuesday of the month, except Jun., Sep., and Dec., at 9:30 a.m.,   
Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 25
Council Liaison: Mora

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Martha Villanueva*
Doris Yarwood
Laurie Rios*
Peggy Radoumis
Francis Carbajal*

Zamora Vacant
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Manny Zevallos
Vacant
Jacqueline Martinez
Vacant
Vacant

Rodriguez Jeannette Wolfe
Shamsher Bhandari
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Trujillo Charlotte Zevallos
Andrea Lopez
Vacant
Marcella Obregon
Vacant

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

SISTER CITY COMMITTEE
Meets the First Monday of every month, except Dec., at 6:45 p.m., Town Center Hall, 
Mtg. Room #1.  If the regular meeting date falls on a holiday, the meeting is held on 
the second Monday of the month.



TRAFFIC COMMISSION

Membership:
Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 

APPOINTED BY NAME

Mora Bryan Collins

Sarno Johana Coca

Rodriguez Felix Miranda

Trujillo Linda Vallejo

Zamora Christina J. Colon

Meets the Third Thursday of every month, at 6:00 p.m., Council Chambers

5



Membership: 20
Council Liaison: Zamora

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Kharisma Ruiz
Jilliana Casillas
Vacant
Vacant

Zamora Joseph Casillas
Savanna Aguayo
Valerie Melendez
Christian Zamora

Sarno Abraham Walters
Aaron D. Doss
Valerie Bojorquez
Maya Mercado-Garcia

Rodriguez Jasmine Rodriguez
Angelique Duque
Felix Miranda Jr.
Vacant

Trujillo Bernardo Landin
Isaac Aguilar 
Andrew Bojorquez
Alan Avalos 

YOUTH LEADERSHIP COMMITTEE

Qualifications: Ages 13-18, reside in Santa Fe Springs

Meets the First Monday of every month, at 6:30 p.m., Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center


	Agenda
	Item No. 6
	Item No. 7
	Item No. 8A
	Item No. 8B
	Item No. 9
	Item No. 10
	Item No. 11
	Item No. 12
	Item No. 13
	Item No. 14
	Item No. 15
	Item No. 16
	Item No. 17
	Item No. 18
	Item No. 20
	Item No. 21



